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We are one of the largest providers of services 1o mortgage
intermediaries and valuation services to the UK’s biggest
moertgage lenders. We also operate 2 network of owned and
franchised estate agency branches.

For further information about our Group, please visit our
website: Islps.co.uk.

Forward locking statements

This Report may contain forward looking statements with
respect to certain plans and current goals and expectations
relating to the future financial condition, business performance
and results of LSL. Further information about forward looking
statermnents can be found in the Shareholder Information section
on page 183.



2022 Highlights

in 2022, the Group traded well in challenging market conditions, whilst making substantial progress in the
execution of our strategy to grow and te become a B2B financial services provider

Divisional Underlying Operating Profit
Before central costs
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Financial

Agenty Services

£10.5m £13.3m
7 243 30%

" 'Net Cash Group Revenue

£40.1n | £321.7.

{2021: £48.5m) {2021: £326.8m}
{17%) SR T
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2022 2021 Var
Group Revenue (£m) 321.7 326.8 (2)% S
Group Underlying Operating Profit® (Em) 36.9 49,3 (25)% g
Group Underlying Operating margin (%) 11% 15% {370)bps %
Exceptional gains (Em! 0.7 311 (98)% 3
Excentional costs (Em) (88.9) (2.0) nm &
Group operating {ioss)/profit (£m) (56.7) 726 {178)%
{Loss)/Profit before tax {(Em) {59.1) 69.9 {185)%
Basic Earnings per Share? (pence} (62.3} 596 {205}%
Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share? (pence) 28.4 37.7 (25)%
Net Cash? at 31 December {fm) 40.1 48,5 (171%
Fina! proposed dividend (pence} 7.4 7.4 —
Full year dividend {pence) 11.4 11.4 - g
nm: not meaningfui §
g
Notes: g
> Group Underlying Operatirg Profit is before excaptional items, contingent consideration, amartisation g-

of intangible assets and share-based payments (as set out in note S to the Financial Statements).
2 Refer to note 11 to the Firancial Statements for the calculation,
* Refer to note 35 to the Firancial Statements for the calculation.
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2023 Outlook

02

Wa expect market conditions to remain ehallenging duning H1 but to improve in H2 and thereafter, supporled by a strong remortgage market,
and further improvements in consumer confidence and transaction levels assisted by recent reductions in mortgage rates

Trading in our Financia! Services Network and Estate Agency businesses is in line with expectations, with signs of increasing momentum.

In Surveying & Valuation, valuations in more specialist areas such as equity release and buy-to-let have recovered less quickly after the rise in
interest rates and market disruption which followed the 2022 muni-budget, with these sectors still trending significantly below 2022,

We will manage costs pro-actively as market conditions evolve.
Planned investment for the longer term will continue, underpinning confidence for the future.

LSL remains very well-piaced to benefit as market conditions improve.



About LSL and Our Markets

About LSL

Uiiless slaled olherwise, informatian in this sechon of the Report is as at 31 December 2022,
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We are one of the largest providers of services to mortgage intarmediaries and valuation services to the UK's biggest mortgage lenders. We also

operate a network of cwned and franchised estate agency branches.

Jodny M

We have three Divisions:
* Financial Services.
* Surveying & Valuabon,

* Estate Agency.

Financial 7 surveying& Estate
Services ~x0 . Valuation 0 s Agency

L
H

One of the UK’s Cne of the UK’s Some of the UK’s
largest mortgage and largest surveying and largest estate
insurance networks valuation businesses agency brands
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Financial Services

One of the UK’s largest mortgage and insurance networks

Together, the PRIMIS Network and The Mortgage Alliance {TMA) made up one of the UK's largest mortgage and insurance networks. PRIMIS,
with 993 firms and 2,867 financial advisers, is a mulb-award winner, winning Best Network, 300+ Appointed Representatives at the 2022
Mortgage Strategy Awards. Furthermore over 700 firms used TMA in 2022,

Pivotal Growth
Following the 2022 vear end, we have sold cur D2C broker businesses to Pivotal Growth, our buy and build joint venture with Poflen Street
Capital. Since 1ts creation in 2021, Pivotal Growth has acquired efght businesses, camprising of around 330 advisers including the Group First,

RSC, Embrace Financiat Services and F2P businesses sold by us to Pivotal Growth in 2023,

SIIALILYS jelsuely

Surveying & Valuation

Our Surveying & Valuation Division includes e.surv, one of the UK’s largest surveying and valuation businesses, and Walker Fraser Steele
Chartered Surveyors, which services the Scottish market. e.surv is one of the UK’'s biggest employers of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
{RICS) registered surveyors, with 512 {FTE) surveyors, and counts seven of the UK's ten largest lenders amongst its clients. It was named Bast
Surveying Firm at the 2022 Mortgage Finance Gazette Awards and Best Surveyor at the 2022 Equity Release Awards with Martgage Selutions.

Since 1 April 2023, the Division also includes our asset management business, LSL Corporate Client Department and Ternpleton LPA, which were
previously included in the Estate Agency Division.

Estate Agency

We own two of the UK’s largest estate agency brands, Your Move and Reeds Rains, as well as a network of smaller brands operating under the
LSLi urnbretla in the South East. Together, as at 12 apnl 2023, we own 182 estate agency branches and we have 127 franchised branches. During
2022, the Division also included Marsh & Parsons, a London estate agency business which was sold in January 2023.

UDPEULITEI] AAYIO

We also have other specialist businesses within our Estate Agency Division:
- LSL Land & New Homes provides a2 complete range of services for house builders and residential property investors.

- Homefast Property Services provides conveyancing pane! management and support services to customers of our Estate Agency branches.
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About LSL and Our Markets

Our Markets

Demand for our proaducts and services is duiven primanily by Lhe UK mortgage market in the binancial Services and Surveying & Valuation
Divisions, and by the UK housing market in tha Estate Agency Division. There is some correlation between the UK housing and mortgage
markets, although remortgages, product transfers and msurance are significant parts of the mortgage market and are cften not correlated with
the housing market.

Mortgage Market
Both demand for mortgages and advice from financial advisers remained strong in 2022%

« Total gross mortgage lending® in 2022 was £314bn, 2% higher than the prior year {2021: £308bn) with a shift towards refinancing, and
purchase mortgages accounted for only 61% of total lending {2021: 69%).

« The proportion of mortgage lending placed through financial advisers’ increased to 81% in 2022 (2021: 77%).

Total mortgage approvals for house purchases® were down 19% to 755,000 1in 2022, with demand softening in H2 due to affordability issues.

Remortgage (and other)® approvels were up 12% an 2021, while remerigage and other lending was 27% shead as consumers sought security
in an uncertain market.

Housing Market
2022 was a smaller housing market after one of the strongest years on racerd for the UK residential property market in 2021, which was
materially impacted by the Government scheme waiving stamp duty:

* UK housing transactions® in 2022 were 1,260,000, down 15% year-on-year (2021: 1,480,000},
« Transactions* were down 28% in H1 2027 and 2% up year-on-year in H2 2022,

» Atthe end of 2022, average house prices in England and Wales® were 8% higher than the same period last year.
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Total Mortgage Approvals for House Purchase Remortgage {and other) Volumes
‘000s ‘000s
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Total Grass Mortgage Lending
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Total Mortgage Approvals
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Sources:

New mortgage lending by purpose of loan, UK (Bank of England) - Table MM23 {3 March 20232).
New residentiaf lending scld direct and via interrmediaries {excluding praduct transfers), UK Finance — Table RL8 {16 February 2023). R
Approvals for lending secured on dwellings, Bank of England - Table AS.4 (1 March 2023).

Number of residental property transaction complenions with valus £40,000 or above, HMRC (21 February 2023}
House price index, England 2nd Wales, LSL Acadata (December 2023).
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Chair's Statement

I'm pleased to present our Annual Report and
Accounts for 2022 In this Report you will find
an in-depth review of the Group’s financial
performance together with details of the
progress we have made taking forward our
strategy. I'm delighted to say we can report
positive developments on both fronts.

Market background

There is no guestion that this is a challenging
time for the UK economy and in particular for
many of the markets in which we operate.
This is particularly true in the aftermath of
the Government’s October mini-budget and
the attendant uncertainty that followed. One
outcome from the raptd rise in mortgage
and interest rates being that in Q4 2022 we
experienced a short term reduction of up to
50% in activity rates across the Group, with
Surveying & Valuatior being impacted in
particutar.

Financial highlights

Our performance was very resilient given
these market conditions, with each of our
three Divisions trading well and gaining
market share. This strong trading contributed
10 a full year Group Underlying Operating
Profit of £36.9m and helped build an end of
year Net Cash balance of £40.1m, which was
boosted further by the disposal of Marsh

& Parsons in February 2023, This streng
position indicates the cash-genarative nature
of our business and will allow us to continue
to invest with confidence in our growth
strategy.

On a statutory basis, Group operating loss
was £56.7m which reflects an exceptional
impairment charge of £87.2m for goodwill
and other intangible assets.

Significant strategic progress made to
simplify the Group and focus on B2B
services

in 2021 we launched our joint venture with
Pollen Street Capital, Pivotal Growth, to buy
and huild a leading national mortgage broker
business. Since its inception, Pivotal Growth
has acquired eight businesses, including

in January 2023, our new build breker
businesses, RSC and Group First and in April
2023, Embrace Financial Services and F2P,
our other two D2C broker businesses, These
disposals are in line with our strategy to
simplify the Group and focus on developing
further our leading Financial Services

a6

Network business, We also believe that
Pivotal Growth is better placed to increase
+he value of the acquired businesses as they
suppaort Pivotal Growth's strategy to become
2 leading player in the new build and D2C
sectors.

We also disposed of Marsh & Parsonsin
January 2023, a leading high end London
estate agent which has since 1ts acquisition
in 2011, operated autonomously from other
parts of our tstate Agency Uision.

Dividend

As at the date of this Report we have also
built up significant Net Cash balances and we
have successfully restated and extended our
banking facility, which is now for £60m and
will expire in May 2026. With these in place,
we have considered paying a dividend in line
with the Group's existing policy to pay out
30% of Group Underlying Operating Profit
after finance and normalised tax charges.
This pelicy is designed to provide clarty to
shareholders and ensure that the Group
retains a strong balance sheet for all market
conditions.

Despite ecenomic conditions having an
impact on current earnings, due to the
significant progress made in executing our
strategy, the Board believes that LSLis in
good shape to trade profitably and is very
well-placed to benefit as market conditions
improve.

In light of this and in view of the Board’s
confidence about the future prospects of the
Group, the Board is recommending a final
dividend of 7.4 pence, This, if approved, will
deliver a total dividend of 11.4 pence per
share, unchanged from the previous year.

The ex-dividend date is 27 April 2023 with a
record date of 28 April 2023 and a payment
date of 2 June 2023. Shareholders can elect
to reinvest their cash dividend and purchase
additional shares in LSL through a dividend
reinvestment plan. The election date is

11 May 2023,

Governance

The Board remains committed to strong
corporate governance and in particular
making sure we monitor and challenge our
strategy, performance, risks and approach
to managing our colleagues. You can read
more about our corporate governance

arrangements in the Corporate Governance
Report in this Report (page 54).

Subsidiary governance 15 also an important
part of cur strategy to grow our Financiat
Services business. To ensure we have the
right governance arrangements to support
growth and to respond 1o the introduction
of new regulations, we have invested in

the management bench strength of our
Financial Services Management Team and
strengthened our nsk and comphance
arrangements with the appointment of an
independent Non Executive Chalr to the
PRIMIS Risk and Compliance Committee. John
Lowe has been appointed inte this role as he
has significant experience in retail financial
services businesses.

Whilst we committed last year to undertake
an externally tacilitated evaluation in 2022,
we agreed to defer this exercise to allow

my successar to join the Board befare the
exercise was undertaken. Instead, Gaby
Appleton, Senior Independent Director,

has ohce again led the evaluation process
which has included an evaluation of my
performance as Chair. Details of the exercise
and reccmmendations are contained in the
Corporate Governance Report in this Report
[page 54).

Board changes

During the year, Sonya Ghobrial jeined as

an independent Non Executive Director and
we have benefitted from her experience,

ih particutar in relation ta £5SG and investor
relations matters. We also announced in June
2022 that Helen Buck, Executive Director —
Estate Agency would retire from the Board
in 2023. Helen has been on the Board since
2011 when she joined as an independent
Non Executive Director. She moved into the
role of Executive Director — Estate Agency in
2017 and in both of her roles she has made

a significant contribution to the Board. On
behalf of the Board, | wish to thank Helen for
her contribution, especially her leadership

in resizing our Estate Agency Division, and
during the pandermic.

Following Helen’s decision to retire, we
commenced a search to appoint a new
Managing Director for the Estate Agency
Division. Earfier this month, we announced
the appointment of Pau! Hardy into this

role. This is an internal promotion, and while



Paul will not be an Executive Director he
has joined the Executive Committee and 15 a
POMR.

With my Board membership reaching nire
years in January 2023, the Naminatens
Committee, led by Gaby Appleton, undertook
an exercise to identify a new Chair. | did not
participate in this process, and we announced
on 3 April 2023 the appointment of David
Barral as Chair Designate. David has joined
the Board, the Nominativns Connullee and
the Remuneration Commitiea. He will take
over the roles of Chair of the Board and the
Nominations Committee with effect from the
close of the 2023 AGM, which is when | will
retire from these roles. For further details
relating to our succession planning process,
including how we have sought to ensure our
search supports diversity, see the Corporate
Governance Reportin this Report {page 54},

Nominations Committee

During 2022, 1 chaired the Nominations
Committee, which met six times during the
year. Our work included recommending
to the Board the adoption of our Diversity
Policy, which covers the Board, its
Committees and the Senior Management
Team and includes targets which align to
the FCA's rules. All aspects of diversity are
important to the Board, including gender,
ethnicity, disability, social and cognitive.

ESG

Since launching our Living Responsibly
strategy and pregramme in 2021, we have
continued to progress cur ESG priorities
through this programme and we are also
publishing our second Living Responsibly
Report. This includes the significant work of

our colleague forums: Inclusion and Divers:ty,
and Communities; and our Ervironmental
Warking Group, which have helped us to
deliver on our social and envirenmental
oriorites. Qur ESG and Living Responsibly
Report provide progress updates under each
of our five priorites:

a. promoting inclusion and diversity on our
Board and in our workforce;

=

. engaging, supporting and investing in our
colleagues;

C. supporting colleague priorities and

connecting with our focal communities;

o

. minimising our environmental foctprint;
and

e. ensuring excellent governance.

Qur priorities align with our purpose,

wullure and values which are detailed at

the beginning of the Strategic Reportin

this Report (page 12). During 2023 we will
cantinue to progress our priorities, especially
to improve our data on colleague diversity
to help us understand our colleague make-
up. We are also seeking to understand

the experiences of our colleagues’ career
progression through the Group so that we
can improve diversity at senior levels within
the workforce as a whole. We will also focus
on improving the diversity of our workforce
especially in areas and regions where we are
under-represented when compared with the
regional census data.

Colleagues

We are very much a people business, and
the Board places a high priority on keeping
in touch with our colleagues. In addition to
the colieague forums that play an active role
in our Living Responsibly programme, we

work closely with our Employee Engagement
Forum, for exarrple we consulted the forum
ahead of making a cost of living payment

of £500 1o all colleagues earning less than
£30,000.

Cur pecple play a key part in our success and
never more so than during difhcult economic
periods. On behalf of ali the Board, 1'd like

to thank them for all their hard work and
commitment.

Looking ahead

This is my last year as Chair, and althaugh
there are no doubt challenges ahead, | am
clear that LSL is very well-positioned. We
have a clear strategy, against which we have
made substantial progress, and each of our
core businesses are trading well. Our strong
Net Cash position allows us to invest with
confidence throughout the economic cycle
and to take advantage of the significant
growth opportunities we have identified.
Importantly, | have been fortunate to work
with a talented and committed Board and
Management Team and | lock forward to
seeing LSL go from strength to strength in the
future.

Bill Shannon
Chair
12 April 2023
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Group Chief Executive Officer's Review

| am pleased to confirm that LSL remains in
good shape and is well-positioned to grow
once met kel Londitions improve.

Although the mortgage and housing markets
have been adversely impacted by economic
and political uncertainty, the Group has
continued to trade well and backed by a
strong balance sheet, we expect to remain
resilient throughout 2023 inwhat are
antictpated to be difficult, but steadily
impraving, market conditions.

Furthermore, we have made very substantial
progress in executing our Financial Services-
led growth strategy, significantly reducing
our expesure to housing market cycles, With
a strong balance sheet, including Net Cash
balarces of £40.1m at the yearend and a
business model that remains highly cash-
generative, LSLIs well placed to benefit as
scoh as market conditions normalise.

Group Revenue was droadly inline with 2021
at £321.7m. This included record revenue

of £81.7m in Financial Services, and a very
strong H1 2022 performance in Surveying &
Valuation, which was subsequently impacted
by the significant and unexpected market
disruption resulting from economic and
political uncertainty in Q4 2022,

Group Underlying Operating Profit was down
25% compared to 2021 at £36.9m, whichis
mostly attributable to reduced volumes in
surveying & Valuation during Q4 2022 and
the impact of a slowdown in the residential
sales market in Estate Agency. On a statutory
basis, the Group cperating loss was £56.7m,
after the Board reduced the carrying value of
goodwill by £87.2m. This is a non-cash item
reflecting the impact of more conservative
mid-term housing assumptions, higher
discount rates and the dispesal of non-core
businesses, including Marsh & Parsons.

In 20213, the Group reported a statutory
operating profit of £72.6m, which was
poosted by a £29.4m gain on the disposal of
interests in joint ventures, which was also
part of our strategy to exit from non-core
businesses.

in Financial Services, the Underlying
Operating Profit of our Network busingess
was £15.5m, ahead of the record result in
2021 (£14.4m). Although member firms
were naturally cautious about adviser
numbersin H2, there was alse modest
further year-on-year growth in the number

08

of advisers, bringing the year end total to
2,867 In addition, more than 700 other firms
submitted business through LSUs mortgage
club, further boosting our market share,

The Financial Services Division as a whole
secured an 11% increase in overall lending,
well ahead of the whole market which had
only modest growth of 1.9%. This resulted in
a substantial market share improvement to
10.4%" from 9.6% in 2021,

Underlying Operating Profit for the Financial
Services Division as a2 whole reduced by
£1.3m, as the Group’s D2C advice businesses
were impacted by lower levels of activity in
the new build market in particulay, and the
house purchase market in general. Our D2C
financial services businesses were transferred
during the early part of 2023 to our joint
venture with Pollen Street Capital, Pivotal
Growth, in line with £5Us strategy to focus

its activities on B2B services. We believe
Pivotal Growth, in which the Group has a 48%
equity share, is better placed to take these
businesses forward for the benefit of our
shareholders.

Surveying & Valuation traded very strongly
through to the end of Q3 2022, capitalising
on recent cantract wins and increased
allocations as well as further growth of

73% in D2C and data revenues. Its excellent
performance was interrupted by the market-
wide hiatus in merigage activity in October
and November, as lenders remained cautious
whilst the political and economic impact of
the events that followed September’s mini-
budget became clearer. This is estimated

to have directly reduced H2 Underlying
Operating Profit in the Surveying & Valuation
Division by at feast £5m,

Nevertheless, the Surveying & Valuation
Division still reported Underlying Operating
Profit of £20.4m, down £3.2m on 2021, but
still £4.1m or 25% higher than the pre-
COVID-19 performance of £16.3m reported
in 2019. Despite the market pressure, the
Underlying Qperating Profit margin remained
resilient at 22%. Income per job increased
slightly to £175, £2 up on 2021,

Estate Agency revenues were down 5%

on 2021, when performance was boosted
substantially by the extension of the stamp
duty holiday. H2 2022 improved materially
year-on-year on the back of the pipeline built
up in H1. Lettings revenue was resilient and

increased by 4%, on a like-for-fike basis, over
ihe prior vear.

Estate Agency retained the residential

sales market share gains made in its core
catchment areas in 2021, and as a result
shghtly increased its national market share?
10 1.30% (2021: 1.28%). Conversion of its
exchange pipeline remained slow throughout
the year, impacting H1 performanee in
particular. H2 2022 saw fewer new properties
coming to market and fewer sales agreed

but the strong pipeline built in H1 secured an
operating profit double the size of H2 2021.
Unsurprisingly, given increased econamic
and housing market uncertainty, there was

a trend towards more fall-throughs, largely
affecting more recently agreed sales, both of
which will impact performance in Q1 2023.

Lettings revenue was resilient, increasing
by 4%, on a like-for-like basis, over 2021.
The impact of slow exchange speeds,
reduced house purchase activity and a solid
lettings performance combined to produce
Underlying Operating Profit for the Estate
Agency Division of £10.5m, £7.9m below the
performance in 2021 which had benefitted
significantly from the extension of the
stamp duty holiday to 30 June 2021. The
performance during H2 was 4% ahead of
H2 2021.

Strategic priorities and developments

The Group has made substantial progress
with the strategy we set out in 2020 to
reduce cur exposure to housing market
cycles, simplify the business and focus
investment on high growth areas, notably our
Financial Services Network business,

In January 2023, we announced the disposal
of our London estate agency business, Marsh
& Parsons, to Dexters for a consideration of
£29m. Marsh & Parsons, which contributed
£1.5m to 2022 Underlying Operating

Profit, has a relatively low volume, high

fee business model when compared to the
rest of the Estate Agency Division, and was
particularly exposed to Londen housing
market cycles giving rise to a relatively
volatile earnings profile. Other steps to
simplify the Group include the disposal of our
small property management business PRSIim
and the consolidation of asset management
operations within Surveying & Valuation.



Throughout 2022 we maintained our level

of investment in Mortgage Gym and DLPS,
the technology businesses acquired in April
2021 to support cur Financial Services growth
plans. Work centinued 1o adapt and develop
the technology with a view to deployment
across our Financial Services Network, with
the first stage of this work to be completed
during 2023, This technelogy investrment
helps our Network members become more
efficient as well as generatng additinnal
income far them and the Group. In 2023,

we will complete our work to refocus these
businesses, which will be absorbed into the
Financial Services Network reflecting what is
now their predominant business focus.

Our Financial Services-led growth plans are
centred on the B2B service offered te our
Network members where we believe thare
are significant oppartunities to grow further
by expanding the number of advisers and the
product range they distribute. The Netwark
business offers a highly scalable, low cost
platform through which strang margins can
be sustained in different market conditions
and is consistent with cur vision of LSL as a
B2B service provider.

We previously concluded that 1t would

be better to pursue the considerable
opportunities in the D2 mortgage broking
market under a different ownership structure
to that of the Group, so that significant
capital could be deployed and entrepreneurs
incentivised appropriately through

different economic cycles. This led to the
announcement in 2021 of cur Pivotal Growth
buy and build joint venture with Pollen Street
Capital.

Pivotal Growth has new acquired eight
businesses, comprising around 330 advisers,
including the Group First and RSC, Embrace
Financial Services and F2P D2C businesses
transferred from LSL. The consideration

for RSC, Group First and Embrace Financial
Services will be based an their financial
pnerformance in 2024. The consider atiun lor
F2P is payable at completion.

{ believe this is an exciting move for both
Pivotal and LSL, providing increased scale
for Pivotal and the right environment for
these businesses to grow further. It has also
helped simplify the L5L Group considerably,

suhstantally reducing our cost base and
exposure Lo housing market cycles whilst alse
reducing management siretch to enable us to
focus on the substantial cpportunity to grow
the remaining Financial Services Network,
Surveying & Valuation and Estate Agency
businesses.

In Surveying & Valuation we have continued
to diversify our revenue streams. In May
2022, we launched a consumer-facing
webslte to support the growth of our
enhanced D2C proposition, where we
achieved a 60% increase in revenue year-
on-year. Providing data services to lenders
has strengthened our relationships and
helped secure contract wins and increased
allecations of valuation instructichs, whilst
we have established a strong position in the
equity refeasc valuation segrmenl, a sector we
expect to grow significantly over the medium
term. Equity release instructions accounted
for approximately 16% of revenue in 2022
(2021: 12%).

Strong balance sheet

Qur cash generation in the year resulted

in @ Net Cash balance of £40.1m. This was
boosted further in January 2023 following
the dispasal of Marsh & Parsons fora
consideration of £29m. Qur strong balance
sheet and continuing strong cash generation
enables us to invest with confidence
throughout the economic cycle, including
restructuring the Group to deliver our
ambitious growth strategy. In 2023, we

will continue to invest in capability and
technology, support Pivotal Growth inits
acquisition of D2C brokerages, and consider
potential acquisition targets to build our
Financial Services Network business. The
Board will continue to actively review

its capital allocaticn policy to ensure we
maintain an efficient halance sheet.

Te provide further flexibility to our balance
sheet, during February 2023 we agreed an
amended and restated banking faciiity with
a maturity date of May 2026, arranged on
materially the same terms, replacing the
previous £90m with a £60m revolving credit
facility with major mainstream UK lenders,
available on request at any time.

Dividend

The Board has considerad the proposed
dividend in light of the Group’s policy to pay
out 30% of Group Underlying Operating
Profit after finance and normahsed tax
charges, such that dividend cover is held at
approximately three times earnings over the
business cycle. This policy was designed to
provide clarity to shareholders and ensure
the Group retained a strong balance sheet for
all market conditions.

Although economic conditions have affected
current earnings, we have made signihicant
progress in executing our strategic shift to
develop a business that is less exposed to the
housing market cycle.

As part of that shift and the associated
rationalisation of certain businesses such
asthe recent sale of Marsh & Parsons, we
have buiit significant Net Cash balances,
which at 31 December 2022 and prior to
the disposal of Marsh & Parsons, stood at
£40.2m. In light of this exceptionally strong
cash position and the Beard’s confidence in
the future prospects of the Group, the Board
recommends a final dividend of 7.4 pence. If
approved, this would give & total dividend of
11.4 pence per share, unchanged from last
year.

The ex-dividend date is 27 April 2023 witha
record date of 28 April 2023 and a payment
date of 2 June 2023. Sharehaolders ean elect
to reinvest their cash dividend and purchase
additional shares in L5SL through a dividend
reinvestment plan. The election date is

11 May 2023.

The Board continues to keep its capital
allocation policy and balance sheet structure
under close review to ensure it s fit for
purpose for our evolving business model and
will seek to update shareholders en this as
appropriate.

Living Responsibly

The Board believes that success is measured
by more than just profits and cur Living
Responsibly programme is at the centre of
our sustainability strategy. Put simply, our
abjective is to have a positive effect on the
communities in which we operate, whether
that is measured by the impact we have

on the environment, the opportunihes we
provide to colleagues, the way we serve our
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Group Chief Executive Officer's Review

custamers or the wark we yndertake in our
communities.

In our ESG and our Living Responsibly
Reports, we set out some of the steps we
have taken te limit our environmental impact,
help ensure LSLis a supportive and inclusive
workplace and provide support to good
causes.

It s vital that our Living Responsibly
programme has real substance and is
reflected in everything we do. We are helped
to achieve this by a number of independent
colieague forums and working groups which
provide additional insight in key areas.
Further information on these, including the
estabhshment in 2023 of LS Voices is also
set out in our Living Responsibly Report. |
am grateful to the very many collezgues who
have willingly given their time and energy to
support this work.

I am equally gratefu! for the hard werk and
commitment of all our staff during what has
been a hugely challenging period ang which
has helped ensure LSt 1s well-positioned to
thrive in all market conditions, and would like
to take this opportunity to thank them for
their effort and support.

Looking ahead

We have made significant progress in
reshaping the Group in line with our

strategy and each of our core businesses are
perfarming well. After a strong start to 2022
which saw us build substandal pipelines in
Estate Agency and Financial Services, market

Notes:

conditions detericrated as a result of political
instability and sharply rising interest rates
and although we expect to see a steady
improvement in activity over the course of
the year, it is clear that conditions will remain
challenging throughout 2023.

Howevel, LSL remains well-positioned for
future growth. Independent morigage
brokers typically perform well in challenging
markets, being agile and close to their client’s
needs, and this will help ensure our Financial
Services Network busmesses will remain
resilient. In addition, zlthough some areas

of the valuation market remain depressed
following the market uncertainty which
followed the 2022 mini-budget, our Surveying
& Valuation business remains very well-
placed for medium term growth, helped by
recent contract wins and good progress made
in developing new income streams.

We have made substantial progress in
restructuring and refocusing the Group’s
activities and will continue this work in
2023. Our very strong balance sheet allows
us to continue to invest for the future

with confidence, and | am excited about
the Group’s potential and look forward to
reporting growth in 2024 and beyond.

David Stewart
Group Chief Executive Officer
12 April 2023

! Maortgage lending excluding product transfers — New mortgage lending by purpose of loan, UK {Bank of

England} — Table MM23.

2 Number of residential property transaction completons with value £40,000 or above, HMRC,

10
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Purpose, Strategy, Culture, Values and

Rusiness Model

The Board has established our purpose,
culture, values and strategy. Qur purpose
statement, culture and values are aligned to
our strategy, pravice an anchor point for nsk
management and articulate what joins our
group of companies together.

Our purpose

To prowide first class services to mortgage and
insuronce advisers, estate agents, lenders and
their customers, to create fong term benefits
Jor external stakeholders and our people

Our strategy
Financial Services is at the heart of our
strategy.

During 2023, we will continue to develop
our Surveying & Valuation and Estate
Agency Divisions’ business models, including
leveraging their capabilities to grow the
Financial Services Division.

Our strategic objectives are to:

« Reduce our expasure to housing market
volatility.

« Generate more resilient and reliable
revenues, plus a more flexible cost base.

+ Focus cn and invest in growth markets.

s Investin acquisitions and partnerships,
where it supports our strategy, plus digital,
data and technology.

« leverage cross-Group apportuniies.

« Focus on our Living Responsibly strategy
and our ESG programme.

» Retain, develop and attract talented
people.

For details of the steps we have taken to

deliver our strategy during 2022, see the
Group CEO Review and the Business Reviews.

Our business model {as at the date of this Report)

Talented and
committed -
‘people

Through a number
of key resources,,.

...we provide a range Services
of first class products

and services...

Mortgage and

...T0 our customers... insurance

intermediaries

...for the benefit of
all our stakeholdars...

Key
Group
Financial Services

Surveying & valuation

Estate Agency

to mortgage
intermediaries

) Group E
infrastructure

Leading
technology

Valuation
and surveys

!.ém!e_m . . .

Qur culture
We describe our desired culture as;

Having the right people: who accept
accountability for their actions.

Daing the right things: which deliver
customer expectations.

in the right way: being open, challenging of
themselves and supporting others.

Qur values

Our values, which underpin our culture, are:
s People focused.

* Market leaders.

Hanesty.

Delivering on prorises

Teamwork.

Innovation.

Estate agency
services

Retail customers

co“eagues m “




Financial and Divisional Reviews

Financial Review

Group summary [P&1)

Group Revenue of £321.7m was 2% below
the record revenue last year (2021: £326.8m),
with Financial Services Division revenue up
4%, Surveying & Vajuation revenue down 1%
and Estate Agenhcy revenue down 5%.

In the Financial Services Divisian, Financial
Services Network revenue increased by

9% which was a positive performance in

a broadly flat mortgage market. Financial
Services Other yevenue was inline wilh prior
year as our D2C bysinesses were impacted
by slower residential activity, offset by
remoertgage activity. Surveying & Valuation
revenue was impacted in the aftermath of
the UK mini-budget, illustrated by October
YTD revenue running at 9% ahead of prior
year whilst 1% back for the full year. Estate
Agency revenue was back 5% in a market with
purchase activity 15% lower.

Group Underlying Operating Profit was
£36.9m compated to the record resuits
posted last year (2021: £49.3m) and in line
with 2019, the most recent comparable
market. The Group Underlying Operating
Profit of £22.7m in H2 was 3% above last
year {2021: £22 0m), despite the adverse
market impact pn the Q4 Surveying &
Valuation revenue, as the Group returned to
& more normalised profit profile with 62%
of operating profit delivered in H2, in line
with the pre-COVID-19 levels. During HZ the
residential exchange pipeline converted as
expected however front end activity was
materially lower, impacted by the UK mini-
budget, resuiting in the closing pipeline being
below expectations,

Our strategic facys is on the Financial
Services Netwark where Underlying
Operating Profit increased by 8%. Financial
Services Other posted a loss, impacted by
iower activity in the purchase and new build
markets, and included continued technology
investment. Estate Agency Underlying
Operating Profit was down against prior
year due mainly to the impact of the smaller
purchase transaction markst. Unallocated
central costs of £7.3m reduced by 3%.

On a statutory basis, Group operating lass
was £56.7m (2021: profit £72.6m). The

2022 results include a £87.2m nen-cash
impairment charge for goodwill and other
intangibles following the annual impairment
review, as detaifed later in this Financial
Review, and 2021 results included the

excenptional gain on sale of our holdings in
twa joint venture businesses sold during the
year.

Operating expenditure

Total adjusted operating expenses! increased
by 2% to £285.7m (2021: £28C.2m) with costs
managed carefully, mitigating the impact

of the inflationary cost environment - with
H2 2022 costs 5% below H1. Our emoluments
increased by 2% in 2022, with annual pay
and NI increases, and a cost of fiving award
for lower-paid staff, mitigated by headcount
reductions in H2 2022 in response to market
conditions. Property and related costs
increased by 12% reflecting energy price
inflation which drove utilities costs up by
£1.6m and prior year business rates relief.
Other material costs, including IT, were
largely protected by previously negotiated
fixed-price long term contracts.

Other operating income

Total other operating income was £1.3m
{2021: £0.9m)}. Of this, rental income was
£0.7m (2021: £0.9m), reducing year-on-year
following the disposal during 2021 of several
freehold properties previously leased out.

The fair value of units held in The Openwork
Partnership LLP was reassessed to £0.7m
and is recognised in other operating income.
In 2021, there was a gain on sale of £1.1m
generated from the disposal of the freehold
properties.

{Loss)/income from joint ventures and
associates

Losses from joint ventures and associates of
£0.5m (2021: profit £0.7m) primarily relate to
our equity share of Pivotal Growth which is
still in a growth phase. The prior year income
comprised our share of LMS and TM Group
profits prior to the disposal of our shares in
these investments and our share of set up
costs of Pivotal Growth,

Share-based payments

The share-based payment charge of £2.0m
{2021: £1.9m) consists of a charge in the
period of £3.1m, offset by lapses and
adjustments for leavers and options exercised
in the period. The prior year included a lower
charge of £2.6m, offset by lower lapse and
leaver adjustments.

Amortisation of intangible assets
The amortisation charge for 2022 was £4.1m
{2021: £4.5m). The year-on-year decrease was

as a result of some lettings bock acquisitions
and intangible software investments
becoming fully amortised during 2021.

Exceptional items

The exceptional gain of £0.7m (2021: £31.1m}
relates to a release in the Pl Costs provision,
as we continue to make pregress with settling
historic Pl claims where actual settlement
costs have been lower than expected. The
prior year exceptional gain included the gains
on disposals of the Group’s joint venture
holdings in LMS$ and TM Group.

Exceptional costs of £88.9m (2021: £2.0m),
related principally to the outcome of the
annual impairment review, which led ta
non-cash goodwill and other intangibles
impairment of £87.2m {2021: £nil}in a
number of subsidiaries?: Your Move and
Reeds Rains (£42.0m), Marsh & Parsons
(£27.7m), DLPS {£1.1m}, Group First (E10.3m}
and RSC (£6.1m).

The non-cash goodwill impairments result
from the deterioration in the near term
outtook for cash flows due to market
conditions and the significant increase in
discount rates since the previous review,
impacting Your Move and Reeds Rains, and
DLPS, and the strategic decision to sell Marsh
& Parscns, Graup First and RSC. The disposals
of Marsh & Parsons, Group First and R5C
were announced in January 2023.

Further exceptional costs of £1,7m

{2021: £nil) were recognised as a result of

12 branch closures, as part of a restructuring
programme in the Estate Agency Division.

Contingent considaration

The credit to the income statement in 2022
of £0.7m (2021: credit £0.7m), relates to the
reduction of the contingent consideration
ltability for RSC and DLPS, based on revisions
ta profit forecasts.

Net finance costs

Net finance costs amounted to £2.4m

{2021: £2.7m) and related principally to
unwinding the IFRS 16 lease liability of £1.4m
{2021: £1.5m) and commitment and non-
utilisation fees on the revolving credis facility
of £1.0m (2021: £1.0m). Finance income
increased to £0.1m {2021: £nil) resulting from
increased interest received on funds held on
deposit.
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Financial and Divicional Reviews

Loss before tax

Loss before tax was £53.1m {2021: profit
before tax of £69.9m). The year-on-

year movement is due to the non-cash
impairments to goodwill and other
intangibles during 2022, the lower Group
Underlying Operating Profit, and the prior
year exceptional gain of £29.4m on the sale
of the investments in the LMS and TM Greup
joint ventures.

Taxation

The tax charge of £4.9m (2021 £8.0m)
represents an effective tax rate of (8.3)%,
which is higher than the headline UK tax rate
of 19% largely as a result of the inclusion
within the loss before tax of exceptional
impairments to subsidiaries, which are not
deductible for corporation tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at 25% (2021: 25%), the tax rate
effective from 1 April 2023.

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share was {62.3} pence
{2021: 59.6 pence)}, with diluted earnings per
share of (62.3) pence (2021: 59.2 pence). The
Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share was 28.1
pence (2021: 37.7 pence}, a decrease of 25%,
with adjusted diluted earnings per share of
28.3 pence {2021: 37.4 pence).

Notes:

* Total adjusted operatng expenses includs
employee costs, depreciation and cther
operating costs as shown in Group Income
Statemernt.

Refer to note 16 to the Financial Statements.
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Financial and Divisional Reviews

Financial Services Division

) Y o w
Financial Summary 022 2021 var £
P&L (£m) &
s —— .- o
x
Financial Services Network Gross revenue 316.6 2958 7% §
Financial Services Netwaork 41.6 383 a% -
Financial Services Other 40.0 40.2 )%
Total Net Revenue 81.7 785 4%
Financial Services Netwark 15.5 14.4 8%
Financial Services Other {2.3} G.4 nm
Underlying Operating Profit® 13.3 14.8 (10}%
Financial Services Network margin 37.3% 37.5% {20)bps
og
Underlying Operating margin® 16.2% 18.8% {260}bps % =
Operating (loss)/profit {6.8) 10.0 (168)% 23
oo
KPls ) %55’
LSL mortgage completion lending? (£bn) 45.6 41.1 11% ’3"5—:
o
Total advisers 2,867 2,858 0% 35
9 o
Gross revenue per average adviser® (£'000s} 93.9 80.1 4% ig
Notes: _gg
! Divisional Underlying Operating Proft end Divisicnal Underlying Cperating margin are stated on the same basis as Group [as set out In note 5 to the Finaneial 7
Statements), 2
? LS50 mortgage completians lend.rg guoted includes product transfers. z

3 Gross revenue per adviser is calculated as Financial Services Network gross revenus (excluding TMA mortgage club) per active adviser.
4 Financial Services 1s managed as one segment and for presentational purposes its results have been split between Network and Other.
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Financial and Divisional Reviews

Highlights

* Record Financial Servicaes Network
Underlying Operating Profit of £15.5m
(2021: £14.4m) up 8%.

» Record total lending of £45.6bn, up 11%
(2021: £41.1bn}.

» Furtherincrease in share of UK
purchase and remortgage market te
10.4% {2021: 9.6%), reflecting strength
of Network mortgage advisers in
remortgages, a segmont we expect lu
increase further in importance in 2023,

» Gross revenue per agviser up 4%.

Total LSL advisers increased to 2,867
(2021: 2,858).

Tota! Financial Services Division
Underlying Operating Profit was £13.3m
(2021: £14.8m}) reflecting further
investment in technology and impact of a
lower purchase market on D2C brokerages
subsequently sold to Pivotal Growth.

Financial overview

Totat revenue reported was up 4% to £81.7m
(2021: £78.5m}. Core Financial Services
Network revenue grew by 9% year-on-year
benefitting from higher adviser numbers and
strong renewal volumes. Financial Services
Other revenue was in line with last year due
to stronger H2 {£1m ahead of 2021) in line
with increased market activity. Financial
Services Division Underlying Operating Profit?
was £13.3m (2021: £14.8m). On a statutory
basis, operating loss was £6.8m (2021: profit
£10.0m).

The Division’s revenue mix by product
continues to highlight the significance of

cur insurance business and its success in
arranging insurance products both on a
standalone basis and when needed at the
time of a mortgage being arranged. in 2022,
there rermained a breadly equal split between
mortgage related and insurance related
revenue. The split of revenue by praduct
type in 2022 was £36.5m for mortgage fees
{2021: £33,7m)}, £34.2m for protection and
insurance fees (2021: £35.2m) and £10.9m in
other fees {2021: £9.6m}.

Financial Services Network business

Gross purchase and remortgage completion
lending increased by 11% to £32.7bn

{2021: £29.5bn) representing an increased
share of the iending market excluding
product transfers to 10.4% {2021: 9.6%).

16

Inctuding product transfers, total gross
mortgage lending was £45.6bn in 2022
(2021: £41.1bn}. Gross revenues generated
by the Financia! Services Network business
{including the TMA mortgage club} increased
by 7% 1o £316.6m {2021: £295.9m}.

Gross revenue per average adviserin 2022
was £93.9k (2021: £30.1%}). Whilst AR firms
in the network have been understandably
cautious about growing adviser numbers
in the midst of the economic and political
uncertainty, and as a result the Financial
Services Network business saw modest

growth [n adviser numbers, this indicates that

through the turnover of advisers, there is a
net improvement in the most productive.

Financial Services Network business focused
heavily on helping member firms look

after the mortgage needs of their existing
customers during 2022, particularfy during
periods of rapidly changing interest rates.
This deliberate focus helped member firms
grow their revenue through increased
volumes of remortgage and product
switches, despite the decline in the housing
market.

Underlying Operating Profit increased 8%
to £15.5m {2021: £14.4m) with Underlying
Operating margin decreasing marginally to
37% (2021; 38%]} as we continue to invest
in our businesses and some cost categories
returned to levels more in line with
pre-COVID-19 pericds, for example broker
events and marketing support.

Financial Services Other

Financial Services Other generated an
Underlying Operating Loss of £2.3m

{2021: profit £0.4m), which is stated after
our continued investment in the businesses
that make it up, including costs of the

TPFG contract and the Pivotal Growth joint
venture.

As well as continued investment in the
Mortgage Gym platform, we continued to
invest in the Financial Services Network
business technology piatform (Toelbox), to
deliver benefits to firms and their advisers
and create further efficiencies and improved
functionality. Financial Services Other D2C
businesses were impacted by lower activity
levels in the new purchase market but took
advantage of the increased refinancing
activity which peaked in H2 and was
impacted in part by the UK mini-budget.

The Pivotal Growth joint venture was
estahlished in Aprif 2021, with a net loss
in 26022 of £0.5m after acquisition costs
and overheads. The slower than expected
mementum in acquisitions means it is still
in the investrnent phase, and we expect a
positive contribution in 2023,

Notes.

! Mortgege lending exc'uding product transfers
- New mortgage lending by purpose of loan, UK
{Bank of tngland} — Table MM23.

i Gross revenue per adviser is czlculated as
Financial Services Network gross revenue
{excluding the TMA morigage clut) per active
adviser.



W ~ .
VIRK RS

Financial and Divisional Reviews

FY

Finandial Suinmary il 3021 \ar
PRL{Er}
Tulal pevenua %3.2 93.7 {1)%
Underlying Opereting Profit! 20.4 23.6 (14)%
Underlying Operating margin’ 21.9% 25.2% (330)bps
Operating profit 20.8 4.7 (16)%
Kels
Jobs performed (000's) 532 541 {2)%
Jobs per average surveyer 1,085 1,079 (1%
Revenue from private surveys and data services (£m) 3.8 2.2 73%
Income per job {E) 175 173 1%

5i2 489 5%

Cperational surveyors employed {FTE?)

Notes:

t Dwisional Underlying Operating Profit and Divisicnal Underlyng Opsrating mal g gre stated on the same basis as Group (as set outin note 5 to the Financial

Statements).
? Full Time Equivalent (FTE).

Highlights
s Surveying & Valuation Division once again
performed strongly.

Despite the sudden and unexpected
market disruption, Underlying Operating
margin® remained resilient at 22%

(2021: 25%), and weli ahead of the
pre-COVID-19 period {2018: 19%}.
Underlying Operating Profit of £20.4m
{2021: £23.6m), despite an estimated £5m
profit impact from Q4 market disruption.

* D2C and data services income increased by
73% to £3.8m.

» Jobs performed was broadly in line with
FY21 at 532k despite market disruption,

Summary

The Surveying & Valuation Division’s
Underlying Cperating Profit reduced by 14%
compared to 2021, materially impacted by
the disruption to mortgage lending in Q4
2022 as a result of political and economic
uncertainty. Revenue growth for the first
three guarters of F¥22, immediately prior to
the Government’s mini-budget was 9% year-
on-year against broadiy flat lending market
growth of 2%.

Surveyor capacity utilisation remains above
historic levels, with the slight reduction
compared to the prior year resulting from
the market slowdewn in Q4 with record
levels of capacity utilisation to that point.
Jobs per average surveyor reduced slightly

in the period to 1,065 {2021: 1,079} due
mainly to the H2 graduate intake which

is expected to drive a benefit in 2023 as
these surveyers become fully cperational.
Underlying Operating margin reduced to
22% {2021: 25%), largely as a result of a 4%
increase in operating costs linked to strategic
headcount investment and inflationary cost
pressures,

We estimate that we increased market

share in 2022, while maintaining operational
resilience and providing high-quality service.
We were named Best Surveying Firm at the
2022 Mortgage Finance Gazette Awards and
Best Surveyor at the 2022 Equity Release
Awards with Mortgage Solutions. During the
12 months to 31 December 2022, one key
supplier contract was renewed in addition to
one renewal at the end of December 2021,
increasing valuation instruction allocations.
We also achieved increases in allocations
from some existing lender clients. Almost two
thirds of our total annual velume is currently
secured for at least 18 months. Significant
further progress was made with our strategic
objective of developing income from private
surveys and data, which increased by 73% tc
£3.8m.

Financial overview

Revenue reduced by 1% to £93.2m (2021:
£93.7m), impacted by a material market
stowdown in Q4. Surveying & Valuation
Bivision revenue YTD October was 9%

above the same period in 2021. Underlying
Operating Profit reduced by 14% to £20.4m
(2021: £23.6m}. On a statutory basis,
operating profit was £20.8m {2021: £24 . 7m).

Income perjobincreased by 1% to £175
(2021: £173), with the higher volume of

jobs performed reflecting the improved
capacity management with similar levels of
operational surveyors. During 2022, 72% of
the Division’s jobs derived from its top five
lender clients, This is broadly consistent with
the concentration of mortgage lending in the
UK, where it is estimated that the six largest
lenders collectively account for around 70%
of the market. The totai number of jobs
performed during the period was 532,000,
which was 2% lower than in 2021,

At 31 December 2022, the total provision

for Pl Costs was £2.3m {31 December

2021: £3.9m). The Group cantinued to make
positive progress in addressing historic PI
claims and the numbear of new valuation
claims provided for in the year remained very
low.

The number of operational surveyors
employed at 31 December 2022 was 512,
which was anincrease on 31 December
2021 at 489, Dur graduate and trainee
mentoring programmes continue to provide
new productive surveyors, to alleviate any
capacity constraints in the market.
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Financial and Divisional Reviews

Estate Agency Division

X
Financial Summary 2022 2021 War
P&L {£m)
Residential sales exchange income 71.7 (11Y%
Lettings income £62.0 2%
Other income* 20.8 {3)%
Total revenue 154.6 {S)%
Underlying Operating Profit? 184 {43)%
Underlying Operating margin? 11.9% {470)bps
Operating (loss)/profit 46.5 (233)%
KPts
Exchange units 18,845 (13)%
Managed properties 24,372 (2¥%%
Owned branches 225 (19)%
Franchised branches 128 (1)%
Total Estate Agency branches® 353 (12)%

Notes:

* ‘Ctherincome’ includes franchise, conveyancing services, Asset Management, EPCs, Home Reports, utilities and other products and services to clients of the

branch network.

7 Divisional Underlying Operating Profit and Divisianal Underlying Operating margin are stated on the same basis as Group {as set out in note 5 to the Financial

Statements}

* Estate Agency branch numbers are gquoted including Marsh & Parsons (disposed 26 January 2023).

Highlights

» Estate Agency national market share’
increased to 1.30% (2021: 1.28%}.

+ Estate Agency Underlying Cperating Profit
of £10.5m (2021: £18.4m) in a reduced
purchase market.

Underlying Operating Profit in H2 of
£11.5m materially ahead of prior year
{H2 2021: £5.8m}.

Summary

As a result of the marginal increase in
national market share, the residential sales
income reducticn was 12% compared to
the prior year in a market that was 15%
lower, with the higher pipeline entering the
year also supporting the performance, H2
exchanges were in line with our previous
expectations after the delays to pipeline
conversion experienced in H1.

However, market activity slowed further in
H2, driven by affordability issues. As a result,
the residential sales pipeline entering 2023
of £15.3m has reduced materially from the
record high in June of £26.7m and is 26%
lower than the pipeline on 31 December
2021 (£20.7m). Lettings income increased 2%
compared to the prior year and represented

18

43% (2021: 40%) of total Estate Agency
Division income, due to an improved average
rent in a market where the supply of new
stock remained limited.

Financial overview

Revenue for the year of £146.8m was 5%
behind prior year {2021: £154.6m), with
residential sales income 12% below what
was a year of unusually high activity due to
the temporary reductions of stamp duty.
Underlying Operating Profit was £10.5m,
reflecting the lower residential market
zetivity and inflationary costs pressures
within the branch network, specifically
higher energy costs and business rates now
at pre-COVID-19 levels, with no rates relief
in 2022. On a statutory basis, operating loss
was £61.8m (2021: profit £46.5m) due to
exceptional goodwill impairment charges of
£71.4m in the peripd and gains from the sale
of joint ventures during 2021 of £29.4m.

Residential sales

Residential sales exchange income decreased
by 12% to £63.5m {2021: £71.7m}). The Estate
Agency Division consolidated the market
share gains made during 2021, broadly
maintaining the share of instructions in the

locations we trade, and with marginal growth
of cur market share of housing transacticns
on a national level. The residential sales
pipeline {including Marsh & Parsons)
decreased to £15.3m at 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: £20.7m).

Conversian of the residential exchange
pipeiine remained slow throughout the year,
impacting H1 2022 performance in particufar.
H2 2022 saw fewer new properties coming

to market and lower leveis of sales agreed.
There was also a trend towards an increase in
the number of fall-throughs, largely affecting
more recently agreed sa'es, both of which will
impact performance in Q1 2023,

Lettings

In the lettings market there has been a very
limited supply of new instructions. Qur

focus has therefore been on reletting and
retaining our managed property portfclio.
The total number of managed properties at
31 December 2022 was 23,881, slightly below
the 24,372 at the same date in 2021, Stronger
average rental prices resulted in like-for-

tike lettings income up 4% year-on-year at
£63.3m.



Other income

Other incanic was Juwn 436 Lu £20.11n
{2021: £20.8m} reflecting the impact of the
lower exchange volumes on conveyancing
and financial services income directly Iinked
to exchange volumes. Asset management
was 17% ahead of 2021. However, market
repossession volumes remain low, albeit
zhead of the exceptionzlly low market

in 2021 which was severely impacted by
COVID-19.

Notes:

* Number of residential praperty transzction
completions with value £40,000 or above, HMRC
{24 fanuary 2023).
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Financial and Divisional Reviews

Balance Sheet Review

Goodwill

The carrying valuc of goodwill is L3065

(31 December 2021; £160.9m) reflecting the
non-cash impairment of £87.0m in Your Mave
and Reeds Rains, Marsh & Parsons, Group
First, RSC, and DLPS at 31 December 2022,
During December 2022 the Group made the
strategic decision to sell both Group First and
RSCtoits joint venture Pivotal Growth and
separately made the decision to sell Marsh

& Parsons to Dexters. This resulted in the
ractassification of these businesses as held for
sale, with a reducticn of £17.3m in goodwill.
The sales of alt three businesses were
announced in January 2023.

Other intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment

Total capital expenditure in the year
amounted to £4.9m (2021: £6.9m), primarily
reflecting the continued investment in
technology in the year, including £2.0m
{2021: £2.2m) for further development of
the Toolbox platform and other technologies
in the Financial Services Division. The

higher prior year expenditure also reflected
investment by the Estate Agency Division

in third party property software, IT
infrastructure investment, and an element
of spend deferred from 2020, when cash
conservation measures had been taken.

Financial assets and investments in joint
ventures and associates

Financial assets

Financial assets of £1.0m at 31 December
2022 (2021: £5.7m) comprise investmentsin
equity instruments in unlisted companies.
The carrying value of the Group’s investment
in Yopa at 31 December 2022 has been
assessed as £nil {2021: £4.5m}, with the
reduction recognised through the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. In determining
the carrying value the Group considered both
the historic and current trading performance
of Yopa, which continued to be loss making
and the general market share decline of
hybrid estate agencies. in January 2023, the
Group agreed to sell its shares in Yopa for £nil
consideration based on third party valuations
provided to the existing shareholders,

The carrying value of the Group’s investment
in VEM at 31 December 2022 has been
assessed as £0.2m (2021: £0.7m}. Our
valuation is based on a four year weighted
EBITDA multiple applied to actual and forecast
profits, with the reduction recognised

through the Statement of Comprehensive

20

Income. In March 2023, the Group agreed to
sl Ius shidres 1 vEM for tU.2m considerahon.

During the period the fair value of units

held in The Openwork Partnership LLP was
reassessed to £0.7m (31 December 2021: £nil),
with the gain recognised in other operating
income.

Jomnt ventures

In April 2021 the Group established the
Pivotal Growth joint venture and heolds a
47.8% interest at 31 December 2022. The

joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method and is held on the balance sheet at
£5.1m at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: £1.6m), representing the Group’s equity
investment in Pivotal Growth during the
period, less our share of losses after tax for
the period.

During 2021, we disposed of our entire
nolding in both non-core businesses LMS
{May 2021) and TM Group {July 2021} for total
proceeds of £41.3m.

Bank facilities/Liquidity

in February 2023, LSL agreed an amendment
and restatement of our banking facility, with a
£60m committed revelving credit facility, and
a maturity date of May 2026, which replaced
the previcus £90m facility due to mature

in May 2024. The terms of the facility have
remained materially the same as the previous
facility. The facility is provided by the same
syndicate members as before, namely
Barclays Bank UK plc, NatWest Bank plc and
Santander UK plc.

In arranging the banking facility, the Board
took the cpportunity to review the Group’s
borrowing requirements, considering our
strong cash position and the Group’s aim

of reducing its reliance on the housing
market. We therefore reduced the size of the
committed facility and the costs associated
with it. To provide further flexibility to
support growth, the facility retains a £30m
accordion, to be reguested by LSL at any time,
subject to bank approval.

At 31 December 2022, Net Cash was £40.1m
(31 December 2021: Net Cash £48.5m}. The
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
£8.4m in 2022 included further investment in
Pivotal Growth (£4.0m), capital expenditure
of £4.9m {2021: £6.9m), a share buy back
programme (£4.0m), the loan of £5.0m to
the EBT for the acquisition of LSL shares to
satisfy employee share schemes, payment

of the 2021 final and 2022 interim dividends

of £11.8m {2021: £4.2m dividends paid) and
reduced corporation tax payments of £6.1m
{2021: £8.5m). Provisions also decreased by
£0.8m {2021: decrease of £3.2m), due ta the
positive progress in addressing historic P
claims.

The Group generated adjusted cash from
operations? of £28.8m (2021: £37.7m).

After adjusting for tax payment deferrals
agreed with HMRC relating to 2020, the
cash flow conversion? rate was 78%. The
2021 conversion of 106% was supported by
significantly higher Estate Agency revenues,
with high immediate cash drop-through.

The Financial Services Network business
has a regulatory capital requirement
associated with its regulated revenues.
The regulatory capital requirement was
£5.9m at 31 December 2022 {31 December
2021: £4.9m), with a surplus of £24.9m

{31 December 2021: £14.2m)}.

Contingent consideration liabilities
Contingent cansideration liabifities at

31 December 2022 were £2.3m {31 December
2021: £3.0m). Contingent consideration
liabilities relate primarily to the cost of
acquiring the remaining shares in RSC. The
year-on-year reduction reflects an update to
forecasts in both R3C and Direct Life Quote
Holdings Limited, and a small part-settiement
of the latter. Ahead of the disposal of RSC

in lanuary 2023, we settled the contingent
consideration of £2.3m.,

Treasury and Risk Management

We have an active debt management policy.
The Group does not hold or issue derivatives
or other financial instruments for trading
purgoses. Further details on the Group’s
financial commitments, as well as the Group’s
treasury and risk management pelicies, are
set outin note 32 to the Financial Statements.

International Accounting Standards {IAS)
The Financial Statements have been prepared
in accordance with UK adopted 1AS.

Notes:

! Refer to note 16 to the Financizl Statements.

t adjusted cash flow fram operations is defined
as cash generated from operations, less the
repayment of lease liabilities, plus the utlisation
of Pl provisions.

3 Adjusted cash low corversion defined as
cash generzted from operations {pre-P! Costs
and post-lease liabilihes) divided by Croup
Underlyirg Operating Profit.



Our Stakeholder Engagement Arrangements

This sectian of the Report describes how we engage with our stakeholders and how the Board and its Committees consider stakeholder views

i1 thatr gecision making. it also ncludes examples of how stakeholders have been engaged with or taken into consideration during the Board's
decisicn making in 2022.

The Management Team regularly reviews arrangements with our stakeholders, to ensure that we are operating in line with best practice, This
includes identifying any stakeholder impacts when presenting proposals to the Board for approval.

Each year the Board also reviews the Group's stakeholder engagement arrangements. As part of the 2022 review, the Board considered guidance
published by the investment Associatien and The Chartered Governance Institute, in addition to the GC100 guidance on director’s duties under
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

Our stakeholders
The following are the Group’s key stakeholders:

1. Shareholders.
2. Colleagues.
3. Customers.

4, Suppliers,
While we regularly consider other stakeholders such as regulators, professional bodies, landiords of our leased premises and our banking facility
providers, this section of the Repert focuses on our arrangements with the above listed key stakeholders.

Additional information on our stakeholder engagement is included in the ESG Report [page 30) and the Corporate Governance Report {page 54).

Stakeholder engagement arrangements and report on 2022 activities

1. Sharehoiders

We place a great deal of importance on our communications with shareholders and seek to establish constructive relationships with current and
potential investors. We will obtain investor feedback from time to time, to ensure we understand their views,

Institutional shereholders

We maintain a dialogue with institutional shareholders through regular meetings with them, attended by the Group CEQ and Group CFC.

These meetings typically discuss Group strategy, performance and governance matters and obtain investor feedback. In additicn, we arrange
presentations for shareholders and analysts, including after the publication of the interim znd full year results.

The Code requires chairs of company boards to seek regular engagement with major shareholders, in order to understand their views on
governance and perfarmance against strategy. In line with this, all major sharehoiders are offered the oppertunity to attend meetings with al! the
Non Executive Directors, including the Chair and the Senicr Independent Director, as they require, From time te time, the Chair of the Board or of
a Committee will meet with shareholders, to discuss specific issues such as remuneration policy or Board appointments.

Throughout each year, we ensure that all Directors understand the views of significant shareholders, including providing feedback received frem
the corporate advisers and Executive Directors and the distribution of analysts’ reparts to the Board.

During 2022, we have engaged with our shareholders as part of our review of the Directers’ Remuneration Policy (Policy), which is detailed in the
Directors’ Remuneraticn Report (page 73) and which wil! be presented to sharehclders for appraval at the 2023 AGM. As part of the exercise,
Darrell Evans (Chair of the Remuneration Committee} wrote to our significant shareholders to seek their feedback on the prepoesed changes

to our Policy and, as appropriate, changes to the implementation of the Policy. Darrell and the Group HR Directer also took part in follow-up
correspendence znd calls with the shareholders who responded to the consultation. Additionally, we consulted with shareholder representative
groups and proxy advisers on the draft Policy and took their feedback into account. Further detail on the Policy Is included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report in this Report {page 73).

If any shareholder, shareholder representative groups or proxy advisers wish to discuss any issues or concerns with any Non Executive Directors,
they can be contacted through the Company Secretary’s office (see the Shareholder Information section of this Report for contact detzils

{page 183)}.

Individual shareholders
We consider the AGM to be cur main farum for communication with individual shareholders and all of our Directors will be available at the 2023

AGM to meet with shareholders.
In addition, we engage with our shareholders in the following ways:

« Publication of information on aur website (isips.co.uk). This includes all regulatory news anncuncements as weil as copies of presentations,
financial reports and shareholder notices.

* Holding a general meeting when required.
* Responding to email enquiries.

+ Feedback received via our corporate brokers, Numis and Zeus.
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Our Stekehoider Engagement Arrangements

By utilising a range of shareholder engagement options, we believe we are treating cur shareholders fairly. For example, while we wrote to
significant sharehalders as part of the Pulivy review, smaller shareholders have the option of emasiing us or attending and voting at the AGM to
register their feedback an the proposed Policy.

2. Colleagues

We engage with our colleagues through:

a. Employee surveys. In 2022, we ran cur annual colleague survey, to establish colleague views of working at LSL and identify areas for
improvement. The annual survey received a 61% response rate (2,506 responses), compared with 2021's response rate of 76% {3,119
responses). The resuits are shared in detail with the Executive Committee, the Living Responsibly Steering Committee and the Board. See ESG
Report (page 30) for details about the annual survey including key findings and actions arising from the survey.

L. Qu Empluyee Engagement Forum, Inclusion and biversity Forum and Communities Forum report regularly to the Group CEO and the Living
Responsibly Steering Committee on their activities. There is onward reporting to the Board and its Committees. There are alsa Divisional
employee forums which report to Divisional Management Teams. For further details on the Inclusien and Diversity Forum and Communities
Forum, see the ESG Report (page 30} and the Living Responsibly Report.

c. Darrell Evans, is the designated Non Executive Director for workforce engagement {see below) meets regularly with the Employee
Engagement Forum and centributes te Board discussions ensuring consideration is given to colleagues.

d. Emails to colteagues from the Group CEQ and Divisional Managing Directors, on matters such as business performance. Each Division alsc
runs local colleague conferences, as well as hosting intranet sites and message boards, keeping our colleagues up to date on company
information. The Group CEQ issues email updates to all colleagues with Group updates.

e. Theaperation of all colleague share schemes, such as the BAYE/SIP and SAYE. The BAYE plan/SIP allows colieagues to save up to £150 per
month and buy shares in LSL in a tax afficient manner (as approved by HM Revenue & Custems (HMRC)). Furthermore, for every five shares
that colleagues purchase through the plan, the Company awards one matching share. Colleagues who participate in this plan also benefit
from dividends which are reinvested into the plan, to further align colleague and shareholders’ interests. The SAYE enables colleagues to save
maonthly with the opportunity to buy L51 shares at the end of the saving period.

f.  During 2022, asecond free share award was given to all colleagues across the Greup, which was worth up to £500. This has enabled
colleagues to share in our positive financial performance in 2021. It also ensures the alignment of colleague interests to our shareholders and
we hope it will incentivise colleagues to remain with the Group.

Workforce engagement in 2022

During 2022, Darrell Evans met with the Employee Engagement Forum to discuss the Policy review (for further details see below). During this
meeting, Darrell listened to colleague concerns about the cost of living challenges faced by colleagues and he raised their feedback with the
Board. This feedback was included in the Remuneration Committee’s considerations, ahead of it approving a £500 cost of living payment for
colleagues earning less than £30,000 (full time). Further detail is set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report {page 73},

At the meeting, Darrell had a QRA session with the forum and received an update on a review of the composition of the Employee Engagement
Farum. The purpose of the review was to ensure that the forum better reflects the workforce it represents. Following the review, membership of
the forum was increased from 20 to 40 {which equates to c1% of the total Group workforce). The recruitment of new membaers was targeted at
formerly under-represented groups, specifically lower grades and those aged under 30 and over 60, colleagues from ethnic minority backgrounds,
and to ensure balance of participation fram each Division.

3. Customers

All Group businesses seek regular feedback from customers, which informs our decision making and, in particular, the improvement and
development of our services. Far example, in developing our Teolbox and Mortgage Gym technology in our Financial Services Division, we have
sought and taken into account PRIMIS member feedback.

Customer feedback is obtained threugh a number of methods, such as refationship management meatings, formal questionnaires, mystery
shopping exercises and consumer focus groups.

Each of our Divisions also monitors KPIs and management information relating to its customer service, including complaints information and data
tracking adherence to agreed service levels for corporate clients, We also have client relationship management arrangements.

In addition, as part of regular and special business presentations frem each Division during the year, the Beard receives reports on customer
feedback, inciuding consumer surveys and feedback from our key lender clients.

4. Suppliers

Across the Group, we manage our key suppliers through supplier management protocols, which include reviews of contractual performance and
other KPIs. As part of Management’s reporting, including special business presentations, the Beard also receives information en key supplier
engagements, As part of our Living Responsibly programme, we are also developing a supplier code of practice, which we are continuing te
progress during 2023,

22



See also below our Director Duties Statement for examples of how sharehoiders, employees and customers were considered in the Board’s
decision making during 2022. The ESG Repor L (page 30} also describes how our businesses communicate with customers and suppliers.

Directors’ Duties Staterment (s172 Companies Act 2006 Statement and Provision 5 of the Code)
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 sets out certain matters company directors must consider when performing their duty to promote the
success of the company. These matters include taking into account the interests of stakeholders and the impact of decisions in the long term.

To support the Beard In carrying out its duties under s172, Management are required to identify the stakehotder groups impacted by any
proposals submitted to the Board for approval and explain what those potential impacts are.

The three examples below demaonstrate how the Directors have considered stakeholders in principal decisions made during the year.

§172 Duty to promotie tho tuceoss

of the company for the teneft ot s

members 25 2 whofe, and indoing se
have regard {amonest cther metters)

to:

a. Likely consequence of any
decision in the long term.

Evpmpiel Dagosalof D20 eng
e

The Board, as part of its strategy
review, chose to focus an the
progression of the Group’s Financial
Services-led growth strategy.

It has also sought to simplify the
Group and facus on B2B activities.

This has resulted in the disposal of
D2¢ broker businesses, RSC and
Group First and the sale of London
astate agency, Marsh & Parsons.

The twa D2C broker businesses have
been sold to Pivotal Growth, whichis
our joint venture with Pollen Street
Capital. Pivotal Growth's strategy

is to buy and build 2 D2C broker
business and we believe that Pivotal
Growti is better placed to grow these
businesses for the benefit of the
businesses and our shareholders.

Marsh & Parsons had, since its
acquisition in 2011, operated largely
autonomously from the Group’s
Estate Agency Division and was
therefore not core to our Group.

Example 2 ~ Change the Race Rans

The Board considered develepments
to LSLU's sustainabiiity strategy and
programme, which is detailed in our
ESG Report (page 30) and our Living
Respansibly Report.

During 2022 this included LSL
becoming a signatory to the CBI's
Change the Race Ratio (Ratio), to
support our diversity and inclusion
Iinitiatives.

Ahead of signing up to the Ratio,
Management scught the Board's
approval and in making its decision,
the Board considered the following
stakeholders:

a. Colleagues.

b. Shareholders.

c. Customers.

Retaining, developing and attracting
diverse talent supports the long
term success of the Company, by
supperting succession planning at all
tevels as we develop our colleague
talent pooi.

ExaEmie 4 - nemwureration Policy
{triennzli review)

The Remuneration Commitiee
undertook the triennial review of
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
{Policy). The proposed new Palicy
will be presented to the 2023 AGM
for approval. Further detail on the
proposed changes to the Policy arein
the Directo: s’ Remuneration Report
{page 73).

The Committee considered that the
proposed Policy aligns the Directors’
interests to the long term interests
of LSL.
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Cur Stakeholder Engagement Arrangements

b. The interests of our colleagues.

c. The need to foster the company’s
business relationships with
customers,

d. The need to foster the company's
business relationships with
suppliers.

e, The impact of the company’s
operations on the community and
environment.

f. The desirability of the company
maintaining a high standard of
business conduct.

g. The need to act fairly between
members of the company.

24

Colleagues employed in these
businesses are no longer part of the
Group and where thay benefitted
from Group benefits (such as options
under employee share schemes) we
have put in place arrangements to
pratect their benefits.

In developing our strategy for
simplification, we have scught to
ensure there is no adverse impact
¢h gur customers arising from any
disposals.

We also sought to ensure there is

Nt adversa impact on our suppliers
2tising from any disposals and, where
possible, we have sought to engage
with our suppliers.

Ag a result of the disposals, we will
no longer be providing services out
of locations where the disposed
businesses operated, However, the
impact on the local communities

s mitigated 25 the businesses are
expected to continue to operate out
of those locations.

We believe the disposal and Group
simplification strategy delivers value
to all shareholders, especially as it
reduces our exposure to housing
market cycles and focuses our
investment on high growth areas,
notably cur Financial Services
Networks.

The proposal to sign up to the Ratio
was discussed at length by the
Inclusion and Diversity Forum and
its feedback was included in the
proposal to the Board.

The Board also considered colleagues
in its decision making by noting
that committing to the charter and
accessing the resources provided
to the signatories will support LSL
in its ability to promote inclusion
and diversity across the workforce,
which will have a positive impact
on colleagues and their working
environment by delivering an
inclusive culture which fosters
diverse talent.

We betieve that a workforce which is
representative of the communities it
services wifl also deliver benefits to
our customers.

In Surveying & Valuation, key lender
ciients have also shared their ESG
priorities with us and we consider
that the Ratio aligns with their
priorities in the area.

We hope that as a result of signing
the Ratio, this will encourage and
promote greater diversity in our
suppliers/supply chain.

Signing the Ratio supports the
fostering of racial diversity in the
Group, which contributes positively
to wider society.

We also helieve that signing up to
the Ratio helps us better understand
our impact on eur communities and
the working environment that we are
fostering.

By signing the Ratic we are
committing to adopting high
standards in our employment and
wider practices.

In making its decision to adopt the
Ratio, the #card considered how it
aligns with the interests of all our
shareholders. We believe that by
supporting and fostering diverse
talent we will recruit, retain and
develop tatented employees which
will help us to generate value for the
Group and our shareholders.

Darrell Evans, independent Naon
Executive Director, Chair of the
Remuneration Commitiee and the
designated workforce engagement
Non Executive Director, met with
the Group’s Employse Engagement
Forum to seek views on the Paolicy.
At this meeting, the forum members
received a presentaticn an the Palicy
c¢hanges. The forum’s feedback

was shared with the Remuneration
Committee when it met ta consider
the Policy.

The proposed change to the Policy
removed the requirement for at least
30% of LTIP awards to be based on
TSR and provided fiexibility to select
financial and nen-financial metrics,
which may include for example ESG
metrics, Far further details relating
to the Policy, see the Directors’
Remuneration Report {page 73).

{n developing our Policy, the
Remuneration Committee takes
advice from Korn Ferry to ensure that
our Policy reflects best practice.

The Remuneration Committee
consulted with significant
shareholders as part of the Policy
review and considered the feedback
received in its deliberations.

Smaller sharehalders have the option
of emailing us or attending and voting
at the AGM to register their feedback
on the proposed Policy.

The Remuneration Committee has,
in developing the Policy, ensured
alignment of the interests of the
Uirecters to those of z2ll of our
sharehclders.



Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Our risk framework:

Risk management roiitines support v in delivering ar finandial pei formancs and cur strategy. Our purpose, values and culture supports cur
risk management framework by setfing the standards and behaviours we expect from colleagues.

The Audit & Risk Committee regularly reviews our principal risks and uncertainties and receives reports relating to our risk management
systems and controls. It alsa considers emerging risks and the cutputs of our strass testing routines.

Each of our three Divisions has risk management arrangements, systems and centrols which feed into the Group’s overall arrangements.
Divisiona! Chief Risk Officers and local governance forums oversee Divisional risk managament frameworks, which involve the use of risk
metrics, policies, procedures, risk treatment plans and tracking of emergent issues. The frameworks focus on risk management practices for
key areas such as change management, client servicing, cyber threats and regulatory compliance.

The Group scrutinises and challenges Nivisional risk management activities o ough a regular Internal Audit cycle and through risk-based
governance forums, attended by senior Group and Divisicnal representatives.

The Group has adopted 3 ‘three lines of defence’ approach to risk managerment, which seeks to ensure that we promptly identify and manage
risks through our oversight routines. The first fine of defence sits with eperaticnal/functional management teams who own and manage the
risks. Further oversight functions include Divisional Risk and Governance teams {second line}, the Group Finance team {second line] and the
Group’s Internal Audit team (third line). These structures enable us to layer our oversight activities to reinforce their overall effectiveness. The
relevant control functions escalate issues to the Executive Directors, the Audit & Risk Committee or the Board where appropriate.

As we focus on delivering our strategic objectives, we continued our work to improve the Group’s risk management arrangements including
developing the Group risk framework. This is an evelutionary process, invelving ongoing strengthening of oversight routines and regularly
considering further investment in resources.

2022 themes

During 2022 we faced challenging economic and political conditions, including rising inflation, the impact of the mini-budget and rising interest
rates. Globally, businesses have felt the impact of the war in Ukraine including the effects of rising energy costs and the impact on consumers
of the cost of living crisis, The combined impact has been falt by all of our businesses across our three Divisions.

At the heart of our Group strategy is the growth of our Financial Services Network business which has, in line with the rest of our Group,

been impacted by the eranomic and political conditions referred to above. In additien, the Division is also addressing FCA reforms relating to
the AR regime and the implementation of the new consumer duty requirements, which are being monitored as part of our strategic project
programme.

We manage the identification, ownership and delivery of key strategic initiatives through a programme of high priority projects, each driven by
a member of the Executive Committee. The Group CEQ and Group CFO oversee gach project, with the Board receiving regular reports on the
progress of individual projects as welt as overall progress.

The Group has continued to support the growth of Pivotal Growth, the buy and build joint venture with Pollen Street Capital, including the sale
of its D2C brokerage businesses (Group First, RSC, Embrace Financial Services and F2P) to Pivotal Growth in Q1 2023 {for further details see
note 34 to the Financial Statements).

We have continued to focus on developing core technology platforms, new data driven product opportunities and Divisional restructuring plans
across the Group, to simplify the Greup, drive growth and improve profitability.

Each Division operate risk management arrangements which also promote environments supporting sustzinable growth. During the year, we
strengthened Divisional risk-governance arrangements, including appointing new senior risk-related roles {further details are provided in the
Audit & Risk Committee Report on page 67).

Qur risk profile:

-

We consider that all our principat risks and uncertainties are currently within our risk tolerances. As detailed in our Matters Reserved for the
Board Policy, the setting of risk appetite is a matter for the Board and is consitered by the Audit & Risk Committee in its risk reviews.

The cverall trend of our aggregated risks is increasing, as a result of worsening econamic conditions in housing and labour markets (arising due
to high inflation and high interest rates), more sophisticated IT security threats and the introduction of new regulations.

We have removed COVID-19 from cur list of principal risks and uncertainties, due to the effects of vaccinations, lower infection fevels and
business practices adapting to a resilient hybrid or remote working model.

Dther significant risk areas also exist, which are not listed in our principal risks and uncertainties summary below, such as financial control,
liquidity and fraud risks.

Further detail on our principal risks and uncertainties, including gross risk trends and risk management themes, are provided in the following
table.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Gross trend

Nature of principal risk and uncertainty Mitigating actions {pre-mitigating actions)

EXTERNAL.

The cyclicality of the UK housing market exposes the + We are driving growth in our Financial Services Network through increasing
Group to volatility in housing transaction volumes, separate strategies for the mortgage and insurance markets, thereby

Recent adverse macroeconomic conditions have reducing the Group’s expesure ta a cyclical housing market.

affected the housing cycle. Also, the relevance of our » The Surveying & Valuation strategy includes diversification into D2C f
strategic focus in other distingt markets which are channels and data service offerings to lenders, which are not tied to

impacted differently, such as those for mortgage and housing market transaction volumes.

protection products.

We stress test market scenarics, have opportunities to flex our
scalable cost base and have 2 UK-wide spread, to reduce cyclicality
and avoid over-exposure te local market factors.,

We may be exposed to competitive pressures from » \We monitor disruptor activity within each of our markets and Stable
market participants, including new entrants, disruptor where appropriate respond by adapting cur businesses to remain

business modeis and disintermediation threats. competitive.

This could include the impact of direct sales medjums, « We have developed digital opportunities, new technology platforms, “
tech-driven market entrants and digital service alternative product offerings, and ways of working to improve

alternatives. efficiency and the customer experience.

+ We are delivering investment and restructuring opportunities,
including expanding aur joint venture activities {Pivotal Growth}.

INTERNAL:

3. Execution of growth strategy

We need to effectively execute strategic initiatives, to » We are implementing key high priority strategic projects driven by Increasing
deliver required levels of Group growth. Executive Committee members, with governance routines involving

Colieague experience, skills and expertise, technology oversight from the Group CEQ, Group CFO and the Board.

choices and governance routines are ali important » The Group £SO and Group COOQ suppert strategy development and

for supporting our decision making and strategic implementation.
delivery. The risk s increasing because of the impact

X = " We are restructuring our Divisions and developing new target
challenging market conditions are having on peaple operating models across the Group which, together with the making
and financial resources. of new senior appointments, will support the delivery of our strategy.

+ We have governance routines within each Division to support new
technology and product initiatives, with due diligence, modelling and
the integration of acquisittons and investments.

4, Professlonal services

We may receive claims arising from systemi¢ lapses in *» Our Divisional and Group values and cultures seek te premaote Stable
the delivery of professional services across L5L. appropriate colieague conduct and positive customer gurcomes.

Relevant risk factors include lending practices, = We limit our exposure to products with higher risk features and

moertgage product types/mix, economic conditions complexities. For example, our Financial Services Network businesses “
and the adeguacy and availability of insurance to do not have responsibility for the supervision of investment advice

cover potential claims. and the mortgage valuation activities in Surveying & Valuation are

linked to mainstream and not sub-prime lending.

+ We have adopted a ‘three lines of defence’ approach to oversight
routines, which includes quality assurance, Internal Audit and
complaints/claims handling functions.

* We have gavernance routines to ensure we identify and putin place
appropriate insurance arrangements.
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Significant falls in business volumes could arise from
the loss or withdrawal of key 828 clients, brokers
and/er franchisees.

It is vital to maintain service delivery teveis and
relationships with key 828 clients, brekers and/or
franchisees.

We may fail to maintain robust systems and
technology to premote our competitiveness and client
SErvicing.

This includes during the consolidation of [T platforms
across brands or multiple change management
initiatives, as well as maintaining resilient ‘BAU" iT
systems.

We could suffer a majar loss of data resultingin
business interruption, reputational damage, and/or
regulatory exposure.

Risks are increased by international cyhercrime
threats and supplier dependencies for both systems
pravision and data management.

egulatory compliance

Financial sanctions or reputational damage could
result from non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Qur regulatory landscape includes FCA rules

and consumer protection laws. Recent areas

of regulatory focus include tenant safety and
welfare, environmental standards, consumer duty
reguirements and compliance with the new AR
regime.

Our Dwisional and Group values and cultures seek to promote the

importance of delivering good customer service and experiences.

We benchmark our product and service propositions, to ensure we
are delivering the best value versus market-leading standards.

We conduct corporate client due diligence exercises, including risk
profiling of product portfolios for both praspective and current
clients.

Dedicated relationship managers closely monitor servica levels,

aperating dependencies and compliance with contractual terms,

Qur Data and information Security Committee (which reports to the
Group CEQ) sets minimum Group policy standards for information
security and IT matters, including coverage of continuity and
recovery routines, capacity constraints, third party dependencies and
tniurance arrangements.

We have appointed a new chief technology officer in the Financial
Services Division.

We manitor IT service delivery to clients and business associates,
which include ARs and franchises.

We have dedicated Divisional information security speciatists and
Data Protection Officers, within a Group governance framewaork
involving base policy standards and Group arranged cyber insurance.

The Data and Information Security Committee coordinates our efforts
across the Group on minimum standards.

We provide Group IT resource and colizague training and awareness
programmes.

We conduct routine deep dives on technical areas, followed by
Group-wide expertise sharing.

System security is supported by penetration testing, intrusion
scanning, secure back-up routines, encryption of key data and a
robust access control framewerk.

Qur Divisional and Group values and cultures prioritise fairness,
transparency, health and safety awareness and menitoring regulatory
reforms.

Our client’s financial wellbeing is at the heart of our Financial Setvices
business modet.

The Group CEO has communicated a zero-toclerance policy for any
significant weaknesses leading to regulatory breaches.

The Group risk arrangements are supported by investment in
specialist oversight roles {for example, conduct risk expertise and the
appointment of a new Financial Services independent non executive
director onto the Financial Services Network beards).

We exercise oversight across all three lines of defence’, and initiate
change management projects with external consultative input as
necessary.

Stable

>

Stable

Increasing

Increasing
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

L
Failure to identify and deliver on our ESG * The Group CEQ spansors cur Living Responsibly strategy and increasing
coammitments could affect our productivity, programme which includes priorities which are led by members of the
reputation, and/or market value, Executive Committee.
Qur recent focus areas include recruitment and » Qur Living Responsibly priorities include diversity targets (for our f
management practices to promote diversity and Board, its Commuttees and the Senior Management Team), wider
inclusion, environmental initiatives and Group workforce targets, community projects, customer service initiatives,
governance arrangements. enerpy saving schemes and a net zero carbon objective by 2040 (see
Due to the nature of cur operations and business ESG Report —page 30 and our Living Responsibly Report).
mudel, we expect the Impact of cimate-related * We engage with colleagues via the Group's cofleague forums,
risks 1o be relatively low, Over the medium to the Divisional working groups, colleague surveys and through training
longer term we expect greater physical impacts and initiatives.

transition risks associated with regulatory changes
which could each result in the risk increasing. Our rigk
is being monitored for any change.

Failure to attract, develop and retain talented « We have governance routines, policies and initiatives, overseen by Increasing
colleagues may affect our ability to deliver our the Remuneration and Nominations Commitiees, to recruit and retain
strategic priorities {incfuding strategic projects). talent in key strategic roles.
The risks are heightened by engeoing labour supply * We have undertaken restructuring within the Divisions including f
shortages In the UK. the appointment inte new senicr refes (such as a new independent

non executive director and chief technology officer within Financial

Services).

* We have technology-based initiatives to harness new sales mediums.

* We use colleague surveys, our colleague engagement forums,
culture audits and welfare initiatives as ways to identify and address
colleague pressures.

2023 plans

= Cur plans for 2023 include further Group-led definition of Divisional risk treatment, risk acceptance and risk escalation routines.

» Management Teams across all three Divisions are encouraged to devete more time to their risk management agenda as part of their Divisional
governance cycles. We will also continue to invest in important softer routines, such as colleague ‘speaking-up’ initiatives, to maintain an
honest and open risk management culture.

« We will continue to progress our Living Responsibly strategy and programmaes, which includes managing ESG-related risks, promoting diversity
and inclusivity, ang encouraging community and environmental {for example TCFD) initiatives.

» Our internal Audit plans will increase their focus on assessing the effectiveness of emergent regulations and second line oversight routines.

* We will also strengthen our horizon-scanning routines, reassess our risk management resourcing and evaluate the effectiveness of linkages
between relevant Group and Divisional risk framework structures.

Our viability
The Directors have assessed the Group's prospects and financiai viability, taking into account its current and expected financial position, existing
banking facilities, actions available to Management and the potential impact of its principal risks and uncertainties.

Assessment of prospects

This section of the Report describes how the Directors have considered and reparted on the Group’s prospects. Qur business model and strategy
are central to understanding our prospects and are detailed earlier in this Report (page 12).

Our purpose is to provide first class services to mortgoge and insurance odvisers, estate agents, lenders and their customers, to create long term
benefits for external stakeholders and our people.

The Board assesses the Group’s prospects throughout the year and particularly during the strategic, three year and budget processes. This
includes an annual review of our ongoing plans which is fed by the Group CEQ and Group CFO and involves input from Executive Committee
members who represent our Divisions and Group/head office functions.

The Directors participate in the annual planning processes. Part of the Board's role is to consider whether our plans take appropriate account of
the changing environment, including macroeconemic, political and geopelitical, regulatory, technological and climate-related matters.

28



This process results in the Board adopting strategic objectives and detailed financlal forecasts over a three year period, which we refer to as the
three year plan The Board adopted the latest updatas to e thiee year plan in December 2022, tn making its decision, the Board considered our
current position and our prospects of operating over the three year periocd ending 31 December 2025, and reaffirmed our strategy.

Assessment of viabifity

The strategic plan reflects the Directors’ best estimate of the Group’s prospects in accordance with provision 31 of the Code. We have assessed

LSU's viability over a longer period than the 12 months required by the gaing concern provision of the Code.

For the purposes of assessing the Group's viability, we determined that a three year period ending on 31 December 2025 was appropriate, as

it was consistent with the Board’s strategic planning cycle. Qur assessment took into account the Group's current position and prospects, the

Board’s risk management arrangements and the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties.

To make this assessment, we vursidered several severe but plausible scenarios that stress test our business performance. The scenarios modelled

are based an input from a functional group of senior managers, including representatives fram the Divisional finance teams. The Group’s base

foracast and scenarios assume all three Divisions continue to operate.

The viability scenario modelled reflected the foliowing risks:

» asevere downturn in our markets in which housing market transactions decrease by an average of 25% versus 2022, simiiar to the fevel seen
during the last recession in 2008, caused by either, or a combination of, economic {such as high inflation and interest rates and reduced
availability of debt funding), political and other uncertainties;

» the loss of a major contract {top five lender, which has not occurred for over five years) and a Pi risk event in the Surveying & Valuation Division
reflecting a significant increase in valuation claims; and

* a material one-off regulatory fine over £1m following a data breach, assuming any insurance recovery would not occur within the planning
window.

Detailed assumptions were modelled by month across the three year period. The models included both the individual and the aggregate impact

of the risks abave, and measured the downside impact on revenue and the actions we would take to retain cash reserves and maintain cur

operations, such as suspending capital expenditure, which is within cur control. We have afso considered climate-related impact, but our current
assessment is that this would not be material enough to impact our viability during the planning window.

We also modelied further scenarios to reflect the business disposals completed during Q1 2023. The results did not alter the conclusions reached

by the Directors and the Board. Further detail on the businesses disposed can be find in note 24 to the Financial Statements.

We also made assumptions about the stability and potential growth of the Group’s recurring income and counter-cyclical businesses, notably

mortgage and insurance renewals, lettings and asset management which account for ¢79% of Group Revenue, and the extent te which we could

quickly ramp up some activities, such as remote valuations, in extreme market conditions. The modelling and assumptions tock account of our
broad range of services across the UK, which gives us some protection from the impact of stress scenarics.

The stress testing indicated that the Group would be able to withstand the financial and operational impact of each scenario and therefore

continue to operate and meet its liabilities, as they fall due, over the three year period ending 31 December 2025, Under all the modelled

scenarios, the Group had sufficient fiquidity throughout the going concern period and to the end of the planning period in December 2025.

Funding for the Group has been further strengthened with the restatement and amendment of the Group’s banking facility of £60m, which was

completed in February 2023 for a period up to May 2026, replacing the previcus £90m facility.

We also modelled significantly more severe reverse stress scenarios, to assess the level to which market conditions would have to deteriorate

hefore we would reach our banking covenant ratio of 2.75x Net Debt: adjusted EBITDA {with a ratio of 3.00x allowable for two consecutive test

periods once during the renewal period). Excluding any action we would take to retain cash reserves and maintain our operations, the modelling
indicated that UK housing market transaction activity would have to fail to a leve! 7% below the financial crisis of 2008 in the first year of
assessment with no material recovery, which is equivalent to a 37% fall in comparison to 2022, of which we consider the likelihood to be remote.

Directors’ viability statement

Based on their assessment of the Group’s prospects and viability, the Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
will continue to operate and meet its liabilities, as they fa!l due, for the next three years, and that the likelihood of extreme scenarios which would
lead to a breach of covenant is remote.

The Directors alsc confirm that in making this statement they carried out an assessment of the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, scivency or liquidity.

The Board also considered it appropriate to prepare the Financial Statements on the going cancern basis, as explained in the Basis of Accounting
paragraph in the Principal Accounting Policies section, within the Financial Statements of this Report.

During 2022, the Audit & Risk Committee oversaw the process by which the Directors reviewed and discussed Management’s assessment in
proposing this viability statement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

Non-Financial Information Statement

This saction of the Strategic Report constitutes LSL's Non-Financial Information Statement and is produced to comply with Sections 414CA and
114CB of the Companies Act 2006.

Envircnmental Matters

Colleagues

Human Rights

Socia! Matters

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

Principal Risks

Business Modet

Non-Financial Key Parformance Indicators

Gl i
Living Responsibly Report
Environmental Policy
Combined Ethics Policy
Health and Safety Policy
Living Responsibly Report

Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy
contained within the Combined Ethics
Policy

Living Responsibly Report
Caombined Ethics Policy
Living Responsibly Report

Anti-Brinery and Corruption Policy and
whistieblowing Policy contained within
the Combined Ethics Policy

Summaries of the policies referred to above are available at Islps.co.uk

ESG Report page 30
Report of the Directors page 49

£5G Report page 30

Stakeholder Engagement Arrangements
page 21

Report of the Directors page 49

£SG Report page 30

ESG Report page 30

Stakeholder Engagement Arrangements
page 21

Cerporate Governance page 54

ESG Report page 30

Corporate Governance Report page 54

Principat Risks and Uncertainties page 25

Purpase, Strategy, Culture, Values and
Business Mode! page 12

Financial and Divisional Reviews page 13

In 2021 we launched our Living Responsibly strategy and published our first standalone Living Responsibly Report, outlining our organisational

approach and demonstrating cur commitment to being a responsible and sustainable business. This section of the Report summarises cur Living

o s

Responsibly work in 2022 and includes ESG information required to be included in this Report. For further details on our wider approach te being
a responsible and sustainable husiness, please see our separate Living Responsibly Report {available at slps.co.uk).

Our approach

The Board approves our Living Responsibly strategy annuzlly and the Board receives biannual updates on the progress of our programme. Qur
Greup CEQ, David Stewart, is the executive spensar of aur Living Responsibly programme, and overall responsibility now sits with our Group HR

Director, Debra Gardner, having moved in 2022 from our Group £SO, who oversaw the programme’s launch. Our values and culture — having the

right people, doing the right thing in the right way — underpin cur apgroach to Living Responsibly including £5G.

We have established a Living Respensibly Steering Committee, which reports into David and sets our sustainability strategy, considering input
from our three Divisions and from our head office/Group functions.

We also engage with stakeholders on ESG related matters. Further information on this is set out in the Stakehalder Engagernent section of this
Report {page 21), which intjudes examples of how the Board considered stakeholder views in its decision making in 2022,

Our colleague forums and Environmental Working Group are core to our internal stakeholder engagement, enabling us to align and refine
collezgue and organisational priorities. Each ferum and the Environmental Working Group has its own Executive Committee sponsor.
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The diagram below ilfustrates haw these groups wark together to guide our appraach:

Living Respansibly Steering Committee (Quarterly)

w
=
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o
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S
2

Divisional Repre<sentatives Group Wide Forums and Workng Groups

Surveying & Group inclusion Commuitias Employes  QEnvirgnmentat
Yatumiion i Functions and farum Erpagemant Warking
’ Divossity Farum Group
Eyrom erd
151 Voicas

Communication Links

Information about our ESG related risks are included in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of this Report (page 25).

aerodioy duipnpw) woday sioiang

The tabie below illustrates our overall approach and five current priorities, together with their Executive Committee leadership under the Living
Responsibly programme at the date of this Report:

[512003y 2RTUUHUOT PUE SLIOUIY FIUELIBADE

ng Responsibly
%‘E
S. Ensuring excellent %
2. Building an 3 governance through 8
. . B 3. Supporting P - s 4
1. Increasing the ihnclusive culture 4. Minimising our increasing Board
. . colieagues to . : .
diversity of our where colleagues i environmental diversity and
connect with our R A
Board and warkforce are supported to . footprint maintaining
. communities
thrive excellent governance
across the Group
g
g
z
2
3
;—i

Notes:
* During 2022 the Executive Committee spansor for werkforce diversity was Helen Buck and Jon Round took over from 1 April 2023,

7 John McConnell was Group HR Directar during 2922 and the Executive Commitiee member responstbfe for progressing engaging, supporting and investing in

aur colleagues.

Progress against each of our five Living Respansibly priorities is set out below.

Peopie
Cur people are central to our Living Respensibly programme, and our impact on and investment in the society and communities we operate in.

We seek to employ the right people: this is a mix of people who reflect the communities and customers we serve.
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We iook te do the right things: people are our barometer for this. We want to invest in and effectively support our colleagues, as well as getting

hehind the pricritior thoy identify.

increasing the diversity of our Board and workforce

2022 review

Cur Inclusion, Diversity and Equality (ID&E) vision:

Welcoming people of all backgrounds and identities, through inciusive working cultures and practices.

Our ID&EE goal:

To have a workforce that reflects the communities in which we operate, and to provide a platform that supports progression, promotes health

and wellbeing, and creates a positive impact.

In the Annual Report and Accounts 2021 we shared our ID&E pillars — Creating Awareness, Continually Improving our Practices and Promoting
Opportunity. Some highlights of our activity within these categories are shown below:

Creating
Awareness

Improving our
employees’
understanding and
interactions

Creating awareness of ID&E themes through:

* Group-wide Inclusion Matters and
Unconscious Bias training.

Passport to Recruit training for hiring
managers {83% completion, representing
447 hiring managers).

» Our Inclusion and Diversity Forum, which
has gone from strength to strength, meets
regularly and inputs on key actions and
decisions. Itis now established as a source
of expertise and is involved in regular
consultation exercises as we develop our
policies and arrangements.

* Recruiting and training 15 Disability
Champions across the Group, in
partnership with Disability Rights UK.

-

Recruiting and training mental health
first aiders in gur Surveying & Valuation
Division.

Notes:

* disabilityrightsuk.org
changetheracerato.com

w

=

-

firms
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Continually ifproving cur practices through:

Continually
improving Our

Practices

Developing our
infrastructure for
inclusive, diverse and
equal working
practices

* Reviewing our family friendly policies
including improving our parental leave
offering, intreducing a baby loss policy,
a fertility policy, menopause policy
and a pregnancy toolkit (accessible
anonymously).

« Laying the foundaticns for better diversity
data capture, which we plan to build into
our Group HR system in 2023,

* Designing and launching a Disability
Passpart where colleagues can transfer
reasonable adjustments as they maove roles
within the organisation.

* Signing up to the CBI's Change the Race
Ratio? which will provide us with a
peer group whao are seeking the same
imgrovernents in their organisations.

gov.uk/government/collections/disability-confident-campaign
rnib.org.uk/ living-with-sight-loss/equality-and-emplcyment /employars/make-your-workplace-safer-for-employees-with-sight-loss/
gov.uk/gevernment/publicanens/standard-voluntary-code-of- conduct-executive-search-firms/the-standard-voluntary-code-of-condyct-for-exeri:five-search-

- Promoting

o Opportunity

Giving our
employees equal

apportunity of access

and development

?rbmbﬁﬁg' oppeftuﬁity through: .

In November 2022 achieving Disability
Confident employer status?, signalling
to current and potential employeas our
commitment ta development for all.

Working with RNIB* to consider the
accessibility of our ro'es to those with sight
loss.

Selecting recruitment partners who are
committed to promoting inclusion and
diversity and demonstrate this by signing
up to the Government’s Standard Voluntary
Code of Conduct for Executive Search
Firms® or equivalent standards.

Building our applicant tracking system to
include diversity information, to support
better anatysis of candidates applying for
roles and more targeted action to diversify
our waorkforce,
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Further details on our activities in these areas can also be found in our Living Responsibly Report.

During 2022, we wui hed towdids Lhe diversivy targets which we adopted in our Diversity Policy and we worked towards setting workforce targets,
We have included somea initial targets in the table below, and will work to refine these during 2022 and beyond:

¥
-
F
A,
~
E
m
°
e
g
)

Board a. at least 40% are women; and At least one Director frem a minority ethnic

b, at least one woman in the role of Chair, background.
Group CEQ, Group CFQ, or Senior
Independent Director.
Fxecutive Committes At least 33% are wumen. At least 11% are from a minority ethnic
background.
Senior Management Team At least 33% are women. At least 11% are from a minority ethnic
background. VN
Workforce No target set as the current gender » At least 7% are from a minority ethnic 3=
composition of our workforce is cansidered background.
to be balanced. Please see below. « 16% of new hires are from a minority

ethnic background.

During 2022, we have been building our capacity to capture diversity data within our Group HR system, This involved asking colleagues ta
anonymously provide diversity information as part of our annual survey, to support our understanding of the make-up of our workforce. We used
the same approach to capture data in 2021, and both years’ data is shown in the table below. Data showing our ethnic diversity following the
dispasal of the Group businesses completed since the year end is set out in the Living Responsibly Report.

aesodio) Juipnpauy 110day 540399

{51003y 3JPHUILO) pue 5310683y SHURLIAG

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Non-white/ Non-whstef
White Ethnic minority White Ethnic minority

Directors! 100% 0% 100% 0%
Executive Committee! 78% 22% 78% 22%
90% 10% 90% 10%
6% 95% 5%

Senior Management Team?
All employees?® 94%

Nates:

‘Directors’ includes both Executive Directors and Non Executive Directors. The Corporate Governance Report includes gender and diversity data in relation to
our Board and £xecutive Committee,

‘Senior Management Team' includes the Exscutive Directors, and the Executive Committee and their direct reports, excluding PAs and administrators and
excludes any changes made after this date.

‘all emplaoyees’ includes Directors and members of Senior Management Team.

i
SJUBIBIELS [BIIURUILY |
!

vu .

w

The data above shows that we have during 2022 begun to make progress in improving the ethaic diversity of our workforce, and that we stil have
more to do to improve bath the diversity of our workforce and data collection to fully understand it.

In 2022, we used the 2021 census data which was published late in the year, to benchmark the composition of our werkforce. The census revealed
that 16% of the UX population identify as non-white or ethnic minority, when weighted for the regions we operate in. In 2022, we increased

the proportion of non-white and ethnic minority employees by 1%. In addition to this, 14% of our new recruits identified as non-white or ethnic
minority. Aithough we do not have data to compare this to from the previous year, this shows that our recruitment arrangements across the
Group are attracting and recruiting ethnic minority individuals close to the census data target. We have committed to werk with the CBl viaits
Change the Race Ratio which we signed up to at the start of 2023, and we intend to adopt more detailed coileague diversity targets, in line with
our commitment to increase our diversity overall,

UOLERLIOUS 343D
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31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Female Male o Female Male
Directors® 33% 3 67% 6 ) 25% 2 75% 5
Executive Committee® 22% 2 78% 7 22% 2 78% 7
Senior Management Team? 28% 16 T2% 41 30% 16 70% 38
All employees® 53% 2,364 A7% 2,088 53% 2,444 47% 2,173

Notes:

* Threctors’ ircludes both Executive Directors and Non Executive Dkrectors. The Corporate Governance Report includes gender and diversity data inrelatonto
our Board end Executive Cormmittes.

‘Senior Management Team’ includes the Executive Directors, and the Executive Committee and their direct repcrts, excluding PAs and admimistrators and

~

exciudes any changes mace ater this date.
3 ‘all erployees’ includes both Directors arnd Senior Management Team.

Data showing our gender diversity following the disposal of the Group businesses completed since the year end is set out in the Living Responsibly
Report. Over time we would like to improve the gender balance within our leadership teams in line with the gender balance we have within our
workforce, which is more balanced. We have not yet met our interim targets to have 33% of the Senior Management Team female or 11% of the
Senior Management Team from a non-white or ethnic minority background and we will continue to work on this through 2023. Further colleague
data is shown in the table below.

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2022 2021 2020 20189 2018

Total employees 4,452 4,617 4,335 4,772 5,463
Total voluntary employee turnover (%) 30.5 28.1 17.4 26.7 27.0
Male (9%} 47% 47% 49% 47% 47%
Female (%) 53% 53% 51% 53% 53%

As part of our annual colieague survey, we asked colleagues to provide us with infermation on their gender identity, which may differ from legal
sex, and enabled individuals to identify as non-binary or other gender identity. As an employer we also hold information on employees’ legal sex,
as required by relevant laws and regulations, as this dataset is complete it has been chosen for disclosure in this Report. This will be kept under
review as we improve our colleague data collection methodology. We have used colleague gender identity to undertake internal analysis of the
colleague survey ta inform our wider diversity and inciusion strategy,

During 2022, Internal Audit reviewed our ID&E priorities and activities, as part of its annual programme of audits. The audit identified a number of
successes, as well as noting that our Board and Senior Management Team compaosition is not in accerdance with the diversity targets adopted by
the Board and set out in our Diversity Policy. For further explanation on this, see the Corporate Governance Report on page 54.

2023 priorities
As we look to 2023, our priorities are to:
» Build on the success of 2022 and focus on trust and capability around diversity data sharing across the Group.

* Use data to understand the experiences of female, non-white and ethnic minority colteagues’ career progression through the Group, with the
objective of ensuring that we align the proportions at senior levels with the workforce as a whole.

+ Further increase the diversity of the workforce, especially in areas and regions where we are under-represented when compared with the
regional census data.

Building an inclusive culture where colleagues are supported to thrive

2022 review
This work Is centred on engaging, supporting and investing in our colleagues, and hinges cn our ability to listen to them and identify their needs

and interests. The annual survey and our colleague forums are central te guiding this work.
Our people programme includes three Group-wide colleague engagement forums:

1. Communities Farum

2. inciusion and Diversity Forum

3. Employee Engagement Forum

Further information on the Employee Engagement Forum can be found below and in the Stakeholder Engagement Report (page 21). The
Cemmunities and Inclusion and Diversity forums meet approximately monthly online and seek to meet in person where this is possible. In 2022
they had two face-te-face conference days (May and Novemnber).
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The Communities and Inclusion and Diversity forums were established in 2021 and during 2022 they have continued o be supported by Executive
Committee members: Holen Bugk (Incliusion and Diversily} and Sapna B, FitzGerald (Lommunitias). Fram 1 April 2023, the inclusion and Diversity
Forum is supported by Jon Round.

The memkbership of both forums was refreshed in 2022, including the appointment of new chairs. The forum chairs are financially compensated
for their roles and report directly to David Stewart, providing him with regular updates on their work and member views.

Examples of 2022 forum initiatives are included in our Living Respeonsibly Report.

Oversight of colleague matters, Including ensuring equal opportunities are prometed in the Group, rests with the Group HR Director and is
supported by the Employee Engagement Forum. The Employee Engagement Forum met manthly {remotely) during 2022 and twice in person with
Darrell Evans, our designated Non Executive Director for workforce engagement in attendance. The Remuneration Committee and the Board took
intn arcount feadhack from this forum when it made the decision ta award « une-olf cost of living payment to lower-earning employees at the
eng of 2022. This award was in addition to the £500 share award made to all colleagues earlier in the year.

In 2021 we committed to pregressing signing up to a charter to support our work on diversity which was initiaily proposed by the Nominations
Committee following the publication of the second Parker review in 2020. During 2021 the Inclusion and Diversity Forum was asked to assist with
identifying which charter would suit us best. With their support we are delighted to have become a signatory of the CBI's Change the Race Ratic in
2023 and we are looking forward to warking with the CBI to increase our diversity and improve our workforce engagement.

Colleague feedback

The Board receives colleague feedback via the Group’s opinion surveys, which we undertake across cur businesses. The colleague opinions
Laptured are then presented to the Executive Committee and the Board, as part of a regular review of colleague matters. Key performance
indicators such as labour turnover and responses to key survey questions are also monitored, to measure morale and review culture.

The colleague opinion survey - ‘Have your say’ — alsc provides the Executive Committee and the Board with insight into what factors concern and
motivate the Group’s employees and contribute to action plans and focus actions across the Group. The survey process is regularly evaluated and
developed, to maximise the validity and reliability of the data captured.

The 2022 survey covered all aspects of cur working environments. This included culture, training, careers, performance and communications,
together with questions on the effectiveness of Group companies’ management and leadership. The response to the survey was positive, with
2,506 (2021: 3,119) employees taking part, a 61% response rate across the Group {2021: 76%). Market factors, persenal earnings and experiences
can affect scores and participation rates, so the timing of the annual survey is under review.

Staff Survey 2012/2021 vs 2022
2012/2021

Few complaints, otivared, Tew
not motivated complaints

Few complaints,

not mativated
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Positivity around MCTIVATING FACTORS Positivity arcund MOTIVATING FACTORS
FS = Financial Services S&Y = Surveying & Vatuation EA = Estate Agency HO = Head Office

» Analysis of previous surveys and 2022 data show a marked improvement overall across the Group: all colleagues completing the survey are
shown to be motivated, although Estate Agency Division drepped into the ‘motivated but complaints’ guadrant, indicating mild dissatisfaction
against some measured questions.

» Sentiment from the survey in the Estate Agency Division centred on hybrid working and the cost of living. This survey was undertaken before
the one-off cost of living payment was announced for lower-paid colieagues and we believe that the resufts would have been more positive had
the survey been undertaken after the announcement, because the feedback we received post-announcement was positive.

» Head office/Group functions, who have more flexibility in their working environments due to the nature of their rotes, scored highest, The
Financial Services Division also saw a big shift in mativation. The Surveying & Valuation Division shifted positively in alt areads,
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

» Theresponses in the 2022 survey were positive overall suggesting an increase in colleague engagement across the Group. Business areas are
looking ot the items stated as needing most iImpruvernent and Lhe intention is lo communlcate with colleagues more regularly arcund ‘you said,
we did’.

We have also analysed survey respenses using the diversity characteristics that have been shared with us. In some instances, this has highlighted

different experiences for groups of colieagues.

Our Inclusion and Diversity Forum has been working through 2022 to launch colleague resource/affinity groups across the Group. These are
referred to as 151 Voices and the initial launch will include five groups during 2023. We will be werking clesely with LSL Voices through the
Inclusion and Diversity Forum, to look at how we can improve our working envirenment and culture for the benefit of all.

Colleague training and policies

David Stewart has overall responsibility for colleague matters, with Debra Gardner responsible for our employment policies and practices. Qur
Internal Audit team undertakes colleague awareness audits of cur policies, and the Board receives regular Group HR reporting, which includes
indicators such as staff turnover. Policies audited in 2022 included 21 as part of the audit of cur ID&E work and six used to inform a Governance
and Culture review project. The reviews reported that colleague awareness of policies was low, Group HR has commitied to reviewing these
procedures and communicating the work to eolleagues to raise awareness of the business’s commitments to colleague weifare. In addition to this,
plans are in place to launch an LSL corporate induction programme in 2023 which will include policy signposting, with particular attention given to
the Disciplinary Policy, Employee Voice Policy, Grievance Policy and Stress and Mental Wellbeing Policy.

In addition to our suite of Group and Divisional colleague policies, the table below highlights some specific policias which support us in cur Living
Responsibly programme. Some are new and have been developed as a direct result of feedback from our colleague forums. The table Lelow alse
highlights how the policfes linked to our Living Responsibly priorities.

Living Responsibly

ariority Policy Scope Pubiished/last reviewed
1,2 1. Family friendly Supportng colleagues with their work life balance, September 2020
1,2 2. Fquality and diversity in the workplace Ensuring fair treatment for all colleagues. September 2020
1,2 3. Pregnancy loss CQutlines the support available for colleagues who suffer  March 2022
the loss of their unborn child.
1,2 4. Fertility Qutlines the support available for colleagues October 2022
undergoing ferhility treatment.
1,2 5. Menopause Supporting colleagues to access appropriate support March 2022

when going through the menopause.
1,2 6. Stress and mental wellbeing Outlines the actions the organisation is taking to January 2022
promote a healthy work envirenment and the support
available for colleagues.
4 7. Environmental Cutlines the organisational approach and individuals’ April 2021
roles in improving the sustainability of the Group and
minimising our environmental footprint.
5 8. Data Information Security Framework Includes policies relating to colleague data protection May 2022
and information security arrangements.
3,5 3. Combined ethics Outlines the Group’s approach to anti-bribery and May 2021
corruption, anti-slavery and human trafficking, conflicts
and personal interest, tax evasion, whistieblowing and
fraud.
In relation ta the Group's Informatian Security Framework (Policy 8), all colleagues undertake an annual update of their information security
training to ensure ongolng campliance with laws and regulations. For further details of internal controls, see the Audit & Risk Committee Report
an page 67.
With respect to our recruitment arrangements, we aim to appoint the best candidates based on suitability for the job and to treat all colleagues
and applicants fairly, regardless of any characteristic or background, and to ensure that no individuals suffer harassment or intimidation. To
support this work, in 2021 we signed up to the Recruitment and Employment Confederation’s Good Recruitment Charter?, which involved a gap
analysis to identify areas of improvement in our approach. During 2022 we have been addressing the improvements which were identified and
further improvements are planned for completion in 2023,

Details of our training arrangements, including our 2022 expenditure, can be found in the Living Responsibly Report.

iorec.uk comfemployers/gre
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Colleague health, safety and welfare

Adati Castleton, Gruup CFO, is 1espuisible fur Group health ana satety arrangements, A Heaith and Satety Policy isin plece to ensure the
wellbeing and safety of colleagues, visitors, members of the public and contractors, The Board receives biannual reports on health and safety
matters and the Health and Safety Policy is reviewed annually and submitted for Board approval. We have procedures in place to comply with all
relevant laws and regulations.

We are committed to doing everything reasonably practicable to maintzin a safe working environment, through processes which are designed to
identify and manage hazards and accident reporting procedures to prevent colleague injurias. Details of reported hazards and accidents form part
of the monthly health and safety reporting to Adam Castleton. Training supports health and safety awareness through the {nduction Moedule for
new colleagues and a Health and Safety Module issued annually to all colleagues. Additionally, all colleagues have a duty to do everything possible
to prevent injury to themselves and to others, and to exercise responsibility.

Qur internal Audit team undertakes subsidiary company audits, including reviewing Health and Safety Policy documentation, certification

to ensure compliance with statutory reguirements, colleague engagement, record keeping on hazards and accidents. Follow-up actions are
identified and implemented. Internal Audit also submit its reperts to the Audit & Risk Committee for consideration.

Foliowing the launch in 2020 of various mental welibeing initiatives, including the expansicn of an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP} and

the 2021 app launch, in 2022 e.surv piloted mental health first aiders across the business. We will review their impact during 2023 with a view to
rolling out the scheme across the Group.

2023 priorities
» Continue to work with our colieague forums and the new LSL Voices networks to improve our culture and practices,
s Review our external survey provider to ensure best practice data collection and alignment with external benchmarks.

* Review the impact of mental health champions in e.surv and censider their roll out across the Group.

Supporting colleagues to connect with our communities

2022 review

Our businesses are firmly rooted in our local communities. We have a long history of investing in community initiatives and our Board recognises
that good community relations are fundamental to our sustained success. Through our communities programme, we support our businesses and
their investment in their local communities. We are sensitive to logal communities” cultural, social and economic needs and are committed te
acting responsibly wherever we operate.

We believe that working in partnership with our communities consistently is the most effective way to achieve objectives and lasting change.
Our Communities Forum drives our Group-level priorities around community engagement, whick complement Divisional and other colleague
initiatives.

During 2022, we:

« Launched a Colleague Community Day across our Financial Servicas Division. This gave individuals and teams time off work to support a

local initiative. This was a pilot scheme and we are considering rolling the initiative out across cur other Divisions and our head office/Group
locations.

Piloted a matched fundging initiative across the Group, inviting colleagues who are fundraising to seek matched funding for the causes that
matter to them. In total, the Group matched £7,170 of colleague fundraising.

Ran four Group-wide community focused initiatives — Litter Picking Week {March}, Act of Kindness Week (lune), Food Bank Week (September}
and Goodwill Month {December). This was the second year for all of these initiatives and the same four are in planning for 2023, with the Litter
Picking Week compieted in March.

-

The initiatives are promoted to all colleagues, inciuding Directors who have also participated in some cf the community initiatives during 2022
and you can read more about the success of our community initiatives in our Living Responsibly Report.

2023 priorities
+ Continue the delivery of aur four anrmual Group-wide community focused initiatives and build on their success in 2022.
¢ Continue ta roll out matched funding and colleague volunteering initiatives across the Group.

Place
As part of our commitment to working in the right way, we focus on caring for the physical environment we work in and ensuring excellent

governance,
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

Minimising our environmental footprint

Working in the right way includes minimising our impact on the planel and the environment. Whilst the emissions from our operations are
relatively low, we recognise the importance of considering our environmental impact more helistically. CQur business relies on the housing sector,

which is one of the top four carbon contributors?,

in our 2021 Living Responsibly Report, we set out cur commitments to reduce our emissions In line with the internationally agreed target tc keep
the global temperature rise to 1.5°C above pre-industrial fevels. Our Climate Transition Plan (CTP) includes targets against a 2019/20 baseline. The

CTP and our headline progress against targets are illustrated in the table below:

Scope 1

Ermissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the

organisation.

Target:
To reduce Scope 1 emissions by 63% by
2034/5, in line with a 1,5°C trajectory.

Gas
* From mid-2022, we will procure 100%
gas from renewsable sources cnly.

Company vehicles

» We will transiticn 57% leased petrol and
diesel vehicles te hyhrid and electric
{EVs) in a phased appreach, by 2025,

* We are actively engaging with our
tandlords across various site types to
determine the correct EV charging
solutions for sites.

* We are planning consultations with Car
Allowance Scheme users, with a view
to implementing a plan to incentivise
a transition away from internal
combustion vehicle engines.

Indirect emissions
Scope 3

All indirect emissions that occur in the value chain, including

upstream and downstream emissions.

Notes:
* sciencebasedtargets.org

2022 progress
Achieved: Emissions
reduction in line with
1.5°C trajectory.

Not yet achieved:
One location
cutstanding to
procure renewable
gas,

On track to achieve:
45% vehicles have
transitioned, with a
further 26% on order,
Charging points
installed at FS head
office with discussions
ongoing at other
premises.

Car allowance scheme
data has been
collated and is to be
reviewed by EWG

and HR.

Scope 2

Ermissions from the generahon of purchased electricity, steam,

heating or cooling consumed by the company.

Target:
Reduce Scope 2 emissions to zero and
maintain for the foreseeable future.

Electricity

From 2021, we began procuring the majorrty of
our electricity from renewable sources. During

2022, we progressed to procuring 100% of

our electricity from renewable sources for our

managed locations.

2022 Progress

2022 progress
Not yet achieved:
Emissions

24 1CO2e,

During 2022, we committed to quantifying our Scope 3 emissions. In doing

this, we have identified which categories of emissions apply to our business,
and have begun to collate and analyse the data. We will complete this
process in 2023 and submit the data to SBTi* for verification.

* ons.gov.ukfeconomy/environmentalacecounts/bulletins/ukenvironmentalaccounts /2022
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Further analysis of aur emissions against the 1.5°C trajectory is included in the Living Responsibly Report.

Greenhouse gas emissions trends
Whilst 2019/20 is our benchmark for our CTP, cur five year emissions trends are included in the table below:

(tCO2e} 2621722 2020621 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18
Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities {Scope 1) 1,998 2,125 2,517 3,420 3,705
Electricity, heat, steem and cooling purchased for our own use {Scope 2) 24 29 1,139 1,535 2,625
Total Scope 1 and 2 2,022 2,165 3,656 4,955 6,330
tCO2e per FTE employee 0.50 0.52 0.94 1.17 1.27
tCO2e per £m revenue [ 7 14 16 20

Group-wide environmental commitment
Qur commitment to the environment goes beyond our emissions. Buring 2022, each Divisien has sought to address the climate ¢risis through its

own sphere of influence. in addition to Group-wide progress with reducing our envircnmental impact, the Divisions have alsc made progress and
further details are included in cur Living Responsibly Report with a summary of some of our initiatives set out in the table below:

Finandlal Services S Su:n_feying & Valuat

EV charging points installed in head office « Launched our Green Watch Newsletter and  # Installed smart meters and water meters,

focations. Discussions ongoing in three issued 12 editions to all of our corporate to support reduction of water and energy
further locations. clients and interested colieagues. This has use,

« Office assessments undertaken across been weil received, s Installed LED light buibs in our branches,
locations to identify energy efficiency = Delivered sustainability presentations to to reduce energy use.
opportunities, key lender clients and afl e.surv colleagues. . \worked with landlord clients to improve

» All offices have stopped purchasing plastic » Achieved EcoVadis® bronze award — the EPC ratings of their rental properties
cups, with @ number of offices using up EcoVadis is an independent rating agency through the use of EPC+.
existing supplies. that assesses environmental performance « Engaged with landlords at our multi-

s Environmental focus within monthly and corporate social responsibility, tenanted offices and encouraged the
newsletter for all FS colleagues. e Launched 12 Green Commitments installation of EV charging points and

» PRIMIS has joined the Mortgage Climate and a champion forum to support recycled waste arrangements.

-

implementation of these commitments. All branches and offices now have

+» Committed to achieving I5C 140017 in recyeling and general waste facilities and
2023. will continue to improve fevels of recycling
in 2023.

Action Group.

» Delivered sustainability and climate
change training module to all e.surv
cclleagues.

Notes:

1 ecovadis.com
? Imsm.com/gb/iso-14001

Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD}

We welcome the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Refated Financial Disclosures {TCFD} and we are using the framework to support
the ongoing integration of our Living Responsibly programme which includes our ESG work across the Group. However, as we try and align our
approach to the TCFD requirements, including the updated TCFD additional guidance {Implementing the Recommendations of the Task Force

on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (2021 TCFD Annex}}, which was released in October 2021, there are some recommendations where we
are not fully compliant as at the date of this Report. These items will require more time for us toe fully consider and implement arrangements to
ensure compliance,

Within this Report, in line with Listing Rules requirements {LR 9.8.6R(8}}, we have included disclosures which are partially censistent with six of the
11 TCFD recommendations and these disclosures are summarised in the table below. The table below also summarises the steps that we will be
taking in 2023 to improve our consistency with the TCFD recommendations.

We will be working to implement the remaining five TCFD recommendations over the course of 2023 and intend to apply these more fully in gur
TCFD, which will be reported in our Annual Report and Accounts 2023, Our plans to address the areas of non-compliance are summarised out in
the 2023 pricritics entries in the table below.,
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Enwironmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

TCFD recommended disclosures

Board level oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities

The Board, with suppert from the Audit & Risk Committee, has oversight of
climate-related risks and opportunities through its spensorship of our £5G
programme.

The Living Responsibly Steering Committee reports into and is chaired by the Group

CEO. The committee receives reparts from the Environmental Working Group
(EWG).

A proportion of the Executive Directors’ annual bonus in 2023 will be related to
ESG performance and in particular our progress on climate-related metrics.

Management responsibility for climate-related risks and opportunities

David Stewart (Group CEO} is the sponsor for our Living Responsibly programme
which includes climate-related prierities. He has estabfished a Steering Committee
which reports into him and the programme is overseen by Debra Gardner {Group
HR Director).

Debra Gardner is responsible for leading our Living Responsibly strategy and
coordinates the reporting of ESG matters including reperting by the EWG on
climate-related issues. Divisional risk leads are part of the EWG.

As reported in our Annual Report and Accounts 2021, we initiated an analysis of

our climate-related risks and opportunities across the Divisions, informing the work

of the EWG. In 2022, we intended to embed climate-related risk assessment more
fully in our strategic planning process, building on the work from 2021, This work
was not completed in 2022 and will be progressed during 2023,

Climate-related risks and opportunities the organisation has identified over the
short, medium, and ieng term

To date, the Group has not identified any material climate-related risks or
opportunities that impact the Group’s business model, strategy or viability.
However, we acknowledge that this may change and develop over time,

Further, to date, climate-related issues have not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial planning process. inthe short to medium term, the impact of
climate-related risks is expected £o be relatively low, due to the nature of our
business model, Over the medium to longer term we expect physical risks, such
as severe weather {including flooding, increases in temperature and rising sea
levels), as wetl as transition risks such as policy and regulation changes will also
materialise.

Climate-related opportunities for the Group include the financial benefit of a shift
in customer preferences to favour environmentally friendly products and helping
peapie to understand the environmental performance of their properties.

The most significant opportunities in the medium to longer term will arise from
improvements in cur operahaonal resifience, which we expect to see as a resuit of
the elimate change transition and adaptation measures being implemented, We
will continue to develop our response to climate-related issues and seek to operate
our businesses in a manner that meets the expectations of our stakeholders,

Impact of climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s businesses,
strategy, and financial planning

40

The Group’s CTP was first published in cur 2021 Living Responsibly Report and

is included in our Annual Report and Accounts 2022, We are committed to being
net zero by 2040 and in 2023 wili begin the process of validating data and targets
through the SBTi.

2022 Achievements

Sonya Ghobrial, independent Non Executive
Director joined the Board in 2022, Sonya has
expertise in E5G matters and she pravided
feadback on our programme and strategy. Sonya
also attended the Forums Day in November 2022,

2023 Priorities — steps to improve consistency

2022 Achievements

Review the frequency of Beard information

on climate-related matters including through
reporting from the EWG.

Ensure climate-related risks and opportunities are
reviewed in setling Group strategy.

Develop the process by which Management

identifies, monitors, and assesses climate-related
issues.

Review how the Board oversees and monitors
climate-related targets.

Action plans created to respond to risk
assessments within each of the Divisions, as well
as Group/head office, to address climate exposure.

2023 Priorities ~ steps to improve consistency

Continue to develop our risk assessment
methodology to consider short, medium and long-
term climate-related risks as weil as opportunities
that could have a material financial impact on the
Group in the future.

Consider the impact that the identified climate-
related risks and opportunities may have on
business strategy and financial planning.

Model scenarios to assess the resitience of the
business strategy, taking into consideration
different climate-related scenarios (including a 2°C
or lower scenario).
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» In line with the TCFD recommendations, in 2021 we assessed our climate-related
risks, covering both physical risks (ie physical impacts of climate change, such as
severe waather, flooding events, increase in temperature and sea level rise) and
transition risks {ie risks relating to the transition to a lower-carbon economy in
order to avoid the worst physical impacts of climate change, such as policy and
regulation changes).

s Further details on our views of our climate-related risks, see above (Strategy).

 Metrics and targets

2022 Achievements

+ Climate-related risks identified at an

organisational and Divisional level through
assessmentin 2021. These have been used to
set targets and actions through 2022, and each
Division is beginning tc explore ciimate-related
opportunities,

2023 Priorities — steps to improve consistency

* Further embed climate-related risk into the
Group-wide risk management arrangements
{including the framework deveiopment planned
for 2023}, focusing on identification and
assessment {(including materiality of impact),
aggregation and reporting,

Further develop processes for any material
climate-related risks identified, including
management and prioritisation.

Metrics used by the organisation to assess ¢limate-related risks and opportunities in
line with its strategy and risk management process, and, Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2
and, if appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas {GHG} emissions and the related risks.

The Group primarily impacts the environment through its use of energy in its
leased properties and vehicles and is taking action to reduce impact in this area.

GHG Scope 1 and 2 emissions in lina with the Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting (SECR) regulations and in line with GHG Protoco! and are detailed on
page 38.

Scope 3 GHG emissions have been reviewed during the year and we intend to
complete their quantification in H1 2023,

We have set targets to reduce emissions on our pathway to net zero. The Group’s
approach is detailed above.

During the 2021/22 reporting period, the Group emitted a total of 2,022 tCO2e
fram fuel combustion and operation of facilities {Scope 1 direct), and electricity
purchased for the Group’s own use (Scope 2 indirect). Thisis equal to 6 tCG2e per
£m of revenue or 0.50 tC02e per FTE employee.

Executive remuneration will continue to include ESG metrics within non-financial
measures, In 2023 these will focus on delivery of targets set by the Board, including
emissions and diversity improvements.

We have reported on our greenhouse gas emissions since 2013 and we have
consistently reduced our carbon footprint each year. Since 2017, cur absolute
emissions have decreased by 68%. This has principally been due to the Group’s
commitment to reducing its carbon footprint and progress on objectives within our
environmental policy, as described in later secticns of this Report.

2022 Achievemnents

+ Set targets and tracked progress across a broad
range of areas.

* Work undertaken to identify Scope 3 emissions
across the Group.

2023 Priorities — steps to improve consistency

« Further review environmental metrics and develop
Divisional targets to better demonstrate progress
and enable different rates of progress to our net
zero commitment,

As part of improvements in risk management,
determine key metrics used by the business to
measure and manage climate-related risks and
opportunities,

* Camplete work on Scope 3 emissions and register
with SBTi to work towards verification of data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

« We moniter and report our Scope 1 and 2 emissions (with work on Scope 3
assessment ongoing) through our Environmental Working Group, which reports
to our Living Responsibly Steering Comittee and to the Board through the Greup
CEQ. Alongside our work to quantify our Scope 3 emissions, we are looking to
software solutions to help us manage and report our emissions more regularly.
Qur operational Scope 1 and 2 targets are aligned to the Paris climate agreement.
That is, with measures to limit global temperature rise te 1.5°C above pre-industrial
levels. This requires us to haive our operational greenhouse gas emissions by 2030
and achieve net zero by 2050.

The Group quantifies and repnrts an its arganisational grecnhousc gas cmissions
according to Defra’s Environmental Reporting Guidelines and has utilised the
2022 UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting, in order
to calculate CO2 equivalent emissions from corresponding activity data. We
also utilised data required for compliance with SECR and the Energy Savings
Opportunities Scheme (ESCS).

The emission sources included in this Report fall within the consolidated Financial
Statements. We do not have responsibility for any emission sources that are not
included within the consolidated Financial Statements. We have not, to date,
calculated our fugitive refrigerants from air conditioning equipment, as these are
de minimis.

* Greenhouse gas reporting assumptions and estimations: in some cases, missing
data has been estimated using either extrapolation of available data from the
reporting pericd or data from 2020/21 as a proxy.

Targets used by the organisation to manage climate-related risks and

opportunities and performance against targets

= We are committed to becoming a net zero carbon business in our direct operations
by 2040 and we have a target to reduce our Scope 1 operational carbon emissions
by a total of 63% by 2035, aligned with a 1.5°C scenario. As we did not compiete our
Scope 3 emissions assessment in 2022, we have not yet engaged with SBTi, but as
outlined ahove, we intend to do this in 2023. Management has not fully determined
the financial impact of becoming a net zero business by 2040 and therefore the
financial impact is not fully incorporated into the Financial Statements.

-

Progress for emissions reduction targets is measured against 2019/202¢ emissions
data.

Environmental policy
We have an environmental policy, which addresses waste management, including recycling, energy and rescurce censumption and encouraging
the issuing of low and zero emissions fleet vehicles. The policy is made available to all colieagues on aur Group HR self-service platform and is

reviewed annually.

Energy Savings Opportunities Scheme (E505)
We continue to progress our delivery of the 2019 ESQOS audit and our performance against our objectives is summarised befow:

a. Energy from rengwable sources for 99% (2021: 89%) of our managed locations. We are procuring 100% green gas and 99% renewable
electricity at our directly managed locatians.

b. The transition from diesef and petrol vehicles is ongoing and during 2022 numbers reduced to 341 vehicles (2021: 498}; hybrid vehicles
increased to 244 {2021: 175} and electric vehicles (EVs) to 37 (2021 23).

. Recycling facilities are provided at alt locations, with 49% of waste recycled during 2022 {2021:41%).

a

Confidential waste is securely managed through our accredited partner. 69 tannes (2021: 53} were collected during 2022, saving the equivalent
of 1,172 trees {2021: 1,032).
e. The improvement in electrical efficiencies is ongoing, including the provision of LED lighting, installed at 68% {2021: 44%} of focations.

o

-+

. The installation of energy efficient systems continues, as existing facilities reach end of life.
. Smart meters have been installed at 85% (2021: 77%) of our sites.
. Water meters have been installed at 97% {2021: 85%) of our sites.

T Jm
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We continue to engage with our landlords, and at multi-tenanted sites seek to influence change on environmental matters around green energy,
recycling and provision of EV charging points.

Ensuring excellent governance

Qur commitment to excellent governance arrangements across the Group is core to werking in the right way. Our commitment to Board diversity
is part of this. In 2021 we adapted the Parker review recommendations which were implemented by the FCA, including adopting a target of 40%
women on the Board and at least one Director frem an ethnic minority background. These targets are included in the Diversity Policy which was

adopted by the Board during 2022.
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2022 review
Our governance arrangements are sponsored and led by Sapna B. FitzGerald, General Counsel and Company Secretary. For details, see the

Corporate Governance Report {page 54). In 2022 we adopted our Diversity Policy including aur diversity targets. See the Corporate Governance
Repert for further details (page 54}

The Directors’ Remuneration Report (page 73) contains details of how we have incorporated ESG matters into our Executive Director
remuneration arrangements. The Purpose, Strategy, Culture, Values and Business Model section [page 12) of this Report contains details of our
purpose, values and culture and how they are aligned to our strategy.

As outlined earlier, the Board oversees our Living Responsibly programme and strategy and reviews these regularly. Details on our internal
cantrols and risk management arrangements are contained in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section {page 25).

All of our businesses are committed te conducting business in a socially responsible way. We seek to comply with appropriate ethical standards
and to be honest and fair in our relationships with customers and suppliers. We are in the final stages of developing our comprehensive supplier
code of conduct and we hope to launch this during 20232, To support this, we are undertaking a wider review of procurement across the Greup,
which is being supparted by an external procurement adviser with oversight from the Group Finance team.

Modern Siavery and Human Rights

We have arrangements which seek to prevent modern slavery and human trafficking occurring within our businesses or any of our supply chains.
During 2022, we continued with our arrangements to ensure compliance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, including publishing our Modern
Slavery Statement for the financial year ending 2021, which was published in June 2022%. We also have an Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking
Policy, which in combination with our whistleblowing arrangements provides information and guidance to colleagues on how to recagnise and
deal with anti-slavery and human trafficking issues.
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Bribery Act 2010 -
=

We have adopted a risk-based approach to ensuring compliance with the Bribery Act 2010. We seek to identify and review anti-bribery and S

corruption risks in the development of our policies and procedures, which are reviewed periodically. The Anti-Bribery and Cerruption Policy sets 3:.

out information and guidance for colleagues on how to recognise and deal with bribery and corruption issues. ry
o

Payment practices reporting g

Your Move, Reads Rains and e.surv annually submit their payment practices reports, which are available on the Government’s website for report @

submissions?.

Tox evasion

In 2022, the Board received an annual review of our Tax Evasion Palicy as part of the Combined Ethics Policy review. We also reviewed our tax

strategy in 2022, which is available on our website®.

Notes:

* |slps.co.uk/modern-slavery

? check-payment-practices service gov.uk

3 lslps.co.uk/investor-relatons/corporate-gevernance/tax-strategy
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The Board

This section of the Report includes informaticn on the Directors (including Helen Buck who retired on 31 March 2023 and David Barrat who was
appointed oh 3 April 2UZ3) and the Company Secretary.

Executive Directors

Non Executive Directors

Helen Buck, Executive Director — Estate Agency

Helen was appointed as Executive Director ~ Estate Agency on 2 February 2017. She has overall responsibility for the
performance, strategy and development of LSL's Estate Agency Division. Pricr to this role Helen had, since December 2011,
served as an independent Non Executive Director and was a member of LSUs Nominations and Remuneration Committees.
Helen was previously Chief Operating Officer at Palmer & Harvey and was part of the Sainsbury’s management team from
2005 to 2015, including five years as a member of the Operating Board. Helen has extensive expertise in strategy, marketing,
commercial and operations. Before joining Sainsbury's, Helen held senior positions at Marks & Spencer, Woolworths and
Safeway, and was a senior manager at McKinsey & Co. InJune 2022, LSL announced that Helen had decided to retire. Helen
retired frem the Board on 31 March 2023,

Adam Castleton, Group Chief Financial Officer

Adam was appointed Group Chief Financial Officer on 2 November 2015. He has broad financial skills and experience in
the retall and services sectors. Adam joined LSL from French Connection Group PLC, where he was the Group Finance
Director. He previously held leadership roles at several market-leading companies including 02 UK, eBay and The Wait
Disney Company. Adam has over 30 years’ experience in finance, having started his career with Price Waterhouse, where
he qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1589.

David Stewart, Group Chief Executive Officer

David was appointed Group Chief Executive Officer on 1 May 2020 and has primary respensibility for LSUs performance,
strategy and development. Prior to this Davig was a Non Executive Director, having joined the Board on 1 May 2015. He
was alsa Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee and 2 member of the Remuneration and Nominations Committees. David has
significant experience in finance, strategy, operations, risk and compliance, with particular expertise in financial services.
He was Chief Executive of Coventry Building Society from 2006 to 2014, having earlier served as Finance Director and
Operations Director. Prior ta joining the Coventry, David spent ten years at DBS Management ple, hoiding several board
pasitions including Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director. David qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Peat
Marwick (KPMG) and is a graduate of Warwick University.

Gaby Appleton, Senicr Independent Director

Gaby joined LSL as ah independent Non Executive Director on 1 September 2019 and was appointed Senior Independent
Director on 30 June 2021. She is also a member of our Nominations, Remuneration and Audit & Risk Committees. Gaby
has significant experience in strategy, technology, aperations and sales and marketing, particularly in the professional
information sofutions sector. This includes her current appointment as Chief Digital Product Officer at Reed Exhibitions
{a RELX Group plc company). Gaby has previously held several executive strategic digital and marketing reles including
Global Director of Strategy and Director of Research Strategy at Elsevier in Amsterdam. Before joining Elsevier, Gaby held
operating positions at Sainsbury’s Supermarkets Ltd, within the Procter & Gamble group of companies, and was a senior
manager at MeKinsey & Co. Gaby holds a BA from the University of Cambridge.

David Barral, independent Non Executive Director {Chair Dasignate)

David was appointed as an independent Non Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration and Nominations
Committees on 3 April 2023, Bavid will stand for election at the 2023 AGM and, if elected, he will be appointed Chalr of the
Board and the Nominations Committee with effect from the end of the AGM.

David brings a wealth of experience to LSL, following a 40-year executive and non executive career in financial services.
He offers a combination of strategic leadership, transformation and operaticns experienca, with a strong focus on value
creation, customers, people, and risk and governance. He is currently Non Executive Chairman of Curtis Banks Group Plc
and is a former CEQ of Aviva UK and Ireland Life, Aviva’'s largest business unit, achieving profit of £1bn.

David’s previous non executive roles include Chair of Embark Group, Chair of Rowanmoor Group, Senior Independent
Director of LV Group, Non Executive Director of LV General Insuranca, Non Executive Director of The Pension Superfund,
independent Customer Champion at Quilter and Chair of Virgin Wines. He has also previously chaired the AB! Retiremeant
and Savings Committee and was 3 member of the Financial Services Authority Retail Distribution Review.
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Simon Embley, Non Executive Directar

Simon was Non Executive Chair of LSL from 1 January 2015 until 28 April 2021, when he stepped down following his
appointment as Chief Executive of Pivotal Growth Limited, the joint venture between LSL and Pollen Street Capital. Simen
has remained on the Board s¢ the Group can continue to benefit from his knowledge and experience, and this position
is kept under review. Simon was Deputy Chair from 2014 to 2015 and Group Chief Executive Officer until 2014, a role
which he held at the time of the management buycut of e.surv and Your Mave from Aviva (formerly Norwich Union Life}
in 2004, Siman was respunsible fur Lhe stralegic direction of these compantes prior to the management buyout and he
subsequently led the turnaround of the initiat Group. Simon’s other directorships include a small estate management
company, Evecio Holdings Limited {an IT business) and Road to Health (a healthcare provider). He is also Non Executive
Chair at Globaf Property Ventures, a market-ieading insurance-based tenant deposit company.

Darrell Evans, Independent Non Executive Director

Darreli was appointed as an independent Non Executive Director on 28 February 2019 and as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 28 April 2021. He is also a member of our Nominations and Audit & Risk Committees and is
our designated Non Executive Director for workforce engagement. He has significant experience in financial services and
is currently Chief Commercial Officer at the Co-Operative Bank plc. Darrell spent the first part of his career at Royal Bank
of Scotland plc, where he was Managing Director, Mortgages, Loans and Retafl Telephony in the retail banking division,
responsible for all aspects of the Group’s mortgage proposition. Prior to that he was Product Director for the RBS retail
bank. Darrell has also held senior executive roles at Direct Line Insurance Group plc, Virgin Money plc and The Consulting
Consortium, where he was CEQ.

Sonya was appointed asan independent NonExecutive Director on 4 March 2022. She s also a member of LSL's Remuneration
Cornmittee, Nominations Committee and the Audit & Risk Committee. Sonya has significant experience in banking, finance,
strategy, investor relations, governance and ESG, which she has gained from her roles in the consumer sector. This includes
her current appointment as Head of Investor Relatians at GSK Consumer Healthcare. Sonya was previously Head of tnvestor
Relations at Heineken and prior to her current role had provided investor relations and consultancy services as Clear Giraffe
iR. Sonya’s previous experience also includes senior roles with investment banks, including Barclays Capital, Geldman Sachs
and Morgan Stanley. She qualified as an accountant with KPMG and holds a BAcc (Hons) in Accountancy and Economics.

James Mack, independent Non Executive Director

James was appointed as an independent Non Executive Director and as Chair of LSU's Audit & Risk Committee on
27 September 2021. He also serves on our Nominations and Remuneration Committees. James has significant experience
in audit, risk and financial services, particularly in retail financial services. This includes his current appeintment as Chief
Financtal Officer at Barclays Bank UK plc. fames was previously Chief Financial Officer at Aldermore plc and acting Chief
Financial Officer at the Co-operative Bank. His previous experience also includes senior roles in finance and internal audit
at Skipton Building Society. James qualified as an accountant with KPMG and holds a BA from the University of Nottingham.
James is deemed to have recent and relevant financia! experience to Chatr the Audit & Risk Committee.

Bill Shannon, Non Executive Director, Chair of the Board

Bill was appointed as Chair of the Board with effect from 28 April 2021, having been first appointed as a Non Executive
Director on 7 January 2014. He also chairs the Nominations Committee and is @ member of the Remuneration Committee.
Rill was deemed to be independent prior to his appointment as Chair of the Board. Bill has significant PLC board experience
in strategy, operations, finance and governance, in the consumer, financial services, residential and commercial property
sectors. He is also currently a Council Member at the University of Southampton and (ndependent Naon Executive Chair of
Ashtead Technology Holdings plc, which is AIM Listed. He was previously at Whitbread Group plc from 1974 and between
1994 and 2004, he was a Divisional Managing Director. He has also served as Nan Executive Chair of johnson Service Group
ple, Aegon UK ple and St Modwen Property PLC, and as a Non Executive Director of Rank Groug ple, Barratt Develepments
plc and Matalan plc. Bill completed nine years on the Board in January 2023 and the Board has approved a 12-maonth
extension to his term, to facilitate the Chair succession planning pracess. On 20 February 2023 we announced Bil’s
intention to retire at the 2023 AGM.

Company Secretary

Sapna B. FitzGerald, General Counsel and Company Secretary

Sapna gqualified as a soficitor in 1998 and has been General Counsel and Company Secretary at LSL since 2004. Prior to the
management buyout of Your Move and e.surv, Sapna was a member of Aviva Life Legal Services and had, since 2001, been
part of tha team that supported Your Move and e surv Chartered Surveyors.
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The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee at the date of this Report is:

David Stewart Adam Castleton Andy Deeks David Akinluyi
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer Group Chief Strategy Cfficer Group Chief Operating Officer
Executive Director Executive Director PDMR PDMR

Jon Reund Steve Goodall Paul Hardy Debra Gardner
Group Financial Services Director Managing Director Managing Director Group HR Director
PDMR Surveying & Valuation Estate Agency

POMR PDMR

Sapna B. FitzGerald
General Counse! and
Company Secretary

The Strategic Report is approved by and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

David Stewart Adam Castleton
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer
12 April 2023 12 Aprii 2023
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Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in Relation to
the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements of the Group and the Company in accordance with
apphcable UK iow cnd regulalions.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements far each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare
the Group and the Company Financial Statements in accordance with UK adopted [nternational Accounting Standards (fAS}. Under company taw the
Directors must not approve the Financlal Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and faw view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that period.

Under the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules, the Financial Statements are required to be prepared in accordance with UK adopted
1AS,

In preparing each of the Group and the Company Financial Statements the Directors are required to:

a.  select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply them
consistently;

b.  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

¢. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

d. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IAS is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group and/or Company’s financial position and financial performance;

e inrespect of the Group Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted 1AS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Financial Stetements;

. inrespect of the Company Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted JAS have been followed, sub ect to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Financial Statements; and

g prepare the Financial Staterents on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the Group and/or Cornpany wifl not conbinue
in business.

The Directars are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and Company’s

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Company, and enable them to ensure that

the Group and the Company Financial Statements comply with UK adopted IAS. They are &lso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group

and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularites.

Under applicable faw and regulations, the Directors are also respensible for preparing the Strategic Report, Report of the Directors, Directors’

Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Report that comply with that law and those regulations. The Directors are responsible for the

maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included an the Company’s website.

Directors’ responsibility statement {BTR 4.1)

Each of the Directors who were members of the Board during 2022 (including Helen Buck) confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

» that the consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

< that the Annual Report, including the Strategic Report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Comparny and undertakings included in the consalidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

«  that they consider the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position, performance, business modsel and strategy.
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Report of the Directors

Business review and development
The Strategic Report on papes 1210 4€ (including the Chair’s Stateineznl, Lthe Group Chief Exccutve's Report and the Fuianoatl and Divisional Reviews)
sets out a review of the Group’s business, including detals of our perfarmance, developments and strategy during 2022

Annual general meeting

Cur AGM wilt be held at 210 Euston Road, London, NW1 2DA on 25 May 2023, starting at 1.15pm {doors will open at 1pm). The Notice of Meeting
convening the AGM is in a separate circular to be sent to sharehalders with this Report. The Notice of Meeting also includes a commentary on the
business of the AGM and notes to help shareholders to attend, speak and vote at the AGM.

Financial results
The Stratepir Repart and Financial Statements sot out our financial resulls for 2022,

Dividend

The Board has considered the proposed dividend in light of the Group's policy to pay out 30% of Group Underlying Operating Prefit after finance and
normalised tax charges, such that dividend cover is held at spproximately three fimes earnings over the business cycle. This policy was designed to
provide clarity to sharehclders and ensure the Group retained a strong balance sheet for all market conditions.

Although econamic conditions have affected current earnings, we have made significant progress in executing our strategic shift to develop a
business that is less exposed to the housing market cycle.

As part of that shift and the associated raticnalisation of cortain businesses such as the recent sale of Marsh & Parsons, we have built significant Net
Cash nalances, which at 31 December 2022 and prior to the disposal of Marsh & Parsons stood at £40.1m. In light of this exceptionally strong cash
position and the Beard's confidence in the future prospects of the Group, the Board recommends a final dividend of 7.4 pence. If approved, this will
give a total dividend of 11.4 pence per share, unchanged from last year.

The ex-dividend date is 27 April 2023 with a record date of 28 Aprii 2023 and a payment date of 2 June 2023. Shareholders can elect to reinvest their
cash dividend and purchase additional shares in L3i threugh a dividend reinvestment plan via signalshares.com. The election date 1s 11 May 2023.

The Board continues to keep its capital allocation policy and balance sheet structure under close review to ensure it is fit for purpose for our evelving
business model and wiil seek to update sharehoiders on this as appropriate.

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set out in the
Financial and Bivisional Reviews section (page 13) of the Strategic Repert. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and
policy for treasury and risk management are described in the Financial Review section of the Strategic Repert {page 12). Details of the Group’s
borrowing facilibes are set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements. Nate 32 to the Financial Statements describes the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital; its Ainancial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its
exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk, A description of the Group's principal risks and uncertainties and arrangements to manage these risks can
be found in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic Report on page 25.

As explained in note 32 to the Financial Statements, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through cash generated from
operations, as weil as utilising its revolving eredit facility. The Group currently has a £60m faallity (December 2021: £30m), which was amended and
restated in February 2023, The facility is committed until May 2026. As at 31 December 2022 the Group had available £90m of undrawn berrowing
out of an available £90m {which was the facility size as at that date), in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met. The Group’s
forecasts, taking account of reascnably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operste within the terms of
its renewed £60m facility during the going cencern peried. This modelling dermonstrated sufficient liquidity and sufficient headroam on the required
covenants, details of which can be seen in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on page 25 of this repart.

The Directors have considered the future profitability of the Group, including the impact of disposals since the year end, and the Board approved
cash flow forecasts for the going concern period, which is considered to be the period until 30 April 2024. Further consideration was given to banking
covenants, llquidity of investments and joint ventures and the Group’s ability to refinance where necessary, The Directors alsc assessed the key
judgements, assumptions and estimates underpinning the review. The base case is modelled after post-year end business disposals and reflects
ongoing challenging market conditions and the Directors’ expectations of the current economic climate.

In reaching its conclusion on the going concern assessment, the Board considered the findings of the work performed to support the Group’s

long term viability statement. As noted in the Viability Statement, which is included in the Principal Risks and Uncertaintes section of this Report
(page 29), this included assessing forecasts of severa but plausible downside scenarios related to our principal risks, notably the extent to which a
severe downturn in the UK housing market, close ta the level seen during the financial crisis in 2008, would affect the Group's base forecasts.

The Directors can confirm that in the base case, and the downside scenarios, the Group had adequate liquidity and covenant headroom during the

going concern periud.

49

a1ei0ti0) Juipnsul) yioday sioysend

[s1ioday 39 uN0T PUE SYIOUBY SsuRWIDADG

o
=
a2
=
Q.
-
1%
=~
[
=
o
3
o
E
=
f

UOLELLIOJ | £Y10




Report of the Directors

The Directors also modelled a reverse stress test to assess the level to which market conditions would have to deteriorate before we would reach
our koy barking covenent rena of 2704 Nl Cebl. adjusted EBITDA (wid d rand of 3.0Ux allowable for twa consecutive test pericds ence during the
renewal period). This showed that, excluding any action we would take to retain cash reserves and maintatn our eperations, the UK housing market
transaction activity would have to fall to a level 7% below the financizl ¢risis of 2008 during the going concern period which is equivalent (o a 37% fall
in comparison to 2022, which the Directors consider to be remote.

As part of this assessment, the Group has also considered the FRC Themathe Review: Viability and Going Concern {most recent guidance releasad
September 2021} which has encouraged companies to assess the level of disclosure of qualitative and quantitative detail in scenaric modelling, te
consider disclasure relating to the Group’s resilience to identified risks, and in respect of the viability assessment, the fength of the viability period.
After making enquiries, the Directors who were members of the Board during 2022, concluded that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the going concern period. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing this Report.

Financial Instruments
The Strategic Report sets out our strategies and objectives relating to treasury and risk management. Details of the financiat instruments are set out

in note 32 to the Financial Statements.

Employee, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
Please see the Stakeholder Engagement Arrangements sechion (page 21), which contains our disclosures pursuant to the Companies Act 2006. Thisis
in addition to the details of our stakeholder considerations, which can also be found in the ESG Repert {page 30).

The Greenhouse Gas Emissions {Directars’ Reports} Regulations 2013 and Part 7 of the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013
The disclosures required are included in the ESG Report on page 30.

Directors
Detalls of the Directors who served during 2022 are in the Corporate Governance Report (page 54) and The Board {page 44} sections.

Re-election and election

Our policy, as set out in the Nominations Committee's terms of reference, is to have annual re-elections of our Directors. As a result, all the Directors
except for Bdl Shannon are standing for election/re-election. Helen Buck retired on 31 March 2023,

Bill Shannon completed nine years on the Beard in January 2023 and on 20 February 2023 LSL announced Bill’s intention te retire at the end of the
AGM and not stand for re-election. We commenced an exercise to appoint a new Non Executive Chair and announced the appointment of David
Barral as Chair Designate on 4 April 2023, David will stand for election at the 2023 AGM, and If elected will take over as Chair of the Board at the end
of the AGM.

Our articles provide that the Board may appoint a Director, who will then retire from office at the next AGM and seek election. Shareholders may by
ordinary resolution elect or re-elect any individua! as a Director.

The 2022 annual evaluation of the Board and its Committees also specfically evaluated each Directors’ performance and the Board confirmed that it
values the experience and commitment demenstrated by each person who was a Director during 2022,

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors wha are on the Board at the date of this Report are contained within the Directors’ Remuneration Report {page 73).
During the period between 31 December 2022 and the date of this Report, there were no changes in the Directors’ interests, other than the
purchases of shares by Davld Stewart {272 shares) and Adam Castleton (274 shares) as participants of LSUs SIP/BAYE scheme [these shares were
purchased by the Trust at the prevailing market rate). Helen Buck also purchased 204 shares as a participant of LSUs SIP/BAYE scheme prior to retiring
from the Board on 31 March 2023.

During 2022, the Board maintained its arrangements for managing and recording conflicts, in line with its policy. This includes ebserving an anti-
bribery and hospitality policy, to ensure comphance with section 176 of the Companies Act 2006.

Further, during the year, no Director was materially interested in any contract that is or was significant to the business of the Group or any subsidiary
undertaking.

Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment

Details of the Executive Directors’ service agreements and the Non Executive Directors’ letters of appointment {(including any extensions to
appeintments) are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report {page 73). The contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at
the Registered Office during naormal business hours and at each AGM
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Directors’ qualifying third party indemnity provisions
Wo had rualifying Uard party indemnlty prowsions for the benelit ol Lhe Direclors In force from the start ot the financial period to the date of this
Report, subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006, We have put in place Directars’ and Officers’ habiity insurance and indemnines

to cover for this hability.

Compensation for loss of office — thange of control
There are no agreements between | SL and its Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of office or employment (whether through
resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise) that occurs because of a takeover bid.

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLF, the Group’s exleinal audlter, has advised ot its willingness te continue in office and a resolution ta re-appoint it to this role and the
authority for its remuneration to be determined by the Directers will be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

Details of LSt's poiicy to safeguard the external auditer’s independence and objectivity are included in the Audit & Risk Committee Report, together
with details of how the Audit & Risk Cormmittee undertakes this assessment.

Qn 17 March 2023 we announced a change to the Audit Partner arrangement due to the unanticipated absence of the Senior Statutory Auditor
responsible for signing this Report. This resulted in a delay to the announcement of our preliminary results from 22 March 2023 10 13 April 2023

Share capital

Qur 0.2 pence crdinary shares are listed un the London Stack Exchange and are the only class of shares in issue. At 31 December 2022, our issued
share capital comprised 105,158,950 shares (2021: 105,158,250). The authonised share capital is 500,000,000 shares. Details of our share caoital are
also set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

During 2022 we undertock a share buy back programme which began on 21 April 2022 and continued until 30 September 2022. During this period,
1,176,433 ordinary shares were acquired which are now held in treasury. These treasury shares are net entitled to dividends and have no voting rights
at LSU's general meetings. The issued share capital at the date of this Report s 105,158,950 shares and the totat number of voting rights fexcluding
treasury shares) is therefore 103,982,511,

We have authority under section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 to make market purchases of our ordinary shares on such terms and in such manner
that the Directors determine. The maximum shares we can buy back is capped at 10% of our issued ordinary share capital, being 10,515,895 ordinary
shares. This authority will expire at the conclusion of the 2023 AGM and we are seeking a renewal of this authority. Please see the Notice of Meeting
far further details.

Rights and obligations attached tq shares

Each issued share has the same rights attached to it. The rights of each sharehoider include:
a. the right to vote at general mestings;

b, toezppoint a proxy or proxies;

¢. toreceive dividends; and

d. toreceive circulars from LSL.

We will seek shareholder approval for the renewal of authority for the Directors to allot unissued shares and for the power to disapply statutory
pre-emption rights at the 2023 AGM, We obtained shareholder approval to disapply pre-emption rights at the 2022 AGM.

Full details of the deadline for exercising voting rights in respect of the resolutions te be considered at the 2023 AGM are set out in the Notice of
Meeting.

On a show of hands at & general meeting, every holder of ordinary shares present in person and entitled to vote shall have one vote and, on a poll,
every member present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote shall have one vote for every ordinary share they hold. The Notice of Meeting which
15 published with this Report specifies deadlines for appointing a proxy in relation to resclutions to be passed at the AGM. Where the Chair of the
AGM is appointed as proxy, such praxy votes are counted and the numbers for, against or withheld in relation to each resolution are announced at the
AGM and published on our website after the meeting (Islps.co.uk).

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in LSL other than:

a. certain restrictions which may fram time te time apply under applicable laws and regulations {for example, insider trading laws and market
requirements relating to closed periods); and

b. pursuanttothe Listing Rules of the FCA/UKLA and cur Share Dealing Policy, whereby certain employees require approval to dealin LSL's
securities.

Our articles of assocdiation may oily be armended by way of a special resolution at a general meeting of our shareholders.

51

paevcdag oy

{s140day aan|uwAU0) PUE S1I0d8Y aduRLUIADY

-
3
&
2
(=%
=N
w
=
2
=)
z
2
@
E1
=
o

UOBEULIOU] 43430

sieiodio) Jupnpuy) yioday siopeng




Report of the Directors

Employee share schemes

We have two empleyee benefit trusts. The first was established in 20064, prigr to our flototien on the Londun Ctuch Exchiange. we apuumted Apex
Finangial Services {Trust Company) Limited (formerly Capita Trustees Limited) (ESOT Trustees) to operate the LSL Property Services plc Employee
Share Scheme (ESCT). The ESOT is able to acquire and hold shares to satisfy options or awards granted under any discretionary share option scheme,
long term incentive arrangement or Save As You Farn (SAYE) plan operated by us. Details of the shares acquired by the Trust are set out in note 14 to
the Financial Statements. The ESOT Trusteas have walved the right to any dividend payment in respect of each share held by them (including future
payments).

We also operate the LSL Property Services plc Employee Share incentive Plan (BAYE or SIP} for our colleagues, which was established in 2007 and is
administered by Link Market Services {Trustees) Limited {formerly Capita {RG Trustees Limited) (Link). Link is the trustee of the LSL Property Services
Employee SIP Trust (Trust), in which shares are held on behalf of participants in the BAYE. The shares held in the Trust have dividend and vating rights
in linc with the rules of the BAYE. At 31 December 2022, the Trust held 1.01% {2021: 0.89%) of the issued share capital in trust for the beneft of
employees of the Group and their dependents. The voting rights in relation to these shares are exercised by the Trustees.

Significant agreements — change of control

Subsidiaries of L5L are party to agreements which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of contro! of the subsidiary company following a
takeover hid. The majority of the income derived through the provision of surveying, valuation and the asset management income streams are driven
by specific contracts. Any termination of such cantracts on the change of control of the relevant subsidiary company will have a significant impact on
those income streams.

The Group is party 1o a number of hanking agreements, which are terminzble by the bank upon a change of control of the Group and all outstanding
amoeunts become immediately due.

Events after the reporting period

On 13 lanuary 2023, the Group announced the sale of Group First and RSC te Pivotal Growth, the Group’s joint venture with Pollen Street Capital.
The consideration payable will ba 7x the combined Group First and RSC EBITDA in the calendar year 2024, subject to working capital adjustments,
capped at a maximum of £20m.

On 26 January 2023, the Group announced the sale of Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited and 1ts subsidiary Marsh & Parsons to a subsidiary of
Dexters London Limited for consideration of £29m payable on completion, subject to working capital adjustments.

On 11 April 2023, the Group announced the disposal of two further subsidiaries, Embrace Financial Services and F2P to Pivotal Growth.

The Group received consideration of £7.8m for F2P and will receive consideration of 7x 2024 EBITDA in the calendar year 2024 for Embrace Financial
Services, subject to working capital adjustments, capped at @ maximum of £10m.

The accounting for these disposals will be included in the 2023 interim Finangal Statements.

In February 2023, the Group agreed a restatement and amendment to its banking facility which runs to May 2026 with a new limit of £60m. This
replaced the previous RCF which had a maturity date of May 2024 and credit limit of £50m.

On 30 March 2023 the Group sold its 15.37% shareholding in VEM to Connells for consideration of £0.2m, at 31 December 2022 the Group held its
investment in VEM at a fair value of £0.2m.
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Substantial shareholdings
At 31 Docember 2022 and ws ol 12 Apid 2023, Lhe shiarehbiders set out below have notified LSL of their interest under DTR 5:

31 December 2022 12 Apri 2023

% of ordinary shares Number of % of ordinary shares

Nature of Number of {excluding treasury ordinary {excluding treasury

Institution shareholding ordinary shares shares*} shares shares*®)
FMR LLC Beneficial 2,501,280 2.52 9,901,380 9.52
Kinney Asset Management, LLC Beneficial 8,509,210 8.18 8,509,210 B.18
Setanta Asset Management Limited Beneficial 6,288,162 6.05 6,288,162 6.05
SMF UK Management LLP Beneficial 5,523,218 5.31 5,523,218 5.31
Liontrust Asset Management pic Benehcial 5,485,475 5.28 5,485,475 5.28
Harris L.P Beneficial 5,220,081 5.02 5,220,081 5.02
Brandes Investment Partners Lp Beneficiat 5,172,615 4.97 5,172,615 4.97
FIL Limited Beneficial 5,161,887 4.96 5,161,887 4.95
Franklin Templeton Institubong!, LLC Beneficial 3,211,900 3.09 3,211,900 3.09

Individual shareholders {excluding Directors):
David Newnes Beneficial 3,475,510 3.35 3,479,910 3.35

*Tregsury shares are nat enttled to dividencs and have na vating rights at the Company's general meetings,

Political donations

LSL does not make any monetary contributions to political campaigns, political erganisations, lobbyists or lobbying organisations or other tax-exempt
groups. LSL Group companies are mermbers of trade associations which may be involved in political activities. LSL does consider that its membership
of these bodies amounts to LSL companies being engaged in or contributing to political activities.

Directors’' responsibility statement
Each of the individuals who were Directors of the Board during 2022 (this includes Helen Buck) confirm, ta the best of their knowledge:

a. That the consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liahilities, financial position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole.

b. That this Report, including the Strategic Report, includas a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face.

c. That they consider this Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to

assess the Company’s position, performance, business model and strategy.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Having made enquiries of feliow Directors and of the external auditer, each of the individuals who were Directors of the Board in 2022 confirm that:

a. Tothe best of his/her knowledge and belief, there is no information {as defined in the Companies Act 2006} relevant to the preparation of this
Report of which the external auditor is unaware.

b. He/she has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit infermation and to establish
that the external auditor is aware of that information.

The Report of the Directors has been approved by and is signed on behaif of the Board of Directors

Sapna B. FitzGerald
Company Secretary
12 April 2023
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Corporate Governance Report
including Nominations Committee Report

This section of the Report details cur corporate governance arrangements. LSL has a premium listing on the London Stock Exchange. As a result, we
ate stbjeut Wi UK Colpuldw Goverhance Lode [Lede) Togethier witn tne Financial Londuct Authority’s {FCA) recuirements. A copy of the Code can
ba obtained from frec.org.uk,

Compliance with the Code in 2022
Our Board 1s committed to aperating in accordance with the Code, At 31 December 2022, we complied with the Code in all respects.

Application of the Code

This section of the Report explains the main aspects of LSL's governance arrangements and details how we apply the principles and comply with

the provisions in the Code. Other sections of this Report also contain details relating to the measures we have pot in place to comply with the Code

Inclucing:

s Principle C: the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section details L5Ls framewoerk of prudent and effective controls which enable risks to be assessed
and managed.

Principle E: this section of the Report together with the Stakeholder Engagement and ESG sections detait how LSL seeks to take into account
the views of its workforce and ensures that its workforce policies snd practices are consistent with the Group's values and support its long term
sustainable success.

Principles F and H: the role of the Chair and the Non Executive Directors is central to cur cempliance with the Code. The Chair leads the Board,
providing eversight of its arrangements and promoting a culture of openness and debate. The Non Executive Directors pravide constructive
challenge, strategic giidance, offer specialist advice and held Management to account. Details of arrangements can be found in this section of the
Repert and the Director biographies can be found in The Board sectian of this Report {page 44).

2022 activities:
In our Annual Report and Accounts 2021, we identified the following as areas of non-compliance, which we have addressed during 2022:

Pravision 2027 activity

Provision 11: At feast holf the board, excluding the choir, should be non On 4 March 2022, we appointed Sonya Ghobrial as an independent Non
executive directors whom the board considers to be independent. Executive Director. With effect from that date, the Board’s composition
has complied with the Code.

Provision 23: The annual repart should describe the work of the Following the publication of the FCA's finzl rules in relation to diversity
nomingtion committee, including the policy on diversity and inclusion, policies, in April 2022 the Board adopted a diversity policy which covers
its objectives and finkage to company strategy, how it has been the Board and the Senior Management Team, including the Executive
implemented and progress an achieving the objectives, Committee. See also Board Diversity and Inclusion below {page 63}.

2023 compliance

Provision 19 states that: The chair shouid not rerain in post beyond nine years from the date of their first appointment to the board. To focifitate
effective successton planning and the development of a diverse board, this peried can be extended for a kmited time, particularly in those cases where
the chair was an existing now executive director on appointment. A clear explanation should be provided.

In January 2023, Bill Shannen's term on the Board exceeded nine years and on 20 February 2023 we announced Bill's intention to retire at the 2023
AGM. To support the succession pracess, the Board resolved to extend Bill's term to expire at the end of Decernber 2023. Notwithstanding this
extension, Bill announced his intention to retire from the Board at the end of 2023 AGM and on 4 April 2023 we announced the appointment of David
Barral as Chair Designate.

Board roles and responsibilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the Group's purpose, its overall management and for decisions on the strategy. It also maenitors financial
performance and under the Group’s Matters Reserved for the Board {MRB) poficy it is also responsible for formulating the Group’s risk appetite
framework {see the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section for more information on our risk arrangements, inctuding plans for development of
these arrangements during 2023) (page 25).

Set out below is a diagram which explains how our purpose, culture, values, strategy and business model link together with each other and how they
interact with aur Living Responsibiy programme and deliver long term value for our stakeholders.
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Our purpose:

To provide first class services to mortgage
and insurance advisers, estate agents,
lenders and their customers, to create

long term benefits for external
stakeholders and our people.

Purpose drives our business model and
shapes our strategic decisions

Culture oligned to
purpose values and
strotegy

Become a more
sustainable
business

Strategy: Business model:
Financial Services is at the heart of We leverage our technology, i

our strategy and we will continue to infrastructure, capital and g::;;usmees::;:?;::
grow our Surveying & Valuation and people to provide first class for oufitikeholders
Estate Agency Divisions, including a products and services to

specific focus on leveraging their mortgage and insurance

capabilities to grow the Financial intermediaries, franchisees,

Services Division. lenders and consumers for the
benefit of our shareholders,
colleagues, customers and
suppliers,

Whistleblowing
The £5G Report on page 30 explains how the Board oversees the Group's whistlebiowing and speak up arrangements, including how the Board has
received assurance on the effectiveness of these arrangements in 2022.

The Board’s Committees

The Board has four Committees, and the terms of reference for the Nominations, Remuneration and Audit & Risk Committees are available on our
website {IsIps co.uk). The Nominations, Remuneration and Audit & Risk Committees have meetings scheduled as part of the annual planning process.
Additional meetings will be organised during the year as required. The Disclosure Committee only meets when reguired and as directed by the Board.
See below for details of the number of meetings for the Board and each of the Committeesin 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report including Nominations Committee Report

Committee Members __Roles and responsibilities
Nominations Bill Shannon (Chair) » Leadthe process for appoiniments to the Board and its
Gaby Appleton Committees.
Darreli fvans « Oversee succession plans for the Directors and members
of the Senior Management Team {including the Executive
James Mack
Committee).
sonya Ghabrial * Approve the Diversity Policy and targets, and monitor the
From 3 April 2023, David Barral is also a Group’s compliance with the policy and targets.
member, He will Chair the Committee from
the close of the 2023 AGM and Bill will retire
fram the Committee
Remuneration Darrell Evans (Chair) s Determine the policy for Executive Director remuneration
Bill Shannon and set the remuneration for the Executive Directors,
the Chair and members of the Senior Management Team
Gaby Appleton ) ] .
{including the Executive Committee), together referred to as
James Mack the RemCo Population.
sonya Ghobrnal » Review workforce remuneration and refated policies and
Dawid Barral joined the Committee on alignment of incentives and rewards with culture, when
3 April 2023, Bill will retire from the setting Executive remuneration policy.
Committee at the close of the 2023 AGM. See the Directors’ Remuneration Repart for further details on
how the Committee has discharged its roles and responsibilities
in 2022 {page 73}.
Audit & Risk James Mack (Chair} » Oversight of audit, risk and internal controi arrangements.
Gaby Appleton See the Audit & Risk Committee Report {page 67} and the
Darrell Evans Principal Risks and Uncertainties section {page 25) for further
) details, :ncluding details of aur internal controls and risk
Sonya Ghobrial
manzgement arrangements.
Disclosure Bill Shanneon » Ensuring compliance with UK Market Abuse Regulation {UK

Gaby Appleton
David Stewart
Adam Castleton

David Barral will replace Bill on the

Comimittee from the close of the 2023 AGM.

MAR} arrangements,

Executive Committee

We have an Executive Committee, which is headed by David Stewart. At the date of this Report the team comprises:

Name

Role

Other information

David Stewart
Adam Castleton
Jon Round

Steve Goodall

Paul Hardy*

Andy Deeks

Cavid Akinfuyi
Sapna B. FitzGerald
Debra Gardner?

Group Chief Executive Officer {CEQ)
Group Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Group Director of Financial Services
Managing Director — Surveying & Valuation
Managing Director — Estate Agency

Group Chief Strategy Officer {CS0)

Group Chief Operating Officer (COO)
General Counsel and Company Secretary
Group Human Resources Director

Executive Directar
Executive Director
PDMR
PDMR
PDMR
PDMR
PDMR

Notes:

* Pauiwas appeointed inte the role of Managing Director — Estate Agency in March 2023, During 2022, Helen Buck was the Executive Director — Estate Agency,
* Debrawas appointed into the role of Group HR Director in January 2023, During 2022, John McCannefl was the Group’s HR Director,
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Executive Committee diversity
At the date of this Hepori. the Executive Committee includes two women and two persons of colour. For further details relating to the diversity of our

colleagues, including the Senior Management Team, see Lthe ESG Report {page 30}

Board compaosition

The Directors at 31 December 2022 are shown in the table below. Biographical details of each person who was a member of the Board in 2022 and is
a member of the Board at the date of this Report are contained in The Board section of this Report {page 44) {this includes David Barral, who joined
the Board as Chair Designate on 3 April 2023).

The details include infarmation refating to any other directorships. The Board does not consider that any of the Directors’ other appointments

interfere with their appointment by LSL.

Name Roie Additional role

David Stewart Executive Director Group Chief Executive Officer {CEQ)

Adam Castleton Executive Director Group Chief Financial Officer {CFO}

Helen Buck® Executive Director Executive Director — Estate Agency

Bill Shannon? Non Executive Director Chafr

Gaby Appleton Independent Non Executive Director Senior Independent Director {SID)

Darrel! Evans Independent Non Executive Directar Chair of the Remuneration Committee and NED for workforce
engagement

James Mack Independent Non Executive Director Chasr of the Audit & Risk Committee

Senya Ghobrial Independent Non Executive Director

Simon Embley Non Executive Director

Notes:

Helen retired from the Board and the Executive Committee on 31 March 2023,

Bill Shannen was considered to be independent prior to his appeintment as a Director, In January 2023 Bill's term reached nine years and the Board agreed to
extend his term to the end of 2023. On 20 February 2023 wa announced Bill's intention to retire which will eccur at the end of the 2023 AGM. David Barral, who
joined the Board as Chair Designate on 3 April 2023, will take over as Chair from the end of the 2023 AGM. David is considered to be independent.

.

Board diversity

At 31 December 2022, the Beard included six male and three female Directors and it did not include any person of colour. In relation to the Board’s
senior roles, this includes three males (Chair, CEQ and CFO} and one female (SID). The Board composition does not meet the Group’ diversity target,
which is detaited in our Diversity Policy. See Board Diversity and Inclusion below for further details.

At the date of this Report, the Board includes seven male and two female Directors and does not include any person of colour. Following the 2023
AGM, the number of male Directors will change to six (following the retirement of Biti Shannon).

Board skills and experience
During 2022 and at the date of this Report, the Board includes skills and experience in the following areas:

a. Strategy.

b. Technoclogy and digital services.
c. Operations.

d. Governance.

e. ESG.

f.  Investor relations.

g. Riskand compliance.

h. Sales and marketing.

i. Finance.

j.  Retail including financial services and consumer services.
k. Restdential and commercial property.

. Entrepreneurship.

m. Employment and human resources.

n. Bankng.

0. Treasury.

p. Financial contrais.
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Corporate Governance Reportincluding Nominations Cemmittee Report

q.  Audit.

r.  Professional information solutions.

independent Non Executive Directors

At 31 December 2022, all of the Directors identfied as independent met the criteria set out in provision 10 of the Code.

As stated above, Biil’s current three year term expired on 6 January 2023 and his appoiniment was extended to the end of 2023 to allow the Board to
implement succession arrangements, Bill will retira at the close of the 2023 AGM.

Director elections/re-elections

All Directors will retire at the AGM and, except for Heten Buck and 8ill Shannon, they will stand for election/re-election. Helen Buck left the Group on
31 March 2023 and Bilt Shannon will retire from the Board at the close of the AGM. Further details relating to the Directors’ election will be included
in the Notice of Meeting.

Director appointment arrangements

Each Executive Director has a service contract, and each Non Executive Director (including the Chair} has a letter of appointment. These documents
are available for inspection at our registered office and at our York office {location of Company secretariat team) during normal business hours and at
each AGM. Further details relating to the Directors’ appointments are contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Key Board roles
There is clear division of responsibilities between the key roles on the Board, detalls of which are set out on our website {Isips.co.uk) and are
summarised below.

Raole Respansibilibes summary

Chair » Leadership of the Board, including setting its agenda and oversaeing its decision making processes
and arrangements.

Shaping the culture, style and tone of discussions and promoting openness and debate.

» leading regular Non Executive Director only meetings, to support the Board's discussions.
» Overseeing our stakeholder engagement arrangements.

» Supporting the Group CEO and cther Directors, including ensuring appropriate training and
induction arrangements are in place.

¢ Leazding cur annual Board and Committee evaluation exercise.

Group Chief Executive Officer Running the business, using delegated powers set by the Board.

Proposing and delivering Group strategy.
+ Qverseeing Group culture and sustainability prnorities (ie Living Responsibly/ESG).
¢ Supporting the Board's decision making by providing appropriate information.
Senior Independent Director v Acting as a seunding board for the Chair,
v leading the evaluation of the Chair,
+ Providing an alternative point of contact for Directors and stakeholders (including sharehalders).
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Board and committee meetings in 2022

Each year, we pul in place a schedule of meetings tor the Board and our Committees, which are supplemented by additional meetings as required.
The Directors meet in person and virtually and the table below summarises the meetings for 2022 and each Director’s attendance. Where a Director
s not a member of a Committee, their attendance or nan-attendance is not reported. We also schedule meefings for the Non Executive Directors ta
meet without the Executive Directors. The Audit & Risk Committee also meets the auditor without the Executive Directors.

Attendance at Board Attendance at Audit Attendance at Attendance at
meetings {including & Risk Committes Remuneration Nominations Committes Attendance at Disclosure
2022 Board strategy meetings) meetings Committee meetings meetings Committee Meetings
Member ftotal 17 held in the year} (total 3 held in the year) (tatal 5 held in the year) {totol 6 held in the yeor} {tatal 2 held in the year)
Gaby Appleton 16' 3 4* 5t [
Helen Buck 17
Adam Castleton 17 2
Simon Embley 16*
Darrell Evans 13° 28 53 52
Sonya Ghobrial 134 2¢ Ex 54
Jarmes Mack 16¢ 3 5 6
Bill Shannon 17 5 &
David Stewart 17

Notas:

1

-

B

Gaby mizssed one Board meeting, one Remuneration Committee meeting and one Nominations Comm:ttee meeting Sha received the papers prior to each
meeting and was able to provide feedback for the other Directors to consider at the meeting.

Simon and James each missed one Board meeting. They received the papers prior o 2ach meefing and were able to provide feedback for the other Directors to
censider at the meeting.

Darrell missed four Board meetings, one Audit & Risk Committee and one Nominations Cemmittee meeting. He received the papers pricr to each meeting and
was abte to provide feedback for the other Birectars to corsider at the meeting.

Sonya was apiointed to the Board on 4 March 2022 and the table records the meetings she attending foilowing her appointment.

oard meeting and decision making arrangements

At the start of each year, we putin place a planner with a schedule of matters for discussion, which includes special business as well as standing items.
The Board alse has a MR policy, which identifies matters that require Board approval and matters that are delegated to the Group CEO and Group
CFO for approval. it also includes a iist of matters which the Board will receive for information.

During 2022 the MRB policy was reviewed in detail, to identify ways to improve Beard reporting and decision making. The review considered
governance best practices, including guidance published by the Chartered Governance Institute.

As a result of this review, the Board agreed to review paolicies identified in the MRB policy on a triennial basis, unless there is an event (including a
change in law) which requires the policy to be amended and submitted for approval in the interim.

For each scheduled meeting the Directors receive regular reports that may include the following:

a. Group CEQ's Report — strategy and key project updates, commentary on the Group's performance and Living Responsibly KPlis.
b. Group CFQ’s Report— Group financial performance review and risks.
¢. Divisions Report — each managing director provides a report on their businesses which covers financial performance, risk, cperational matters

and KPis.

d. Group CS0 Report ~ strategy updates.

e. Group COO Report — operational matters, including resilience and strategic projects tracking.

f.  Group HR Director’s Report — colleague matters and KPls including staff turnover data and whistleblowing reporting.

g. Governance Report —legal and Matters Reserved for the Board policy reporting {being either information which is required to be given to the
Board or proposais requiring Board approval).

h. Shareholder Report — report detailing changes to our investor register.

i. Board Planner —record of meetings conducted during the year together with agenda items scheduled for future meetings. At the end of each
meeting the Board discusses and agrees items for inclusion in the agenda for the next meeting(s}.

The Board will also receive special business presentations, which could relate to a particular business area or initiative,

Reporting arrangements have alsc been reviewed and improved during the year. Foar scheduled meetings, each member of the Executive Commitiee

submits a report which focuses on key matters and risks relevant to them. In months with no scheduled meetings, we decided to stop the creation of

reports by Executive Committee members and instead the Directors are invited to a virtual meeting with the Group CEO and Group CFO, to receive

updates on Group performance and strategic projects. This has reduced the volume of Board reporting and ensures that Board sessions are focused
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on material matters and strategy. The quality of Board reporting is also covered by the annual evaluation exercise, as we seek to continuously improve

Gl vepwn Ling and decision nrahinig i ddigilgnns.,

The Directors, the Board and the Comimittees are all supported by the Company Secretary [Sapna B. NitzGerald), who is responsible for ensuring

adherence to governance requirements and policies. This includes managing meeting arrangements and supporting Director induction and training,
See also our 5172 Statement, which is included in the Stakehalder Engagement section of this Report (page 21).

Board decisions in 2022

Set out below is a summary of some of the Board’s key dec¢isions during 2022, together with how any relate to our strategy and cur key stakeholders:

Keyiopic _______________________|unkustrategy Relevant stakeholder(s)

Strategy: The Board has reviewed Group and Divisional projects
ta identify projects te be prioritised because they support the
delivery of the Group’s strategy.

Pivotal Growth: The Board has supported our investment in the
joint vepture with Polen Street Capital,

Group simplification: The Board approved the disposal of
assets which are not core to the Group's strategy.

These disposals are in line with our strategy to simplify the
Group, and to focus on developing our B2B businesses.

The disposals also reduce our exposure to housing market
cycles.

Capital allocation and the Group’s banking facility: During the
vear, the Beard approved the amendment and restatement of
the Group’s £60m revolving credit facility, which tock place in
February 2023. The facility now expires in 2026.

Share buy back: During the year, taking into account
shareholder feedback, the Board approved a share buy back
programme.
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Focus on strategic priorities: The Board is
focused on ensuring the Group delivers its key
strategic initiatives and the objective of the
prioritisation exercise was to ensure that Group
and Divisicnal resources are focused on strategic
matters.

Fotus on D2C Financial Services through
Pivotal Growth: Pivotal Growth has completed a
number of transactions pursuant to Its strategy
to buy and build a leading national mortgage
broker.

This included the disposal of our D2 broker
businesses to Pivotal Growth which also
supported our simphfication strategy (see
below) and focus on delivering B2B services.

Focus on B2B services and dispose of non-core
assets: A number of disposals were completed
in 2023 and are reported as post-balance sheet
avents,

The disposal of Marsh & Parsons provided the
Group with capitel and balance sheet flexibility
to take advantage of opportunities to support
investment in our strategy and reduce our
exposure tc housing market cycles which are
more volatile in London.

The divestments of the D2C broker businesses
and PRSIm (our private rented secter property
management business), has simplified the Group
structure.

Capital to support strategy: The revised
facility provides the Group with capital and
balance sheet flexibifity, to take advantage
of opportunities to support and invest in our
strategy.

Shareholder value: The programme which was
paused due to a lack of share liquidity, delivered
a return to shareholders and was undertaken
following shareholder feedback.

« Coileagues
+ Customers
« Suppliers

= Sharehclders

¢ Sharehclders
* Colieagues

+ Customers

+ Coleagues
s Shareholders
* Customers

* Suppliers

» Shareholders

= Shareholders



Koyiopic | Relevant stakeholderis)

Link to strategy. )
Review of Group costs: The Board considered reviews to Group simplification: This included a review » Colleagues

identify cost reductions and also review target operating of pracurement arrangements, to identify » Shareholders =
models. synergies across the Group. . i
+ Supp.ders ]

It also included the commencement of a review
of the Group’s operating model, to identfy
further opportunities for cost reduction.

ESG: The Board considered the development of the Group's Development of our sustainability strategy: * Shareholders
susta:nabslity programme, including our purpose, values and Focus on the development of our Living v Colleagues
culture and ensuring the alignment to our strategy. Responsibly strategy.

» Customers

Governance matters {not directly linked to strategy)

Development of stakeholder communication arrangements. The Board has sought to improve its
communications with stakeholders, especially « Colleagues

.

Shareholders

investors and colleagues.

Review of governance arrangements. There has been focus during the year on making ¢ Shareholders
continuous improvements to Board reporting = Colleagues
and decision making arrangements.

+ Customers
= Suppliers

Directors’ conflicts of interast

We have arrangements to manage any conflict of interest that may anise in relation to a Director. We maintain a register of Directors’ interests
and ensure that where a conflict is declared, the Director is either excluded frem discussions or obtains the Board's approval to participate.
Netwithstanding this, no Director 1s permitted to participate in any decision relating to their appointment, including their remuneration.

ajes0di0) Buipnpui) yoday si0133010
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Director induction and training

Induction plans are tailored for each Director when they join. During 2022, James Mack completed the induction we put in place in 2021 and Sonya
Ghaobrizl began her induction, which will be completed in 2023. An induction plan is being put in place for David Barral, which will be delivered during
2023.

The induction plans include the supply of previous meeting papers, and meetings with: members of the Board and the Executive Committee, our
corporate brekers and our internal and external auditors. For existing Directors, training is arranged as required.

SHUziuaiels [Pnuew)

Board and committee evaluation

Each year the Directors review the Board and the Committees. Gaby Appleton led the process for 2022, supparted by the Company Secretary. Whilst
the intention had been to engage an external provider to support the process in 2022, the Directors decided that it would be beneficial to defer an
externally facilitated evaluation, taking into account the changes which are oceurring during the year. This will allow everyone to settle into their new
roles ahead of the exercise. This year therefore followed the format of previous years, using a questionnaire covering the following areas.

a. Composition, succession and evaluation.

b. Leadership and division of responsibilities.
c. Meeting processes.
d. Evaluation processes.

e. ESG and corporate sustainability {including purpose, values and culture}.
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f.  Additional comments.
The guestionnaire was supplemented by one-to-one calls between each Director and Gaby. The respenses were then anonymised, consolidated and
shared with the Board ahead of a scheduled discussion,

2022 evaluation outcomes
The 2022 evaluation concluded that each Director, the Board and its Committees had 2/l been effective in discharging their responsibilities. Noting

their desire for continual imprevement, the Directors agreed to progress the following in 2023:

a. Continue the Board’s successien planning with a focus on improving its diversity of skills, gender, ethnicity, experience, social background and in
relation to the NEDs, seek to have a mix of portfolio NEDs and NEDs with executive roles.
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C.

suppert continued Board effectiveness,

Cansider use of an externally facilitated evaluation in the next few years.

Continue to improve Board reporting, meeting arrangements and cammunication of 8oard expectations to the Divisional Management Teams to

The evaluation exercise also considered the Board’s composition, This formed a useful part of the Board's succession planning review, as it provided
an cpportunity to review skills, assess composition and agree plans for filkng any gaps in skills and diversity. Further details relating to succession
planning, diversity and recruitment are set out below, within the Nominations Commitiee Report.

Actions in response to the 2021 evaluation exercise:
As part of the Board’s year end review, the Directors also reviewed the completion of actions identfied during the previous year and confirmed that
the actions were either completed ar deferred for completion in 2023,

These included:

Agreed action

Progress report

Continuing to prioritise succession planning. This included recruiting an
additional Non Executive Director in 2022 and, through that recruitment, taking
steps to Improve the Board's diversity {especially gender, ethnicity, expertise and
sectar).

Ensuring that each Committee provides sufficiently detailed reports on their
discussions to the Board, so that all Directors are briefad on the Committees’
work.

Undertaking an externally facilitated evaluation in respect of 2022 and consider
including feedback from aur brokers and our auditor.

Making continual improvements to our Board reporting and evaiuation
arrangements, including KPls, management information and Board papers; and
ensuring that Board meeting time is prioritised to the mast important issues.
The Board will consider alternating the focus within meetings between special
projects updates and divisional deep dives.

Further develop the Group’s ESG strategy and Living Responsibly programme.

Completed — we appointed Sonya in March 2022 and an 4
April 2023 we announced the appointment of David Barral as
Chair Designate

Completed — at each Board meeting following a Committee
meeting, the relevant Committee Chair provides a verbal
repert. Helen Buck, who did not regularly attend the Audit &
Risk Committee, also received copies of the minutes and had
access to the Committee’s papers.

Deferred — the Board decided to defer this as it did not wish
t¢ underteke this ahead of a new Chair joining the Board.
Completed — reporting continued to evolve during 2022.

Completed — we published cur first Living Responsibly
Report in 2022 and progressed our sustainability priorities.

Naminations Committee Report
During 2022, the Nominaticns Committee was chaired by Bill Shannon and its other members were Gaby Appleton, Darrell Evans, James Mack and
Sonya Ghobrial {from March 2022). Dawid Barral joined the Committea on 3 April 2023 and he will take on the rcle of Chair at the close of the 2023
AGM, at which point Bill will retire from the Committee.

2022 highlights

The Nominations Committee met six times in 2022 and 1ts discussions and decisiens included:

a.
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Extensions of Non Executive terms, with Gaby Appleton and Darrell Evan’s terms both extended by three years. The Committee also implemented
succession planning arrangements for the role of the Chair and to support this, the Board resolved to extend 8ill Shannon's term to 31 December

2023,

Retirement of Helen Buck from the Board in 2023 and consideration of her replacement, This included agreeing that her replacement would not
be an Executive Directer appointment. This is consistent with the Managing Directors of the other two Divisions not being Executive Directors,

although they are ail PDMRs.

Review of the Executive and Senior Management Teams {including the Executive Committee). This included consideration of the Divisional
{eadership teams and also the appointments of individuals into senior management roles acress the Group.

Review of Board composition, including a review of Non Executive Director skills, experience, expertise, diversity and recruitment.

The Group’s diversity and inclusion projects and consideration of the FCA consultation on the diversity of {isted company beards, committees and
senicr management teams, The Committee also adopted the Diversity Palicy. See below for further details,



Non Executive Director recruitment

During 2021 and into 7022, we worked with Nurole ahesd of appuointing Sonya Ghobrial as an independent Non Executive Director. The appaintment
was reported in the Annual Report and Accounts 2021, Sonya’s appointment on 4 March 2022 improved our gender diversity and she also brings
highly relevant experience, which adds to the continuing development of the Group's strategy. In particular, her experience in E5G matters is
supportng us i the development and communication of our Living Responsibly strategy.

During 2022, following a tender process, we selected and appointed Heidrick & Struggles to assist with the recruitment of a Non Executive Chair to
succeed Bill Shanmon. In carrying out our search we sought to ensure that the Nominations Committee was presented with a diverse longlist, from
which it could make its selection. Heidrick & Struggles presented the Nominations Committee with a longlist from which Board members selected a
shortlist of appointable candidates for interview following which David Barral was appeinted as Chair Designate.

Hetdrick & Struggles are signatories to the Government’s Standard Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms. In all of our Director
searches, we are clear that the Board is committed to improving its diversity {including gender, ethnicity and expertise} and this was a very important
consideration for the Board and the Nominations Commitiee in 2022,

Neither Nurole nor Herdrick & Struggles has any connection to the Group, ether than the provision of these services.

Board diversity and inclusion

The Nominations Committee and the Board received presentaticons an the Group's initiatives te promote diversity and inclusion and details of these
iniatives in relation to colleagues are included in the ESG Report {page 30).

In relation to the diversity of the Board, its Committees and our Senior Management Team {including the Executive Committee}, following publication
by the FCA of the final rufes in April 2022, in May 2022 following the recommendation of the Nominatiens Committee, the Board adopted its first
diversity policy. A copy of the policy is available at Islps.co.uk.

The Diversity Policy sets out LSL's approach to diversity and inclusion in relation to the Board, its Committees and the Senicr Management Team. It
sits alongside other Graup employment policies, which also seek to promote diversity and inclusion across the Group,

Surmmary of the Diversity Policy:

Importance of The Board recognises the benefits of diversity. Through its recruitment, appointment and succession planning arrangements,
diversity LSL seeks to promote diversity including professional skills, experience, social backgrounds, gender and ethnicity, in addrtion
to individual cogritive and personal strengths,
in relation to the Board, LSL believes that diversity has a positive effect on decision making and benefits shareholders
and other stakeholders. The Directors recognise that the Board and Committees set the tone for diversity and incluston
thraughout the Group and that by actively reviewing, monitoring and engaging with discussions of diversity and inclusion, the
Board is best able to drive a positive impact to the advantage of all stakeholders.

While the policy includes targets in relation to gender and ethnicity, LSL recognises that other types of diversity exist,
including sexual orientation, disability, neurodiversity and socio-economic background.

Role of the The Committee leads the process for appointments to the Board and its Committees, and ensures that plans are in place for

Nominations orderly succession to both the Board and Senior Managernent positions. In discharging its duties, the Committee oversees the

Cominittee development of a diverse pipeline for succession.

Role of the The Committee is responsible for the remuneration policy relating to the Chair, the Executive Directors and Senior

Remuneration Management [Including the Company Secretary). The Remuneration Committee also reviews workforce remuneration and

Committee refated policies and the alignment of incentives and rewards with culture and the promotion of diversity and inclusion in the
LSL Group.

Annual evaluation As part of the annual evaluation exercise, the Directors consider the Board and each Committee’s composition, diversity and
how effectively the members work together to achieve LSUs objectives.

Diversity targets The Board has adopted measurable objectives for diversity of the Board and the Senior Management, which align with the
FCA's final rules (see below).

Annual reporting  LSLwill report annually in the Corporate Governance Repart on whether it has met its targets and if not, the reasons for not
meeting the targets. The reporting will also inciude details of the processes used in relation to appointments to the Board, its
Committees and Senior Managers and their succession plans, and it will detail any changes to the Board that have occurred
between the year end and the date that the annual report and accounts are approved by the Board. Finally, the reporting will
include an explanation of LSU's approach to collecting data used for the purposes of making the disclosures reguired by the
Listing Rules.

Policy review The policy 1s subject to an annual review by the Nominations Committee on behalf of the Board.
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Diversity targets {effective Aprd 2022}

1 January 2023 reporting
Board
Gender:
a. Atleast 40% women Target not met: 33%
b.  Atleast one woman in the role of Chair, Group CEQ, Group CFO or SID Target met: 100%
{Gaby Appleton is the SID)
Fthnic diversity: at least one Director who is from a minority ethnic background Target not met: None
Senior Management Team
Gender diversity: by 1 January 2073 at least 33% are women and at least 33% are men Female target not met: 28% female
Male target met: 72% male
Ethric diversity: by 1 January 2023 at least 11% are from a minority ethnic background Target not met: 10%

The targets will be reviewed during 2023 and may be adjusted by the Board on the recommendation of the Nominations Committee.

We have not yet met our targets relating to Board or Senicr Management |evel diversity. This has been due to limited movement at these levels within
2022,

In relation to our recruitment activities, the Nominations Committee is focused on ensuring the inclusion of women and individuals of colour in Board
and Senior Management {including Executive Committee} searches. We have reviewed our engagement with recruitment partners for senior roles
and ensure that they have signed up to the Voluntary Cade of Canduct for Executive Search Firms.* As part of this we have briefed recruitment/
search partners on the importance of diversity and inclusion and are also working to ensure the longlists they provide meet their commitments in

the code. During 2023 we will further develop our approach to engaging recruitment/search partners and ensure clarity of communication of these
priorities for prospective applicants.

In Aprit 2022, the FCA published its final rules on diversity reporting. The data set out below related to the Board and Executive Committee as at the
date of this Report (2021: 4 March 2022):

Table 1 reporting on sex/gender representation

Number of senior Number in
Number of Board positions on the Execubve % of Executive
Gender members % of Board Board* Committee Committee
Men 7 78 3 7 78
(2021: 6} {2021: 65) (2021: 3) {2021: 7) {2021: 78)
Women 2 22 1 2 22
{2021 3) {2021: 34) (2021: 1) (2021: 2) {2021: 22}
Other categories - - - - -
Not specified/prefer not to say - — - - -
Table 2 reporting on ethnicity representation
Number of senior Number in
Number of Beard positions on the Exacutive % of Executive
Ethnicity members % of Board Board! Committee Committee
White British or other White {including minority white groups) 9 100 4 7 78
(2021:9) (2021: 100) (2021: 4} (2021: 7) (2021: 78)
Mixed/Multipte Ethnic Groups - — - - —
Asian/Asian British - - - 1 11
(2021 1} (2021:11)
Black/African/Caribbean/Black British - - - 1 11

{2021: 1} (2021: 11)
Other Ethnic group, including Arab - - - - _
Not specified/prefer not to say - - — - _

Note:
* Senicr positicns refers ta the roles of Chair, Graup CEQ, Group CFG, or Sentor independent Director

* gov.uk/governrent/publicanons/standard-voluntary-code-of-conduct: executive-search-firms/the-standard-voluntary-code-of-conduct-for-executive-search-
firms
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As stated above, in refation to aur recruitment activities, the Nominations Committee is focused on ensuring the inclusion of women and individuals
ot colour in Board and Senior Management {including Executive Committee) searches. We have ensured that any recruitment or search agencles we
have engaged are given explicit instructions about the importance of identifying and putting forward female and ethnic candidates.

Whilst we believe that all appointments should be on merit, we recognise the imbalance that exists and the role that we can play inimproving
diversity and inclusion. We also recognise the benehts that diversity has on decision making and on the Group's performance and this is supported by
our Diversity Policy.

Further details relating to diversity matters are included in the ESG Report {page 30), including cur reporting on gender pay and gender and ethnic
diversity in our Senior Management Team and the wider workforce. Diversity data included in the ESG Report which relates to cur wider workforce
is derived from hgures representative of responses to the diversity question in our employee survey. Colleague diversity data is contained in the ESG
Report {page 30).

The Living Responsibly Report, which is published at the same time as this Report and is available on our website {lsips co.uk}, also contains further

details of our diversity and inciusion initiatives.

Culture
The Board is mundful that it has the ultimate responsibility for our culture. The right culture provides the foundation to drive purpase and the delivery
of strategy, and therefore plays a key role in our long term success.
The Board has a range of machanisms for monitoring our culture, These include:
a. Monitoring employee engagement, as part of the Board engagement programme:
i.  Results of the annual employee survey and regular pulse surveys are reported to the Board each year.
ii. Theupdated Speak Up Policy has been approved by the Board in 2022,
iit.  Bill Shannon attended and presented at the Group’s 2021 Senior Management Canference.
iv. Darrell Evans (designated Non Executive Directar for Workforce Engagement) attends biannual meetings with the Employee Engagement
Forum each year.
v. Group HR arrangements have been introduced in 2022 to enhance colleague engagement and communications.
b. Receiving an annual presentation on the Group's culture by the Group HR Team. During 2022 this resulted in a review of colleague working
arrangements,
c. Receiving regularly reporting on aur colleague diversity, equality and inclusion projects.
d. Conducting an annual deep dive on our people strategy, including metrics on colleague attrition, talent and succession for Senicr Managers,
presented by the Group HR Director.
e. Monitoring Senior Managers’ leadership capability, development and succession through the Nominations Committee.
f.  Overseeing progress against Seniar Managers’ non-financial measures, which form part of the annual bonus plan.

g. Regular updates on and annual reviews of our core Group compliance policies.

Share Dealing Code and Disclosure Committee

The Board may delegate responsibilities to a Disclosure Committee, which supports our compliance with the disclosure and control of inside
information cbligations as required by UK MAR. Notwithstanding this, the Beard remains responsible for our compliance with ali regulatory disclosure
obligations and the Disclosure Commuttee refers matters to the Board as it sees fit. The Disclosure Committee met twice during 2022, once ahead of
the announcement of the interim results statement in August 2022 and then ahead of the November 2022 trading update.

We also have a Share Dealing Policy and Share Dealing Code, to ensure compliance with UK MAR. The Share Dealing Policy and Share Dealing Code
apply to our Directors, our PDMRs (zll listed above] and other relevant employees of LSL.

Subsidiary governance

Day Lo day management of the Group's subsidiary companies 1s delegated to the respective Divisional management committees and to the boards
of the subsidiary companies. During the year we undertock a review of subsidiary governance including a review of our subsidiary boards and have
revised and re-issued our guidance to subsidiary directors. We also delivered training to our subsidiary directers during 2022. We are also working
on the delivery of online remote training for Group directars and revisions to our Group subsidiary governance guidance following the Internal Audit
review (see below).

During 2022 the Internai Audit team conducted an audit of subsidiary governance arrangements. The report includes recommendations which are
baing considered by the Divisions and the Group’s Company secretariat.
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Colleague matters

Gender pay reporinng

We published our gender pay reports for atf Greup companies with more than 250 employees in Aprit 2022 and further reporting will be published in
2023.The 2022 report s avallablfe to view at gender-pay-gap.service gov.uk.

Other poy reporting

We are continuing tc monitor the Government’s reviews in refation ta ethnic pay reporting and locking at what steps would need to be taken to
ensure compliance with any proposed future reporting, We have also signed up to the CBI's Change the Race Ratio charter, see the ESG Report for
further details.

Whistleblowing, fratid and arti-bribery arrongements

The Board oversees our whistleblowing arrangements and the Audit & Risk Committee receives reports on fraud and anti-bribery matters, including
those reported through the Group’s whistieblowing procedures. The Audit & Risk Committee also receives reports on any matters which relate to our
internal contrals and risk management arrangements, including those relating to any incidents of fraud ar bribery. Further details are included in the
Audit & Risk Committee Report (page 67) and the Principal Risks and Uncertainties (page 25 sectons of this Report.

The ESG Report {page 30) includes detarls of our whistieblowing arrangements, alongside other colieague policies included within the governance
workstream of our ESG programme

The Corporate Governance Report is approved by and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sapna B. FitzGerald
Company Secretary
12 April 2023
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Audit & Risk Committee Report

Dear Shareholder
As Chair of this Committee, | am pleased to present our report for the year ended 31 December 2022

This proved to be a challenging year due to market conditions and against this backdrop we have sought to continue to improve our internal
controls and risk management arrangements and to ensure that, as a Committee, we focused our discussions on managing key risks and

EIVTESE I RO TR

identifying emerging risks.

In this section of the Report, we detail how the Committes discharged its roles and responsibilities during 2022, provide highlights from the
year and set out our priorities for 2023. The 2023 prienities include developing our Group risk framework and completing an external audit
tender, to appeint @ new auditor ahead of 2026.

1 will be available at the 2023 AGM, along with my fellow Directors, to answer sharehalders’ questions relating to the Audit & Risk Committee
and how we discharged our roles and responsibilities during 2022,

James Mack
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

12 April 2023
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Audit & Risk Cominittee Report

Audit & Risk Committee
Ihe Audit & Hisk Cemmitee discharges governance responsibilities in respect of audit, risk and internal controls and reports to the Board on the
results of its work. Detalls of the Committea's roles and responsibilities are set out 1n its terms of reference, which are avadable at Islps.couk.

The Committee

All of the Committee’s members are independent Non Executive Directors. During 2022, James Mack chaired the Committee. The Committee
determined that James has retevant and recent financial experience to Chair the Committee. The Committee also noted that Darvell Evans, whois a
member of the Commitlee, also has recent financial experience which s relevant te the Cammittee.

In addition to the three scheduled meetings each year, the Committee will meet as required. The Committee also ensures that it meets regularly with
both the external and internal suditors, independently of the Executive Directors

Details of the Committee members” attendance at its meetings in 2022 are set out in the Corporate Governance Report {page 54).

2022 highlights

The Committee met three times in 2322 and its key activities included the following:

a. Providing assurance to the Board on whether this Report, taken as a whaole, is fair, balanced and understandable.

b. Reviewing papers supporting significant judgements made within the Financial Statements of this Report, such as goodwilt and revenue
recognition.

c. Considering the effectiveness of the wider control environment and underlying financial reporting systems.

d. Assessing the measures taken to ensure the Group maintained sufficient liquidity within its capital structure, together with the stress tests and
financial modelling assumptions used to conclude on the Group's Going Concern Statement and Viability Statement {see page 49 and pages 28
and 22 of Principal Risks and Uncertainties).

e.  Approving the annual Internal Audit plan and considering the results of an extensive range of related thematic assurance reviews. Focus areas
continued to include health and safety topics, sales conduct themes, second line effectiveness, strategy execution and the resilience of core
business systems.

f.  Assessing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function through internal feedback and an external quality assurance exercise on an Internal
Audit report relating to a Financtial Services bustness.

g. Reviewing Divisional risk presentations, including views on key risks, risk management frameworks and consideration of Group matters not fully

captured at Divisional level.

h.  Monitoring the strengthening of risk-reiated rotes across the Group, including progress with appointments to roles within the Financial Services
Division, such as the new chief technalogy officer and the independent non executive director appointment as chair of the PRIMIS Network
Compliance & Risk Committee {subject to FCA approval), who will also attend the PRIMIS Business Reviews with the Executve Directors.

i. Reviewing Divisional risk appetite themes, emergent areas and escalation routines, including ensuring a cautious approach is adopted for any
weaknesses in health and safety or sales conduct arrangements.

J.  Reviewing povernance routines supporting our information and data security and technology infrastructure, including Divisional attestations and
monitoring of compliance with minimum pelicy standards, driven by the Graup’s Data and information Security Committee.

k. Monitoring the appointment of the new audit partner following the rotation of the previous partner and considering the effectiveness of external
audit pracesses and plans for tendering for 2udit services.

I, Onbehalf of the Board, reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s whistieblowing arrangements, with support from Group HR. This includes
reporting on a colleague speak up exercise, which was run by the Group HR team during 2022 and tnvolved colleagues from acrass the Group.

eg



Committee work in 2022

During 2022, we focused on a range of issues and accounting judgements relating to the Financial Statements. We also received 1eports from and

manitored the external and internal audit teams, as weil as reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and procedures.

The table below summarises our actvities in the year.

Financial
reporting

Key responsibilities C Activities during 2022 ' '

Provide assurance to the Board on whether the
Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable.

Review significant judgements and
assumptions made within the Financial
Statements, including valuation of goodwill and
appropriateness of revenue recognition.

Ensure clarity of disclosures and compliance
with the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

Provide assurance to support the long term
Viability Statement and the procedures for
evaluating the Going Concern assessment.

Ensure the integrity of formal announcements
relating to the Group’s financial performance,
including the half year and full year Financial
Statements.

-

Examined the integrity of the full year and half year Financial
Statermments and recommended their approval to the Board.

Assessed the appropriateness of key accounting policies and
practices, judgements, estimates and compliance with accounting
standards and tax requirements, including recent developments. in
particular, considered the appropriateness of revenue recognition,
including lapse provisions, and the carrying value of goodwill,

Reviewed significant issues in relation to the Financial Statements as
outlined in note 2.

Reviewed Management’s calculations and assumptions applied in
the annuzal goodwill impairment test. This resulted in impairment of
£87.2m at 31 December 2022 (see note 16).

Considered the findings of inancial audits completed by Internal
Audit, as part of its assurance pian.

Considered whether a reasonably possible change to assumptions
in the impairment test would result in a material impairment and
therefore require sensitivity disclosure in the Financial Statements
{see note 16}.

Reviewed Management's application of revenue recognition policies
and continued monitoring of compliance with financial reporting
and accounting controls linked to revenue recognition. There were
no changes to the Group’s revenue recognitien practices during the
year.

Reviewed Management’s estimates of the lapse provisions and
considered the risk that revenue is recognised in the wrong period,
either due to cut-off errors, management bias and/or estimation
uncertainty.

Reviewed the Viability Statement and Geing Concern Statement and
assassments and their supporting material and advised the Board
that the Group is able to continue in operation and meet its liahilities
as they fall due for at teast the next 12 months.

Assessed the Group’s capital structure and capital altocation policy
inciuding the dividend policy.

As part of the Annual Report review, considered that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable.

Reviewed the Group's ESG disclosures including TCFD.

Received Management reports on an exchange with the FCA relating
to the Group’s TCFD disclosures following the FCA thematic reviews
relating to 2021 reporting.
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Audit & Risk Committee Report

_ Key responsibilities ) Activities during 2022 _

Risk management

= Review the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management framework, governance
arrangements and procedures,

+ Advise the Board on current and emerging
risks.

Completed the annual review and recommendation of the Audit &
Risk Committee’s terms of reference, Group reporting on Divisional
risk framework policies and related Group and Divisional governance
structures.

Reviewed the cperation of our 'three lines of defence’ risk
management structure.

Regularly reviewed the Group's principal risks and uncertainties,
including underlying Divistonal risk routines and emerging risk
areas. This included discussions relating to the steps Management
are taking in relation to the continued development of the Group’s
risk framework and risk appetite, and consideration of Group and
Divisional risk roles.

Focused on the effectiveness of Divisional routines to define,

dentify and respond to areas outside nsk tolerance, including their
interaction with Group standards and appetite.

Promoted a culture which is designed to ensure regulatary
compliance, stakeholder safety and ‘speaking-up’ on any concerns.

Internal control

» Review the internal control environment, to
ensure that processes are effectively designed
o reduce risk and the likelihood of material
error or fraud.

+ Consider the operation and effectiveness of
the Group’s internal contral systems, covering

financial, operational and compliance controls.

.

Discussed the continued development of the Group’s risk
management framework and governance committee structures — see
above.

Considered outputs fram the Divisional ‘three lines of defence’
oversight and compliance routines.

Reviewed control environment assessments prepared by Group
Finance and the Divisional Managing Directors, supported by their
risk teams.

Evaluated control benchmarks and compliance performance versus
defined policy and procedural standards.

Monitored the effectiveness of internal and external auditing
processes and themes arising from their outputs.

Carried out external quality assurance on an Internal Audit
engagement, as part of routines to benchmark the effectiveness of
the internal Audit team,
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(Area | Keyresponsibilities Activities during 2022

External audit « Make recommendations to the Board on the * Ensured Ernst & Young nas adequate processes to maintain

appeintment, reappointment, and removal of
the external auditor.

Assess the independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the externz! auditor.

Approve the external auditor’s fees.

Agree the scope of the audit with the Group’s
external auditar

Review the external auditor’s indings and its
key focus areas.

-

independence. Jenn Hazlehurst took over as audit parther in 2022
ahead of the 31 December 2022 audit, as a result of the audit partner
rotation rules. Fallowing our ennouncement on 17 March 2023,

lenn Hazlehurst was replaced by David Wilson as the audit partner
following an unanticipated absence which meant that Jenn was
unable to complete the audit.

Started planning for an external audit tender exercise {see below).

Completed the annual review and recommendation of the Auditor
Independence Policy.

Reviewed the materiality and effectiveness of planmng, including
relevant risk-based focus areas and the changing profile of profit
contributions across relevant entities.

Evaluated the audit findings, including resolution of any issues and
feedback on the quality of interactions with relevant Divisional senior
management.

Considered fee levels. The only fees incurred in respect of non-audit
services was in relation to the interim review [see note 10},

Reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit process, taking
into consideration applicable UK professional and regulatory
requirements, independence considerations and feedback fram
Divisional senfor management.

Considered the external auditor’s effectiveness and independence,
with the conclusions supporting the recommendation to reappoint
Ernst & Young as external auditor at the 2043 AGM.

@esodio3 Sujpnjaul) Loday sienaig
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« Ernst & Young's audit tenure began in 2004, although LSL did not =
b
list until 2006. LSL and Ernst & Young have concluded that Ernst & 2
Young's 20-year term cannot exceed 2026 (being 20 years from our §
listing on the LSE). This means that their [ast year for audit services %
can't exceed 2025 which will be reported in 2026, g
* Anew external auditor wili be appointed prior to the commencement v
of the FY25 audit. The last audit tender took place in 2016.
Internal Audit + Assess the scope of the Internal Audit plan, the | * Approved the audit plan and supporting papers, including the wider
effectiveness of its delivery and any resourcing three year assurance cycle and Internal Audit charter which covers
implications. our Interna!l Audit team.
¢ Ensure the internal Audit function has open » Reviewed an external quality assurance output and internal
lines of communication and access to records. benchmarking exercise, supporting the effective operation of the
¢ Review themes arising from Internal Audit function during the year.
. ) . . o)
outputs, including resolution of issues and + Tracked the completion of agreed Internal Audit acticns. =3
o
emergent areas. + Reported themes and resultant Group-level recommendations ta g
each Committee meeting. g
o
{ther key matters | = Evaluate the Committee’s effectiveness. + (onfirmed the Committee 1s effective, as part of the annual Board =
=1

Manitor fraud-relzted suspicions.

and Committee evaluation grocess. This included confirming that the
skills and expertise of our members are appropriate and specifically
that James {Chair) has recent and necessary financial experience, in
addition to Darreil (member}.

Tracked fraud-related suspicions across the Group and logged
investigations, conclusions and remedies.
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Audit & Risk Committee Report

Priorities for 2023

Cun wunlinued futus dieds Tur 2023 inclede dhie Toluwing:

EN

Monitoring emerging areas affecting the Group's risk profile, including changes in the regulatery environment and clearly defining our risk
appetite. This includes monitoring arrangements for the implementation of the FCA's new consumer duty principle.

Promoting ownership and alignment of robust risk management routines across all of our businesses and lines of defence,
Developing escalation and attestation routines from underlying committee structures on risk and control matters.

Ensuring robust and resilient cyber security controls, This will involve feedback from the technology assurance routines driven by relevant
governance forums and oversight functions.
Reviewing Internal Audit engagements covering the effectiveness of financial controls, regulatory change management, technology risk and

second line oversight routines,

New focus areas include:

Developing the Group risk framework and risk appetites, including a review of risk management roles.
Continuing to plan for the appointment of a new external auditor ahead of 2026, including conducting the audit tender exercise.
Menitering risks associated with delivery of the high pricrity projects and any related Group restructuring/simplification.

Strengthening the Financial Services 1isk management arrangements, reflecting the iImpartance of the Division to our strategy and the significant
regulatory changes which are impacting this part of our business.

Reviewing our participatian in the Pivotal Growth joint venture, reflecting its part in the Group’s growth strategy.

The Audit & Risk Committee Report is approved by and signed on behalf of the Board

James Mack
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

12 April 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including
Remuneration Committee Report

Annual Statement

Dear Shareholders

wdny ey ey

As Remuneration Committee Chair | am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2022.

This Directors’ Remuneraton Report is divided into the following sections:

* Annual Statement: summarising remuneration for 2022, explaining major decisions made during the year and the operation of the
Directors’ Remuneraticn Policy {Pohey) for 2023;

« Directors’ Remunaration Policy: setting cut the proposed Policy being presented for shareholder approval at the 2023 AGM; and

» Annual Report on Remuneration: seting out details of the remuneration earned by Directors in 2022 and how the Policy will be
implemented during 2023.

The Policy is subject to a binding vote every three years, or soaner if the Pelicy changes. The Policy was last subrmitted and approved by 97.1%

of sharehelders voting at the 2020 AGM and, accordingly, it is being submitted for 1ts triennial binding shareholder vote at the forthcoming

2023 AGM.

The Annual Statement and the Annual Report on Remuneration are subject to a combined shareholder advisory vote, which we will present

for approval al the 2023 AGM. For further details, see the Notice of Meeting.

Summary of LSL's performance in the year and incentive payments to Executive Directors

LSL has traded well tn what have been chellenging market conditions, whilst at the same time making good progress in the execution of our
strategy. The mortgage and housing markets have been adversely impacted by economic and political uncertainty and this is reflected in the
underlying remuneraton outcomes for the year.

s3esodio) Bupnpu) woday 54013819

Bonus

The Executive Directars’ bonus scheme in 2022 was based 70% on Underlying Operating Profit and 30% on individually agreed non-financial
measures, with the maximum bonus opportunity set at 100% of basic salary. The bonus targets set for each of the Executive Directors at the
start of 2022 were stretching and reflected the housing market outlook at the time. As the financial results feli well short of the targets set,
the Executive Directors have not been awarded any bonus in respect of this element for 2022. The Committee noted that for the individual

(SHOd9Y 23RO pUE SLITRY JIUELISADD

nen-financizl measures there was 2 more positive performance, with a number of objectives being delivered. After due consideration and %’

roting the very decisive shortfall in the financial performance and notwithstanding the exceptional perfermance in the circumstances, it was 2

agreed by the Commitiee to exercise discretion and not award any bonus for this element either. :—,:
4

2020 LTIP E]

The 2020 LTIP award was granted later than normal in 2020, initially because of a passible all-share combination with Countrywide plc and &

latterly as a result of the uncertain trading conditions in early 2020 due to the COVIB-19 pandemic. The LTIP was awarded to Executive

Directors in November 2020, and the Committee decided to scale back the grant from 125% of salary to 104% of salary, to reflect the relative

faltin LSUs share price during 2020. The Committee also carefully considerad the appropriate parformance metrics to apply to the awards,

and because of the difficultly in forecasting the medium to fong term trading conditions at the fitne, chose to adjust the weighting of the

performance metrics to be 50% based on EPS and 50% on relative TSR, against the FTSE Small Cap.

The EPS performance period ended on 31 December 2022 and the targets have been partially achieved resufting in 47.2% of this element

vesting. However due to the delay in granting the 2020 LTIP awards, the TSR performance period for the award was set as the three year

period from grant ending 8 November 2023. The final vesting outcome of the LTIP award is therefore not yet fully known, LS{s TSR

performance in the final three manths of 2022 forecasts a partial vesting of this element of 25.3%, which wil! be tested following the end of ;9.

the performance period in November 2023 and disclosed in next year’s Annual Report and Accounts. Based on the final EPS outcome and the §

forecast TSR outcome the overall forecast level of vesting of the 2020 LTIP award is 36.3% of maximum. :;:'

The Committee considered the appropriateness of the forecast vesting outcome, taking into account business performance, the share price %

at grant of £2.10, the scale back of award levels at grant, the share price perfarmance over the period and the share price level at the date of
this Report of £2.46. Taking these factors into consideration, the Committee considers the current formulaic forecast incentive outcome for
the 2020 LTIP award to reflect the business performance aver the three year period and is comfortable that there are no ‘windfail gains’ that
require a scale back of the vesting level. This will be reviewed again in November 2023, prior to vesting, to ensure this continues to remain the
case.

In determining whether the incentive cutcomes for FY22 were appropriate and if the Policy had operated as intended, the Committee also
considered workforce remuneration and outcomes, the relativities between employees and Executive Directors, including the Group CEO pay
ratic, and the wider stakeholder experience. The Committee also considered whether there were any relevant ESG matters that we needed to
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take account of when reviewing the remuneration outcomes and concluded that there were no such factors that needed to be cansidered.

Further details of performance against the targets forthe annual bonus and LTIP awards are set outin the Annual Report on Remuneration
{page 89).

Key decisions taken by the Committee during 2022

Triennial Policy Review

The Committee thoroughly reviewed the Policy during 2022. This was supported by our external remuneration advisors, Korn Ferry and
involved engaging with rmajor shareholders, the proxy voting agencies and our colleagues via our Employee Engagement Forum.

The Committee’s review concluded that the current Policy is working effectively, supports our business strategy and creates a good link
between performance and reward. Furthermare, the Policy is in ine with investor expectations and the reguirements of the Code. As a result,
the Committee is only proposing one miner amendment to the Policy which provides greater flexibility, if needed, in operating the Policy over
the next three year cycle. The proposed change removes the requirement for at least 30% of LTIP awards to be based on T5R and provides
sufficient flexibility to select financial and non-financial metrics, which may include for example strategic or ESG metrics. There is no intention
at this time to change our current approach of setting TSR and EPS targets for the vesting of our LTIP awards but this change to the Palicy
provides us with flexibility if needed. The new Policy 15 detailed in full on page 76 and will be submitted for shareholder approval at the 2023
AGM. | would like to thank investors for their feedback as part of our engagement on our new Palicy,

Colleague pay

The Committee is keen to continue to understand the workforee's views of remuneration and | was pleased to attend meetings with our
Employee Engagement Forum during the year, in my roles as both the designated Non Executive Director for workforce engagement and
Remuneration Committee Chair. The Committee has been mindful of the cost of living challenges faced by colleagues and we were pleased

ta recommend for approval by the Board a cost of living award of £500 for all colleagues who are earning less than £30,000 perannum {on a
full time basis) before the end of the year. This award has benefitted over 2,000 colleagues and has been very well received. The award was in
additton to the higher average pay review award that was made to lower-paid colleagues during 2022.

Further, early in 2022 the Committee approved our second free share award to all colleagues across the Group, which was worth up to
£500 per employee. This award has enabled colleagues to share in our positive financial performance in 2021, It alse aligns colleague and
shareholder interests, and we hope it will encourage colleagues to remain with the Group.

Executive Director changes

As announced in June 2022 Helen Buck, Executive Director — Fstate Agency retired from the business on 31 March 2023, which s in line

with her nine month notice period. During her notice period, Helen continued to receive her normal basic salary, car aliowance and benefit
entitiements as detailed in full in the Annual Report on Remuneration section of this Report {page 88). In line with the other Executive
Directors, Helen did not receive any bonus award for 2022, Furthermare, as Helen has left the business this year, she did not receive an annual
pay increase, annual bonus or an LTIP award in 2023,

As Helen was retiring from the business the Committee awarded Helen good leaver status on her unvested LTIP awards. These awards have
been pro-rated ta the extent that Helen was employed during the three year vesting period and will vest at the normal date and be subject to
the achievement of relevant performance conditians, as detailed at the time of grant and assessed by the Committee at the time of vesting.
Helen's awards will be subject to both pest-vesting holding periods and post-employment holding periods, in line with the Policy.



Implementation of the Policy for 2023

The Executve Directors (excluding Helen Buck} will receive salary increases of 3%, rounded to the nearest £250. This increase is below the
average pay award for the wider workforce of 5% of salary, with colleagues in the lowest pay grades receiving the highest increases, to help
address cost of living challenges. In line with the Executive Director awards, the Non Executive Directors and Chair of the Board will also
receive fee increases of 3%, rounded to the nearest £250.

The annual bonus wiil be subject to the same performance conditions as last year, namely 70% based on Underlying Operating Profit and
309% based on non-financial measures. The non-financial measures will continue to include ESG targets which focus on delivering corporate
sustainability targets including emission targets and improving gender and other diversity disparities in key colleague groups. The Committee
censiders the weighting to non-financial measures for Executive Directors remain appropriate, as it emphasises the importance of key
strategic ohjectives as a driver of further profitability and growth.

In relation to the LTIP awards for 2023, the Committee has approved the granting of awards 2t the normal award leve! of 125% of salary

to the Execlutive Directors. The 2023 LTIP awards will continue to be based 50% on EPS and 50% on TSR, in line with the 2022 grants. TSR
performance will continue to be measured relative to the FTSE Small Cap index {excluding investments trusts) and the EPS targets have been
set to ensure they are as stretching as previous years, taking into account both the business and market outlook. Details of these targets can
be found in the latter section of this Report (page 52).

The Committee has also discussed the possibility of granting a further LTIP award, of up to 75% of salary, to the Executive Directors later in

the year, 1f substantial stratepic projects are delivered that would provide the potental te add significant value to the Group. This additional
award would increase the total 2023 LTIP award for Executive Directors to no more than 200% of salary, in line with the exceptional award
limit included in the Policy. Any further award would only be made following consultation with our largest shareholders, to outline fully the
rationale for making these awards Vesting of any additional award would also be based on the achievement of exceptionally stretching
financial targets to further incentivise the Executive Directors to maximise the growth opportunities presented by these strategic changes and
to increase alignment of interests with those of shareholders.

Conclusion

The Committee believes that the remuneration arrangements for the Fxecutive Directors and Senior Management Team are alighed to our
strategic geals and incorporate the Group’s key performance indicators. We have also reviewed the implermentation of the Policy for 2022,
to ensure (t is allghed with our purpose, culture and values, We are comfortable that the remuneration outcomes for 2022 are aligned to
perfarmance, and the exercise of discretion to reduce the bonus payout to zero is appropriate. Furthermaore, the Committee is satisfied that
that the new Policy wil continue to promote our long term success and that it incentivises the delivery of strong and sustalnable financial
results, with the crestion of shareholder value. Accordingly, the Committee seeks shareholders support for the resolutions to approve the
Policy and remuneration arrangements at the 2023 AGM. If shareholders have any guestions or observations, then | will be pleased to hear
from you directly ahead of the 2023 AGM.

| can also be contacted via the Company Secretary’s office {please see details on page 183).

Darrelt Evans
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

12 April 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

introduction

This part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets aut the Policy for the Directors and has been prepared in accordance with The Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 and the Companies (Miscellanecus Reparting}
Regulations 2018 {Regulathions).

The current Policy was approved by shareholders at our AGM on 30 June 2020 and is effective until the new Policy {see below} is approved by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM. The current Policy can be found in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report and is availakle on our website
{isIps.co.Lk).

Consideration of Code Provision 40
In determining the Policy and its operation in 2022 and identifying required amendments to the Policy to be effective from 1 January 2023 onwards,
we considered the following six factors which are referred to in the Code:

+  Clarty - the Policy is well understood by our Senior Management Team and has been clearly explained to our shareholders through direct
engagement and our annual remuneration reporting. Engaging on all people-related matters, including remuneration, is a key responsibility
for our Group HR Director and Darrell, the designated workforce engagement Non Executive Director. This engagement is conducted via
meetings with cur Employee Engagement Forum and our colleague surveys, the results of which are presented to the Board.

»  Simplicity — our focus is to ensure that our Policy and practices are simple and straightforward and that the objectives and deliverables are
clear. We only operate two incentive plans, an annual bonus and a long term incentive scheme {LTIP). Targets are based on business KPis and
measure performance against them, tracking and rewarding progress toward achieving our strategies and fonger term sustainable growth.

= Risk—the Policy is designed t6 ensure that reputational, behavioral and other risks are managed and will not be rewarded via (i) a balanced
use of fixed and variahle pay, with both short and leng term incentive plans, which employ a blend of financial, non-financial and shareholder
return targets, {it) the significant role playved by equity in the incentive plans (together with executive shareholding guidelines in service and
the post-service pelicy) and (i} the inclusion of malus/clawback provisions.

*  Predictability - our incentive plans are subject to individual caps, with share plans also subject to market standard diluton limits. The scenario
charts cn page 83 Illustrate how the rewards potentizlly receivable by the Executive Directors vary based on performance delivered and share
price growth. The Committee also has the discretion to adjust any vesting outcomes if they are not considered appropriate.

« Proportionality —~there is a clear link between individual awards, delivery of strategy and our long term performance. In addition, the
significant role played by Incentive or ‘at-risk’ pay, together with the structure of the Executive Directors’ service contracts, ensures that poor
performance is not rewarded.

s Alignment to culture — the incentive schemes drive behaviours consistent with our purpose, values and strategy (including the Group’s ESG
and corporate sustainability strategies), by using metrics in both the annual bonus and the LTIP that underpin the defivery of our strategies,
Colleague personal success is directly linked to the success of our clients and businesses, through the short and long term incentive plans and
targets which we operate.

Overall business performance, ESG matters and workforce pay, including the Group CEO pay ratia, are taken into account when determining
remuneration for the year.

Palicy overview

When setting the Executive Directors' and Senlor Managers’ remuneration, the Remuneration Committee seeks to ensure that 2ll individuals are
provided with appropriate profit based incentives and an element of pay refating to non-financial performance measures. The aim is to enhance
performance and ensure that individuals are fairly and responsibly rewarded for their contributions to the Group’s success.

Our policy is to provide remuneration packages which attract, motivate and retain Executive Directors of the calibre necessary to maintain and
improve the Group's profitability, to reward them for long term sustainable performance and growth and to enhance shareholder value. in doing
this, we aim to provide a market competitive [but not excessive) package of pay and benefits. Cur general remuneration policy is to set basic salaries
around mid-market fevels and to set performance pay levels by applying stretching goals that accord with our general policy of making bonuses
self-financing wherever possible. Remuneration packages will also reflect individual responsitnfities and contain incentives to deliver our strategic

objectives.

Detision making process for determination, review and implementation of the Palicy

The Committee reviews the Paolicy and its operation ta ensure it continues to support and reward the Executive Directors for achieving the
business strategy, both operaticnally and over the fonger term, It reviews the structure and quantum of rewards and takes inte account the Cede,
market practice, shareholder views and the views of institutional investors and investor representative bodies. The Committee also considers the
remuneration arrangements, policies and practices for the workforce as 2 whole which it reviews as part of its annual agenda.
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The Committee reviews the Policy annually, to ensure that changes are not required before the triennial shareholder vote. When the Commitiee
determines that changes are required it will formulate proposals and consult with shareholders. Shareholder feednack 1s then taken into
consideration in finalising any changes.

The Poticy's operaticn 1s considered annually for the year ahead, including metrics for incentives, weightings and targets. The Committee reviews
the Policy’s aperation for the prior year and considers whether, in light of the strategy, changes are required for the coming year. Targets for the
annual bonus and LTIP awards are also reviewed to determine whether they remain appropriate or need to be recalibrated. Sharehoider views will
be sought depending on the changes proposed.

Consideration of shareholder views

tach year the Committee considers shareholder feedback received in relation to our Annual Repert and Accounts, including the Directors’
Remuneration Report. This feadback, plus any additional feedback received during any meetings or consultations with shareholders during the

year 15 also considered as part of our review of the Policy and its annual implementation review. In addition, the Committee engages directly with
significant shareholders and their reprasentative bodies in respect of any proposed changes to the Policy and, as appropriate, changes tothe
implementation of the Policy. Details of votes cast for and aganst the resolution to approve the previous vear’s Directors’ Remuneration Report and
any matters discussed with shareholders during the year are set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration {page 99).

During the year, the Committee engaged with shareholders to explain the proposed changes to the Policy and gather their feedback. Querall those
shareholders who provided feedback were supporuve of our Policy proposals. As a result of feedback we adjusted our approach to providing
flexibility in the selection of ETIP metrics to ensure that the Policy specifies that no more than 30% of the LTIP can be based on non-financial metrics.

For further detalls of the way in which we communicate with shareholiders, please see the Shareholder Relations section of the Corporate
Governance Report {page 54} and tha Stakeholder Engagement section of this Repoert {page 21).

Wider workforce considerations

As part of its remit under the Code the Committee considers the remuneration arrangements for the wider woerkforce and related policies, to
ensure the incentives and rewards align with culture, and take these into account when setting the Policy and in determining the remuneration for
the Executive Directors and Senior Managers to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group. The Non Executive Director designated

for workforce engagement (Barrell Evans) also regularly meets with the Employee Engagement Forum to discuss a range of topics including
rerauneration issues and shares feedback with the Committee and the Board, ensuring that colleague views are taken into consideration in decision
making.

Annua! bonus, annual bonus share investment and long term incentive awards align the interests of Senior Managers with shareholders.

The Committee also considers average base salary increases awarded for colleagues and pay structures throughout the business. The remuneration
policy for alf employees s determined in line with best practice and aims to ensure that we are ahle to attract and retain the best people.

This principle is followed in developing the Policy.

During 2022, employees’ views on the Policy were obtained from the Employee Engagement Forum. Furthermore, the Group HR Director attends
all Committee meetings by invitstion to provide perspective on Group HR policies and practices, including from a colleague perspective. The Annual
Report on Remuneration details the engagement undertaken to explain the afignment of the Palicy to the wider Group remuneration policy.

Proposed changes to Policy
There is only one change to the Policy which is in respect of the selection of metrics for LTIP awards. The amendment remaves the reguirement for
at least 20% of LTIP awards to be based on TSR and provides that non-financial metrics may account for up to 30% of the LTIF award.
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Element of 3 : Cperation Maximum

remuneration
arvangements

Basic salary + Reflects the value of the * Reviewed annuzlly, normally effective » There is no prescribed

individual and their role. 1 January. maximurn anndJal basic
» Reflects skills and experience « Periodic comparison to companies salary increase.

overtime. with similar characteristics and sector « The Remuneraticn
comparaters, Committes 15 guided
by the general increase
for empioyees but may

* Provides an appropraate level
of basic fixed income, avo:ding
excessive risk aris.ng from over

reliance on variable income. decide to award & lower

increase for Executive

Directars or higher

Increase to recognise,

for example, an increase

in the scale, scope or
responsibility of the role
andfor to take account
of relevant market
movemeants.

Current basie salary
levels are setout in
the Arnual Report on
Remuneration.

= Not applicable.
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Element of
remuneration
arrangements

Annuzl bonus

« [nrentivises annual detvery of
fimancial and strategic goals

« Maximum benus only payable
for achieving demanding
targets.

Operation

« Targets reviewed annuatly.

= Bonus level is determined by the
Remuneration Committee after the end of
the financial year, subject to performance
againsttargets set at the startof the
financial year,

* The Remiineration Committes has the
discretion to adjust or override formulaic
outcomes for anaual bornus payment, if the
Committes considers it does not reflect
the Group's underlying performance,
taking into sccount amongst other things,
the quality of earnings that underlie the
pay and vesting outcomes, which may put
at risk future cash flows, as well as investor
experience and the employee reward
outcome.

* The Group CEQ is required to purchase
and hold shares equivalent to 33% of any
bonus earned, net of tax, for a period of
two years, The other Executive Directors
are required to purchase and held shares
equivalent ta 25% of any bonus earned
net of tax, for a period of twa years,
which will in normal circumstances
continue post-cessation of employment.
Far all Executive Directors on cessation
of employment, these shares wiil not
be forfeited for any reason. However
clawback and the holding period will
continue to apply.

« Not pensionable,

= Bonus awards are subject to clawback
and malus for six years fram payment, in
circumstances of: material misstatement
of financial results, corporate failure,
failure of risk management, reputational
damage, errof, inaccurate or misleading
information in determining a performance
condition or any other matter determining
the vesting of an award, breach of relevant
regulations, an act or omission during the
vesting period to the significant detriment
of customers, or an act or omission
leading to gross misconduct. Recovery
can be made through scaling back existing
awards, reducing future awards, including
under the LTIP, and requesting repayment
as a cash sum,

Maximum

» Maximum apportunity:
100% of basic salary
with the ablity to
increase ta 125% of
basic salary™.

*Maximum opportunity

will ot be increased

above 100% of basic
salary without significant

sharehoider consultation.

Performance metrics
and period ;

+ Performance period

of one year.

= Performance
metrics:

-~ a maximum of 30%
of the award will be
determined by non-
finencial measures
and a minimum of
70% by financial
measures; and

—not mgre than 20%
of the total bonus
will pay out at
threshold.
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Directors” Remuneration Report including Remuneration Commitiee Report

Element of
remuneration
arrangements

LTIP awards
(approved by
shareholders
at the 2017
AGM)

= Aligned to Graup key
performance ndicatars
that drive the strategies and
performance of the businesses.

Operation

« Awards of nil-cost or conditional shares
are made annually, with vesting dependent
on achieving performance conditions over
three years.

The Remuneration Committee reviews
the quantum of awards annually and
momtars the continuing suitability of the
performance measures.

* The Committee has the discreticn te
adjust and override formulaic outcomes
of LTIP vesting, if it considers that it
does not reflect the Group’s underlying
performance, taking into account amongst
other things the quality of earnings that
underlie the vesting outcomes, which may
put at risk future cash flows, as well as the
investor experience and the employee
reward outcome.

= The Committee has discretion to provide
for dividend equivalents in shares to
acerue from the date of award to the
vesting date or, if applicable, to the end of
any post-vesting holding period.

LTIP awards are subject to clawback

and malus for six years from vesting, in
circumstances of: material misstatement
of financial resuits, corporate failure,
failure of risk management, reputational
damage, error, inaccurate or misteading
information in determining a performance
condition or any other matter determining
the vesting of an award, breach of relevant
regulations, act or amission during the
vesting period to the significant detriment
of customers, or an act or amission
leading to gross misconduct. Recovery

can be made through scaling back existing
awards, reducing future awards, including
under the annual bonus and requesting
repayment as a cash sum.

Maximum

« Normal maxiroum

limit of 125% of basic
salary, with grants
of up to 200% of
basic salary being
made :n exceptioral
clrcumstances.

Pérfo__rrﬁancé metrics
and péricd

« Performance period:
normally three
years,

* A two year
post-vasting holding
period applies
and in normal
circumstances
continues to apply
post-cessation of
empioyment.

Up to 30% of

the award may
be determined
by non-financiat
measures such as

strategic measures
or ESG. The
remaining value

of the award will

be determined by
financial measures,
for example but not
limited to EPS and
TSR,

« 25% vests at
threshold for all
parts of the LTIP.
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Element of
remuneration
arrangements

Operation

Maximum

Performance metrics

and period

None.

Ali-emptloyee * Encoursges long term » [nvitations from the Remuneration * As per HMRC limits.

share schemes: shareholding in LSL. Committee under the approved SAYE, SiEf

SAYE, SIP/BAYE BAYE and CS0P.

and CSOP

Executive share » Aligns Executive Directors and » The Group CEQ is required o build « Minimum of 200% of None.
ownership sharerolders. and maintain a minimum shareholding basic salary for Group

guidelines equivalent to 200% of basic salary over CEOQ and 150% of basic

a periad of five years from the later of
approval of the 2020 Policy and the date of
appeintment.

* The other Executive Directors are
required to build and maintain a minimum
shareholding equivalent to 150% of basic
salary over a peried of five years frcm the
later of approval af the 2020 Policy and the
date of appointment.

= All Executive Directors are expected
to retain all vested long term incentive
awards {subject to any sales necessary to
meet tax liabillity on vesting or exercise)
and shares purchased from annual bonus
under the Policy, until the guidetine is met,

+ A post-employment shareholding policy
applies as follows, with the Committee
retaining the discretion to amend the
Policy in exceptional circumstances:

— Directors to hold the lower of shares with
a value equivalent to 150% of salary (200%
for the Group CEC) and actual shares held
on cessation for two years.?

—The two year holding period for annual
bonus shares continues post-employment.
—The two year post-vesting holding
period for LTIP awards continues post-
employment.

salary for the other
Executive Directors — no
maximum.

B1

-
“
=

i

3

poday o0

a1es0d.:00 Sujpn)puy) odey Sioyaxg

(s340d3y 2933)WIWOY PUE $}I0MDY SILBUIOADS)

Yy
=
=3
=2
o
&I‘
w
=
&
=
I
3
®
3
=
>

UONELIIO U] 310



Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Eternent of

remuneration
arrangements

Executive
Directors

the time commitments and
respons. biities of each role,
n lire with those provided by
slmilarly sized companies.

« Fees are normally reviewed annually.

= Any reasonable business related expenses
can be reimbursed (including tax thereon if
determined to be a taxable benefit).

maximum annual fee
increase, although
there is a total fee cap
of £750,000, which

is contained in LSLs
articles of assaciahion.

= Fees are determined
and reviewed taking into
account experience,
time commitment,
responsibility and scope
of role, as welt as the
generalincrease for
employees and market
data for similar rales
in other companies
of a simitar size and
complexity Current
fees are set out in
the Annual Reporton
Rermuneration.

Benefits + Prev des insurad benefits + Includescar allowance, life assurance and |« Atcost. None.
1o suppart the Execative private medical insurance. Other benefits |
Directors and their families may be provided where appropriate, !
H ] 1 . .
during periods of «ll hea'th, * Any reasonable business related expenses |
orm the event of accident or {including tax thereon} can be reimbursed |
death. if datermined to be a taxable benefit. ;
« Carailowance faciitates iravel :
Pension s Provices rmodest retirement » Defined contribution. | e Directors receive Nane.
venehis, « HMRC approved arrangement. cmpioyerrpens\oﬂ
» Cpportunty for Executve cortributions in line
R . e o N
Directors to cantribute to thelr WIth the contrioution
own refrerment plan. for the majority of the
workforce at the time of
appointmert.
= Ex.sting Directors are
cffered 2 pensicn in
accordance with auto
eqreiment minimums.
Chair and Non ¢ To grovide fees refecting « Cash fee paid monthly. « There s no prescribed None,

Notes to the remuneration policy:

1. Authority is given to LSL to honour any commitments entered into with current or former Executive Directors (such as the payment of last
year's annual bonus or the vesting/fexercise of share awards granted in the past} that have been disclosed in this and previous Directors’
Remuneration Reports. Details of any payments to former Directors will be set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration as they arise.

2. Performance metrics for incentives, weightings and targets are cansidered annually for the year ahead. The Committee considers whether
changes are required to the application of the Policy for the year ahead taking into account strategy and market practice. Targets for the annual
bonus and LTIP are alsc reviewed and consideration is given as to whether these remain appropriate or need to be recalibrated. The specific
performance targets seek to be stretching to incentivise and reward improved performance.

3. The post-employment shareholding policy which requires the Executive Directors te retain a shareholding post-employment will apply to shares
acguired from LTIP awards granted from 2019 onwards (ie those that vest from 2022 onwards) and bonus awards invested in shares in respect

of performance in 2022 onwards {ie any bonus award payable from 2023 onwards).
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Reward scenarios {illustration of application of the Policy for 2023)

The chart balow shows how the composition of the remunerahon packages for each of the Executive Directors varies at different levels of
performance under the Policy detailed ahove, both as a percentage of total remuneration cppeortunity and as a total value.

The graph alse indicates the maximum remuneration under a scenaria of 50% share price appreciation over the three year performance peried of
the LTIP award:
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Notes to the reward scenarios:

1. The ‘below target’ performance scenario comprises the fixed elements of remuneration only, including:
a. basic salary as applicable from 1 January 2023;

b. pension as per the Policy; and
c. benefits as reported for the previous financial year,

2. The target level of bonus is assumed to be 50% of the maximum bonus opportunity (100% of basic salary), and the on-target level of LTiP
vesting is assumed to be 50% of the face value, assuming a normai grant level (125% of basic salary). These values are included in additien to
the components of fixed remuneration.

3. The maximum remuneration assumes full bonus pay-out {100% of basic salary} and the full face value of the LTIP [125% of basic salary}, in
addition to fixed components of remuneration.

. Noshare price growth has been factored into the calculations in the below target, target and maximum calculations.
5. 50% share price growth aver the three year performance period of the LTIP award has been used for the ‘maximum with 50% share price
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appreciation’ scenaric.
The assumptions noted for on-target performance in the graph above are provided for illustration purposes only.

7. Hejen Buck, Executive Director — Estate Agency retired fram the business on 31 March 2023 and has been included in the scenario graphs
for her period of employment in 2023. As Helen is not be eligible to participate in the 2023 bonus or LTIP scheme her annual basic salary and
benefits have been shown only, which has been pro-rated accordingly.

Approach to recruitment and promotions
The remuneration package cn appointment for a new Executive Director is set in accordance with the Policy at the time and will take into account
the individual's skills and experience of the individual, the market rate for such a candidate and the importance of securing that individual.
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Directors’ Remuneration Repeort including Remuneration Committee Report

Basic salary will be at the level required to attract the most appropriate candidate and may be set initally at a below mid-market level, on the
basss that it may progress towards the mid-market level once skills, expertise and performance have been proven and sustained. The annual
bonus potental will be limited to 100% of basic salary (with the ability to increase ta 125% of hasic salary only when the palicy limit 1s increased
following significant shareholder consultation). Grants under the LTIP will be imited to 125% of basic salary ar 200% of basic salary in exceptional
circumstances. Depending on the timing of the appointment, the Committee may deem it appropriate to set different annual bonus performance
metrics to the existing Executive Directors for the first performance year after appointment. Further, in exceptional circumstances the Committee
may offer additional cash and/or share-based elements to replace deferred or incentive pay forfeited by an individual leaving a previous employer.
It will seek to ensure, where possible, that these awards are consistent with any awards forfeited in terms of delivery mechanism, vesting periods,
expected value and performance conditions.

For aninternal candidate appointed as an Executive Director, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role may be allowed to
pay out according to its terms. Any other ongoing remuneration obligations existing prior to appointment may continue, provided they are put to
shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity.

For both external and internal appointments, the Committee may agree that the Greup will meet certain relocation and/or incidental expenses as
appropriate.

in exceptional circumstances, the Committee may also agree, an the recruitment of a new Executive Director, a notice period m excess of nine
months with the intention to reduce this to nine months over a specified perigd.

Service contracts for Executive Directors
The service contracts for the two Executive Directors in place at the date of this Report are not fixed term and are terminable by either L$L or the
Executive Director as detalled below:

Commencement of service contract Notice period {from Executive Directer and L5L}

David Stewart 1 May 2020 Nine months

Group Chief Executive Officer

Adam Castleton 2 Novemnber 2015 Nine months

Group Chief Financial Officer
Copies of Director Service Agreements are availahle for inspection at the Company Secretary’s office {ses Shareholder Information at page 183 for
details).

At the Commuttee's recommendation and at the Beard's discretion, an Executive Director's service contract can be terminated early by payment of
basic salary and benefits in lieu of the required notice pericd. The main contractual terms surrounding termination are summarised below:

Notice period Nine months.

Termination payment Payment in lieu of natice, based on basic salary, fixed benefits and pension.

Remuneration entitlements A bonus may be payable {pro-rated where relevant) and cutstanding share awards may vest {see below).
Change of control No Executive Director’s service contract contains additional provisions in respect of change of control.

The Committee may pay reasonable outplacement and legal fees where appropriate, and may pay any statutory entitlements or settle or
compromise claims or potential claims in connection with a termination of employment, where considered in the Group’s best interests.

Subject to the performance conditions being met, an annual bonus may he pavyable with respect to the period of the financial year served, although
it will be pre-rated for time, based on performance and paid at the normal payment date.

Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director under our share plans will be determined based on the relevant share plan rules.
However, in certain prescribed circumstances under the LTIP scheme rules, a good leaver status may be applied. These circumstances include death,
injury, disability, redundancy, retirement or cessation by reason of the employing company/business ceasing to be a member of the Group, or other

crcumstances at the diseretion of the Committee.

LTIP awards far good leavers will, except in exceptional circumstances:

» vest at the original vesting date;

» be determined by testing the performance conditions at the usual time;

+ be pro-rated for the proportion of the vesting period that has elapsed; and
* besubject to the two vear post-vesting holding period, where applicable,

Awards to Executive Directors who are not good leavers lapse immediately on cessation.
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Subject to Beard approval and any condiions stipulated by the Board, Executive Directars may accept appropriate outside commercial non

executive director appointments, provided that the ageregate commitment is compatible with their duties as an Executive Directorn.

Non Executive Directors

Our palicy 15 to appoint Non Executive Directors with a breadth of gualhfications, skills and experience relevant to the Group's husinesses and
strategy. The Board makes appointments based on the Nominations Committee recommendation. For further details on the Nominatons
Comrmittee’s roles and responsibilities, and how it discharges its duties, see the Corporate Governance Report [page 54).

Non Executive Directors, including the Chair, have letters of appointment which set out their roles and responsibilities. The Non Executive Directors,
including the Chair, are not eligible to participate in incentive arrangements or receive pension pravisicn. The following table shows details of the

terms of appointment of cur Non Executive Directors.

Date original term commenced Date current term commenced Expiﬁ déte'of r.urrent fergn

Gaby Appleton 1 September 2019 1 September 2022 31 August 2025
independent Non Executive Director
and Senior independent Director

David Barral' 3 April 2023 - 2 Aprit 2026

Non Executive Chair Designate

Simon Embley 1lJanuary 2015 1 January 2021 31 December 2023
Non Executive Director

Darrell Evans 28 February 2019 28 February 2022 27 February 2025

Independent Non Executive Director
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee
James Mack 27 September 2021 - 26 September 2024
Independent Non Executive Director
and Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
Bill Shannon? 7 January 2014 7 January 2023 31 December 2023
Non Executive Chair and Chair of the
Notminations Comrmittee
Sonya Ghobrial 4 March 2022 - 3 March 2025
independent Non Executive Directar
Notes:
1. David Barral will stand for election at the 2023 AGM and if elected, will tzke over the role of Chair of the Board and Nominsthons Committee from the close of

the AGM, following Bilt Shannon's retirement.
2. Billcompleted nine years on the Board inJanuary 2023 and his term was extended tc end of December 2023, Bill intends to retire at the clese of the 2023

AGM, for further details please see the Corporate Governance Report secton of this Report.

Coples of Director Service Agreements are available for inspection st the Company Secretary’s office (see Shareholder Information at page 183 for

details).
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Annual Report on Remuneration

Implementation of the Policy for the year ending 31 December 2023
This section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out how the Policy will be implemented for 2023,

Basic salary
2023 basic salary incrgases for the Executive Directors are 3%, rounded teo the nearest £250. This increase isin ine with the average pay award for
sentor management rales and less than the average for middle management roles and maore junior roles within our Group, who will recetve mare
substantizl increases, Helen Buck did not receive a salary increase for 2023 as she retired in March 2023, The basic salary levels at 1 January 2023
for the Executive Directors are set out below:

% increase from 1 January

Director
2023

Helen Buck Executive Director — Fstate Agency 320,000 Nil 320,000

Adam Castleton Group Chief Financial Officer 323,250 39% 313,750
David Stewart Group Chief Executive Officer 478,750 464,750

Annual bonus for 2023
We will operate an annual bonus plan for Executive Directors during 2023 that is broadly similar to that operated in 2022, as detailed in the table
below. The Group CEQ and Group CFO's banus opportunity will be 100% of szlary.

Group Underlying Operating Profit 70%

Non-financial measures 30%

The Group Underlying Operating Profit measure requires performance to be significantly better than budget for the full pay-out of this element of
the bonus.

The non-financal measures for the 2023 bonus scheme inciude objeetives based on each Executive Dirgcters’ delivery of key strategic initiatives
for the Group and our Divisions. Whilst we don't disclose the 2023 measures in this Report because we consider the measures to be commercially
sensitive, we will ensure full disclosure of these measures are ncluded in the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be included in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2023.

In relation to the 2023 measures, the Committee is satisfied that the objectives are challenging and demanding, reflecting the Group’s ongoing
business expectations and have a clear link to our strategy. These non-financial measures also include specific objectives relating to ESG which
position the business as an employer and organisation which places genuine value on sustainability and ethics as well as profit. We are doing this
by focusing on delivering corparate sustainability targets including emission targets, and improving gender and other diversity disparities. The
Committee has also reviewed these non-financial measures carefully to ensure alignment with our purpose, culture and values.

As detailed in the Policy, the Executive Directors are required to purchase shares with a propertion of their net of tax bonus received and to hold
these shares for a minimum of two years.

Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) 2023 awards

We will operate an LTIP for Executive Directors during 2023 that 1s broadly similar to that operated in 2022, as detailed in the table below. The
Committee intends to grant an award of 125% of basic salary to each of the Executive Directors, in line with the Policy. Helen Buck will not receive
an LTIP award for 2023 due to her retirement on 31 March 2023.

Performance measure Percentage of award subjectto | Performance periad Threshold performance level Maximum performance level
cendition {25% vesting} {100% vesting)

Adjusted basic EPS growth  50% 25.4 pence 33.Cpence

TSR {relative to FTSE 50% 3 years ending Median Upper quartile
Small Cap, excluding 31 December 2025 {50 percentile) {75™ percentile)
investment trusts)

The TSR and adjusted EPS performance conditions were selected on the basis that they reward the delivery of long term returns to our shareholders
and the Group's financial growth, and they are consistent with our objective of delivering superior levels of long term value to our shareholders.

As set out in the Chair's Annual Statement {page 08), an additional LT!P award of up to 75% of salary may be granted in 2023 if substantial strategic
projects are delivered during the year. Prior to any additional award being granted the Committee will consult with our largest shareholders, to
autline fully the rationale for making the award and detall the perfarmance condiions and targets applymng to the proposed award.
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Benefits
Taxable benehts for the Executive Directors wil! cantinue to include a car allowance, life assurance and private medical insurance.

Pension

All Executive Directors are paid an employer pension contribution in ine with ar below that received by the majority of our wider workferee.

* Adam chooses to participate in our auto enroiment pension scheme and receives 3% of banded earnings as a pension contribution from the
Company.

¢ Helen elected not to |oin the pension schemea and received no additional compensation in fieu of this.

* David receives 3% of banded earnings in heu of any employer pension contributions.

Non Executive Directors

In 2023, fees for the Non Executive Directors were increased by 3%, rounded to the nearest £250, in line with Executive Directors and below the
average pay review awarded to our wider workferce. The 3% increase was applied to the Chair of the Beard and each of the Non Executive Director
fees [including the fees linked to additional respansibilities).

e

Chair of the Board 155,000 150,500
Independent Non Executive Director 50,500 43,000
Senior Independent Director 8,500 8,250
Chair of the Remuneration Committee 9,000 8,750
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee 9,000 8,750
Designhated Non Executive Director for workforce engagement 2.000 2,000
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Directors’ remuneration payable in 2022 — audited information

Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors for 2022 was as foliows:

Basic salary Pension Sub total - Annual Share Sub toral -
orfees  Benefits®  contribubons’ fxed pay bornus® awards® Other™®  variab'e pay’!  Grand tozal
Notes Vear £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 3
Chair
Bl Shaanen 1 3022 150,500 — ~ 150,500 - - - - 156,500
2021 123,919 - - 123,519 — - - - 133,919
Executive Directors
Helen Buck 2 2022 320,000 16,139 - 336,139 0 108,403 1,361 108,765 445,904
2021 313,750 16,030 - 329,780 259,158 524,229 510 783,887 1,113,677
Adarn Castleton 2022 313,750 16,424 1,321 331,495 0 131,957 1,474 133,431 464,926
2021 307,500 15,288 1,319 325,107 258,520 514,054 551 774,135 1,099,242
David Stewart 2022 464,750 16,424 1,149 482,322 0 195,540 8312 196,472 678,794
2021 455,750 16,288 1,149 473,187 386,020 e 212 386,232 853,418
Non £xecutive Directors
Gaby Appleton 2022 57,250 - — 57,250 - - - - 57,250
2021 50,375 - — 50,375 -~ - - - 50,375
Simon Errbley 2022 49,000 - - 49,000 - - - - 49,000
3 2021 77,169 - = 77,169 - - - - 77,169
Darrefl Evans 2022 59,750 - - 59,750 - - - - 59,750
2021 53,675 - - 53,675 -~ - - - 53,675
Sonya Ghobrial 4 2022 40,509 - - 40,503 — - - - 40,509
2021 — - - - — - - - -
James Mack 2022 57,750 - - 57,750 - - - - 57,750
5 2021 14,744 - = 14,744 - - - - 14,744
Total 2022 1,513,259 48,987 2,469 1,564,715 0 435,900 3,767 439,667 2,004,382
2021 1,396,882 48,606 2,468 1,447,956 904,708 1,038,283 1,273 1,944,264 3,392,219

Notes to Directors’ remuneration table:

1. Bill Shannon was appointed to the rote of Chair of the Board on 28 April 2021 having previously held the position of Deputy Chair and Senior
Independent Director. Bill's remuneration for his time as independent Non Executive Director is included in the 2021 figures provided in the
Chair section of the table.

2. Helen has been granted good leaver status on her retirement therefore her LTIP value far 2022 is a pro-rata amount to 31 March 2023,

3. Simen Embley stood down as Chair of the Beard on 28 April 2021 and he remained as a Non Executive Director from that date. Remuneration
for his time as Chair of the Board is included in the 2021 figures provided in the Non Executive Director’s section of the table.

4. Sonya Ghobrial was appointed to the Board as an independent Non Executive Director on 4 March 2022.

5. James Mack was appointed to the Board as an independent Non Executive Director and Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee on 27 September
2021,

6. Benefits comprise private medical cover and company car or car allowance.

7. David Stewart receives 3% of banded earnings in lieu of pension. Adam Castleton is part of the auto enrolment pension scheme and receives 3%
of banded earnings as an employer contribution.

8. Ourperformance in 2022 resulted in no bonuses being paid to Executive Directors.

9. The share awards information includes a forecast level of vesting for the 2020 LTIP awards. The LTIP awards were granted later than usual
in 2020 and will therefore not vest until 9 November 2023. The performance period for the EPS elemeant ended on 31 December 2022 and
was assessed accordingly. The performance period for the TSR element is the three years to 8 November 2023, and a final assessment of this
element will be made at that time. Therefore, the calculations above are based on the actual EPS performance, and forecast TRS performance
up until 31 December 2022. The value of these awards is based on our closing share price over the last three months of the financial year to 31
December 2022 {243.1 pence}. £14,543, £17,69% and £26,222 of this amount is attributable to share price appreciation for Helen Buck, Adam
Castleton and David Stewart respectively. As thase awards have yvet ta vest the final award value will differ from those stated above and will
be restated in the 2023 Directors’ Remuneration Repert to reflect the final vesting percentage and actual share price at vesting. The 2019
LTIP value has been restated based on cur closing share price at the time of vesting (378 pence). £170,583 and £167,271 of this amount is
attributable to share price appreciation for Helen and Adam respectively.
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10. A correction has been made to include an ‘other’ column which includes the value of matching shares, dividend shares and a free share award
received through the SIP for 262 1.

11. A correction has been made to the Sub total —variable pay section for 2021 te correcta cashing error made In the Annual Report and Accounts
2021,

Annual bonus payments 2022 — audited information
The maximum bonus achievable by the Executive Directars was 100% of salary, 70% of which was determined by achievement of financial measures

and 30% by achievement of non-financial measures.

Financial measures
The tahle below summarises the financial bonus targets which were set at the beginning of the year, and performance for 2022:

Finandial - | Group Underlying Operating Profit Estate Agency Underlying Operating Profit [ Beonus payable
performance . : D

inrelation

to financial
measures, as %
of basic salary

Measures

Director Weighting Threshold” Maximum Achievement  Weighting Threshold Maximum Achievement

Helen Buck  35% £47.0m £53.144m 35% £11.815m £15 290m £9.2m 70%
Adam 70% £47.0m £53.144m 0%
Castleton £36.9m

Specific to Helen cnly
David 70% £47.0m £53.144m 70%

Stewart

Note to financial measures table:
1. The level of payment for threshold performance 1s 18% of salary for each of the Executive Directors.

The 2022 Group and Estate Agency Underlying Operating Prafit banus range (threshold and maximum figures detailed in the table above) which were
set at the start of 2022, were significantly higher than previous years and reflective of the housing market at the time. As the financial results fell well
short of the targets set, the Executive Directors have not been awarded any bonus in respect of the financial performance elerent of bonus.

Non-financial measures/strategic goals

Detailed below is a summary of the non-financial measures which were in place for Executive Directors in respect of their 2022 annual bonus and the
outceme.

The Committee noted that for the individual non-financial measures there was a more positive performance with a number of chjectives being
delivered. After due consideration and noting the very decisive shortfall in the financial performance and notwithstanding the exceptional
performance in the circumstances, it was agreed by the Commitiee to exercise discretion and not award any bonus for this element either,

83

ares0di0) Suppnjoug) uodey Siopend

{s310day sayiuwo] pul 5100y IIUBLIBADD

o
o
1=
3
a
LN
L
4
o~
g
m
3
b
=
Ed
@

PO TOTE TN )



Directors’ Remuneration Repart including Remuneration Cemmittee Report

A. Estate Agency Operating Model

Quicome

25% Partiaf
Key strategic projects delivered or in place to help to further simplify the Group structure to allow us to Achievement
foeus on maximising our core opportunites.
8. Unlock Marsh & Parsens Potential 25% Achieved
Robust analysis on alternative options for Marsh & Parsons, including sale of the business.
C. Fstate Agency Cost Base to Support Performance 25% Partiat
Robust understanding of the costs in Estate Agency, identification of opportunities and associated risks, Achievement
robust contrals in place and Board confidence that costs are being managed appropriately.
. Cross Business Gpportunities 15% Parnal
Identification of how Estate Agency can support cross business opportunities and ensure Inclusion and Achievement
Diversity Forum delivers value across the Group.
E. Risk Management 10% Partial

Effective process 1o identify and manage Estate Agency risks.

Achievement

Adam Castieton ~ Executive non-finandial measures
ob)ecuveandiamuusedtodewminemlwm .
A. Shareholder Value, Stakeholder Perception and New Envestors

20% Not Achieved
Measured through share price performance relative to peers, new investor percentage and proxy agency
feedback.
B. Strategic Execution 30% Achieved
Execution of strategic objectives across LSUs three business segments and progress against long term CAGR
profit growth target.
C. Financial Execution/Deployment of Resources 20% Partial
Savings delivered in 2022 through strategic cost projects, feedback from Board on quality and transparency Achievernent
of cost reparting and robust processes to strategiczlly manage costs with redeployment of resources to
faster growing areas or new epportunities.
D. Risk Management 20% Partial
Implementation of an effective process to identify and manage Group risks. Achievement
E. ESG 10% Achieved

Measured through colleague opinion surveys, gender and ethnic diversity at all levels in the Group,
meeting corporate sustainability targets defined by the Board and colleague participation in community
initiagives.
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David Stewart — Exscutive non-financial measures
Objective and factors used ro datermine overall putcome - . <.
A. Shareholder Value, Stakeholder Perception and New investors

20%

Not Achieved
Measured through share price performance relative to peers, new investor percentage and proxy agency
feadback.
B. Execution of Estate Agency Strategy 25% Achieved
Key strategic projects delivered or in place to help to further simplify the Group structure to allow us to
focus on maximising our core opportunities, including the sale of Marsh & Parsons.
C. Execution of Financial Services Strategy 25% Achieved
Delivery of the Financial Services growth strategy and simplification of the Group to focus on the
development of its leading Financial Services Network business. Includes the sales of new build mortgage
and protection brokerage firms to Pivotal Growth.
D. Risk Management 10% Partial
No material risk incidents from external bodies and measurement of risk through feedback from Board, Achievement
Audit & Risk Commuttee Chair and results of Internal Audit reports. (no major meidents,
however further
progress required to
improve Divisicnal
e e - approach to risk}
E. Organisational Design 10% Partial
Quality of key strategic resource brought into business, level of Senior Management attrition and Achievement
development of robust succession plans.
F. ESG 10% Achiaved

Measured through colleague opinian survey, gender and ethnic diversity at all levels in the Group, meeting
corporate sustainability targets defined by the Board and colleague participation in community initfiatives.

As the Committee exercised discretion to reduce the outcome under the non-financial measures to nil, there is no banus payable to Executive

Directars for 2022.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

LTIP award vesting

The LTIP awards granted in 2020 will vest in November 2023. The performance period for the EPS element is the three financial years to 31 December
2022 and the performance period for the TSR efement is the three years to 8 November 2023, As the performance pericd for the TSR element of the
award has not yet been completed the final outcame for the 2020 award cannot be determined. The Committee has however provided a forecast
outcome for TSR based on performance to 31 December 2022 and the final cutcome under the EPS element. Based on these outcomes, the level

of forecast vesting for this award is currently 36.3% of maximum. Details of the performance measures, targets and performance from which this

vesting level is calculated are set out in the table below.

: s : Threshold Maximum

Percentageof a performance level performance level
Performance measure | subjecttoconditiof. ;" Performance period (25% vesting) {200% vesting) Actual performance srecast
Adjusted basic EPS 50% 3 years ending 25.6 pence 35.1 pence or more 28.4 pence 47 1%
growth 31 December 2022
TSR {performance 50% 3 years ending Median Upper quartile 50 1* percentle! 25.3%
against peers)? & Novernber 2023 {50 percentile) (75* percentle)

Total 36.3%

Notes:

1.Forecast performance based on performance to 31 December 2022 using a three month average.
2. TSR performance s measured against the companies constituting the FTSE Small Cap Index {excluding investment trusts and LSL) at the start of the
TSR performanre period.

Detarls of the LTIP awards granted in 2020 and the expected value of the forecast vesting are shown in the table below.

e AR T Number of shares | Forecast vesting | Forecast numbar
Executive Director Datepfgmant - - Date of vesting under award % of shates vesting

Helen Buck® 9 November 2020 8 Novemnber 2023 122,980 363 44 592 108,403
Adam Castleton 9 November 2020 8 November 2023 149,700 263 54,281 131,957
David Stewart 9 Navember 2020 8 Novermnber 2023 221,833 36.3 80,436 185,540

Notes to 2020 LTIP awards:

1. Helen Buck has been awarded good leaver status on her outstanding share awards, the number of shares awarded has therefore been pro-rated to
reflect her time worked in the three year vesting period based on a cessation date of 31 March 2023.

2. The expected value of vesting has been calculated using LSUs average share price over the three months to 31 December 2022 (243.1 pence).

Share awards granted during 2022
Details of LTiP (nil cost option) awards granted in 2027 are as follows:

Face value of face value of
Share price at Number of shares | award as % of award £ at grant .
Executive Director Date of grant 1 Date of vesting grant date under award salary date
Helen Buck 29 March 2022 29 March 2025 3269 pence 108,401 125 400,000
Adam Castleton 29 March 2022 29 March 2025 369 pence 106,283 125 392,188
David Stewart 29 March 2022 29 March 2025 369 pence 157,435 125 580,928

The LTIP awards detzailed above are subject to a two year post-vesting holding period that also applies to the period post-cessation of employment.,
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The performance measures associated with the 2022 LTIP grant are as follows:

R B SrE PRt ) e Threshold performance level
Performance measure’ 0, 3 Perfarmance period {25% vesting)

Adjusted basic EPS in 2024 50% 46.9 pence 52.8 pence
" - - 3 years ending ,_ _
TSR {performance against FSE Small Cap | 509% 31 December 2024 Median Upper quarti'e

excluding investment trusts) (507" percentle) (757 percentle)

External appointments
Maone of the Fxecutive Directors hold non executive directarships of any other companies, other than to represent the Group's investment interests in

other companies.

Payments to past Directors
No payments have bean made to past Directors.

Payments for loss of office

Intune 2022 Helen Buck announced her plans to retire. Helen Buck remained an employee until the end of her notice peried on 31 March 2023 and
was in receipt af basic salary, car allowance and benefits untif this date. Helen was granted good leaver status and therefore her 2021 and 2022 LTIP
awards will vest at the normal time subject to performance and with pro-rating to take account of her retirement date. She is not eligible for an
annual bonus in respect of 2023.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Outstanding share awards

Options granted ta Executive Diractars and to Simon Embley {when he was Group CED) to acquire shares

are ag follows:

Asatl Awards Awards Awards Asat 3l
Award Share price Exercise January granted lapsed  exercised Jecember

Director type Date of grant G grant price 2022 during year curing year during year 2032 Exercise period
Helen Buck LTiP 29 March 2018 255 0Qp Nil 151,470 - 12,785 135,685 1] 29 March 2022 to
Executive Director — 29 March 2029
Estate Agency SAYE 1 june 2319 227.00p 265.00p 2,037 - - 2,037 Q 1 lune 2022 to
30 Nevember 2022
LTIP 9 November 2020 210 50p NIt 152,665 - - - 152,665 9 Novemnber 2023 to
9 November 2030
LTIF 5 May 2021 408.50p Nl 96,006 - - - 96,006 5May 2024 10
5 May 2031
SAYE 28 May 2021 468.00p 327.00p 2,388 - - = 2,388 1luly 2024 to
31 December 2024
LTIp 29 March 2622 365.00p Nl 0 108,401 - - 108,401 29 March 2025 to
28 March 2032
Adam Castleton LTie 29 March 2018 215.50p Nil 15,349 - - 15,349 0 29 March 2021 to
Group Chief Financial 29 March 2028
Officer LTie 29 March 2018 255 00p Nil 148,529 - 12,534 135,893 Q 29 March 2022 to
29 March 2029
LTip 4 November 2020 210.50p Nif 149,700 - — — 149,700 9 November 2023 to
9 Novernber 2030
LTiP 5 May 2021 408.508 Nil 894,094 - - - 94,084 5 May 2024 to
5 May 2031
SAYE 28 May 2021  468.00p  327.Q0p 3,302 - - - 3,302 1July 2024 to
31 December 2024
LTip 29 March 2022 36S.00p Nif 0 106,283 - - 106,283 29 March 2025 to
28 March 2032
Simon Embley LTIP 2 Apnl 2012 275.00p Nil 58,333 - - 58,333 u] 2 April 2015 to
Non Executive Director 2 Aprii 2022
David Stewart LTiP 4 Novermnber 2020 210.5p Nil 221,833 - - - 221,833 9 November 2023 ta
Group Chief Executive 9 November 2030
Officer e 5 May 2021 408.50p Nil 139,458 - - - 139,458 5 May 2024 to
5 May 2031
SAYE 28 May 2021 468.00p  327.00p 3,302 - - - 3,302 1Jjuly 2024 to
31 December 2024
LTIP 29 March 2022 369.00p Nil 0 157,435 - - 157,435 29 March 2025 to

28 March 2032

Notes t¢ outstanding share awards:

1 All of the above are scheme interests. Details of LTIP awards granted in 2022 are presented in a separate paragraph, while details of previous outstanding
awards are presented in the previous year's Directors’ Rermuneration Report and are included in note 14 to the Financial Statements.

2. The aggregate gains made by Helen Buck, Adam Casteton and Simon Embley on the exerclse of awards during the year was £475,871, £506,996 and £243,249
raspectively. The LTIP awards exercised by Helen Buck and Adam Castleton are subject to a twe year hoiding period and have therefore been held and are

included in their shareholding as detailed in the Directors’ interests in Shares table below

3. The share mid-market price ranged from 194.5 pence to 429.5 pence and averaged 330.0 pence during 2022, The share price on 30 December 2022 was 252.5
pence, compared to 429.5 pence on 4 January 2022.
4. 5imon Embley's LTIP award has been pro-rated to reflect his change of role from Group CEO to Non Executive Chair on 1 lanuary 2015,
5. The LTiP awards granted to the Executive Directcrs in 2018, 2015, 2020, 2021 and 2022 are subject to the two year post-vesting holding period. This will
continue to apgly post-cessatien of employment.
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Directors’ interests in shares
The interests of the Directors who served on the Raard during the year, including their connected persons, arc set cut in the wable below:

Shareholdings Share awards Total Shareholding Exccutive
{number of shares} [number of shares} {number of guideline! Director
shares for sharehoiding’
shareholding)
Director 31 December 31 December  Unvested (and Vested but 31 December (% of basic {%% of basic
2022 2021 subject to unexarcised 2022 salary) salary)
performance number of
conditigns) shares
Gaby Appleton
Non Executive Cirector - - - - - - N/A
Helen Buck
Executive Direcior — Estate Agency 104,213 21,121 359,460 - 104,213 150% 82.2%
Adam Castleton
Group Chief Financial Officer 94,086 6,468 353,379 - 64,086 150% 75.7%
Simon Embley
Non Executive Director 6,835,624 6,777,291 - - 5,835,624 - N/A
Darrell Evans
Non Executive Director — - - - - — N/A
James Mack
Non Executive Director - - - - - - N/A
Sonya Ghobrial
Non Executive Director o] N/A - - - - -
Bill Shannan
Chair of the Board 25,329 25,325 - - 25,323 - N/A
David Stewart
Group Chief Executive Officer 25,714 280 522,028 - 25,714 200% 14.0%

Notes to Directors’ interest in shares:

1. We recognise that due to the minimal vesting of LTIP awards in recent years, there have been iimited opportunities for Executive Directors to accumulate shares.
The Executive Directors’ shareholdings are expected to increase during 2023 following the vesting of the 2020 LTIP. We are keen to Increase share cwnership
amongst the Executive Directors and the Policy supparts this through the requirement to purchase shares with @ proporticn of bonus and through the retention
of all vested LTIP awards. In addition, Bavid Stewart has also made a valuntary purchase of shares during 2022 to increase his shareholding and this is included in
the table abeve.

. The shareholdings are calculzted based on shares owned and vested but unexercised awards, net of tax, as at 31 December 2022. Shareholding guideline
calculations are based an the share price at 3¢ December 2022 of 252.5 pence and the Executive Cirector’s basic salary at 31 December 2022 The unvested
share awards have nat been pro-rated for Helen Buck to reflect her shareholding posinon as at 31 December 2022,

™~

All of the interests detailed above are beneficial. Apart frem the interests disclosed above, no Directors held interests at any time in the year in the
share capital of any cther Group company.

There have been no changes in the interests of any Director between 31 December 2022 and the date of this Report, other than the purchases of
shares by Adam {274 shares) and David {272 shares) as participants of LSL's SIP/BAYE scheme {in January, February, March and April 2023}, These
shares were purchased by the Trust at the prevailing market rate. Helen alsc purchesed 204 shares as a participant of LSU's SIP/BAYE scheme prior to
retiring from the Beard on 31 March 2023.

No Director has, or has had, any direct or indirect interest in any transaction, contract or arrangement {excluding service agreements), which is ar
was unusual in its nature or conditions, or significant to the Group’s business, during the current or immediately preceding financial year.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Performance graph and table

The foilowing graph shows the va'ue, up to 31 December 2022, of £100 invested in LSL compared with the value of £100 invested in both the FTSE
Small Cap {excluding investment trusts) Index and the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) index on 31 Becember 2012, The FTSF 250 Index has
been chosen for consistency with prior years and the FTSE Small Cap Index because LSLis a constituent of the FTSE Small Cap Index.

Total Shareholder Return

300

250

200

150

Value (£}

50
0
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021 2022
e | SL Property Services e W= FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts)

---a+« FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding investment trusts)
Source. Thorsan Revters
Group CEQ’s total remuneration
The total remuneration figures for the role of Group CEQ during each of the last ten financial years are shown in the table below. The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year’s performance and share awards based on three year performance periods

ending in or just after the relevant year. The annual bonus pey-cut and share vesting level as a percentage of the maximum opportunity are also
shown for each of these years.

Simon
Embley lan Crabb "
{to9 David Stewart {from 1 May 2020}
September {from 9 September 2013 to 1 May 2020}
2013)
203 2013 2Mm4 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2021 2022
Total £500,8621 £119,522! £571,500 £852,869 £499,000 £835,120 £774,629 £760,679 £161,2147 £310,932 £859,418 £678,794
ramuneration
Annual bonus 91.70% N/A 54% 93.30% 16% 97% 79.80% 61.70% 0% 0% 84 70% 0%
LT{P vesting 0% N/A N/A 66.81% 0% Q% 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A 36.3%

Notes to Grodp CEO's total remuneration:

1. The total remuneration disciosed for 2013 is Simon Embley’s total remuneration as CEO up to 9 September 2013, when he changed role to Deputy Chair, and lan
Crabb’s total remuneration from 9 September 2013, when he was appointed CEQ, to 3t Becember 2013,

2. The total remurneration disclosed for 2020 s lan Crabb’s total remuneration as Group CEC up to 30 April 2020, when he ceased ta be CED, and for David Stewart
from 1 May 2020, when he was appointed Group CEO.
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Percentage change in Directors’ remuneration
Inline with the requrements of the Revised Shareholders Rights Diractive (2018 Regu'ations), the table below shows the anrual percertage change nsalary/fees,
nenehits and bonus for each of the Directors in 2022, compared ta the average for aur wider werkforee over the last four financial years.

% change in | % change % change % changein {% change % change % change in | % change % change

salary/fees  |in taxable in bonus salaryffees  iin taxable in bonus salary/fees in taxable in honus
benefits {intludes benefits {inciudes benefits {includes
{excluding cammission) (excluding comamission) {excluding comenission}
pension} pension) pension)
Chair
Bill Shannont 21.5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Executive Directors?
Helen Buck 2.0 0.7 -100.0 15 -0.6 N/A 0.0 -1.2 -100.0
Adam Castleton 2.0 0.8 -100.0 1.5 -0.8 N/A c.0 -1.7 -100.0
David Stewart 2.0 ; 0.8 -100.0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Nan Executive Directar !
Gaby Appleton? 13.6 N/A N/A 145 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Simon Embley* -36.5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A -13.2 N/A N/A
Darrel] Evans® 11.3 N/A N/A 16.7 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sonya Ghobnial® N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
James Mack” N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
All employees
Median of LSL workforce® 5.0 186.2 19 1.9 -71.8 -7.0 2.1 67.8 5.2

Netes to percentage change 'n Directors’ remuneration for the pernod 2022 vs 2021:

81 Shannon was appointed as Non Executtve Chair of the Board during 2021 ang his fee was increased accordingly.

The Executive Directors were not awarded any bonus 11 2022, as detailed in the Annual Banus section of this Report (page 83).

Gaby Appleton became Senior Independent Director during 2021 and her fee was increased accordingly.

Simen Embley staod daown as Chair of the Board 1n 2021 and becams a Non Executive Director, his fee was decreased accordingly,

Darrell Evans became Chair of the Remuneration Committee during 2021 and his fee was increased accordingly.

Sanya Ghobrial was appointed to the Board during 2022 and therefore a change from the prior year has not been provided.

James Mack was appointed to the Boerd during 2021 and becarme Chalr of the Audit & Risk Committee in September 2022 and therefore a change from the prior

year has not been provided.

. The median full ime equivalent pay of ail employees in the LSL Group and still in employment as at 31 Gecember has been provided as an appropriate
comparatar. The total number of employees in this Group as at 31 December 2022 was 4,446, This excludes employees wha joined the business during
December but recewved their first pay in Sanuary 2023, Increzses in average hasic salaries amongst the wider waorkforce was higher than the Executive Directors,
with those employeses in lower-paid reles receiving annual pay review Increases, The relatively high percentage change figure for employee berehis reflects an
increase ih the median from a relatively low absolute number in 2021 and an increase in employees selecting a flexible benefit as part of the reward package.
The median FTE totai pay of the workfarce increased by 5.0% (from £32,362 to £33,295) on the prior year, as detalled in the figures in the CEC pay ratio figures
below and corresponding figures in the 2021 Anaual Report.

For notes of changes in previous years, please refer to previous Annual Report and Accounts.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Group CEO to employee pay ratio
The table below discloses the ratio between the Group CEQ's remuneration and our wider workforce since 2018.

Financial Year 25* percentile : Median pay 75" percentile
pay ratio i ratio pay ratio

2018 Option A 405:1 279:1 16.2:1
2019 Cption A 381:1 261:1 145:1
2020 Option A 234:1 158:1 9.1:1

2021 Cption A 40.3:1 2651 1541
2022 Option A 293:1 20.0:1 116:1

The 2022 employee data used to calculate the ratios is set out in the table below:

Total pay and benefits of employees £23,140 £33,995 £58,486
Basic salary of employees £19,539 £24,000 £38,000

Notes to percantage change in Group CEQ to employee pay ratio:

We have chosen option A (which compares our full time equivalent total remuneration for all UK employees against the Group CEG) as the most
appropriate methodology to report the ratios, in itne with the recemmendation from the UK Government’s Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy, and a number of shareholder representative and proxy voting bodies.

The ratio above includes all UK-based employees who were employed in any part of the Group as at 31 December 2022. The employee
remuneration data includes the full time equivatent data in respect of basic pay, bonus, commission, taxable benefits, share-based remuneration
and pension benefits, so as to provide a comparable figure to the Group CEO single figure total remuneration.

In calculating the bonus and commission elements for employees, we have used the bonus and commission paid to employees dunng 2022, In some
instances, employees receive bonus or commission payments in arrears. However, due to a number of these elements {for example year end annual
bonuses) not being finzlised at the time of writing, this Report was written with these elements not being reapportioned to the relevant financial
year. In line with the legislation, we disclose this variation in methedology. However, we constder that this appreach provides a broadly similar
outcome to the resuft if 2021 year end bonuses had been included,

As at 31 December 2022, we emploved over 4,400 people in a wide variety of rofes. The reward policies and practices for employees follow those
set for the Executive Directors, as detatled on page 86 of this Report. The Committee also has responsibility for setting the remuneration of Senior
Managers and reviews and monitors the Group’s wider remuneraticn polictes and practices.

The Committee notes the decrease in the ratio from 2021 and attributes this to awarding higher base pay increases and one-off cost of living
awards to colleagues in lower-paid roles and ne bonus being payable to the Group CEC in respect of 2022 following the exercise of the Committee’s
discretion.
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The fallowing table shows cur actual spend on pay for all employees, relative to dividends paid and proht earned:

Staff costs! 206.6 202.2 2%

Dividends (exciuding any spectal dividend) 117 12.0 -1%

Profit after tax? -63.9 619 -179%

Adjusted profit after tax? 292 39.1 -25%
Notes,

1. See note 14 to the Financ’al Statements for calculation of staff costs.
2. The percentage change in profit after tax and adjusted prefit after tax has been shown as this s considered an impertant finzncial kP used to moniter cur

performance. See note 11 to the Financial Statements for the calculation.
Statement of shareholder voting
The Directors’ Annual Statement and Repoert on Remuneration for 2021 was presented to shareholders at the 2022 AGM on 27 May 2022. The
Policy was presented to shareholders at the 2020 AGM an 30 june 2030 The voting outcomes were as fallaws:

Annual Statement and Annual Directors” Remuneration Policy
Report on Remuneration

Votes cast in favour 99.63% 97.14%
Votes cast against 0.37% 2.86%
Total votes withheld 533 2,000

Remuneration Committee

Role and membership

Details of the Committee’s composition and responsibilities are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page 54 of this Report. During 2022,
the Committee was chaired by Darreli and its other members were Bill Shannon, Gaby Appleton, James Mack and Sonya Ghobrial, David Barral
joined the Committee on 3 April 2023 and Bill will retire from the Committee at the close of the 2023 AGM.

The Committee’s terms of reference are available from the Cempany Secretary or from our website (Islps.co.uk).

The work of the Remuneration Commitiee
The Remuneration Committee met five times in 2022. One meeting was a combined Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee

meeting which met to consider Helen Buck’s retirement from the Board.
Set out below is & summary of the topics discussed by the Committee during the year:
1. 2022 AGM: the Committee discussed feedback arising from the Annual Report and Accounts 2021 and shareholder voting at the 2022 AGM.

3. Executive Director Remuneration: the Committee discussed shareholder, proxy advisers and colleague feedback on Executive Directer
remuneration including the triennial Pelicy review. The Policy review included a meeting scheduled specifically te consider the Policy,

3. Approvals i respect of: 2021 bonus payments; 2022 remuneration matters [pay review, bonus, LTIP awards and NFMs (setting and during year

reviews)); and 2023 remuneration matters {pay review; bonus and Executive Director NFMs).
4. Workforce remuneration including pay improvements for cur lowest paid colleagues and the £500 cost of living award.
E. Annual terms of reference review and Committee evaluaticn.
5. LTIP TSR peer group review.
7. Benchmarking of Executive and Senior Management remuneration.
8. Remuneration treatment for members of the Senior Management Team who were retiring.
Set out below are those areas of the Committee’s work that it is required to report under the Code and reporting regulations and which are not

covered elsewhere in this Report.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report including Remuneration Committee Report

Engagement with stakeholders

During 2022, the Committee censulted with the EFmployee Engagement Forum and with shareholders in relation to the Policy review, which is
detailed in the Stakeholder Engagement section at page 21.

The Committee also considered shareholder feedback received in relation to our Annual Report and Accounts and this is taken into account as part
of the Policy review and in the implementation of the Policy.

As set out in the Stakeholder Engagement arrangements and the Corporate Governance Report sections of this Report, we have a number of
different channels for engaging with our workforce, This includes engagement by the Non Executive Director designated for workforce engagement,
Darrell Evans, who also1s Chair of the Committee and this provides a route for the Committee to engage with the wider workforce on remuneration

matters.

Remuneration Committee advisers

The Committee received independent professional advice during the year frem Korn Ferry on matters relating to Executive Director and Senior
Marnagement remuneration. No other services are provided to the Group by Korn Ferry,

Korn Ferry was selected and appointed by the Committee and provided advice to us in relation to the assessment of TSR perfoermance for the

LTIP, benchmarking of the senior roles, treatment af share awards for leavers and the disclosures required in this report. Additionally, Korn Ferry
attended the September 2022 Commitiee meeting to provide a market update and advice in relation to the review of the Policy. Its fees for 2022,
which are based on an hourly rate, were £29,391 {axcluding VAT) (2021: £27,085). Korn Ferry is a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code
of Conduct and has confirmed to us that it adheres in all respects to the terms of this code, We consider its advice to be independent and objective,

The Directors’ Remuneration Report is approved by and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Darrell Evans
Chair of the Remuneration Committes

12 April 2023
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Financial Statements

In this section
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Independent Auditor’s Report

for the year ended 31 December 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LSL PROPERTY SERVICES PLC
Opinion
In our gpinion:

« LSL Property Services pic’s group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the “financial staternents”) give a true and fair
view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,;

= the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards as
applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of LSL Property Services plc (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group”) for the year ended 31
Decemnber 2022 which comprise:

Group Parent company

Group Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2022 Parent Company Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2022

Group Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2022 Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended

31 December 2022

Group Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December Related notes 1 to 19 to the financial statements including a summary
2022 of significant accounting policies

Group Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
31 December 2022

Related notes 1 to 36 to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting standards and
as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I5As {UK)} and applicable law. Our respensibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fer cur opinicn.

Independence

We are independent of the group and parent in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC's Fthical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fuffilled our other ethicat responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Fthical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain independent
of the group and the parent company in conducting the audit.

Conclusions relating to gaing concern

In auditing the financiz} statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent company’s ahility to centinue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included the following procedures:
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How we evaluated management’s assessment
» We cvaluated management’s assessment process to determine whether 1t was appropriate in the context of our own risk assessment on going

concern.
« We verified the mathematical accuracy of management’s going concern model ang covenant calculations for the period to 30 April 2024,

* \We assessed the appropriateness of the duration of the going concern assessment period to 30 Aprit 2024 and considered the existence of any
significant events or conditions beyond this period based on our procedures on the greup’s cash flow farecasts and from knowledge arising fram
other areas of the audit;

« We challenged the appropriateness of the key assumptions in management’s forecasts including revenue growth, by comparing these to industry
benchmarks and through consideration of historical forecasting accuracy;

« We cbtained management’s downside forecasts which included a severe reduction in performance levels similar to the 2008 financial crisis as welt
as material cash outflows;

+ We assessed the plausibility of management’s downside scenarios by corroborating the key assumptions to third party data, for example in relation
to the reduction in house prices during the 2008 financial crisis, and searching for contradictory evidence in relation to the apprepriateness of
management’s key assumptions. Further we considered whether there could be any material impact of climate change in the going concern period;

* We performed the assessment with consideration to the varicus disposals which have taken place since the year end, and future projects which
may occur, to verify that the assessment reflected the expected structure of the group going forward;

* We performed reverse stress testing in order to identify and understand what facters would lead to the group utilising all available Hquidity or
breaching the financial covenants attached to the group’s facility during the going concern period;

« We considered the quantum and timing of mitigating factors available to management, the extent to which these are included in management’s
forecasts and the extent to which these are within management’s controf;

« We examined the new agreement for the Revolving Credit Facility (‘RCF’) following the refinancing which took place in February 2023 and reviewed
the nature of the facility, repayment terms, covenants and attached conditions. We assessed its continued availability to the group through the
gaing cancern period and checked the completeness of management’s covenant assessment;

« We considered whether there were any indicators of other sources of finance not considered by management in the going concern assessment;

and

« We reviewed the disclosures made relating to going concern included in the Annual Repeort & Accounts in order to assess the appropriateness of
the disclosures and conformity with reporting standards.

QOur key abservations

* The directors’ assessment forecasts that the group will maintain sufficient liquidity throughout the going concern assessment period in the base
case scenario and will not breach banking covenants. Under management’s severe but plausible scenario, which includes e significant reduction
in performance throughout the going concern period, liquidity remains and there is no breach of covenants. We have not identified any climate-
refated risks that would materially impact the group’s forecasts to 30 April 2024;

» Controllable mitigating actions available to management over the going concern assessment period include reductions to non-declared dividend
payiments;
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or

collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the period from the date the
financial statements are authaerised for issue through to 30 April 2024.

In relation to the group and parent company’s reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to
add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directers with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group or parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report comine.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope * We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 2 components and audit procedures on specific
balances far 3 further 6 components.

* The companents where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for $6% of profit before tax
excluding goodwill impairment (‘adjusted profit before tax’), 95% of revenue and 98% of total assets.

Key audit matiers * Risk of inappropriate recognition of revenue around the year end {including valuation of the fapse provision)

» Risk of inappropriate valuahon of goodwill in relation ta You Move / Reeds Rains and LSt

Materiality * Overall group materiality of £1.4m which represents 5% of adjusted profit before tax.

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits

Due te unforeseen circumstances it became necessary for David Wilson 1o take over as Senior Statutory Auditor during the execution phase of the
audit, having been the engagement guality control reviewer (EQCR} until that point. The EQCR role was replaced with a suitably experienced partner.
David Wilson and the new EQCR performed appropriate review of the direction and supervision of the audit to date to satisfy themselves, inter alia,
that appropriate planning and component involvement had been performed.

Tailoring the scope

Qur assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and cur allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for each company
{or ‘component’) within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated fingncial statements. We take into
gccount size, risk profile, the organisation of the group and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the business environment, the potential
impact of climate change and other factors such as recent Internal audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed at each company.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of significant
accounts in the financial statements, of the 30 reporting components of the Group, we sefected 15 components covering entities within the UK and
Guernsey, which represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 15 components selected, we performed an sudit of the complete financial information of 9 components {“full scope components”) which
were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining 6 components {“specific scope components”], we performed audit
precedures on specific accounts within that compenent that we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in
the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

Specified procedures were perfarmed at 2 treding components in the estate agency segment. These procedures related to trade receivables. This
covered 1% of the group’s total assets,

Our coverage by full, specific, specified and group procedures is illustrated below and calculated on an absolute basis. The summary is by adjusted
profit before tax, revenue and total assets. Overall, our full and specific procedures accounted for 96% {2021: 98%) of the Group’s adjusted profit
before tax, 95% (2021: 95%) of the Group’s revenue and 98% (2021: 56%) of the Group’s total assets.

The audit scope of the specific scope components may not have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have
contributed to the coverage of significant accounts tested for the Groug.

Of the remaining 15 components that together represent 4% of the Group’s adjusted profit before tax, none are individuaily greater than 1% of the
Group’s adjusted profit before tax on an absolute basis. For these components, we performed other procedures, including analytical review, review
of internal audit reports, review of minutes of board meetings, testing of consolidation journals and review of entity fevel controls to respond to any
potential risks of material misstatement to the Group financial statements.
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The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our audit teams,

Adjusted profit before tax Revenue

& 85% Fuliscope
components

B 85% rull scope
components

B 11% Specific
scope components

m 10% Specific
scope components

13 4% Other o 5% Other
procedures procedures
Total assets

B 95% Full scope
components

W 3% Specific
scope compoenents

% 2% Other
procedures

Changes from the prior year
The number of specific scope components increased compared to the prior year as a result of the increasing relative contribution tc the group from

financial services components.

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the components
by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY globa! network firms operating under our instruction. Of the
9 full scope components, audit procedures were performed on 6 of these directly by the primary audit team and 3 by the component audit team. For
the 6 specific scope compenents, where the work was perforrmed by component auditors, we determined the appropriate level of involvement to
enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

The component team is also based in the UK. The primary team interacted regularly with the component teams, where appropriate, during various
stages of the audit, reviewed relevant working papers and were responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process. At critical periods of the
audit, we increased the use of online collaboration tools to facilitate team meetings, information sharing and the evaluation, review and oversight

of the component team. We utitised fully the interactive capability of EY Canvas, our global audit workflow tool, to review remotely the relevant
underlying work performed and retained component working papers in key risk areas on the group audit file, This, together with the additional
procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements.

Climate change

Stakeholders are increasingly interested in how climate change will impact LSL Property Services plc. Given the nature of the business in a nen-
carbon intensive industry, management does not consider there to be a material impact from climate change. The Group has determined that

the most significant future impacts from climate change on its operations will be from physical risks, such as severe weather events impacting
office-based locations, as well as transition risks such as policy and regulation changes. However, with a predominantly leased property footprint,
group management concludes there is little risk of significant business disruption and no significant financial impact from climate change. These

are explained on pages 39 1o 42 in the required Task Force for Climate related Financial Disclosures and on page 88 in the principal risks and
uncertainties. They have also explained their climate commitments on pages 38 to 42. All of these disclosures form part of the “Other information,”
rather than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on these unaydited disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they
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Independent Auditor's Report weues.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

are materially inconsistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appear to be materially
rmisslated, in line with our responsibilities on “Other information”.

In planning and performing our audit we assessed the potential impacts of ciimate change on the Group’s business and any conseguential material
impact on its financial statements.

The group has explained in note 2 how they have reflected the impact of climate change in their financial statements. The group did not identify

any climate risk that would materially impact the carrying values of the group’s assets or have any other impact on the financial statements. The
group has explained how the impact of climate change zligns with their commitment to the aspirations of the Paris Agreement to achieve net zero
emissions by 2050. These disclosures also explain where governmental and societal responses to climate change risks are still developing, and where
the degree of certainty of these changes means that they cannot be taken into account when determining asset and liability valuations under the
requirements of UK adopted international accounting standards.

Our audit effort in considering the impact of climate change on the fingncial statements was focused on evaluating management’s assessment of the
impact of climate risk, physical and transition, and their climate commitments. As part of this evaluation, we performed our own risk assessment to
determine the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements from climate change which needed to be considered in our audit.

We also challenged the Directors’ considerations of climate change risks in their assessment of going concern and viability and associated disclosures.
Where considerations of climate change were relevant to our assessment of going concern, these are described above.

Based on our work we have not identified the impact of climate change on the financial statements to be a key audit matter or to impact a key audit
matter.
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Hey audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due te fraud) that we identified. These
matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters were adcdressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion
theraon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the
Audit & Risk Committee

Risk of inappropriate recognition of revenue
around the year end {including valuation of
the fapse provision)

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee Report
fpage 67); Accounting policies (page 118);
and Note 3 of the Group Financial Statements
(page 126)

The group has reported revenues of £321.7m
(2021: £326.8m).

The group has recognised a lapse provision of
£5.2r (2021: £4.9m).

The risk was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement due
to the potential for bias or error in the timing
of transactions. There s glso judgement in
the value of commission income that will be
clawed back.

We identified the following specific risk

of fraud and error in respect of improper
revenue recognition given the nature of the
group's services:

» inappropriate cut-off of revenue at period
end; and

* Inappropriate measurement of the
reduction ta revenue recarded for expected
clawback of commissions on lapsed
insurznce policies.

There is na change in risk profile in the
current year.

At each full and specific scope audit component
with material revenue streams:

» We performed walkthroughs of each significant
stream of reverue and confirmed the existence
of key controls arcund the recogrution of
revenue and measurement of the lapse
provision;

We performed cut-off testing “or the period
befare and after the year end with reference

to underlying contracts and evidence of
management’s assessment of the point of
revenue recognition. This included assessment
of the appropniateness of the cut-off model
applied by management in the Financial Services
division; and

We performed transactional testing and data
analysis procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue around the year end. Where items did
not follow the expected transaction flow, we
investigated outliers and corrcborated to third
party evidence where appropriate,

For the lapse provision:

= We tested the underlying calcuiations for
arithmetical accuracy and consistency across
the group; and

« We verified the appropriateness of the lapse
rate applied to the lapse provision model
and where relevant, tested a sample of
historical lapses to third party evidence.

We performed full and specific scope audit
procedures over this risk area in the 13 in-scope
locations which have revenue. This covered

95% of the group’s revenue. We also performed
other procedures in the locations which covered
the remaining 5% of the group’s revenue. This
consisted of analytical procedures over material
movements in the Income Statement and Balance
Sheet.

We have not identified any material
misstatements in the revenue recognised In
the year.

Whilst the methodology and assumptions
applied in calculating the lapse provision are
not fully consistant across the group, this
has not led to any matenal differences. The
provision was reflective of the key terms of
the contracts with customars.,
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Independent Auditor’s Report wumes.

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the
Audit & Risk Committee

Risk of inappropriate valuation of goodwill
in relation to Your Move / Reeds Rains and
LSLi

Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee Repart
{page 67); Accounting policies (page 118}, and
Note 16 of the Group Financial Staternents
(poge 139)

The carrying value of goodwiil on the Group
Balance Sheetis £56 5m (2021: £160.9m). Of
this amount £16.8m relates to the Your Move
/ Reeds Rains cash-generating unit {'CGU’)
and £22.5m relates to the LSLi CGU.

The valuation of goodwill for these two
cash generating units ('CGUs’) was one

of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement due to the high level
of estimation uncertainty inherent in the
Impairment review, particularly in assessing
the future performance of these CGUs and
the appropriate discount rate to apply n
calculating the ‘value in use” of the CGUs.

As in prior year the risk has been allocated to
the entities which have a lower percentage of
headroom in 2022, being Your Move / Reeds
Rains and LSLi.

The risk was also allocated to Marsh &
Parsons in prior year. However, following the
classification of this CGU as held for sale, the
estimation uncertainty in the impairment
review was reduced and therefore this CGU is
no longer impacted by the significant risk.

The significant risk was newly assigned to
the LSLi CGU in current year due to the low
percentage headroom in relation to that CGU.

We challenged management’s assumptions
used in its assessment of the recoverability of
the carrying value of goodwill. We did this by
focusing an the appropriateness of the CGU
identification and the methodology applied to
estimate the value in use, discount rates and
forecast cash flows. Specifically:

+ We evaluated whether the CGUs identified are
the lowest level at which management monitors
goadwill consistent with the requirements ot
IAS 36 Impairment of assets;

We assessed the methodclogy applied in
the value in use calculations as compared to
the requirements of |AS 36 and tested the
mathematical accuracy of management's
rmodel;

We assessed the appropriateness of
management’s forecasts in light of the historical
accuracy of management’s forecasts and
current econemic conditions;

We challenged management on the group
overlay adjustments made to the Board-
appraved forecasts which had been used in the
model;

We obtained an understanding of, and assessed
the basis for, key underlying assumptions in the
three-year forecasts which form the basis of the
value in use calculations;

We engaged our valuation speciaists to assass
the appropriateness of the discount rate applied
within the model, the compliance of the model
with IAS 36 and the appropriateness of the long-
term growth rate;

We assessed the sensitivity of key assumptions
to reasenably passible changes to stress test the
model and determined the appropriateness of
related disclosures;

We considered whether there is any material
risk from climate change to the recoverability of
each CGU; and

We assessed the trigger for the impairment in
the current year and whether the timing of the
impairment was appropriate.

Whilst this is an area of significant estimation
uncertainty, we have concluded that the
carrying velue of goodwiil is reasonably
stated.

We concluded a disclosure is required for
both CGUs as reasonably possible changes

In assumptions could lead to a materially
different conclusion with regards to the
recoverability of goodwill. Management has
made this disclosure in the Annuzl Report and
Accounts.




Qur application of materiality
We apply the cancept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in
forming our audit opinion,

Materiality
The magnitude of an amission or misstatement that, individually or in the oggregate, could reasanably be expected to influence the economic
decisicns of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a bosis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be £1.4 million {2021: £2.1 million), which is 5% (2021: 5%} of adjusted profit befare tax. We believe
that adjusted profit before tax provides us with the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the group because it excludes the
distorting effect of large unusual adjustments.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £1.0 mitlion (2021: £1.5 million), which is 1% (2021: 1%) of eguity.

-

+ Total Profit before tax of £59.1m
Starting basis

+ Goodwll Impairment of £87.2m

Adjustments

= Totals £28.1m {adjusted profit before tax}
« Materality of £1.4m {5% of adjusted profit before tax)

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality with the only change in the final materiality from our originat assessment at
planning being to reflect the actual reported performance of the group in the year. This resulted in a materiality of £1.4m cornpared with our initial
assassment at the planning stage of £1.7m.

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level, It is set at an amount to reduce to on appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overall control envirenment, our judgement was that performance
materiality was 50% (2021: 50%) of our planning materiality, namely £0.7m (2021: £1.1m). We have set performance materiality at this percentage
reflecting our prior year audit experience of the group.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is undertaken based
on a percentage of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each component is based on the relative scale and risk

of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstaternent at that companent. In the current year, the range of
performance materiality allocated to components was €0.1m to £0.5m (2021: £0.1m to £0.7m).

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial,

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.1m (2021: £0.1m), which
is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of cther relevant
qualitative considerations in forming our opinion,

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 177 to 183, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinien on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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mdepeﬂdemj AUdItOl"S RepOl’t cantinued.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Our responsibility is to read the ather information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such
material inconsistencias or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in
the financial statements themselves. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misstatement of the other
information, we are required {o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financizal year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and

« the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its envirenment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 7f, in our
opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; ar

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit

Corporate Governance Statement

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating te the group and company's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review by the Listing
Ruies.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Cerporate Governance Statement
is materially consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

« Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material uncertainties
identified set out on page 49;

 Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the company’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out
on page 28;

» Director’s statement on whether it has a reasonable expectation that the greup will be able to continue in operation and meets its liabilities set cut
on page 49;

« Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 53;
« Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 53;

« The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set cut on page 69;
and;

» The section describing the work of the Audit & Risk committee set out on page 67.
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directers’ responsibilities statement set out on page 53, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internat control as the directors determine is necessary 1o
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the directors either intend
to liguidate the group or the parent company or t0 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s resporisibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whather
due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes cur opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-complizance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk of
not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or
thraugh collusion. The extent ta which cur procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

However, the primary respensibifity for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company and
management.

» We gbtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that the maost significant
are those that relate to the reporting framework (UK adopted international accounting standards, Companies Act 2006, and the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018) and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the UK.
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* We considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which
may be fundamental to the Group's ability to operate. Thesa include compliance with FCA regulations, the Estate Agents Act 1979, and the Data
Protection Act.

= We understood how LSL Property Services plc is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of management, internal audit, those
responsibie for legal and compliance procedures and the Company Secretary. We corroborated cur enqguiries through our review of board minutes
and papers provided to the Audit & Risk Committee and attendance st all meetings of the Audit & Risk Committee.

SIS [R]IVLV]]

« We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by meeting with
management from various compenents of the group to understand where it considered there was a susceptibility to fraud. We also considered
performance targets and their propensity to influence efforts made by management to manage earnings. We considered the programmes and
controls that the group has established to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how senior management
monitors those programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified
fraud risk or other risk of material misstatament. These procedures included those on revenue recognition detailed above and the testing of
manual journals and were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial staterments were free from material fraud and error.

» Based on this understanding we designed our audit precedures to identify non-comptiance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures
invcived journal entry testing, with a focus on manual consolidation journzls and journais indicating large or unusual transactions based on our
understanding of the group; enguiries of legal counsel, mansgement and internal audit; and testing as described above. In addition, we completed
procedures to conclude on the compliance of the disclosures in the Annual Repert and Accounts with the requirements of the relevant accounting
standards, UK legistation and the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018.
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» At 3 component level, our full and specific scope component audit teamy's procedures included inquiries of component management, Journal entry
testing and focused testing, including in respect of the key audit matter of revenue recognition.

= Where we identified potential non-compliance with laws and regulations at a group level through review of Audit & Risk Committee papers, we
communicated this to relevant components who developed an appropriate audit response.

A further description of our responsibliities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://
www. frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report e,
for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2022

Other matters we are required to address
« Following the recommendation from the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the company on 27 May 2022 to audit the financial
staternents for the year ending 31 December 2022 and subseguent financial periods.

The period of totat uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments is 22 years, covering the years ending 31
December 2001 to 31 December 2022, LSt Property Services plc listed on the London Stock Exchange in 2006.

» The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Cormnmittee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

David Wilson (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

13 April 2023

112



Group Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note £'000 £'000
Continuing operations:
Revenue 3 321,738 326,832
Employee costs 14 (206,569) (202,269}
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 17 (11,629) {12,500)
Qther operating costs {67,500) {65,410)
Other operating incame 3 1,334 937
Gain on disposat of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 9 8 1,061
Share of post-tax {loss)/profit from joint ventures and associates 19 (494) 668
Share-based payments 14 {1,977) (1,916)
Amartisation of intangible assets 16 {4,112) (4,534)
Exceptional gains 8 654 31,050
Exceptional costs 8 (88,858) (2,045)
Contingent censideration 24 696 710
Group operating {loss}/profit 5 (56,709) 72,584
Finance income 6 80 14
Finance cost 7 {2,497) (2,708) —m ;——
Net finance costs (2,417) (2,695) § §
{Loss)/profit before tax {59,126) 59,883 E,é;
Taxation charge 15 (4.891) (7,985) gi
{Loss)/profit for the year {64,017) 51,904 5 ;:
Attributable to: g 8
Owners of the parent {63,924) 61,941 =4 §
Non-contrelling interest (93) (37) %ﬁ'
Earnings per share {expressed in pence per share): §
Basic 11 (62.3) 596 =
Diluted 11 {62.3) 59.2

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2021

2022
Note £'000 £'000

{Lass)/profit for the year {64,017} 61,904
frems not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent perinds:
Revaluaticn of financial assets not recycled through the income statement 18 {5,096} (1,557}
Tax on revaluation 130 (132}

(4,966) {1,G83)
Total cther comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (4,966} (1,6N89)
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year, net of tax (68,983} 60,215
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent {68,890) 60,252
Non-controlling interest {93) {37)

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2022 Company No. 05114014

2021

2022

Note £'000 £900
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 56,530 160,865
Other intangible assets 16 15,747 29,604
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 17 15,570 37.070 -
Financial assets 18 1,045 5,748 f}:
Investments in joint ventures and associates 19 5,068 1,610 ”3
Contract assets 20 431 733 ;:5
Total non-current assets 94,391 235,630 3
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 26,608 33,829
Contract assets 20 348 424
Current tax assets 3,063 1,142
Cash and cash equivalents 22 36,755 48,464
66,774 83,859
Assets held for sale 30 56,437 -
Total current assets 123,211 83,859 oo
Total assets 217,602 319,489 £2
g3
Curreat liabilities EE
Financial liabilities 24 {6,949) {8,523) gi
Trade and other payables 23 {47,020} (64,206) ¢ 2
Provisions far liabilities 25 {660) (775) ¥
{54,639) {73,504) g g
Liabilities held for sale 30 (21,930} - FE
Total current liabilities {76,569) {73,504) % g
g
Non-current liabilities =
Financial liahilities 24 {6,277) (22,602)
Deferred tax liability 15 (2,008) (2,073) o
Provisions for liabilities 25 {1,695) (3,191) g
Total non-current liabilities {9,980} (27,866) E
Total liabilities (86,549} (101,370) g
Net assets 131,053 218,119 2
=
Equity
Share capital 27 210 210
Share premium account 28 5,629 5,629
Share-based payment reserve 28 5,331 5,263
Shares held by employee benefit trust 2,28 (5,457) {3,063}
Treasury shares 28 (3,983) -
Fair value reserve 28 {20,239) (15,273) —
Retained earnings 149,134 224,832 g
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 130,625 217,568 g
Non-centrolling interest 428 521 2
Total equity 131,053 218,119 ]
=3
g

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements were approved by and signed on behaif of the Board by:

David Stewart Adam Castleton
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer
12 April 2023 12 April 2023
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £000
(Loss}/profit before tax {59,126) 69,889
Adjustments for:
Exceptional operating items 88,204 (29,005)
Contingent consideration {696) (710)
Nepreciatinn nf tangible assrts 17 11.629 12,500
Amartsation of intangible assets 16 4,112 4,534
Share-based payments 14 1,977 1,916
Profit on disposal of property, plant and eguipment and right-of-use assets 9 (8) {1,061)
Loss/(profit) from joint ventures 19 494 (668)
Recognition of investments at fair value through the income statement 18 (678} -
Decrease in contract assets 20 378 471
Finance income 6 (30} (14)
Finance costs 7 2,497 2,709
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 48,703 60,561
Movements in working capital
Increase in trade and other receivables {1,491} {(3,911)
Decrease in trade and other payables {11,243) {8,919)
Decrease in provisions {799) {3,213)
{13,533) {156,043)
Cash generated from operations 35,170 44,518
Interest paid {2,342) (2,554}
Income taxes paid {6,109} (8,528)
Exceptional costs paid (384} {2,045}
Net cash generated from operating activities 26,335 31,391
Cash flows used in investing activities
Acquisiions of subsidiaries and other businesses, net of cash acquired - (730)
Payment of contingent consideration (76) (2,462)
Investrnent in joint venture 19 (3,952) (2,477)
Investment in financial assets 18 - {14)
Dividend received from jeint venture 19 - 1,178
Cash received on sale of joint venture 19 - 41,349
Receipt of lease intome 26 68 20
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 16,17 (4,907) {6,902}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment 17 1,304 431
Net cash {expended)/generated on investing activities (7,563) 30,393
Cash flows used in financing activities
Repayment of lcans 13 - (13,000}
Payment of deferred consideration - (122)
Purchase of LSL shares by the employee benefit trust (5,026) -
Repurchase of treasury shares {3,983} -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 825 1,447
Payment of lease liabilities 13 {7,170} (8,922}
Dividends paid 12 (11,773} {4,166)
Net cash expended in financing activities (27,127} (24,763}
Net (decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivaients {8,355} 37,021
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 40,109 48,464

Closing cash and cash equivalents includes £3.4m (2021: £nil} presented in assets held for sale on the Group Balance Sheet {see note 30).

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements,
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Equ\t'fr 7

Share- attributable
Share based Shares 10 OWNEers Non-

Share premium payment held Treasury  Falrvalue Retained of the controlling Total

capital accaunt reserve by €8T shares reserve earnings parent interest equity

F'000 £000 £000 £'000 £7000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 January 2022 210 5,629 5,263 (3,063) - {15,273) 224,832 217,598 521 218,118
Loss for the year - - - - - - (63,924) (63,924) 93} (04,017)
Revaluation of financial assets - - - - - {5,096) - {5.096) - (5,096}
Tax on revaluaticns - - - - - 130 - 130 - 130
Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - - - {4,966) (63,924} {68,890) (93) (68,983)
Shares repurchased into treasury — — - - (3,983) - - (3,983) - (3,983)
Shares repurchased into EBT - - - (5,026) - - - {5.026) - (5,026)
Exarcise of options - - {1,806) 2,632 - - (1) 825 - 825
Dividend paid - - - - {11,773) (11,773) - {11,773}
Share-based payments - - 1,977 - - - - 1,977 - 1,977
Tax on share-based payments — - (103) - - - - {103) - {103}
At 31 December 2022 210 5,629 5,331 (5,457) {3,983) (20,239) 149,134 130,625 428 131,053

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Trust acquired 1,351,000 LSL shares. During the period, 890,146 share options were exercised relating
to LSU's various share option schemes resulting in the shares being sold by the Trust. LSL received £0.8m on exercise of these options.

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements.

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Share- Equity
Share based Shares attnbutable Noen-
Share premium payment held Fair value Retained to owners of contrelling Total
capitat account reserve by EBT reserve farnings the parent interest equity
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2021 210 5,629 3,942 {5,012) {13,584} 166,569 157,754 - 157,754
Profit for the year - - - - - 61,841 61,941 37} 61,904
Revaluation of financial gssets - - - — {1,557} — (1,557} — (1,557)
Tax on revaluatons - - - - (132} - {132} - (132}
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - — - (1,689} 61,841 60,252 (37 60,215
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - 558 558
Exercise of options - - {950} 1,843 - 488 1,447 - 1,447
Dividend paid - - - - - (4,166) (4,166} - {4,166)
Share-based payments ~ - 1,916 - - - 1,916 - 1,916
Tax on share-hased payments - - 3985 - - - 3385 - 395
At 31 December 2021 210 5,629 5,263 (3,063) (15,273) 224,832 217,588 521 218,119

During the year ended 31 Decermnber 2021, the Trust acquired nil LSL shares. During the period, 555,824 share options were exercised relating to LSL's
various share option schemes resulting in the shares being sold by the Trust. LSL received £1.4m on exercise of these options.

The notes on pages 118 to 162 form part of these Financial Statements.

117

v
=
u

=
o

g2,
&
=
ko
=3
B

aesodio Buypnpug woday s1032a60

{51003y IPRIMIIDY pue spoday 2IURLIIABE

n
5
B
3
o
o
@
-4
&
F]
3
4

USHIRULIOUE JBYID i
|



Notes to the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022

The Group Finangial Statements of LSL and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022 were authcrised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 12 Aprii 2023 and the balance sheet was signed on the Board's behalf by David Stewart, Group CEQ and Adam Castleton, Group CFO. LSLis a
company which is listed on the London Stock Exchange, incorporated and domiciled in England and the Group operates Financial Services, Surveying
& Valuation and Estate Agency businesses.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The accounting poficies which follow set out those significant policies which apply in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended

31 December 2022. The policies have been applied consistently to all years presented. The Group’s Financial Statements are presented in pound
sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£ 000) except when otherwise indicated.

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted 1AS. The Group Financial Statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the historical cost convention and on a historical cost basis, except for certain debt and equity financial assets that have been
measured at fair value.

In preparing the Financial Statements management has considered the impact of climate change, taking into account the relevant disclosures in

the Strategic Report, including those made in accordance with the recommendations of the Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD}. The Group has assessed climate-related risks, covering both physical risks and transition risks. in the short to medium term, the impact of
climate-related risks on the Group is expected to be relatively low due to the nature of the Group’s business model, Over the medium to longer term,
there could be physical risks, such as severe weather, flooding events, increase in temperature and rising sea levels, as well as transition risks such

as policy and regulation changes. The risk to the Group's own premises as a result of climate change is considered low, the majority of our property
portfolic is leased, and we would not expect significant transition costs during the remainder of our current lease terms. The impact of climate
change in the medium to long term is likely to be focalised and have varying degrees of impact on the areas where we work and our revenue profile.
This could have an impact on the carrying value of goodwilt and investments. The potential impact of climate-related risks on the Group’s impairment
assessment is considered sufficiently remote at this point in time and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
The censolidated Financial Statements comprise the Fingncial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022. The financial
year represents the year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Subsidigries
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date that contrel commences until the date control ceases. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Interest in joint ventures and associgtes

The Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates is included in the Group Income Statement using the equity method of accounting.
Investments in joint ventures and associates are carried in the Group Balance Sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
net assets of the entity, less any impairment in value. Goodwill relating to the joint venture or associate is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individually, Linrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the joint
venture or associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture cor associate.

In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture or associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting pariod as the Group. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

2.3 Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set out in the Financial
and Divisional Reviews section {page 13} of the Strategic Report. The finandial position of the Group, its cash flows, fiquidity position and policy for
treasury and risk management are described in the Financial Review section of the Strategic Report {page 13). Details of the Group’s borrowing
facilities are set out in note 24. The Groug’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives;
details of its finandal instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk are set out in note 32. A description of the
Group’s principal risks and uncertainties and arrangements to manage these risks can be found in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of the
Strategic Report on page 25.
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As explained in note 32, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through cash generated from operations, as well as utilising its
revelving credit facility. The Group currently has a £60m facility {December 2021: £90m), which was amended and restated in February 2023. The
factlity is committed until May 2026. At 31 December 2022 the Group had available £90m of undrawn borrowing cut of an available £90m (which
was the facility size as at that date), in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met. The Groug’s forecasts, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate within the terms of its renewed £60m facility during the
going concern periad. This modeliing demonstrated sufficient liquidity and sufficient headroem on the required covenants, detalls of which can be
seen in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on page 25 of the Strategic Report.

The Directors have considered the future profitability of the Group, including the impact of disposals since the year end, and the Beard approved cash
flow forecasts for the going concern period, which is considered to be the period until 30 April 2024.

Further consideration was given to banking covenants, liquidity of investments and joint ventures and the Group’s ability to refinance where
necessary. The Directors also assessed the key judgements, assumptions and estimates underpinning the review. The base case is modelled after post
year end business disposals and reftects ongoing challenging market conditions and the Directors’ expectations of the current economic climate.

In reaching its conclusion on the going concern assessment, the Board considered the findings of the work performed tc support the Group's long
term viability statement. As noted in the Viability Statement, which is included in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic Report
{page 28), this included assessing forecasts of severe but plausible downside scenarios related to our principal risks, notably the extent to which a
severe downturn in the UK housing market, close to the level seen during the financial crisis in 2008, would affect the Group’s base forecasts.

The Directors (who were members of the Board at 31 December 2022) can confirm that in the base case, and the downside scenarios, the Group had
adequate liquidity and covenant headroom during the going concern period.

The Directors also modelled a reverse stress test to assess the level to which market conditions would have to deteriorate before we would reach
our key banking covenant ratio of 2.75x Net Debt: adjusted EBITDA {with a ratio of 3.00x allowable for two consecutive test periods once during the
renewal period). This showed that, excluding any action we would take to retain cash reserves and maintain our operations, the UK housing market
transacticn activity would have to fall to a level 7% below the financial crisis of 2008 during the going concern peried, which is equivalent to a 37% fall
in comparison to 2022, which the Directors consider to be remote.

As part of this assessment, the Group has also considered the FRC Thematic Review: Viability and Going Concern {most recent guidance released
September 2021} which has encouraged companies to assess the level of disclosure of qualitative and quantitative detail in scenario medelling, to
consider disclosure relating to the Group's resilience to identified risks, and in respect of the viability assessment, the length of the viability period.

After making enquiries, the Directors {who were members of the Board at 31 December 2022) consider that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the going concern period. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing this Report.

2.4 Business combinations and goodwill

The Group accounts for 2!i business combinations by applying the acquisition method. All acquisition related costs are expensed. On acquisition,

the assets (including intangible assets), liabilities and contingent labilities of an acquired entity are measured at their fair values. The choice of
measurement of non-controlling interest, either at fzir value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, is determined on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Any contingent consideration ta be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at
fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss,

Where a put and call option is transacted over a non-controlling interest independently of a business combination, the present value of the exercise
price of the put and call opticn is recerded as a liability with a debit to equity. Subsaquent movements in the assessment of the exercise price are
taken to profit and loss. If the put option lapses, the liability is derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the consideration transferred cver the net fair value of the Group's share of the net

assets, Hiabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, joint venture or associate and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree. If the consideration is less than the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets, liahilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity
(ie a bargain purchase), the difference is credited to the Group Income Statement in the period of acquisition.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements conines
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Accounting polidies, judgements and estimates {continued). - IR s e .
At the acquisition date of a subsidiary, goodwill acquired is recognised as an asset and is allocated to each of the cash generating units or groups of
cash generating units expected to benefit from the business combinaticn’s synergies and to the lowest level at which management monitors the
goodwill. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of joint ventures and associates is included within the carrying value of the investment. On disposal of a
subsidiary, joint venture or assaciate, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.5 Rewvenue recognition

Revenue is recognised under IFRS 15. The standard is based on a single model that distinguishes between promises te a custemer that are satisfied
at a point in time and those that are satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. [FRS 15
focuses on control with risk and rewards as an indicator of control.

Financial Services income

Revenue from mortgage procuration fees is recaghised by reference to the completion date of the mortgage/remortgage on the housing transaction.
Revenue from insurance sales is recognised at a point in time by reference to the date that the policy goes on risk. The lapse provision is recognised
as a reduction In revenue which is based on historic lapses which have occurred. Lapse provisions are recorded within trade and other payables.

Rendering of services

Revenue from the exchange fees in the residential sales business is recognised by reference to the legzl exchange date of the housing transaction.
Revenue from the supply of surveying and valuation services is recognised upon the completion of the professional survey or valuation by the
surveyor, and therefore at a point in time. Revenue from lettings, asset management and conveyancing services is recognised on completion of
the service being provided, and therefore at a point in time. In the case of lettings and asset management services, revenue is recognised monthly
once the Group hias materially satisfied its performance obligations, such as the collection of rent. The costs incurred from obtaining a contract and
payable to the customer are capitalised and held under cantract assets in the Group Balance Sheet and amortised into revenue over the contract
term. Interest earned on client menies assaciated with lettings contracts is included within lettings revenue.

interest income
Revenue is recognised at a point in time as interest accrues (using the effective interest method — that is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected [ife of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Rental income

Rental income including the effect of lease Incentives from sublet properties is recognised over time on a straight-line basis, throughout the lease
term for operating leases or by recognising in the balance sheet a lease receivable equal to the investment in the lease for finance leases. Subleases
are assessed as finance leases or operating leases in reference to the right-of-use asset the lease generates.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established.

2.6 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a distinguishable segment of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses and whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board. The Board reviews the Group’s operations and financial positian

as Financial Services, Surveying & Valuation and Estate Agency, and therefore considers that it has three operating segments. The information
presented to the Directors directly reflects the Group Underlying Operating Profit as defined in the alternate performance measures (APM) in note 5
to these Financial Statements and they review the performance of the Group by reference to the results of the operating segments against budget.

2.7 Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

In reporting financia! information, the Group presents a number of APMSs that are designed to assist with the understanding of underlying Group
performance. The Group believes that the presentation of APMs provides stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of
the business, APMs are aiso used to help enhance comparability of information between reporting periods. The Group does not consider APMs to
he a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures and the Group’s APMs are defined, explained and reconciled to the nearest statutory measure in
notes 5, 11 and 35.

2.8 Income taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Management Team periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to the situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,
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Deferred income tax is recognised on all temparary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the Financial Statemants, with the following exceptions:

= where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects either accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

+ deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available, against which the deductible
temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted hasis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset’s
realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and ligbilities are offset, only if a legally enfarceable right exists to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities,
the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation autherity and that authority permits the Group te make a single net payment. Income tax

is charged or credited directly to OC! or equity, If it relates to items that are charged or credited in the current or prior pericds te OCl or equity
respectively. Otherwise, income taxis recognised in the income statement.

2.9 Share-based payment transactions

The equity share option programme allows Group employees to acquire LSL shares. The fair value of the options granted is recognised as an
employee expense with a correspanding increase in equity in the case of equity-settled schemes. The fair value is measured at grant date and spread
over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the opticns. The fair value of employee share option plans, which are
all equity-settled, is calculated at the grant date using the Black Scholes model. The resulting cost is charged to the Group Income Statement over the
vesting period. The value of the charge is adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting.

No axpense is recoghised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon & market or
non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-market vested condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/er setvice conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of cutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share {further details are
given In note 11 to these Financiat Statements).

2.10 Shares held by employee benefit trust (EBT)

The Group has an employee share scheme (ESOT) for the granting of LSL shares to Executive Directors and selected senior employees and an
employee share incentive plan (Trust), Shares in LSL held by the ESOT and the Trust are treated as treasury shares and presented in the balance sheet
as a deduction from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments. The finance costs and administration costs relating to the ESCT and the Trust are charged to the income statement. Dividends
earned on shares held in the ESOT and the Trust have been waived. The ESOT and Trust shares are ignored for the purposes of calculating the
Group's earnings per share.

2.11 Treasury shares

Where the Group repurchases shares from existing sharehclders, they are held as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Treasury shares
are ignored for the purpeses of calculating the Group's earnings per share and adjusted earnings per share.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wmaes.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Accounting policies, Judgement

2.12 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those which, are material by size and are both non-recurring and unusual in nature. These items are presented within their
relevant income staterment category but highlighted separately on the face of the income statermnent. ltems that management considers fall into this
category are also disclosed within a note to the Financial Statements {see note 8 to these Financial Staterments).

Due to the nature and expected infrequency of these items, separate presentation helps provide a better indication of the Group’s underlying
business perfarmance. This allows shareholders to better understand the elements of financial performance in the year, so as to facilitate comparison
with prior periods and to better assess trends in financial performance.

2.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets such as brand names, lettings contracts, customer relationships and in house software are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in the profit or loss 1n the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Gains or lesses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recegnised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The usefut lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Brand names are not amortised as the Directors are of the opinion that they each have an indefinite useful life based on the expectation that there

is na foreseeable limit to the period over which each of the assets are expected to generate net cash inflows o the businesses. The Directors are
canfident that trademark registration renewals will be filed at the appropriate time and sufficient investment witl be made in terms of marketing

and communication to maintain the value inherent in the brands, without incurring significant cost. All brands recognised have been in existence for
& number of years and are not considered to be at risk of obsolescence from technical, technological nor commercial change. Whilst operating in
competitive markets they have demonstrated that they can continue te operate in the face of such competition and that there is expected to remain
an underlying market demand for the services offered, The lives of these brands are not dependent on the useful lives of other assets of the entity.

All other intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives of 12 months for order beoks, twa years for customer
contacts, five years for lettings contracts, between three and five years for in house software and ten years for franchise agreements.

2.14 Impairment of nen-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. For the purpaeses of impairment testing,
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units {CGUs). An asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amaount is the higher of its fair value less costs to seil
(FVLCTS) and value-in-use {VIU). Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amaount. In assessing an asset’s VIU, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment fosses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash generating unit’s
recoverable amount.

2.15 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated
on a straight-line basis to its residual value over its anticipated useful economic life:

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings — over three to seven years
Computer eguipment — aver three to four years
Motor vehicles ~ aver three to four years

Leasehold imgrovements over the shorter of the lease term or ten years

Freehold and long leasehold property — over 50 years or the lease term whichever is shorter

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset} is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. These assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prosgectively, if apprepriate.
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2. Accounting policles, judgements and estimates {continued)

2.16 Dividends
Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. in the case of interim dividends to shareheclders, this is when paid. in the case of
final dividends, this 1s when approved by shareholders at each AGM,

2.17 Leases
Leases are defined as a cantract which gives the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, As a lessee, the Group
recoghises three classes of leases on this basis:

* Property leases.
* Motor vehicle leases,
= Other leases.

Property leases and motor vehicle leases have been recognised on the balance sheet, in financial liabilities, by recognising the future cash flows of the
lease obligation, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Group, adjusted for factors such as swap rates available and the credit risk of
the entity entering into the lease.

Corresponding right-of-use assets have been recognised in the Group Balance Sheet under property, plant and equipment ang have been measured
as being equal to the discounted lease liabifity plus any iease payments made at or before the inception of the lease and initial direct costs, less any
lease incentives received. Cash flows from these leases have been recognised by including the principal portion of the lease payments in cash flows
from financing activities and the interest portion of the lease payment recognised through operating activities.

Other leases are leases for low value iterns or leases whose contract term is less than 12 months. The practical expedient not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for these leases has been utilised by the Group. A charge for these leases has been recognised through the income
statement as an operating expense. The cash flows relating to low value and short term leases have been recognised in net cash flows from operating
activities.

No leases where the Group is a lessee, or a lessor contaln variable lease payments.

for subleases where the Group is an intermediate lessor, the Group has assessed whether the sublease is an operating lease or finance lease in
respect to the right-of-use asset generated by the head lease. !t has performed this assessment on a lease-by-lease basis. The Group has both finance
leases and operating leases based on this assessment, and sublease assets are recognised in financial assets (further details are given in note 26 to
these Financial Statements).

2.18 Assets and liabilities held for sale

A disposal group is classified as held for sale where it is available for immediate sale, in its present condition and it is highly probable that its value will
be recoveraed through a sale rather than continuing use. Disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell
(FYLCTS) and their assets and liabilities are presented separately from other assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.19 Pensions
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees of all Group companies. The assets of the scheme are invested and
managed independently of the finances of the Group. The pension ¢ost charge represents contributions payable in the year.

2.20 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past eventand itis
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

2.21 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through the income statement, directly attributabie transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the Group

no fonger has the rights te cash flows, the risks and rewards of ownership or contrc! of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wsumes.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

The Group’s accounting policy for each category of financial instruments is as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through QCI {equity instruments}

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at faur value through

OCi when they meet the definition of equity under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-hy-instrument basis. Gains and 1osses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or lass. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as 2
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in QCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through
0OC! are not subject to impairment assassment.

Financial assets designated at fair value through the income statement
Gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair vatue of equity investments are recognised in the income statement.

Cash and short term deposits
Cash and short term deposits in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comgrise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity pericd of three months or less.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their original invoiced value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. The expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 is applied to trade and other receivables. The chosen method of recognising
the expected credit loss across the Group is the simplified appreach allowing 2 provision matrix to be used, which is based on the expected life of
trade receivables and historic default rates, default being defined as when impaired debts are assessed as uncollectable. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectabie.

Trade payables
Trade payables are stated in the balance sheet at their original invoice value.

interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on repurchase, settlement
or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised respectively in finance income and finance costs. Finance costs comprise interest payable on
borrowings calculated at the effective interest rate method and recognised on an accruals basis. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when
incurred.

2.22 Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s Financial Statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and lizbilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. These estimates and
judgements are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions and actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates. Group management believe that the estimates and assumptions listed below have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible ossets (estimate)

The Group carries out impairment reviews of intangible assets and goodwilt whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value may not be recoverable, in addition the Group carries out an annual impairment review of goodwill and intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life. An impairment loss is recognised where the recoverable amount of the intangible asset or goodwill is calculated as less than
the carrying amount. The recoverable amount is based on the higher of VIU and FVYLCTS, where an accurate FVLCTS is not obtainable VIU is used as
the recoverable amount. The impairment tests are carried out by CGU and reflect the latest Group budgets and forecasts approved by the Board.
The budgets and forecasts are based on various assumptions relating to the Group’s business including assumptions relating to market outiook,
observable trends, and profitahility. The outlook for the business is discussed in the Group Chief Executive Officer’'s Review, A pre-tax discount rate
of 14.2% has been used to discount the CGU cash flows and terminal value is applied using a long term growth rate of 2.0%. A sensitivity analysis has
been performed allowing for possible changes to the assumptions in the impairment model, see note 16 for details.
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Valuation of financial assets (estimate)

The Group uses valuation techniques to measure fair value of financial assets, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of equity financial assets that are not traded in the open market are valued using the best information
available in the circumstances, including cash flow forecasts and Financial Statements, to arrive at the fair value. Where appropriate a range of
potential cutcomes is considered in reaching a conclusion. Further details of the methodology used are disclosed in note 18 to these Financial
Staterments. A sensitivity calculation which shows the impact of changes in valuation assumptions is shown in note 32.

Lapse provision {estimate}

Certain subsidiaries sell life assurance products which are cancellable without a notice period, and if cancelled within a set period require that a
portior: of the commission earned must be repaid. The lapse provision is recognised as a reduction in revenue which is based on historic lapses which
have occurred. Details of the assumptions applied to lapse provisions and the impact of changes in average lapse rates are show in note 23,

Professional Indemnity (Pl} claims festimate)
A provision is made for professional indemnity claims and potential claims that arise during the normal course of business in relation to valuations o

performad by the Group. This includes an estimate for the settlement of claims already received as well as claims incurred but not yet reported
{IBNR). Details of the assumptions applied to Piclaims areas are disclosed in notes 8 and 25 to these Financial Statements. A sensitivity calculation
which ilfustrates the impact of different assumptions on the required P| Costs pravision is included in note 25.

Contingent consideration (estimate]

in accordance with the accounting standards, estimates have been made with regard to the future profitability of these acquisitions and a provision
for the cost of acquiring these interests has been recognised. The provisions are disclosed in note 24 to these Financial Statemenits. A sensitivity
calculation showing the impact of changes to future performance assumptions is included in note 32.

Exceptional items fjudgement)
The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the income statement those material items of income and expense which, because of the

nature and expected infreguency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation to allow shareholders to understand better the
elements of financial performance in the year, so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess better trends in financial performance.
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income tax and recognition of deferred tax assets {judgement and estimate)

The Group will pay income taxes based or the tax computations of the subsidiary entities. While the outcome of these tax computations cannot be
determined with certainty until the completion of subsidiary accounts, the Management Team's estimates of income taxes are used to determine the
tax charges and provisions carried by the Group. The estimated tax charges are calculated having taken consideration of the tax impact of significant
transactions within the Group during the respective accounting period. Management also use their existing knowledge of the tax profile of the
Group's recurring trading activities and review prior year tax computations to estimate the likely amount of permanent disallowable expenditure.

spuaWIES jepueud

The Group also recognises deferred tax assets on all applicable temperary differences where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
for utilisation. This requires management to make judgements and assumptions regarding the amount of deferred tax that can be recognised based
on the magnitude and likelihood of future taxable profits. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities are provided for in fubl.

2.23 New standards and interpretations not applied
There have been no new relevant standards that have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 e i

January 2022. Amendments to existing standards do not have a material impact on the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements catinuea.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Residential
Financial  Surveying & Sales Asset
Services valuation exchange Lettings Management Other Total
E£000 £7000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Timning of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point In time 87,437 83,228 63,473 60,941 2,811 10,361 318,251
Services transferred over time — — - 2,337 1,150 — 3,487
Total revenue from contracts with customers 87,437 93,228 63,473 63,278 3,961 10,361 321,738
Year ended 31 December 2021
Residential
Financial  Surveying & Sales Asset
Services Valuation exchange Lettings' Management Other Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Timing of revenue recogniton
Services transferred at 2 point in time 84,818 93,699 71,737 59,885 2,217 11,162 323,518
Services transferred over time - - 2,166 1,148 - 3,314
Total revenue from cantracts with customers 84,818 93,699 71,737 62,051 3,365 11,162 326,832
Revenue from services 321,738 _336,851;
Operating revenue 321,738 326,832
Rental income 656 937
Gain on fair value (note 18) g -
Other operating income
Total revenue and operating income 323,07?23 327,769

' 2021 lettings revenue has been restated to reclassify £27.7m of revenue from services transferred over time to services transferred at a point in time
no change in the Group’s accounting policy in the pricr or current periad. Lo

4. Segment analysis of revenue and aperating profit . i . )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 LSL has reported three operating segments: Financial Services; Surveying & Valuation; and Fstate Agency:

« the Financial Services segment, arranges mortgages for a number of lenders and arranges pure protection and general insurance policies for a
panel of insurance comparies. Embrace Financial Services and First2Protect, subsidiaries within the Financial Services Division, make a commercially
agreed introducer’s fee to the Estate Agency Division;

« the Surveying & Valuation segment provides a valuations and professional surveying service of residential properties te both lenders and individual
customers, as well as data services to lenders; and

« the Estate Agency segment provides services related to the sale and letting of residential properties, It operates a network of high street branches.
As part of this process, the Estate Agency Division alsc provides marketing and arranges conveyancing services. In addition, it provides repossession
and asset management services to a range of lenders. Embrace Financial Services and First2Protect, subsidiaries within the Financial Services
Division, make a commercially agreed intreducer’s fee tc the Estate Agency Division.

Cperating segments
Each reportable segment has various products and services and the revenue from these products and services are disctosed on pages 13 to 20 under
the Business Review section of the Strategic Report.

The Management Team monitors the operating results of its segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table
below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the Group Financial Statements. Head office costs, Group financing {including finance
costs and finance income) and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

126



Reportable segments
The following table presents revenue and profit information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the financial year ended 31 December

2022 and financial year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.

Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Surveying Estate
Sarvices & Valuahon Agency Unailocated Total
£000 £'000 £000 £°000 £7000

Income statement information
Revenue from external customers 87,437 G3,228 141,073 - 321,738
Introducer’s fee (5,756) - 5,756 - -
Total revenue 81,681 93,228 145,829 - 321,738
Segmental result:
— Group Underlying Operating Profit/{Loss} 13,260 20,378 10,546 (7,296) 35,888
~ Operating Profit/(Loss) {6,839) 20,799 (61,847) (8,822) {56,709)
finance income {2,497)
Finance costs 80
Loss before tax {59,126)
iaxabion {4,891)
Loss for the year {64,017)
Balance sheet information
Segment assets — intangible 11,932 11,217 49,056 72 72,277
Segment assets — other 24,182 9,236 66,950 44 957 145,325
Total segment assets 36,114 20,453 116,006 45,029 217,602
Total segment liabilities (20,983) {14,926) {46,440} (4,200) {86,549)
Net assets 15,131 5,527 69,566 40,829 131,053
Other segment items
Capital expenditure including ntangible assets {2,307) (738) (1,521) (343} {4,907)
Depreciation (810} (1,755} {7,759) {1,305} (11,629)
Amortisation of intangible assets (2,625) {36) (1,451) - {4,112)
Exceptional gains - 694 - - 694
Exceptional costs (17,458) - (71,440) - (88,898)
Share of results in joint venture {494) - - - {494)
Pl Casts provision - 2,341 — - 2,341
Onerous leases provision - - 14 - 14
Share-based payments {16) (237) {197) {1,527) {1,977)

Unallocated net assets comprise intangible assets and plant and equipment £2.0m, other assets £6.2m, cash £36.8m, accruals and other payables
£2.2m, and current and deferred tax liabilities £2.0m. Unallocated result comprises costs relating to the Parent Company.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wmwnuee.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Surveying Ectate
Services & valuation Agency Unallocated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Incorme staterment information
Revenue from external customers 84,818 93,689 148,315 —- 326,832
Introducer’s fee (6,287) - 5,287 — -
Total revenue 78,531 93,689 154,602 - 326,832
Segmental result:
— Group Underlying Operating Profit 14,787 23,609 18,430 (7,507) 44,319
— Operating Profit 9,976 24,721 46,464 (8,577) 72,584
Finance income 14
Finance costs (2,709)
Profit before tax 69,885
Taxation (7,985)
Profit for the year 61,904
Balance sheet information
Segment assets — intangible 20,779 11,086 158,531 73 190,469
Segment assets ~ other §,891 12,772 55,046 51,311 129,020
Total segment assets 30,670 23,858 213,577 51,384 319,489
Total segment liabilities {25,343) {20,621} {50,130} (5,276) (101,370}
Net assets 5,327 3,237 163,447 46,108 218,118
Other segment tems
Capital expenditure including intangible assets (1,086 (657) (5,157} 2} (6,902}
Depreciation (324) {1,926) (9,746) {4) {12,500)
Amortisation of intangible assets {2,496) {382) {1,656} - (4,534)
Exceptional gains — 1,641 29,409 - 31,050
Exceptional costs {714) - - (1,331} (2,045}
Share of results in joint ventures (863} - 1,537 - 668
Pl Costs provision - 3,907 - - 3,907
Onerous leases provision - - 59 - 59
Share-hased payments (270} (147) {430) (1,069) {1,918}

In the year the Group sold its interests in the two joint ventures recorded in the Estate Agency Division, results for these joint ventures are recorded
to their disposal dates. The Group acquired an interest in a joint venture in the Financial Services Division during April 2021.

Unallocated net assets comprise intangible assets and plant and equipment £0.1m, cther assets £3.0m, cash £48.5m, accruals and other payables
£32 4m, and current and deferred tax liabilities £2.1m. Unallocated result comprises costs relating to the Parent Company.
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Group and Divisional Underlying Operating Profit are alternative performance measures (APMs) used by the Directors and Group Management to
monitor performance of operating segments against budget. 1t is calculated as {loss)/profit before tax adjusted for the items set out below. The
Group’s APMs are defined, explained, and reconciled to their closest statutory measures in note 35.

Year ended 31 December 2022

Financial Surveying Estate
Services & Vatuation Agency Unallocated Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £7000
{Loss)/profit before tax (6,843} 20,921 {63,102) {10,102) (59,126)
Net finance cost 4 {122) 1,255 1,280 2,417
Cperating {loss)/profit per income statement (6,229) 20,799 (61,847) {8,822) {56,708)
Operating margin {7.8)% 22.3% (42.1)% - {17.6)%
Share-based payments 16 237 197 1,527 1,977
Amartisation of intangible assets 2,625 36 1,451 - 4,112
Exceptional gains - (694) - - {694}
Exceptional costs 17,458 - 71,440 - 88,898
Contingent consideration - - {696) - {696}
Urderlying Operating Profit/(Loss) 13,260 20,378 10,546 {7,296} 36,888
Underlying Cperaling miaigin 16.2% 21.9% 7.2% - 11.4%
Year ended 31 December 2021
Financial Surveying Estate
Services & valuation Agericy Unallocated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit/{loss) before tax 9,934 24,714 45,001 (9,760) 69,889
Net finance cost 42 7 1,463 1,183 2,695
Operating profit/{loss) per income statement 9,976 24,721 46,464 18,577} 72,584
Operating margin 12.7% 26.4% 30.0% — 22.2%
Share-based payments 270 147 430 1,069 1,916
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,456 382 1,656 - 4,534
Exceptional gains - (1,641} (29,409) - {31,050}
Exceptional costs 2,045 - - - 2,045
Contingent consideration - - (710) - {710)
Underlying Operating Profit/{Loss) 14,787 23,609 18,430 {7,507) 49,319
Underlying Operating margin 18.8% 25.2% 11.9% - 15.1%

6. Finante incom

2022

£'000
Finance income on subleased assets 13 ]
Cther interest 67 5
80 14

7. Finance costs

Commitment and non-utilisation fees on RCF 1,035 1,048
Unwinding of discount on lease liabilities 1,387 1,507
Unwinding of discount on contingent consideration 75 154

2,497 2,709
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements contnued.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

£7000 £'000

Fxreptinnal rngtse
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment {note 16} 87,158 -
Estate Agency restructuring costs 1,740 -
Costs relating to investment in joint venture - 1,179
Financiai Services restructuring costs - 714
Dissolution and impairment of associate Mortgage Gym - 152
88,898 2,045

Exceptional gains:
Exceptional gain in relation to historic Pl Costs (694) {1,611}
Exceptional gain in relaticn to sale of joint ventures - (29,409}
(694) {31,050}

Exceptional costs

Goodwill and intangibie asset impairment

During the period there has been an impairment to goodwill of £87.0m {2021: £nil) and an impairment to other intangible assets of £0.1m {2021:
£nil), refer to note 16 for further detail.

Estate Agency restructuring costs
The Group initiated a branch closure programme in the Estate Agency Division in response to challenging trading conditions during the year. As a
result of the programme the Group incurred non-recurring exceptional costs of £1.7m {2021: £nil).

Exceptional gains

Pravision for professional indemnity (PI) claims and insurance claim notification

The Group continued to make positive progress in settling historic Pl ¢laims, in which actual settlement costs have been lower than expected, and
therefore there has been a release of £0.7m in 2022 (2021: £1.6m) in relation to exceptional Pl claims. The treatment of histeric Pl claims (relating
to the 2004 to 2008 high risk lending period} as exceptional is consistent with the original recognition of the provision. Refer to note 25 for further
detail.

9. Loss before tax

Loss/{profit) before tax is stated after charging:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Auditor’s remuneration (note 10} 1,001 755
Short term feases 1,997 2,333
Low value leases 649 412
Depreciation — owned assets 3,853 3,990
Depreciation — right-of-use assets 7,776 8,510
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (8) {1,061)

10. Auditor’s remuneration

The remuneration of the auditors is further analysed as fellows:

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Audit of the Financial Statements 333 129
Audit of subsidiaries 543 530
Total audit 876 659
Audit related assurance services (including interim results review) 125 48
Other assurance services - 48
1,001 755




11. Earnings per share (EPS).

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive patential ordinary shares into erdinary shares. As the Group reported a basic loss (2021: profit) per ordinary share, any potentiat ordinary
shares that are dilutive are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share. These options could potentially dilute earnings per share in
future periods. The same weighted average number of shares have been used to calculate adjusted basic earnings per share, since the adjusted result
of the Group Is a profit (2021: profit) the effect of dilutive share opticns has been included.

2022 2021

Loss Waeighted Per share Profit Weighted Per share

after tax  average number amount after tax  average number amount

£000 of shares pence £'000 of shares pence

Basic EPS {63,924} 102,659,027 {62.3) 61,941 103,912,148 59.6
tffect of dilutive share options - — 688,806

Diluted EPS {63,924} 102,659,027 (62.3) 61,941 104,600,554 59.2

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion

of these Financial Statements.

The Directors (who were members of the Board at 31 Decamber 2022) censider that the adjusted earnings shown below give 2 better and more

consistent indication of the Group’s underlying performance:

2022 2021

£000 £000

Group Underlying Gperating Profit 36,388 49,319

Loss attributable to non-controlling interest 93 37

Net finance casts {excluding exceptional and contingent consideration items and discounting on lease liabilities) (968) {1,047}

Normalised taxation {tax rate 19%, 2021: 19%) {6,843) (9,171)

Adjusted profit after tax attributable to owners of the parent 29,170 39,138

Adjusted basic and diluted EPS

2022 2021

Adjusted profit Weighted Per share Adjusted profit Weighted Per share

after tax  average number amount after tax  average number amount

£000 of shares pence £'000 of shares pence

Adjusted Basic EPS 29,170 102,659,027 28.4 39,138 103,912,148 377
Effect of dilutive share options 1,275,216 688,806

Adjusted diluted EPS 29,170 103,934,243 28.1 39,138 104,600,554 37.4

12. Dividends paid and proposed

2021
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£000 £000
Declared and paid during the year: Q
2022 Interim: 4.0 pence per share (2021 Intenm: 4.0 pence} 4,084 4,166 )
4,084 4,166 E)
Dividends on shares proposed {not recognised as a liability as at 31 December): a
Equity dividends on shares: 3
7,616 7,689

Dividend: 7.4 pence per share (2021: 7.4 pence)
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wnunuee.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Set out below are the movements in the Group's lease liabilities and long term debt during the year.

At 1 January At 31 Detember

2022 Cash flow Additiens Disposals Reclassified as 2022

_— £'000 £000 £000 £000 hald for sale £'000
tease Labilites 28,117 {7,170} 5,550 {875) (14,707} 10,915
28,117 {7,170} 5,550 {875) {14,707} 10,915

“ At 1 lanuary At 31 December

2021 Cash flow Additions Disposals Reclassified as 2021

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 held for sale £000

Lease habilities 33,957 (8,922} 3,567 {485) - 28,117
inng term deht 13,000 {13,000} : - -
46,857 (21,922} 3,567 {485) - 28,117

2022 2021

£000 £000

Long term liabilities 6,246 15,670
Short term labilities 4,669 8,447
10,915 28,117

Lease {iability movements comprise new leases entered into during the year, cancellation of leases and movements between current and non-current
liabilities, this also includes interest paid during the year of £1.4m {2021: £1.5m). The Group holds no other long term debt at 31 December 2022 and

repaid £13.0m of bank loans (RCF) during 2021.

14, Directors amd employees

Remuneration of Directors

2022 2021

£000 £°000

Directors’ remunerafion (short term benefits) 2,004 3,535
Contributions to money purchase pensions schemes {post-employment benefits} 2 2
Share-based payments charge on current incentive schemes 687 532
2,693 4,069

Note:

1 Included within this amount are accrued bonuses of £0.0m (2021: £0.9m). The number of Directors who were members of Group money purchase pension schemes

during the year totalled 2 (2021: 2}. The Directors did not exercise any share options in the current or prior year.

Employee humbers and costs
The Group employs staff in its branches and head offices. Aggregate payroll costs of these employees, including Directors were:

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 175,565 174,567

Social security costs 21,874 19,171

Pension costs 7,809 7,678

Subcontractor costs 921 853

Total employee costs 206,569 202,269

Share-based payment expense (see below) 1,977 1,916

The average monthly FTE staff nurnbers (including Directors) during the year were:

2022 2021

Financial Services 953 942

Surveying & Valuation 931 B72

Estate Agency 2,062 2,262

3,946 4,076
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Share-based payments
The Remuneration Policy on pages 756 ta 82 of the Rirectors’ Remunaration Report details the policies in relation to share-based payments, which
includes details on the Remuneration Committee’s discretion to adjust the LTIP vesting outcomes if it considers that it is not reflective of the

underlying performance of LSL.

Lang term incentive plan (LTIP)

The Group operates a LTIP (an equity-settled share-based remuneration scheme) for certain employees. Under the LTIP, the options vest if the
individual remains an employee of the Group after a three year pericd, unless the individual has left under certain good leaver terms in which case
the opticns may vest earlier and providing the performance conditions are met.

LTIP 2022 vesting conditions
50% of the options vest based on the TSR of 5L as compared to a comparator group of FTSE Small Cap, excluding investment trusts, over the three

year performance period (1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024):
 if the Group is in the top 25% percentile, all of these options will vest;
= if the Group is at the median, 25% will vest;
» straight-line vesting between median and top 25% percentile; and
+ below the median, no options vest,
50% of the options are based on LSL's Adjusted Basic EPS performance in financial year ending 31 December 2024:
 if 2024 Adjusted Basic EPS is equal to or over {2} 53.8 pence — 100% vest;
« if 2024 Adjusted Basic EPS is equal to 46.9 pence — 25% vest;
* straight-line vesting between 46.9 pence and 52.8 pence; and

« if 2024 Adjusted Basic EPS is below 46.9 pence — no opticns vest.

LTiP 2021 vesting conditions
50% of the options vest based on the TSR of LSL as compared to a comparator group of FTSE Small Cap, excluding investment trusts, over the three

vear performance pericd {1 January 2021 — 31 December 2023):
« if the Group is in the top 25% percentile, zll of these options will vest;
« if the Group is at the median, 25% will vest;
s straight-line vesting between median and top 25% percentile; and
= below the median, no eptions vest.
50% of the opticns are based on LSL's Adjusted Basic £PS performance in financial year ending 31 December 2023:
« if 2023 Adjusted Basic EPS is equat to or over (2} 31.5 pence — 100% vest;
» if 2023 Adjusted Basic EPS is equal to 25.6 pence ~ 25% vest;
« straight-line vesting between 25.6 pence and 31.5 pence; and

= if 2023 Adjusted Basic £PS is below 25.6 pence — no options vest.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements e
for the year ended 31 December 2022

LTIP 2020 vesting conditions
50% of the options vest based on the TSR of LSL as compared to a comparator group of FTSE Smalt Cap, excluding investment trusts, over the three
year performance period (9 November 2020 - 8 November 2023):

« if the Group is in the top 25% percentile, all of these options will vest;
« if the Group is at the median, 25% will vest;
= straight-fine vesting between median and top 25% percentile; and
= below the median, no options vest,
50% of the options are based on LSL's Adjusted Basic EPS performance in financial year ending 31 December 2022:
s if 2022 Adjusted Basic EPS is equal to or over (2) 31.5 pence —~ 100% vest;
» if 2022 Adjusted Basic EPS is equal to 25.6 pence — 25% vest;
+ straight-lina vesting between 25.6 pence and 31.5 pence; and

* if 2022 Adjusted Basic EPS is below 25.6 pence — no options vest.

LTIP 2018 vesting conditions
30% of the options vest based on the TSR of LSL as compared to a comparator group of 21 companies in similar or related sectors over the three year

performance period:
+ if the Group is in the top 25% percentile, all of these options will vest;
= if the Group is at the median, 25% will vest;
« straight-line vesting between median and top 25% percentile; and
* below the median, no options vest.

70% of the options are based on the Adjusted Basic EPS performance over the three financial years starting with the financial year in which the LTIP

award is granted:
» If growth is equal to or over {2} 12.0 p.a. —~ 100% vest;
« if growth is 5.0% p.a. — 25% vest;
* straight-ine vesting between 5.0% p.a. and 12.0% p.a.; and

« if growth is below 5.0% p.a. — no options vest.

LTIP 2018 vesting conditions
30% of the options vest based on the TSR of LSL as compared to a comparator group of 22 companies in similar or refated sectors over the three year

perfarmance period:
s if the Group is in the top 25% percentile, all of these options will vest;
* if the Group is at the median, 25% will vest;
* straight-line vesting between median and top 25% percentile; and
» below the median, no options vest.

70% of the opticns are based on the Adjusted Basic EPS performance over the three financial years starting with the financial year in which the LTIP
award is granted:

* if growth is equal to or over (2) 13.0 p.a. — 100% vest;
« if growth is 7.5% p.a. — 25% vest;
* straight-line vesting between 7.5% p.2. and 13.0% p.a.; and

« if growth Is below 7.5% p.a. ~ no options vest.
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2022

Weighted Weighted

average exercise average exercise

price price
£ Number £ Number
Outstanding at 1 January - 2,478,445 - 2,575,826
Granted during the year - 801,959 - 652,289
Exercised during the year - {572,553} - {94,500}
Lapsed during the year - {117,616) - {655,170)
Outstanding at 31 December - 2,590,235 - 2,478,445

There were 36,692 options exercisable at the end of the year (2021: 80,520). The weighted average remaining contractual life is 1.19 years {2021
1.29 years). The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was £3.78 {2021: £3.63). The weighted average share price of options
at the date of their exercise was £3,67 (2021: £3.50).

Company staock option plan (CSOP)

The Group operates a CSOP (an equity-settled share-based remuneration scheme) for certain employees. Under the CSOP the options vest if the
individual remains an employee of the Group after a three year period, unless the individual has left under certain good leaver terms in which case
the options may vest earlier.

2022 2021

Weighted Wweighted

average exercise AVErage exercrse

price price
£ Number £ Number
Cutstanding at 1 January 3.76 550,867 3.67 880,203
Exercised during the year 2.76 (24,504) 3.47 {241,805)
Lapsed during the year 2.84 {46,126) 3.44 (87,542)
Qutstanding at 31 December 3.91 480,237 3.76 550,867

There were 480,237 options exercisable at the end of the year (2021: 550,867). The average market value at the date of exercise was £3.91 (2021:
£4.42).

Given that the scheme has vested, the weighted average remaining contractual life was 2.42 years (2021: 3.42 years).

SAYE (save-as-you-earn} scheme

The Group has offered options under the SAYE scheme in each of 2011 to 2014, 2016 to 2019 and 2021 years. All these offers were open to all
qualifying employees and provide for an exercise price equal to the daily average market price on the date of grant, The options will vest if the
employee remains in service for the full duration of the option scheme (three years). There are no cash settlement alternatives.

2022 2021

Weighted Weighted

average exercise average exercise

price price
£ Number £ Number
Quistanding at 1 January 3.04 1,114,579 2.47 512,044
Granted during the year - - 327 698,615
Exercised 2.59 {293,089) 2.44 {219,519)
Lapsed during the year due to employees withdrawal 3.09 {176,089} 2.22 (276,561)
QOutstanding at 31 December 3.20 545,401 3.04 1,114,579

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was £nil (2021: £2.30) and the welghtad average remaining contractual hfe was
0.79 years {2021 1.92 years). The average market value at the date of exercise was £3.67 (2021: £4.63).

There were 74,414 {2021: 186,161) options exercisable at the end of the year.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continuea.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

BAYE (buy-as-you-earnj scheme

The matching shares element of the SIP/BAYE was introduced and provides participants with one matching share for every five partnership shares
purchased. The matching shares are allocated frem ordinary shares held by the Trust for the benefit of SIP/BAYE participants. The maximum saving
under the scheme would be autormatically capped at £150 per month {as per HMRC limits).

2022 2021

Welghted Weighted

average exgrcise average exercise

price price
£ Number £ Number
Outstanding at 1 January 2.5 78,000 2.5 78,000
Granted during the year - - -
Exercised - - - —
Lapsed during the year due to employees withdrawal - - - ~
Outstanding at 31 December 2.5 78,000 2.5 78,000

There were nil eptions exercisable at the end of the year.

All-employee share award

The Group launched its second free share award under its SIP in 2022, The award was £500 per fuill time employee and a pro-rated award for

all part time employees. This award offer was made to LSL employees who had joined the Group on or before 28 February 2022 and remained
employed and not serving notice at the date the shares were awarded in April 2022, The awards will normally become available for employees once
they have been held in the SIP for three years or more. The weighted average fair value at grant was £3.93. There were nil opticns exercisable at the
end of the year,

The Group’s first free share scheme awarded £500 per full time employee and a pro-rated award for all part time employees who had joined the
group on or before 31 March 2020 and were still employed and not serving natice at the time the grant was made con 1 October 2020. The awards
will normally become available for employees once they have been held in the SIP for three vears or more. The weighted average fair value at grant
was £2,19. There were nil options exercisable at the end of the year.

2022 2021

Weighted Weighted

average exercise average exercise

price price
£ Number £ Number
Cutstanding at 1 January - 704,216 — 832,514
Granted during the year - 501,891 - -
Lapsed during the year due to employees withdrawal - {191,713) - (128,698)
QOutstanding at 31 December - 1,014,394 — 704,216

Fquity-settied transactions
The assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of equity-settled options were as follows:

Lrp Share award \me SAYE

2022 2022 2021 2021

Option pricing model used Black Scholes  Black Scholes  Black Scholes  Black Scholes
Weighted average share price at grant date (£} 3.67 3.93 4.09 408
Exercise price (f) - - - 327
Expected life of options {years} 3 3 3 3
Expected volatiity {%) 100 100 100 100
Expected dividend yield (%) 3.77 3.77 2.94 2.94
Risk free interest rate (%) 1.93 1.93 0.00 0.00

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns, is based on statistical analysis of historical share price.
The dividend yield assumption is based on the fact that the shares awarded are not eligible to recelve dividends untit the end of the vesting period.
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14. Directors and g;ﬁpldieé;_[écnﬁuu_eﬂ] L

The total cost recognised for equity-settled transactions is as follows:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Share-based payment expense during the year 1,977 1,816

Acharge of £1.5m (2021: £1.1m) relates to employees of the Company.

15. Taxation

a) Taxation charge
The major companents of income tax charge in the Group Income Statement are:

2022 2021
£000 £'000
UK corporation tax — current year 5,783 7,873
—adjustment in respect of prior years {824) (251)
4,959 7,622
Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of temparary differences (176) (179)
Changes in tax rates (56) 562
Adjustment in respect of prior year 164 (20}
Total deferred tax {credit)/charge (68) 363
Total tax charge in the income statement 4,891 7,985

Corporation tax is recognised at the headline UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021: 19%).

The opening and closing deferred tax balances in the Financial Statements were measured at 25%. This is in line with rates enacted by the Finance Act
2021 which was enacted on 10 June 2021 and comes into effect from 1 April 2023.

The effective rate of tax for the year was (8.3%) (2021: 11.4%). The effective tax rate for 2022 is higher than the headline UK tax rate of 19% largely as
a result of the inclusion within the loss before tax of exceptional impairments to subsidiaries, which are not deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Deferred tax credited directly to other comprehensive income is £0.1m (2021: £0.1m debit). Income tax debited directly to the share-based payment
reserve is £0.1m {2021: £0.4m).

There is a prior year adjustment of £0.2m in relation to deferred tax, the majority of this adjustment relates to a lower tax base being attributable to
intangible assets than anticipated at the tax provisioning stage.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements comnued.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

b}  Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed in the profit and loss account is bigher than {2021: lower than) the standard UK corparation tax {CT) rate, because of the following
factors:

2022 2021

£'000 £000

{Loss/proht befare tax {59,126) 69,889
Tax calculated at UK standard CT rate of 19% (2021: 19%) (11,234} 13,279
Non-deductible expenditure/{non-taxable income) fram joint ventures and associates 94 {52)
Other disallowable expenses 16,837 431
Non-taxable gains on disposal of investments - {5,804)
Impact of movement in contingent consideration credited to the Income statement {118} {106)
Share-hased payment relief 78 {55)
Brought forward losses not previously recognised (50} -
Impact of rate change on deferred tax (56) 562
Prior period adjustments — current tax (824) (250)
Prior period adjustment — deferred tax 164 {20}
Total taxation charge 4,891 7.985

Other disallowable expenses of £15.8m {2021: £0.4m) includes the tax impact of exceptional costs of £16.6m {2023 : £nil), which are not taxable/
decuctible for tax purposes. This balance also includes the permanent disaffowance of depreciation on assets that do not qualify for capital
allowances, this is a recurring adjustment and the tax impact in the year is £0.1m (2021: £0.2m). The impact of non-taxable gains on disposal of
investments in 2021 relates to the disposal of the Group's interests In joint ventures LMS and TM Group.

There is a credit to the income statement of £0.8m in relation to a corporation tax prior year adjustment. The major components of this are,
utilisation of brought forward lesses (£0.3m credit), additional capital allowances (£0.1m credit} and a smaller proportion of legal fees being
disallowed (£0.1m credit).

¢}  Factors that may affect future tax charges {unrecognised)

2022 2021
£'D00 £000

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to:
Losses 2,653 2,973
2,653 2,973

The deferred tax assets may be recoverable in the future and this is dependent on subsidiary companies generating taxable profits sufficient to allow
the utilisation of these amounts. These deferred tax assets cannot be offset against profits elsewhere in the Group as they relate to losses brought
forward which can only be offset against taxable profits arising from the same trade in which the losses arose. There is no time limit for utilisation of
the above tax losses.

d) Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements in deferred tax is as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Net deferred tax liability at 1 January 2,073 1,822
Deferred tax hability arising on acquisitions and business combinations - 313
Deferred tax an acguisition -~ (161}
Deferred tax liability recognised directly in cther comprehensive income {28) (276)
Deferred tax {credit) in income statement for the year (note 15a) {68} 363
Deferred tax movement through opening reserves - 12
Reclassified as held for sale (note 30) 31 -
Net deferrad tax liability at 31 December 2,008 2,073




Analysed as:

At the end of either year there was nc unrecognised deferred tax fiability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's

2022 2021 Z
£000 £000 &
Accelerated capital allowances {1,318} {1,578) f
Deferred tax liability on separately identifiable intangible assets on business combinations 4,814 5,293 5
Deferred tax on financial gssets 13 144
Deferred tax on share optians {713) {393}
Other short term temporary differences (319) (312)
Trading losses recognised {500} (481)
Reclassified as held for sale {note 30) . 31 -
2,008 2,073
Deferred tax credit/(expense) in income statement relates to the following:
2022 2021
£000 £000 22
m A
Intangible assets recognised on business combinations 479 {948) EXy
Accelerated capital allowance (260) 76 3 gf
Deferred tax on share options (179) 359 EE
=1
Other temporary differences / 35 E*;%:
[ A R
Trading losses recognised 21 115 256
p=3
68 (363) g%
38
78
sa
o )
2
Q
a

subsidiaries,
16. Intangible assets
Goodwill
£000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 159,863
Arising on acguisitions 1,002
At 31 December 2021 160,865
Impairment (87,041
Reclassified as held for sale (note 30) (17,294)
At 31 December 2022 56,530
Net book value
At 33 December 2022 56,530
At 31 December 2021 160,865
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements coninves.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

16, Intangible assets jcontinued). o
The carrying ermount of goodwill by CGU is summarised below:
) 022 2021
£7000 £000
Financial Services segment companies
Group first (reclassified as held for sale — note 30) - 13,913
RSC {reclassified as held for sale ~ note 30) - 7,128
First Complete 3,998 3,598
Advance Mortgage funding 2,604 2,604
Personal Touch Financial Services 348 348
DLPS - 1,002
6,950 28,993
Surveying & Valuation segment company
e.sury 9,569 9,569
Estate Agency segment companies
Your Move and Reeds Rains 16,815 58,800
Marsh & Parsons {reclassified as held for sale — note 30) - 40,307
LSLi 22,512 22,512
Temploten LPA 336 336
Othars 348 348
40,011 122,303
Total 56,530 160,865

Impairment of gocdwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives

The Group tests goodwill and the indefinite life intangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators of impairment.
Goodwill and brands acquired through business combinations have been aliocated for impairment testing purpeses te statutory companies or Groups
of statutory companies which are managed as individual CGUs as follows:

* Financia! Services companies
— Group First
- RSC
- First Complete
— Advance Mortgage Funding
— Personal Touch Financial Services
~DLPS
* Surveying & Valuation company
—e.surv
+ Estate Agency companies
—Your Move and Reeds Rains {inciuding its share of cash flows from LSL Corporate Client Department)
—Marsh & Parsons
~iSLi
— Templeton LPA

- 5t Trinity
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16. Intangible assets

Recoverable amount of campanies

The recoverable amount of the Financial Services, Surveying & Valuation and Estate Agency companies has been determined based on a value-in-
use (VIU} calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by the Board and in the three year plan. Where
cash generating units have been designated as held for sale at the balance sheet date the recoverable amount has been calcutated as the CGU's

fair value less costs to sell {FVLCTS). The fair value of Group First, RSC and Marsh & Parsons has been determined using the arm'’s length sales price
for each business, which is the equivalent of the consideration received/receivable (discounted where appropriate) less transaction costs. This is

a level 3 measurement per the fair value hierarchy, based on a combination of earnings multiples ang uncbservable inputs. The key assumptions
are discount rate and earnings, for further infermation see note 30 and 34, respectively. The impairment review of Group First, RSC and Marsh &
Parsons was triggered by the Group’s decision to sell these CGUs. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections used in the ViU models is 14.2%
{2021: 12.2%) and cash flows beyond the three year plan are extrapoiated using & 2.0% growth rate (2021: 2.0%).

Following the impairment review, an impairment loss on goodwill of £87.0m {2021: £nil} was recognised in the income staterment. The impairment
loss was split between Financial Services £17.3m and Estate Agency £63.7m and further disaggregated by CGU as follows; Your Move and Reeds Rains
{£42.0m), Marsh & Parsens {£27.7m), DLPS (£1.0m}, Group First (£10.3m) and RSC {£6.0m). There were no impairment reversals during the period.

During December 2022 the Group made the strategic decision to sell both Group First and RSC to its joint venture partner Pivetal Growth and
separately made the decision to sefl Marsh & Parsons. The decision to sell Group First and RSC is consistent with the Group’s wider strategic
objectives to simplify the Group structure and grow the Financial Services business. Pivotal Growth’s focus is on the development of D2C mortgage
brokering and as such they are better placed to maximise the value of the companies. The sale of Group First and RSC completed on 13 January 2023,
Similar to Group First and RSC, the decision to sell Marsh & Parsons was made te further simplify the Group structure and focus on core opportunities
in Financial Services, whilst also reducing exposure to the volatile Londcn housing market.

in respect of Your Move and Reeds Rains and DLPS, changes in market conditions have resulted in downwards revisions to future cash flow forecasts
in comparison to December 2021 and this has been further exacerbated by a significant increase in discount rates. The recoverable amounts for
CGUs which have recegnised an impairment loss during the period have been calculzted as follows:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Recoverable amount
Your Move and Reeds Rains 16.7 63.1
Marsh & Parsons {reclassified as held for sale — see note 30) 28.9 55.7
DLPS 0.4 8.7
Group First {reclassified as held for sale — see note 30) 4.2 27.7
RSC (reclassified as held for sale ~ see note 30) 1.4 12.8
At 31 December 51.6 168.0

Key assurnptions used in value-in-use calculations
The calculation of value-in-use for each of the Financial Services, Surveying & Valuation and Estate Agency companies is most sensitive te the

following assumptions:
« Discount rates.

» Performance in the market.

Discount rates

Reflect management’s estimate of the post-tax Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Group end this is grossed up to arrive at a pre-tax
discount rate (using a tax rate of 25.0%) of 14.2% (2021: 12.2%). This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating performance and to
evaluate future acquisition proposals.

Performance in the market
Reflects how management believes the business will perform over the three year period and is used to calculate the value-in-use of the CGUs.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Sensitivity analysis has been performed to assess whether reasonzbly possible changes to key assumptions would lead to further impairments across
the Group and to highlight the extent to which the impairments recognised in Your Move and Reeds Rains and DLPS are impacted by changes in key
assumptions. f the post-tax discount rate was to increase by 1.0% the impairment charge in Your Move and Reeds Rains and DLPS would increase to
£44.0m and £1.2m respectively, as well as an impairment in LSLi of £2.1m. Similarly, if the terminal growth rate applied was reduced by 0.5% this would
increase the impairment charge recognised in Your Move and Reeds Rains and DLPS to £42.9m and £1.1m, as well as an impairment in LSLi of £0.8m. A
reduction in each of the three years of cash flow forecast by 10.0% would increase the impairment charges in Your Move and Reeds Rains and DLPS to
f44.5m and £1.2m, as well as an impairment in LSL of £2.5m. The recoverable amount of LSLi at 31 December 2022 was £25.8m (2021: £43.3m).
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements contnuee.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Other intangible assets

Brand Customer Lethrigs
names contracts contracts Cther! Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1January 2021 19,265 - 21,770 16,939 57,974
Additions - - - 2,191 2,191
Arising on acquisition - 625 - 3,428 4,053
At 31 December 2021 19,265 625 21,770 22,558 64,218
Additions - - - 2,881 2,881
Reclassified as held for sale {note 30} (12,163) - - {1,128) (13,291)
At 31 December 2022 7,102 625 21,770 24,311 53,808
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 191 - 17,692 12,197 30,080
Amortisation - 286 1,345 2,903 4,534
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 191 286 19,037 15,100 34,614
Amortisation — 3i3 1,163 2,636 4,112
Qther intangibles impairment - - - 117 117
Reclassified as held for sale (note 30} - - - (782) (782)
At 31 December 2022 191 599 20,200 i7,0M 38,061
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 6,911 26 1,570 7,240 15,747
At 31 December 2021 19,074 339 2,733 7,458 29,604
Note:
1 Other relates to in house soffware and Estate Agency franchise agreements.
The carrying amount of brand by operating unit is as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Financiat Services companies
Group First {reclassified as held for sale — note 30} - 396
Advance Mortgage Funding 180 180
RSC {reclassified as held for sale - note 30} - 43
180 619
Surveying & Valuation company
B.5unv 1,305 1,305
Estate Agency companies
Marsh & Parsons {reclassified as held for sale — note 30) - 11,724
Your Move 2,510 2,510
Reeds Ramns 1,241 1,241
LSLi 1,675 1,675
5,426 17,150
Total 6,911 19,074

intangibles transferred to held for sale consist of goodwill amounting to £17.3m and other intangibles with a net book value of £12.5m,
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Fisdure{ fithing:

Land and Leasehold WMator and computer
buildings improvements vehicles equipment Total

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 41,981 9,692 $,147 29,743 90,563
Additians 1,654 587 1,868 4,123 8,272
Acquisitions - - 20 8491 911
Disposals (2,468) (668) (2,032) {16,016) (21,184)
At 31 December 2021 41,207 9,611 9,003 18,741 78,562
Additions 2,069 242 2,075 1,785 7,171
Disposals (3,743} {660} {1,908) (1,082) (7,393}
Transferred to asset held for sale (note 30) {18,619) (7,747} {1,726) (3,524]) {31,616)
At 31 Decembar 2022 21,914 1,446 7,449 15,920 46,724
Depreciation and impairment
At 1lanuary 2021 12,875 5,709 4,820 24,318 47,822
Acquisitions - - 6 201 807
Charge for the year 6,138 902 2,419 3,041 12,500
Disposals {1,134} (630) {1,205} {15,968) (19,637)
At 31 December 2021 17,879 5,981 5,440 12,192 41,492
Charge for the year 5,831 860 1,969 2,969 11,629
Disposals {2,553) (499) {1,849) (1,079) {5,980}
Transferred to asset held for sale {(note 30) {6,300) {5,248) (1,087) (3,352) {15,987}
At 31 December 2022 14,857 1,094 4,473 10,730 31,154
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 7,057 352 2,971 5,190 15,570
At 31 December 2021 23,328 3,630 3,563 6,549 37,070
Property, plant and equipment 244 352 — 5,180 5,786
Right-of-use assets 6,813 - 2,971 - 9,784

7,057 352 2,971 5,190 15,570

In 2022, the Group disposed of assets with a net book value of £1.4m, including property, plant and equipment of £1.2m (of which £1,1m relates to
Estate Agency restructuring) and right-of-use assets of £0.2m. There were no proceeds asscciated with the disposals recognised in the year, a gain of
£8k has been recognised in the income statement relating to the disposal of right-of-use assets and associated liabilities.

The additions value consists of property, plant and equipment of £2.0m (2021: £4.7m) and right-of-use assets of £5.1m {2021: £3.6m}. Assets
transferred to held for sale include right-of-use assets with a net book value of £12.7m and property, plant and equipment with a net book value of

£2.9m.

In 2021 assets with a net book value of £1.5m were disposed of during the year. This included leasehold properties with a net book value of £0.6m
which were sold for net proceeds of £1.7m resulting in a profit on disposal of £1.1m. Of the £1.7m proceeds, £0.4m was received during the year and

the remaining £1.3m was included in receivables at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements conunues,
for the year ended 31 December 2022

;8. _?iqan_cial assels

2022 2021

£'000 £000

investment in equity instruments — at fair value
Unquoted shares at fair vaiue 1,000 5,418
IFRS 16 lessor financial gssets 45 30
1,045 5,748
Opening balance 5,748 9,561
Fair value adjustments through the income statement 678 14
Falr value adjustments through the QC! {5,096} (1,557)
Disposals {B8) (2,270)
Reclassified as held for sale {note 20) (217) -
Closing balance 1,045 5,748

Investment in equity instruments
The financial assets include unlisted equity instruments which are carried at fair value. Falr value is judgemental given the assumptions required and
have been valued using a level 3 valuation unless otherwise stated.

Yopa Property Limited

The carrying value of the Group’s investment in Yopa at 31 December 2022 has been assessed as £nil (2021: £4.5m). In determining the carrying
value the Group considered both the historic and current trading performance of Yopa, which continued tc be less making and the general market
share decline of hybrid estate agencies. In January 2023, the Group agreed to sell its shares in Yopa for £nil consideration based on third party
valuations provided to the existing shareholders,

Vibrant Energy Matters Limited (VEM)
The carrying value of the Group’s investment in VEM at 31 December 2022 has been assessed as £0.2m {2021: £0.7m), our valuation is based on a
four year weighted EBITDA multiple 2pplied to actual and forecast profits.

Global Property Ventures Limited
The carrying value of the Group's investment in Global Property Ventures Limited at 31 December 2022 has been assessed as £0.1m {2021: £0.1m).

NBC Property Master Limited
The carrying value of the Group’s investment at 31 December 2027 has been assessed as £nil {2021: £0.1m}.

Openwork Units
During the period the fair value of units held in The Openwork Partnership LLP was reassessed to £0.7m (31 December 2021: £nil), recognised in
other operating income. Our valuation is based on the average strike price for recently executed internal trading windows.
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. £000 £'000
Investment in joint ventures and associates 5,068 1,810
{nvestments in joint ventures
Opening balance 1,610 11,406
Disposal of LMS - (8,249)
Disposal of TMG - (3,120)
Dividend received from LMS - (1,178)
Equity investment in Pivotal Growth 3,952 2,477
Equity accounted {loss)/profit {494) 274
Closing balance 5,068 1,610
Pivotal Growth
Throughout 2022, the Group invested a further £4.0m in Pivotal Growth {Pivotal) and maintains a 47.8% holding in the entity.
The summarised financial infermation of Pivotal, which is accounted for using the equity method, is presented below:
2022 2021
£7000 £000
Pivotai balance sheet:
Non-current assets 11,827 2,549
Current assets {excluding cash and cash equivalents) 257 516
Cash and cash equivalents 1,986 1,763
Current liabilines {1,357) {991)
Non-current liabtlities (2,110) {469)
Net assets 10,603 3,368
LSL share of net assets 5,068 1,610
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Pivotal results:
Revenue 6,217 109
Operating expenses (6,974) {2,354)
Cperating loss (757) {2,245)
Finance costs {6) 1
Loss before tax (763) {2,244)
Taxation (269) 426
Loss after tax {1,032) {1,818)
LSL share of loss after tax (494) (R68)

Disposal and share of profit of LMS and TMG

In May 2021, the Group sold its 49.6% {2020: 50.0%) interest in LMS, a joint venture whose principal activity is to provide conveyancing panel
management services. The carrying value of LMS at the time of disposal was £8.2m. LSLreceived £12.0m as consideration for its share of LMS. The

associated share of profit from LMS in 2021 was £0.4m.

InJuly 2021, the Group sold its 32.34% {2020: 33.33%) holding in TM Group (TMG). The carrying value of TMG at the time of disposal was £3.1m.
LSL received £29.3m as consideration for its share of TMG, The associated share of profit from TMG in 2021 was £0.8m, with an additional £0.4m of

sharehotder service charges.

Claims indemnity provision and contingency

Included in the sale agreement of LMS was a claims indemnity of £2.0m, for which the Company has provided £0.6m, which it considers to be the
maost likely outcome. Further cases exist and are considered possible, not probabile, therefore no further provision has been made for these casesin

the Financial Statements. Should these ¢laims succeead the estimated further cost would be £1.4m.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements s
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

. L £'000 £000

Non-current contract asset 431 733
Current contract asset o 348 424
779 1,157

In the prior year, the Group entered imo a long term contract for the provision of mortgage and insurance advice in the Financial Services Division.
In accordance with IFRS 15, items relating to the reimbursement of costs associated with the award of material contracts in the Group have been
recognised as contract assets, This reimbursement will be amortised over the term of the contracts. The amount of amortisation recognised in the
income statement in 2022 is £0.4m {2021: £0.4m).

2021

£/000 £000

Current
Trade receivables 14,887 12,712
Prepayments 18,743 20,317
Other debtars 380 300
Reclassified to held for sale {note 30} {7,402) -
26,608 33,829

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are generally on 4 to 30 day terms depending on the services to which they relate, As at 31 December
2022, trade receivables with a nominal value of £3.0m (2021: £3.2m) were impaired and fully provided for. Set out below is the movement in the
zllowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:

2022 2021
£000 £000
At 1 January 3,248 4,040
Provision for expected credit losses 453 236
Amounts written off {713) (1,028)
At 31 December 2,988 3,248

The chosen method of recognising the expected credit loss across the Greup is the simplified approach allowing a provision matrix to be used, which
is based on the expected life of trade receivables, historic default rates and forward looking information.

As at 31 December, an analysis of gross trade receivables by credit risk rating grades s as follows:

Neither past due 60-90 50-120
Total nor impaired «30 days 3G-60 days days days >120 days
£'000 £'600 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
2022 17,875 9,571 2,504 780 329 211 4,480
2021 15,360 7.546 2,832 449 187 241 4,605

The expected credit loss rate applied by ageing bracket has been dis¢losed below:

Neither past due 60-90 90-120
nor impaired <30 days 30-60 days days days >12C days
2022 1.65% 7.77% 17.77% 36.79% 50.06% 50.68%
2021 0.70% 4.30% 13.50% 34.30% 46.20% 45.80%

During 2022 the expected credit loss rate applied to all 2ageing brackets over 30 days has increased due to a higher expectation of credit risk. This has
been driven by increased bad debt write offs in the year.
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22. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 3b, /55

43,464

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank overnight deposit rates. Cash of £3 4m has been reclassified to assets held for sale

{note 30).

23.Tradeandotherpayables

Current
Trade payables 8,416 8,20/
Other taxes and social security payable 11,764 12,247
Other payables 2,524 3,600
Accruals 25,430 35,222
Lapse provision 5,240 4,930
Reclassified to held for sale (note 30} (6,344) -
47,030 64,206
Lapse provision

Certain subsidiaries seli life assurance and general insurance products with terms from one to four years which are cancellable without a notice
period, and if canceited within a set pericd require that a portion of the commission earned must be repaid. The lapse provision is recognised as a
reduction in revenue which is based on historic lapse experience. The provision is managements best estimate of future clawed back commission on
life assurance policies, taking into account historic lapse rates in each subsidiary. I average lapse rates across all products sold were to increase by

1.0%, the total provision would increase by £0.3m.

Dilepidation provision
The Group recegnises its obligation to make goed its leased properties when it becomeas probable that there will be an econemic cutflow and a

reliable estimate can be made, this is typically where notice has been served to the landlord and there is an agreed exit date, The costs associated
with dilapidation provisions are included within accruals.

ncial Habilities
o ] 2021
£'000 £000
Current

{FRS 16 lessee financial liabilities 4,669 8,447
Cantingent consideration 2,280 76
6,949 8,523

Noan-current
IFRS 16 lessee financial liabilities 6,245 19,670
Contingent consideration 31 2,932
6,277 22,602

Bank loans — RCF and overdraft

In accordance with the terms at 31 December 2022, the utilisation of the RCF may vary each month as long as this does not exceed the maximum
£90.0m facility {2021 £90.0m). The Group’s overdraft is also secured on the same facility, and the combined overdraft and RCF cannot exceed

£90.0m (2021: £90.0in). The banking facility is repayable when funds permit on or by May 2024.

In February 2023, LSL amended and restated the RCF facility, the renewed facility now runs to May 2026 with a new limit of £60.0m.

The bank loan totalting £nil (2021: £nil) is secured via cross guarantees issued from the following businesses: LSL Property Services plc, Your-rmove.
co.uk Limited, Reeds Rains Limited, e.surv Limited, Lending Solutions Heoldings Limited, First Complete Limited, New Daffodil Limited, St Trinity
Limited, LSL Corporate Client Services Limited, Advance Mortgage Funding Limited, LSLi Limited, Davis Tate Limited, Lauristons Limited, David Frosts
Estate Agents Limited, ICIEA Limited, GFEA Limited, iNP Estate Agents Limited, Vitalhandy Enterprises Limited, Personal Touch Financial Services

Limited, Personal Touch Administration Services Limited and Embrace Financial Services Limited.

Fees payable on the RCF amounted to £1.0m during the year (2021: £1.0m) including amortisation of arrangement fees and non-utilisation fees.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements comnued,
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Contingent consideration

2022 2021

£:000 £000

RSC 2,280 2,615
DLPS 31 393
2,311 3,008

Current contingent consideration 2,280 76
Non-current contingent consideration 31 2,932
Total contingent consideration 2,311 3,008
Opening bafance 3,008 5,447
Cash paid {76) (2,462}
Acquistion - 579
Amounts recorded through income statement (621) {556}
Closing balance 2,31 3,008

RSC

£2.3m (2021: £2.6m) of contingent consideration relates to RSC. The movement relates to the assessment of the fair value of the contingent
consideration which has been calculated using earnings muitiples of between five and six times EBITA {plus excess cash in the business) and has been
capped at a maximum of £7.5m. The contingent consideration of £2.3m, in ne with the fair value recegnised at 31 December 2022 was subsequently
paid in January 2023.

Direct Life and Pension Services Limited
£0.03m of contingent consideration relates to DLPS, acquired in January 2021. The additional consideration has been calculated using earnings
multiple of four times EBITA. During 2022 £0.1m {2021: £2.4m} of contingent consideration was paid ic former shareholders.

The table below shows the allocation of the contingent consideration fincome}/charge between the various categories:

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Arrangement under IFRS 3 (696} (710}
Unwinding of discount on contingent consideration (note 7) 75 154
Credit to income statement (621} {556)

The contingent consideration charged to the income statement in the year, excluding the unwinding of discount relates te the previous acquisitions
of RSC, credit of £0.3m (2021: credit of £0.4m) and DLPS, credit of £6.3m {2021: £0.3m credit).

25 Provisiqgsr fgr Iiabiliﬁes ]

2022 2021

Pl claim Onerous ?l claim Onerous
provision leases Total provision leases Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 3,907 59 3,966 7.042 136 7,178
Amount utilised (762} (38} {800) (2,070) {67) {2,137)
Amount released (804} {7) (811) (1,641) (10) (1,651)
Provided i financial year - 107 107 578 — 576
Reclassified to held for sale {note 30) - (107) {107) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2,341 14 2,355 3,907 59 3,966
Current liabilitics 847 13 660 735 40 775
Non-current liabilities 1,694 1 1,695 3,172 19 3,191
2,341 14 2,355 3,907 59 3,966
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or Niabilities feontinued) "

Pl release
The Pl release consists of £0.7m of exceptional and £0.1m of non-exceptional.

Pi Costs {professional indemnity claims} provision
The P! Costs provision is to cover the costs of claims relating to valuation services for clients. The PI Costs provision includes armounts for claims
already received from clients, claims yet to be received and any other amounts which may be payable 25 a result of lega! disputes associated with the

provision of valuation senvces.

The proviston is the Director’s best estimate of the likely outcome of such claims, taking account of the incidence of such claims and the size of the
loss that may be borne by the claimant, after taking account of actions that can be taken to mitigate losses.

The PI Costs provision will be utilised as individual claims are settled, and the settlement amount may vary from the amount provided depending on
the cutcome of each claim. it is not possible to estimate the timing of payment of all claims and therefore a significant propartion of the provision has
been classified as non-current. Claims are settled, on average, 3.7 years after initial notification.

As at 31 December 2022 the total provision for Pl Costs was £2.3m. The Directors have cansidered the sensitivity analysis on the key risks and
uncertainties discussed above.

Cost per claim

A substantial element of the Pl Costs provision relates to specific claims where disputes are ongoing. These specific cases have been separately
assessed and specific provisions have been made. The average cost per claim has been used to calculate the elaims incurred but not yet reported
{IBNR}. Should the costs to settle and resolve these claims and future claims increase by 10%, an additional £0.1m would e reguired.

Rate of claim
The IBNR assumes that the rate of clairn for the high risk lending period in particular reduces over time. Should the rate of reduction be lower than
anticipated and the duration extended, further costs may arise. An increase of 30% in notifications in excess of that assurned in the IBNR rcalculations

would increase the required provision by £0.4m.

Notifications

The Group has received a number of notifications which have not deteriorated into claims or loss. Should the rate of deterioration increase by 50%,
an additional provision of less than £0.1m would be required.

At the vear ended 31 December 2022, the Group has the following in regards to leases in the Group Balance Sheet.

Right-of-use assets

2022 2021

Property Motor vehitles Total Property Motar vehicles Total

E'0D0 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

1lJanuary 22,788 3,550 26,338 27,544 4,218 31,762
Additians 3,356 2,075 5,431 1,694 1,868 3,562
Disposals {1,479) {52) {1,531} {350) (126} (476)
Depreciation {5,813) (1,963} {7,776} (6,100) {2,410) (8,510)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 30) {12,039) (639) (12,678) — - -
31 December 6,813 2,971 9,784 22,788 3,550 26,338

These are included in the carrying amounts of PPE on the face of the Group Balance Sheet and have been included in note 17.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wausuee.
for the year ended 31 Recember 2022

Lease liabilities

2022 o

) £000 £000
1 january 28,117 33,957
Additions 5,550 3,567
Interest expense 1,387 1,507
Dispasals (875) (485)
Repayment of lease liabilities (8,557} {10,429)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 30) (14,707) —
31 December 10,915 28,117

The Group added £5.5m (2021: £3.5m) of new lease liabifities in the year. The weighted average discount rate applied across the Group for these
additions was 7.21% (2021: 7.25%).

Maturity of these lease liabilities is analysed as follows:

Property Vehicles Total

£000 £'000 £000

Current lease liahilities 3,101 1,568 4,669
Non-current lease liabilities 4,481 1,765 6,246
31 December 2022 7,582 3,333 10,915

These are included in non-current and current financial liabilities on the face of the Group Balance Sheet, and have been included in note 24,
Maturity analysis of the future cash flows of lease lizbilities has been included n note 32.

The following shows how lease expenses have been included in the income statement, broken down between amounts charged to operating profit
and amounts charged to finance costs:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Property {5,813} (6,100}
Vehicles {1,863} (2,410)
Short term and low value lease expense (note 9) {2,646} (2,745)
Sublease incame 68 20
Charge to operating profit (10,354} {11,235)
Interest expense related to lease liabilities {1,387} (1,507)
Interest income related to sublease - —
Charge to profit before taxation {1,387) {1,507)
Cash cutflow relating to operating activities (4,101} 4,272)
Cash cutflow refating to financing activities {7,102) (8,902)
Total cash outflow relating to leases {11,203} (13,174)

At 31 December 2022 the Group had not entered into any leases to which it was committed but had not yet commenced,

27. Share capital

E 2021

Shares £000 Shares £000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of 0.2 pence each 500,000,000 1,000 500,000,000 1,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1January 105,158,950 210 105,158,950 210
Issued in the year - - - -
At 31 December 105,158,950 210 105,158,850 210
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Share premium
The amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value less any costs attributable to the issue of new shares,

Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve is used to record the value of equity-settled share-based payment provided to the employees, as part of their
remuneration. Note 14 gives further details of these plans,

Shares held by EBT

Shares held by EBT represent the cost ¢f LSL shares purchased in the market and held by the Trust to satisfy future exercise of options under the
Group’s employee share options schemes, At 31 December 2022 the Trust held 1,063,097 (2021: 1,042,276) LSL shares at an avarage cost of £3.72
(2021: £2.95). The market value of the LSL shares at 31 December 2022 was £4.1m (2021: £3.1m}. The nominal value of each share is 0.2 pence.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of LSL shares purchased in the market as a result of a share buy back scheme which commenced in April 2022 and
ceased in September 2022, At 31 Decernber 2022, LS. had repurchased 1,179,435 (2021: nil) LSL shares at an average cost of £3.38 {2021: £nil). The
market value of the LSL shares at 31 Decernber 2022 was £4.1m (2021: £nil). The nominal value of each share is 0.2 pence.

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve is used to record the changes in fair value of equity financial assets that the Group has elected to recognise through OCI.
Note 18 to these Financial Statements gives further details of the movement in the current year.

29. Pension costs and commitments ' ' ' '

The Group nperates defined contribution pension schemes for certain Executive Directors and certain employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from thase of the Group in independently administered funds.

The total contributions to the defined contribution schemes in the year were £7.8m (2021: £7.6m}. At 31 December 2022 there were outstanding
pensicn contributions of £0.9m (2021: £0.9m) included in trade and other payables.

30. Assets and liabilities heid for sale

Amounts categorised as held for sale include the assets and liabilities of RSC, Group First Limited and Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited and its
direct subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2022, the Group was in advanced discussions to dispose of Group First and RSC in a combined sale to the Group's joint venture

partner Pivotal Growth (Pivotal). At the same time, the Group was in initial discussions with a potential buyer to dispose of Marsh & Parsons. The
Group concluded that RSC, Group first and Marsh & Parsons satisfied the criteria to be classified as held for sale at 31 December 2022, the sales
concluded on 13 January and 26 January respectively.

Group First, RSC and Marsh & Parsons have been measured at their respective fair value less cost to sell (FYLCTS), which is the equivalent of the
consideration received/receivable less transaction costs. The censideration associated with the sales of RSC and Group First has been deferred to
2025 and therefore has been discounted in the calculation of the fair value, the Group has apglied a discount rate of 13.4%.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wimnues.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

The compaosition of assets and liabilities held for sale on the balance sheet is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Assets held for sale £'000
Goodwill 17,294
Other intangibles 12,509
Property, plant and equipment 15,629
Financial assets 217
Trade and other receivables 7,402
Deterred tax asset 31
Cash and cash equivalents 3,355
Total 56,437

Liahilities held for sale £7000
Trade and other payables 6,344
Financial liabilities 14,707
Pravisions 107
Current tax lfspility 772
Total 21,930

Goodwill was impaired by £44.0m {Marsh & Parsons: £27.7m, Group First: £10.3m, RSC £6.0m} prior to its classification as held for sale. Trade and
other payables of £6.3m as above, includes lapse provisions for both Group First and RSC of £0.7m, which has also been classified as held for sale,

The 2022 resuits for the businesses classified as held for sale are recognised in the table below:

£000
Revenue 43,022
Operating proht 2,375
Profit before tax 346
Loss after tax {9

31 Client monies

As at 31 December 2022, monies held by subsidiaries in separate bank accounts on behalf of clients amounted to £104.1m (2021: £101.1m). Neither
this amount, nor the matching liabilities to the clients cancerned are included in the Group Balance Sheet.

Client funds are protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme [FSCS) under which the Government guarantees amounts up to £85,000.
This guarantee applies to each individual client, not the total of deposits held by LSL.

32. Financial instruments ~risk management

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents with access to a £90m loan facility. The Group’s loan facility was
amended and restated during February 2023 with 2 new credit limit of £60m. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations and to fund acquisitions. The Group has various financial assets and labilities such as trade receivables, cash and short term
deposits and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group is exposad through its operations to the following financigl risks:
* interest rate risk;
» figuidity risk; and
* credit risk.

Policy for managing these risks is set up by the Board following recommendations from the Group Chief Financial Officer. Certain risks are managed
centrally, while others are managed locally following communications from the centre. The policy for each of the above risks is described in more
detal below.
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Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with floating interest
rates. The majority of external Group borrowings are at variable interest rates based on the Bank of England base rate plus a margin and this policy is
managed centrally. The subsidiaries are not permitted to borrow from external sources directly without approval from the Group Finance team.

The Group has not drawn down on its RCF facllity during the year to 31 December 2022 and therefore has incurred no interest, the amount shown in
nterest expense relates to the amortisation of the facility fees.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its operations, dividend policy and acquisition strategy. Acguisitions are
carefully selected with authorisation limits operating up to Board level and cash payback periods applied as part of the investment appraisal process.
in this way the Group aims to maintain s good credit rating to facilitate fundraising. The Group is also very cash generative as demonstrated by

the cash from operations. The Group has net current assets in the current year. The requirement to pay creditors is managed through future cash
generation and, if required, from the RCF.

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a recurring l:iquidity planning tool and daity cash flow reporting. This includes consideration
of the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (for example accounts receivable, and other financial assets) and projected cash
flows from operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility for potential acquisitions through
the use of its banking facilities.

Cash at the bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank overnight depesit rates. Short term deposits are made for varying periods of
time depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn varying interest rates. The fair value of cash and cash equivaients is
£40.1m, including £3.4m which is held within asset held for sale (2021: £48,5m). At 31 December 2022, the Group had available £90.0m of undrawn
committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met (2021: £90.0m).

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2022 based on contractual undiscounted
payments:

Year ended 31 December 2022

iess than
On demand 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years » 5 years Total
£'600 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables - 8,416 - - - 8,416
Other payables - 39,718 - - - 39,718
Contingent consideration - 2,280 - 31 -~ 2,311
Lease liabilities - 1,886 5,659 15,371 5,025 27,941
- 52,300 5,659 15,402 5,025 78,386

This includes all payable balances that have been transferred to liabilities held for sale.

Year ended 31 December 2021
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Less than

On demand 3 manths 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5years Total

£000 £000 £000 £/000 £000 £000
Trade payables — 8,207 - — - 8,207 o
Cther payables - 38,824 - - - 38,824 z
Confingent cansideration - 76 - 3,228 - 3,304 g
Lease liabilities - 2,003 6,008 16,364 7,082 31,467 F
- 49,110 6,008 19,592 7,092 81,802 g

The liquidity risk of each Group entity is managed centrally by the Group Treasury function. The Group’s cash requirement is monitored closely.

All surplus cash is held centrally to offset sgainst the Group’s borrowings and reduce the interest payable. The type of cash instrument used and
its maturity date will depend on the Group’s forecast cash requirements. The Group has a RCF with a syndicate of major banking corporations to
manage longer term borrowing requirements.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements cwomines.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

‘32 Financlal instruments ~risk management (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains appropriate capital structure to suppart its business
objectives, including any regulatory requirements, and maximise shareholder value. Capital includes share capital and other equity attributable to the
equity holders of the parent.

In the medium to long term, the Group will strive to maintain a reascnable leverage (ie balance between debt and equity) to help achieve the Group's
business objectives of growth (through acquisitions and organic growth) and meet its dividend policy. In the short term, the Group does not have a
set leverage ratio to be achieved but the Directars monitor the ratio of net debt to operating profit to ensure that the debt funding is not excessively
high.

The Group does not have a current ratic of Net Bank Rebt to EBITDA (2021 nil) due to a Net Cash position of £40.1m {2021: Net Cash £48.5m) and
operating profit before exceptional costs, amortisation and share-based payment charge of £36.9m {2021: £49.3m). The business is cash generative
with a low capital expenditure reguirement. The Group remains committed to its stated dividend policy of 30% of Group Underlying Operating Profit
after interest and tax. The Board has reviewed the poiicy in line with the risks and capital management decisions facing the Group.

Credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. The Group is exposed to a credit risk in respect of revenue transactions

{ie turnover from customers). It is Group policy, implemented locally, to obtain appropriate details of new customers before entering into contracts.
The majority of the Estate Agency customers use the Group's services as part of a house sale transaction and consequently the debt is paid from the
preceeds realised from the sale of the house by the vendor's solicitor before the balance of funds is transferred to the vendor. This minimises the risk
of the debt not being coliected.

Risk of exposure to non-return of cash on deposit is managed by placing funds with lenders who form part of the Group’s agreed banking facility
syndicate, which comprises several leading UK banks.

The majority of the Surveying & Valuation customers and those of the asset management business are large financial institutions and as such the
credit risk is not expected to be significant. The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented by the carrying value as at the
balance sheet date.

Financial instruments are grouped con a subsidiary basis to apply the expected credit loss model.

The chasen method of recognising the expected credit loss across the Group is the simplified approach atllowing a provision matrix to be used, which
is based on the expected credit life of trade receivables, historic default rates and forward Jooking information. Trade receivable balances are written
off when the probability of recovery is assessed as being remote.

Interest rate risk profile of financia! assets and liobilities
LSU's treasury policy is described above. The disclosures below exciude short term receivables and payables which are primarily of a trading nature
and expected to be settled within normal commercial terms.

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years Total
£/000 £'000 £000 £000 £/000

Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 40,109 - - - 40,109

This includes £3.4m of cash and cash equivalents held in assets held for sale.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabiities
There are no differences between the carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group’s financial instruments that are carried in the Financial
Statements.
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Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the fol'owing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the financial instruments by valuation technigue:

« Level 10 guoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= level 2:  other technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, elther directly or
indirectly; and

« level 3:  technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2022 £000 £000 £000 £/000
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets 1,045 = - 1,045
Liabilitias measured at fair value
Contingent consideration 2,311 - - 2,311
Financial assets includes £0.2m of IFRS 16 subleases held in assets held for sale.
Total Lavel 1 Level 2 tevel 3
2021 £7000 £000 £000 £000
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets 5,748 — - 5,748
Liabilities measured at fair value
Contingent consideration 3,008 - - 3,008

The fair value of equity financial assets that are not traded in the open market is £1.0m (2021: £5.7m), these are valued using level 3 technigues in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy and the Management Team use all relevant and up to date information (including cash flow forecasts and
financial statements) to arrive at their judgement. Where appropriate a range of potential cutcomes is considered in reaching a conclusion. If this was
to drop by 10%, the implied valuation is likely to alsc drop by around 10%, £0.1m.

The contingent consideration relates to emounts payable in the future on acauisitions. The amounts payable are based on the amounts agreed in the
contracts and based on the future profitability of each entity acquired. In valuing each provision, estimates have been made as te when the options
are likely to be exercised and the future profitability of the entity at this date. Further details of these provisicns are shown in note 24, Of the balance
held at 31 December 2022, £2.3m (2021: £2.6m) is in relation to contingent consideration on the original purchase of RSC, the final consideration was
agreed as at 31 December and was subsequently paid prior to the sale of RSC to Pivotal Growth in January 2023,
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements cntnues.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

As disclosed in note 13 LSL has one joint venture partrer, Pivotal Growth (Pivotal).

Transactions with Pivotal Growth and its subisidiaries

2022 2021

£7000 £000
Gross commission received 3,833 -
Commissions paid o broker businesses {3,421) -
Revenue recognisaed 412 -
Creditor at 31 December (3} -

Transactions with TM Group and its subsidiarjes
2022 2021

£000 £'000
Sales - 653
Purchaszes - {1,181}

Creditor at 31 December - —

Cn 13 January 2023, the Group announced the sale of Group First Limited {Group First) and RSC New Homes Limited {RSC} to Pivotal Growth Limited
{Pivotal Growth), the Group’s joint venture with Pallen Street Capitai. The consideration payable will be 7x the combined Group First and RSC EBITDA
in calendar year 2024, subject to working capral adjustments, capped at a maximurm of £20m. As disclosed in note 24 the contingent consideration
relating to the Group’s original acquisition of RSC of £2.3m was settled prior to the disposal.

On 26 lanuary 2023, the Group announced the sale of Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiary Marsh & Parsons Limited, together
“Marsh & Parsons” to a subsidiary of Dexters London Limited for a consideration of £23m payable on completion, subject to working capital
adjustments.

In February 2023, the Group amended and restated its banking facility which runs to May 2026 with a new limit of £60m; this replaced the previous
RCF which had a maturity date of May 2024 and credit limit of £90m.

0On 30 March 2023 the Group soid its 15.37% shareho!ding in VEM to Connells for a consideration of £0.2m, at 31 December 2622 the Group held its
investment in VEM at a fair value of £0.2m.

On 11 Aprii 2023, the Group announced the disposat of two further subsidiaries, Embrace Financial Services (EFS} and First2Protect (F2P) to Pivotal
Growth. The consideration payable for EFS will be 7x the EBITDA in calendar year 2024, subject to working capital adjustments, capped at a maxirmum
of £10m and payable in H1 2025. The consideration for F2P is £7.8m, which is 7x 2022 EBITDA and is payable on completion.

In April 2023, the Group invested an additional £0.2m into Pivotal Growth to continue to support its buy and build growth strategy.

The accounting for ail disposals noted above will be included in the 2023 interim Financial Statements.

35. Alternative performance measures .

In reporting financial informaticn, the Group presents APMs which are not defined or specified under the requirements of IFRS. The Group believes
that the presentation of APMs provides stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of the business but does not consider
them to be a substitute for or supericr to IFRS measures. Definitions and reconciliaticns of the financial APMs used in IFRS measures, are included
below.

The Group reports the following APMs:

a} Group and Divisional Underlying Operating Profit
Underling Operating Profit represents the profit/{less) before tax for the period before net finance cost, share-based payments, amortisation
of intangible assets, exceptional items and contingent consideration. This is the measure reported to the Directors as it is considered to give a
better and more consistent indication of both Group and Divisional underlying performance.
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The closest equivalent IFRS measure Underlying Operating Profit 1s profit/{loss} before tax. Refer to note 5 for a reconciliation between profit/
{loss) before tax and Group and Divis'onal Underlying Operating Profit

b} Group and Divisiona! Underlving Operating margin
Underlying Operating margin is defined as Underlying Operating Profit divided by revenue. Refer to note 5 for the calculation of both Group and
Divisional Underling Operating margin. The closest equivalent IFRS measure to Underlying Operating margin is Operating margin, refer to note 5
for a reconciliation between Operating margin and Group Underlying Operating margin.
c) Adpusted Basic Farnings per Share, adfusted difuted earnings per share ond adjusted profit after tax
Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share is defined as Grou;g Underlying Operating Profit adjusted for profit/{loss) attributed 1o nan-controlling
interests, net finance cost {excluding exceptional and contingent consideration items and discounting on leases) less normalised tax {to arrive at
adjusted profit after tax), divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the financial period. The effect of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares is incorporated into the diluted measure.
The closest equivalent {(FRS measures are basic and diluted earnings per share. Refer to note 11 for a reconciliation between earings/{loss) per
share and adjusted earnings per share.
d) Adjusted operating expenditure
Adjusted operating expenditure is defined as the total of employee costs, depreciation on property, plant and equipment and other cperating
costs and is considered to give a better and more consistent indication of the Group’s underlying operating expenditure.
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Total operating expenditure {378,447} (254,248)
Add back:
Other operating income {1,334} {937}
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets {8) {1,061)
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit from joint ventures and associates 494 (668)
Share-based payments 1,977 1,916
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,112 4,534
Exceptionai gains {694) (31,050}
Exceptional casts 88,898 2,045
Contingent consideration {696} {710)
Adjusted operating expenditure {285,698) {280,179)
e) MNet cash/debt

Net cash/debt is defined as current and non-current borrowings, less cash on short term deposits, IFRS 16 financiat liabilities, deferred and
contingent consideration and where applicable cash held for sale.

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Net Bank Cash/Debt is defined as follows:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings {including loan notes, averdraft, IFRS 16 Leases, contingent and
deferred consideration}
—Current 6,949 8,523
—Non-current 5,277 22,602
13,226 31,125
Less: cash and short term deposits (36,755) {48,464}
Less: IFRS 16 lessee financial liabilities (10,915) {28,117)
Less: deferred and contingent consideration {2,311} (3,008)
Less: cash included in held for sale {note 30) {3,355} —
Net Bank Cash/Debt (40,109) (48,464)
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements cninues.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

f} Adjusted cash flow from operations
Adjusted cash fiow from operations is defined as cash generated from operations, less the repayment of lease fiabilities, pfus the utilisation of PI

Provisions.
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Cash generated from operations 35,170 44,518
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (7,170} 18,922)
P! provision utilisation 762 2,070
Adjusted cash flow from operations 28,762 37,666

g} Cash flow conversion rate
Cash flow conversicn rate is defined as cash generated from operations (pre-Pl Costs and post-lease labilities, divided by Group Underlying

Operating Profit.
Adjusted cash flow from operations 28,762 37,666
Group Underlying Gperating Profit 36,888 49,319
Cash flow conversion rate 78.0% 76.4%

36. Subsidiary and joint venture comﬁén‘fés ‘

As at 31 December 2022, the Group owned directly or indirectly the following issued and fully paid ordinary and preference share capital of its
subsidiary undertzkings, all of which are incorporated in Great Britain, with the exception of Albany Insurance Company (Guernsey} Limited, which is
incorporated in Guernsey, and whaose operations are conducted mainly in the UK. The results for all of the subsidiaries have been consolidated within
these Financial Statements:

Registerad Proportion of
office naminal value
Name of subsidiary company 2ddress i5Lholding  LSLshareholder af shares held Nature of business
Lending Solutions Holdings Limited 1 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Helding Company
Lending Solutions Limited 1 Indirect Lending Solutions Holdings Limited 100% Non Trading
Financial Services
Direct Lite Quote Holdings Limited 2 Direct |SI. Property Services pic 89.5% Holding Company
Direct Life and Pension Services 2 Indirect Direct Life Quete Holdings Ltd 100% Financial Services
Limited
Direct Life Limited 2 indirect Direct Life and Pension Services 100% Non Trading
Lirnited
LifeQuote Limited 2 Indirect Birect Life and Pension Services 100% Non Trading
Limited
Embrace Financial Services Ltd® 2 Direct LSL Property Services ple 100% Financial Services
First2Protect Limited* 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Financial Services
Group First ttd? 2 indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Holding Company
Insurance First Brokers Ltd? 2 Indirect Group First Ltd 100% Financial Services
Mortgages First Ltd? 2 Indirect Group First Ltd 100% Financral Services
Reeds Rains Financial Services Limited 2 Indirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Financlal Services
RSC New Homes Limited? 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 70%! Financial Services and
Holding Company
RSC Protect Limited? 2 Indirect RSC New Homes Limited 160% Non Trading
Advance Mortgage Funding Limited 1 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Financial Services and
Holding Company
First Complete Limited 1 Indirect Lending Solutions Holdings Limited 100% Financial Services and
Helding Company
Linear Financial Services Limited 2 indirect Linear Financial Services Holdings  100% Non Trading
Limited
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Name of subsidiary company

Linear Financial Services Holdings

Limited

Linear Mortgage Network Holdings

Limited

Linear Mortgage Network Limited

Meartgape Gym Solutions Ltd

Personal Touch Administration
Services Limited

Personal Touch Financial Services

Limited

Qualis Wealth Limited
Surveying & Valuation
Atbany Insurance Company
{Guernsey) Limited

esurv Limited

Estate Agency — Asset Management
LSL Corporate Client Services Limited

St Trinity Limited
Templeton LPA Limited

Estate Agency — Residential Sales and Lettings

Airport Lettings Stansted Limited

Appleton Estates and Property
Management Limited

Bawtry Lettings and Sales Limited

Beldhamtand Limited®

Brown North Fast Lettings Ltd
Charterhouse Management {UK)
Limited

David Frost Estate Agents Limited

Davis Tate Ltd

EA Student Lettings Ltd

Eastside Property Developments Ltd

Elliott & Freeth Limited
Fourlet {York) Limited

Frant Door Property Management Ltd

GFEA Limited

Guardian Property Lettings Limited

Hawes & Co Limited

Hawes & Co {Thames Ditton} Limited

Headway Property Management
Limited

Registered Proportion of

affice nominal value

address LSLholding  L5L shareholder of shares held Nature of business

2 Indirect First Compfete Limited 100% Holding Company

2 Indirect First Compiete Limited 100% Holding Company

2 Indirect Linear Mortgage Network Holdings 100% Financtal Services

Limited

7 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Business and domestic
software development

Z Indirect Fersonal Touch Financial Services  100% Financial Services

Limited

2 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Financial Services

2 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Financial Services

7 Direct LS| Property Services plc 100% Captive Insurer

5 Direct LSL Property Services pic 100% Chartered Surveyors

1 Direct LSL Property Services ple 100% Asset Management

1 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Non Trading

1 Indirect First Complete Limited 100% Asset Management

2 Indirect ICIEA Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect Davis Tate Ltd 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

3 Indirect Marsh & Parsons Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect Vitathandy Enterprises Limited 100% Residential Sales and
tettings

4 Indirect LS540 Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

2 Indirect your-mave.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

b Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect Davis Tate Ltd 100% MNon Trading

2 Indirect Reeds Rains Lirmnited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect ICIEA Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect LSLi Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

2 Indirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Mon Trading

2 indirect LSLi Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

2 indirect Hawes & Co Limited 100% Non Trading

2 Indirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Non Trading
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continea.

for the year ended 31 December 2022

36. Subsidiary and joint venture companies {continued)

Registered Proportion of
office nominal value

Name of subsidiary company address LsL holding LSk shareholder of shares held Nature of business

Holloways Residentiai Ltd 2 Indirect your-mave.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Hoame and Student Link Limited 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Homefast Property Services Limited 2 Indirect Lending Solutions Holdings Limited 77.5% Conveyancing Packaging

Hydegate Limited 2 Indirect JNP Estate Agents Limited 100% Non Trading

ICIEA Limited 2 indirect LSLi Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

Inler County Lettings Limited 2 indirect ICIEA Limited 100% Non Trading

1Q Property (Hull} Limited 2 Indirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Non Trading

JNP Estate Agents Lirnited Indirect LSt Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

JNP Estate Agents (Princes 2 Indirect JNP Estate Agents Limited 100% Non Trading

Risbareugh) Limited

JNP (Residential Lettings) Limited 2 Indirect JNP Estate Agents Limited 100% Non Trading

JNP {Surveyors) Limited 2 indirect LSLi Limited 100% Non Trading

Kent Property Solutions Lirnited 2 indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

LSL Land & New Homes Ltd 2 indirect your-move,co.uk timited 100% Residental Sales

Lauristans Limited 2 indirect LSLi Limited 100% Residential Sales, Lettings
and Holding Company

LetCo Group Limited 2 indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Holding Company

LetCo Limited 2 Indirect LetCo Group Limited 100% Non Trading

Lets Move Property Limited 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Longshoot Properties Limited 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

LSLi Limited 1 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Holding Company

Marsh & Parsons timited? 3 indirect Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) 100% Residental Sales, Lettings

Limited and Holding Company

Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited® 2 Direct LSL Property Services pic 100% Holding Company

Marsheroft Properties Limited? 3 Indirect Marsh & Parsons Limited 100% Non Trading

New Daffodil Limited pd Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Non Trading

New Let Limited 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Neon Trading

Oakley Lettings Limited 2 Indirect CIEA Limited 100% Non Trading

Paul Graham Lettings & Management 2 Indirect GFEA Limited 100% Non Trading

Ltd

Philip Green Lettings Limited 2 Indirect JNP Estate Agents Limited 100% Non Trading

PHP Lettings Scotland Limited 4 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Prestons Lettings Ltd 2 Indirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Non Trading

Pygott & Crone Lincoln LetSngs 2 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Limited

Reeds Rains Limited 2 Direct LSL Property Services plc 100% Residential Sales, Lettings,
Financial Services and
Holding Company

Reeds Kains Cleckhealon Limited 2 Iindirect Reeds Rains Limited 100% Non Trading

Simply Let Ltd. 4 Indirect your-move.co.uk Limited 100% Non Trading

Thomas Morris Limited 1 Indirect LSt Limited 100% Residential Sales and
Lettings

Top-Let Limited 2 Indirect LetCo Group Limited 100% Non Trading

Vanstons (Barnes} Limited? 3 Indirect Marsh & Parsons Limited 100% Non Trading

Vanstons Commercial Limited® 3 Indirect Marsh & Parsons Limited 100% Non Trading

Vanstons Lettings Limited?® 3 Indirecl Marsh & Parsons Limited 100% Non Trading
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Registered Propartion of
office nominal value
Name of subsidiary company address LSLhalding  LSL sharehoider of shares held Nature of business
Vanstons Limited® 3 Indirect Marsh & Parscons Limited 100% Non Trading
Vitalhandy Enterprises Limited 2 Indirect LSLi Limited 100% Holding Company
Warners Letting Agency Limited 2 indirect ICIEA Limited 100% Non Trading
Woollens of Wimbledon Limited 2 Indirect Lauristons Limited 100% Naon Trading
Yates Letiings Limited 2 Indirect Davis Tate itd 100% Non Trading
your-move.co.uk Limited 1 Indirect Lending Selutions Holdings Limited 100% Residential Szles, Lettings,
Financial Services and
Holding Company
Lawlors Property Services Limited 2 fndirect ICIEA Limited 100% Non Trading
Joint Ventures and Asscciates
Mottram TopCo Limited 8 Direct LSL Property Services plc 47.7% Joint Venture — Holding
Company
Mottram MidCo Limited 8 Indirect Motiram TopCo Limited 100% Joint Venture — Holding
Company
Pivetal Growth [imited 8 Indirect Mottram MidCo Limited 51.4% Joint Venture — Financial
(100% voting) Services
Mortgage Gym Limited {in G Direct LSL Property Services ple 45.2% Associate — Financial

administration}

Notes:

1. On 12 January 2023 your-move.co.uk Limited’s shareholding in RSC New Homes Limited increased to 100%.

2. 0On 12 January 2023 your-move.co.uk Limited sold to Pivotat Growth Limited:

« Group First Ltd and its subsidiaries Insurance First Brokers Ltd and Mortgages First Ltd; and
+ RSC New Homes Limited and its subsidiary RSC Protect Limited.

3. On 26 January 2023 LSU's holding in Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited and Its subsidiaries Marsh & Parsons Limited, Beldhamland Limited, Marshcraft Properties
Limited, Vanstons (Barnes) Limited, Vanstons Commercial Limited, Vanstons Lettings Limited and Vanstons Limited was sold to & subsidiary of Dexters London Limited.

4. On 11 April 2023 your-move.co.uk Limited sold First2Protect Limited to Pivotal Growth Limited.
5. On 11 April 2G23 LSL Property Services plc sold Embrace Financial Services Ltd to Pivotal Growth Limited.

Audit exemptions under section 479a of the Companies Act
The following twelve Groups subsidiaries are exempt from audit of individual accounts under section 479a of the Companies Act 2006:

1. tending Solutions Holdings Limited {05095079)
2. Reeds Rains Financial Services Limited (08130339)
3. New Daffodil Limited (02045933)

4. Templeton LPA Limited (06507759)

5. StTrinity Limited (07092652)

6. Maortgage Gym Solutions Ltd {12460735)

7. LSLLand & New Homes Ltd (09018581)

8. LSL Corporate Client Services Limited (07299192)

9, linear Mortgage Network Limited (05198588)

10. Personal Touch Administration Services Limited {03456365)

11. Qualis Weatth Limited (11784115)

12. Direct Life Quote Holdings Limited (10283300)

Services
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements wwnues.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Registered office addresses:
1. Newcastle House, Albany Court, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE4 7YB

2. Howard House, 3 5t Mary's Court, Blossom Street, York, Y024 1AH

3. 80 Hammersmith Read, London, W14 8UD

4. 25 North Bridge Street, Bathgate, West Lothian, EH48 4P)

5. Unit 1, Orion Park, Kettering, Northamptonshire, NN15 6PP

6. C/O Restructuring Advisory LLP, Central Square, 5% Floor, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds, LS1 4DL
7. The Albany, South Esplanade, $t Peters Port, Guernsey, GY1 4NF

& 11-12 Hanover Square, London, W1S 1))
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2022 Company No. 05114014
T 2021
2022 {Restated}*
Note £000 £°000
Non-current assets g
Other intangible assets 3 79 79 %
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,945 8 ;:
Investment in subsidiaries 5 116,666 179,718 =
Financial assets 6 115 4,610
Investment in joint ventures and associates 7 5,068 2,477
Trade and other receivables 8 18,079 21,336
Deferred tax asset 11 1,019 578
142,971 208,806
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 8 20,376 15,102
20,376 15,102 e
Assets held for sale 18 28,850 - ag
49,226 15,102 g §
Total assets 192,197 223,908 2%
Current liabiities | %g
Trade and other payables 9 (85,536)  (71,754) :i;%
Financial llabilities 10 {4,826) (5,024} % 2
{90,362) (76,778) oZ
Non-current liabilities = 3 g
Financial liabilties 10 (31) 1317) @ §§
Total liabilities {90,393) (Froos) @ F°
Net assets 101,804 146,813 E
Equity -
Share capital 12 210
Share premium account 132 5629 5629 s
Share-based payment reserve 13 5,331 %
Shares held by employee benefit trust 13 {5,457) %
Treasury shares 13 (3,983) §
Fair value reserve 13 (20,130)  {15,695] %
Retained earnings 13 120,264 154,469
Total equity 101,804 146,813

* The 2021 balance sheet has been restated to reclassify intercompany receivables from current to non-current. See note 1 for further details.

As permitted by Section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account of the Company is presented. The loss after tax for the
financial year of the Company was £22.4m {2021: £41.0m profit after tax). The notes on pages 166 to 176 form part of these Financial Statements,

The Financial Statements were approved by and signed on behalf of the Board by:

|
|

=

g

3

Q
David Stewart Adam Castleton “34
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Cfficer §'
12 April 2023 12 Aprd 2023
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Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 Cecember 2022

2022 2021

Note £000 £000
Parent upeiating loss/{prolil) bofors tox (22,975) 12,641
Adjustments for:
Exceptional items {45) (23,021)
Impairment of investments 5 34,652 -
Impairment of receivabies g, 18 5,684 —
Depreciation of tangible assets 4 1,175 4
Share-based payments 1,527 1,102
l.oss from joint ventures 7 1,361 -
Finance income (80) (14)
Finance costs 1,261 1,085
Dividend income (27,000) {29,000)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (4,440) (7,190)
Movements in working capital
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (6,430) 18,213
Increasef{decrease) in trade and other payables 13,465 {(41,537)

7,035 {23,324)

Cash generated from operations 2,595 (30,514)
Interest paid {1,181) (1,098)
Income taxes paid {1,271) (8,2439)
Net cash generated from operating activities 143 (39,861)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Investment in financial assets 6 - {14)
Investment in joint venturas {3,952) (2,477)
Proceeds from sale of joint venture - 41,349
Acguisition ef subsidiary - {1,800}
Dividends received from subsidiaries 27,000 29,000
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {3,112) (51)
Net cash generated on investing activities 19,936 66,007
Cash flows used in financing activities
{Repayment}/drawdown of loans - {13,000)
Repayment of overdraft {122} {8,980)
Purchase of LSL shares by the employee benefit trust {5,026) -
Repurchase of treasury shares {3,983) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 825 -
Payment of lease liabilities - -
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent (11,773) {4,166}
Net cash {expended) in financing activities {20,079) {26,146)

Net increase/f(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 166 to 176 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

far the year ended 31 December 2022

Share-
based Shares
Issued Share payment held Treasuny Fair value Retained p
capital premium reserve by EBT shares resenva earnings Total ;“1
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 .
As at 1 January 2022 210 5,629 5,263 {3,063) - {15,695) 154,468 146,813 ;
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - - %
Prefit for the year - - - - - - {22,431) (22,431}
Revaluation of financial assets - - - - - {4,495) - 4,495}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - {4,495} (22,431) (26,926}
Shares repurchased into treasury - - - - (3,983) - - (3,983}
Shares repurchased inte EBT - - - {5,026} - - - {5,026)
Exercise of options - — {1,806) 2,632 — — {1) 825
Share-based paymeant transactions - - 1,977 — - — — 1,977
Tax on share-based payments - - (103) - - - - {103)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (11,773) (11,773) B
As at 31 December 2022 210 5,629 5,331 {5,457} {3,083) (20,1900 120,264 101,804

During the vear ended 31 December 2022, the Trust acquired 1,351,000 LSL shares. During the period, 890,146 share options were exercised relating
to LSU's varfous share option schemes resulting in the shares being sald by the Trust. LSL received £0.8m on exercise of these options.

The notes on pages 166 to 176 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Share-
based Shares .
Issued Share payment held Fair value Retained i
capital premium reserve by EBT reserve earnings = - '_l'utal
£'000 £000 E'000 £000 £000 £000 . £000
As at 1 January 2021 210 5,629 3,942 {5,012) {33,695) 117,113 108, l‘g_g ,
Other comprehensive incomne for the year - - - - - T, i
Profit for the year - - - - - 41,028 41,028 | . -
B I
Revaluation of financial assets - - - - {2,000) - (2,000} | . §
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - {2,000) 41,028 39,028 . %
Exercise of aptions - — {930} 1,945 - 488 1,447 g ]
Share-based payment transactions - — 1,916 — — - 1,916___; é
Tax on share-based payments - - 365 - - - 3595 ' : ®
Dividends paid - - - - - (4,166) _ (4,166) |
As at 31 December 2021 210 5,629 5,263 (3,063) (15,695) 154,469 146 813 i

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trust acquired nil LSL shares. During the period, 555,824 share options were exercised relatlng to LSL‘ ; ‘
various share option schemes resulting in the shares belng sold by the Trust. [SL received £1.4m on exercise of these options. ;

The nctes on pages 166 to 176 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 Deceamber 2022

Basis of preparation
The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted IAS. The Company Financial Statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis and on a historical cost basis, except for, certain debt and financial assets and hatulities that have been measured at fair

value.

The accounting policies which folow set out those significant policies which apply in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2022. The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds
(£7000) except when otherwise indicated.

In preparing the Parent Company Financial Statements management has considered the impact of cliimate change, taking Into account the relevant
disclosures in the Strategic Report. The impact of climate-related risks on the Group Financial Statements have been disclosed in the Group basis of
preparation note. The extent 1o which the Group climate-related risks affect the Parent Company accounts is focused on how medium tofong term
risks may impact our future revenue profile, which could further impact the carrying value of investments. The potential impact of climate-related
risks on the Parent Company’s impairment assessment is considered sufficiently remote at this point in time and therefare no sensitivity analysis has
been performed.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Company Financial Statements are consistent with those folicwed in the preparation of the
Company Annuzl Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial information in conformity with UK adopted 1AS, requires the Management Team to make judgements, estimates and
assumgptions that affect the application of policies and reporting amounts of assets and liabllities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasenable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

» judgements
There are no areas of judgement that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements of the Company.

» Estimates
The key assumpticn affected by future uncertainty that has significant risks of causing material adjustment to the carrying value of assets and
tiabilities within the next financial year is:

Valuation of financial assets

The Company owns non-controlling interests in a number of unlisted entities. The Company uses valuation techniques to measure fair value of
finzncial assets, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 2nd minimising the use of unobservable inputs. The fair value of equity financial
assets that are not traded in the open market are valued using the best information available in the circumstances, including cash flow forecasts and
financial statements, to arrive at the fair value. Where appropriate a range of potential outcomes is considered in reaching a conclusion. Further
details of the methedology used are disclosed in note 18 to the Group Financial Statements.

Income taxes

Current tax assets and liahifities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Management Team periodiczally evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to the situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the Financial Statements, with the following exceptions:

« where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in & transaction that is not a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
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* inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences wilt not reverse in the fareseeable future; and

+ deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is
realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are
reassessed at each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will alfow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset, only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liahilities,
the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority and that authority permits the Group to make a single net payment. Income tax is
charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, if it relates to items that are charged or credited in the current or prior periods
to other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Ctherwise income tax is recognised in the income statement.

Pensions
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees of the Company. The assets of the scheme are invested and managed
independently of the finances of the Company. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable in the year.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee share option plans and share award scheme, which are all equity-settled, is calculated at the grant date using the Black
Scholes model. The resulting cost is charged to the Company income statement over the vesting pericd. The value of the charge is adjusted to reflect
expected and actual levels of vesting.

Treasury shares

Where the Company repurchases shares from existing shareholders, they are held as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or canceilation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Treasury
shares are ignored for the purpeses of calculating the Group's earnings per share.

Shares heid by EBT

The Greup has an employee share scheme (ESOT) for the granting of LSL shares to Executive Directors and selected senior employees and an
employee share incentive plan (Trust). Shares in LSL held by the ESOT and the Trust are treated as treasury shares and presented in the balance sheet
as a deduction from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments. The finance costs and administration costs relating ta the ESOT and the Trust are charged to the income statement. Dividends
earned on shares held in the ESOT and the Trust have been waived.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The cost of an investment is measured as the aggregate cf the consideration
transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value. Any contingent consideration will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised through profit and loss.

Investments are reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may be
impaired.

Invastments in joint ventures and associates
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is net controf or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 1o the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists cnly when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous censent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements connes.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Accounting policies fcontintied) - ; IR - o :
Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment, Investments are reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may be impaired. The cost of an investment is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value. Any contingent consideration will ba recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell (FVLCTS) and value-in-use (VIL}. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
armount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing an asset’s VIU, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated
on a straight-line basis to its residual value over its anticipated useful economic life:

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings - over three to seven years
Computer equipment — over three to four years
Leasehold improvemenits — over the shorter of the lease term or ten years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. These assets’ residual values, usefu! lives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the
case of financial assets not at fair value through the income statement, directly attributabie transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when
the Company no longer has the rights to cash flows, the risks and rewards of ownership or control of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancellad or expires. Alf regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, being the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way transactions require delivery of assets within the
timeframe generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their elassification.

The Company’s accounting poligy for each category of financial instruments is as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCl (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl when they meet the definition of equity under IFRS 3 Financial instruments and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits frem such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company’s accounting policy for each category of financial instruments is as follows:

Interest-bearing toans and horrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on repurchase, settlement
or otherwise cancellation of lizghilities are recognised respectively in finance income and finance costs. Finance costs comprise interest payable on
borrowings calculated at the effective interest rate method and recognised on an accruals basis. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when
incurred.

163



Trade recervables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their original invoiced value as reduced by appropriate aliowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. The expected credit loss moded under IFRS 8 s applied to trade and other receivables.

intercompany receivables

Intercompany receivables are classified as current where the balance is expected to be repaid in the next 12 months. The Company recognises a loss

aliowance based on the hfetime expected credit loss for intercormpany receivables at each reporting date.

Restatement of December 2021 Parent Company Balance Sheet

Following a review of the Company’s historic practice and future plans not to call on all intercompany loans in the short term, £21.3m of current
intercompany receivables at 31 December 2021 have been classified to non-current in line with 1AS 1. This reclassification has no fmpact on net
assets, result for the year or cash flows. The impact on the 31 December 2020 balance sheet would be to reclassify £17.1m of current intercompany

receivables 1o non-current intercompany receivables.

2. Cash fiow from financing activites &

At 1 January Foreign Unwind of At 31 December

022 Cash flow Acquisihions exchange discount 2022

£000 £Go0 £000 £000 £'000 £°000

Shart term liabilities 4,948 (122} - - - 4,826
Long term liabilities - - - — - -
4,948 (122) - - - 4,826

Short term liabifities

At 31 December 2022 short term liabilities were made up of the bank overdraft of £4.8m (2021: £4.9m) and unsecured ioan notes £nil {2021: £nit)

{see note 10).

Long term liabiiities
At 31 December 2022 the long term habilities were made up of the bank loan of £nil (2021: £nil) {see note 10).

3.intangible assets i ' . ' .

Software Total
£000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2022 79 79
Additions - -
As at 31 December 2022 79 79
Amortisation
At 1 January 2022 — -
Amortisation - -
As at 31 December 2022 - -
Net book value
As at 31 December 2022 79 79
As af 31 December 2021 79 79
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements cosnues.
for the yvear ended 31 December 2022

Fixtures, fittings

Land and Leasehold and computer
buildings Improvemaents equipment Total
£7000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 30 74 120 284
Additions - = - -
At 31 December 2021 a0 74 120 284
Additions - - 3,112 3,112
At 31 December 2022 a0 74 2,232 3,396
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 a0 67 115 272
Charge for the year - - 4 4
At 31 December 2021 90 67 1i9 276
Charge for the year - - 1,175 1,175
At 31 December 2022 90 67 1,294 1,451
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 - 7 1,938 1,945
At 31 December 2021 - 7 1 8
Qwned assets - 7 1,938 1,545
Right-of-use assets - - - -
- 7 1,933 1,945

5. Investment in subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries held directly and indirectly by the Company are shown in note 36 to the Group Financial Statements.

2022 2021

£'000 £000

At 1January 179,718 187,192
Additions - 2,379
Adjustments for share-based payment 450 847
Impairment in cost of investments {34,652) (10,700)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 18} {28,850) -
At 31 December 116,666 178,718

In 2022 there was an increase of £0.5m (2021: increase of £0.8m) on investment in subsidiaries for share-based payments, representing the financial
effects of awards by the Company of cptions over its equity shares to employees of subsidiary undertakings. The total contributicn to date is £9.0m.

'n 2022 the Company recognised a total impairment of £34.7m {2021: £10.7m) to investments in subsidiaries, disaggregated as follows: Albany £3.0m
{2021: £10.7m}, DILPS £2.0m, Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited £17.0m and Reeds Rains £12.7m. The impairments are a result of the Group’s
assessment of recoverability of each of the investments.

The charge was calculated based on the recoverable amounts of each of the investments, the recoverable amounts are based on the higher of
investmenits value-in-use (VIU) or fair value less cost to sell (FVCLTS), investments in subsidiaries held for sale {as per note 30 to the Group Financial
Statements} have been written down to their FVLCTS. The fair value of Marsh & Parsons {Holdings} Limited has been determined using the arm’s
length sales price, which is the equivalent of the consideration received/receivable less transaction costs. This is a level 3 measurement per the fair
value hierarchy and is based on unabservable inputs. Where the recoverable amount has been assessed based on a VIU calculation, a discount rate of
14.2% (2021: 12.2%) and terminal growth rate of 2.0% (2021: 4.0%) has been applied.

The carrying value of investments which have been impaired during the year at 31 December 2022 are as follows, Albany £4.6m, DLPS £0.4m, Marsh
& Parsons (Hoidings) Limited £28.9m and Reeds Rains £16.4m.
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Sensitivity to change in assumptions

Sensitivity analysis has been performed for these investments which have recorded an Impairment charge during the period, to assess the extent
to which reasonably passible changes in key sssumptions would impact the impairment charge. Sensitivity analysis has only been performed for
investments where the recoverable amount has been calculated by applying the ViU methadology, being Albany, DLPS and Reeds Rains. If the post-
tax discount rate was to increase by 1.0% the impairment charge would increase to £3.3m in Albany, £2.1m in DLPS and £14.2m in Reeds Rains,
Similarly, if the terminal growth rate was to reduce by 0.5% this would result in an increase in the impairment charge in Albany and Reeds Rains to
£3.2m and £13.3m respectively, however the charge in DLPS would remain the same. A reduction of 10% in the future cash flow forecasts used to
calculate the ViU would increase the impairment charge to £3.5m in Albany, £2.1m in BLPS and £14.6m in Reeds Rains.

2022 2021

£/000 £7000
Investment in equity instruments — at fair value
Unguoted shares at fair value 115 4,610
115 4,610
At 1 January 4,610 8,846
Additions - 14
Disposals - 2,250}
Revaluation {4,495) {2,000}
115 4,610

At 31 December

Investment in equity instruments
The financial assets include unlisted equity instruments which are carried at fair vaiue. Fair value is judgemental given the assumptions required and

have been valued using a fevel 3 valuation technigue (see note 22 to the Group Financial Statements}.

Yopa Property Limited
The carrying value of the Group's investment in Yopa at 31 December 2022 has been assessed as £nil {2021: £4.5m). In determining the carrying

value the Group censidered both the histeric and current trading performance of Yopa, which continued to be loss making and the general market =
share decline of hybrid estate agencies, In January 2023, the Group agreed to sell its shares in Yopa for £nil consideration based on third party g‘
valuations provided to the existing shareholders. g
g
7. Investment in Joint ventures and associates g
2022 2021 =
£'000 £000
At cost
At 1January 2,477 7,235
Equity investment in Pivotal Growth 3,952 2,477
Disposal of LMS and TMG - (7,235)
Equity accounted loss {1,361) -
At 31 December 5,068 2,477

$1033050
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Claims indemnity provision and contingency
In May 2021, the Company sold its 49.6% interest in LMS. included in the sale agreement of LMS was a claims indemnity of £2.0m, for which the

Company has provided £0.6m, which it considers to be the most likely outcome. Further cases exist and are considered possible, not probable,
therefore no further provision has been made for these cases in the financial statements. Should these claims succeed the estimated further cost
would be £1.4m.

Pivotal Growth
A further £4.0m equity investment in Pivotal was made throughout 2022,
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements wnunues.
far the year ended 31 December 2022

8. Trade and ther receivables
202;‘
2027 (Restated}
£000 £7000
Non-current
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 18,079 21,336
18,079 21,336
Current
Group relief receivable 15,100 13,829
Prepayments 2,392 793
Other taxes and social security 151 117
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 2,733 263
20,376 15,102

The expected credit loss relating to intercompany receivables is £5.7m at 31 December 2022 {31 December 2021: £0,.0m) and non-current
intercompany receivables are presented net of this provision. No allowance for expected credit losses is deemed necessary in respect of current

intercompany receivables.

9. Trade and other payables
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade payables 525 327
Accruals 1,968 3,299
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 83,043 68,128
85,536 71,754
2022 2021
£000 £'000

Current liabilities

Contingent consideration - 76
IFRS 16 lessee financial liabilities - -
Bank overdraft 4,826 4,948
4,826 5,024

Non-current liabilities

Contingent consideration 31 317

Bank loans — RCF - —
31 317

Bank loans ~ RCF and averdraft
The Company’s bank loan tetals £nil (2021: £nil} and the Company’s overdraft totals £4.8m (2021: £4.9m).

In accordance with the terms at 31 Dacember 2022, the utilisation of the RCF may vary each month as long as this dees not exceed the maximum
£90.0m facility (2021: £90.0m}. The Group's overdraft is also secured on the same facility, and the combined overdraft and RCF cannot exceed
£90.0m {2021: £90.0m). The banking facility is repayable when funds permit on or by May 2024.

In February 2023, L5L amended and restated the RCF facility, the renewed facility now runs to May 2026 with a new limit of £60.0m. The interest
rate applicable to the facility signed in February 2023 is SONIA plus & margin rate, the margin rate is linked to the leverage ratio of the Group and is
reviewed at six-monthly intervals.

The bank loan totalling £nil {2021: £nil) is secured via cross guarantees issued from the following businesses: LSL Property Services plc, your-move,
co.uk Limited, Reeds Rains Limited, e surv Limited, Lending Soluticns Holdings Limited, First Complete Limited, New Daffod:t Limited, St Trinity
Limited, LSL Cerporate Client Services Limited, Advance Mortgage Funding Limited, LSU Limited, Davis Tate Limited, Lauristons Limited, David Frosts
Estate Agents Limited, ICIEA Limited, GFEA Limited, NP Estate Agents Limited, Vitalhandy Enterprises Limited, Personal Touch Financial Services
Limitad, Personal Touch Administration Services Limited and Embrace Financial Services Limited.
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2012 2021

£000 £:000
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset at 1 January 578 122
Deferred tax credit/{charge) tn profit and loss account for the year 338 180
Deferred tax credit/{charge) to other comprahensive income 103 276
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 1,019 578

At December 2022, a deferred tax asset is recognised in relation to share-based payments of £0.9m (2021: £0.6m) and accelerated capital allowances
of £0.1m (2021: £nil). No deferred tax liability is recognised in respect of equity financial assets.

2022 2021

Shares £'000 Shares £/000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of 0.2 pence each 500,000,000 1,000 500,000,800 1,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1lianuary 105,158,950 210 105,158,950 210
Issued in the year - - - -
At 31 December 105,158,950 210 105,158,950 210

Share premium
The amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value less any costs attributable to the issue of new shares.

Share-based payment reserve

This represents the amount provided in the year in respect of share awards. The Company has operated long term incentive plans (including JSOP
and CSOP) and a numbey of SAYE schemes far the employees in the Company and the Group, 5ee note 14 to the Group Financial Statements for
details of the LTIP, JSOF, CSOP, SIP/BAYE and the SAYE schemes. The effect of share-based payment transactions on the Campany’s profit for the
period was a charge of £1.5m (2021: charge of £1.1m)}.

Shares held by EBT

Shares held by EBT represent the cost of LSL shares purchased in the market and heid by the Trust to satisfy future exercise of aptions under the
Group’s employee share options schemes, At 31 Dacember 2022 the Trust held 1,063,097 (2021: 1,042,276) LSL shares at an average cost of £3.72
(2021: £2.95), The market value of the LSL shares at 31 December 2022 was £4.1m (2021: £3.1m)}. The nominal value of each share is 0.2 pence.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of LSL shares purchased in the market as a result of a share buy back scheme which commenced in April 2022 and
ceased in September 2022, At 31 December 2022, LSL had repurchased 1,179,439 (2021: nil} LSL shares at an average cost of £3.38 (2021: £nil). The
market value of the LSL shares at 31 December 2022 was £4.1m (2021 £nil}. The nominal value of each share is G.2 pence.

Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve is used to record the changes in fair value of equity financial assets.

14, Company loss for the financial year after tax ' :

The Company has not presented its cown profit and loss account as permitted by Section 408 of the Campanies Act 2006. The loss after tax for the
year was £22.4m {2021: profit of £41.0m).

Remuneration paid to Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 14 to the Group Financial Statements.
The Company paid £0.5m (2021: £0.4m) to its auditors in respect of the audit of the Financial Statements of the Company.

Fees paid to the external auditors and their associates for non-audit services to the Company itself are not disclosed in the individual accounts of the
Company because group financial statements are prepared which are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis. These are disclosed in
note 10 to the Group Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements conined
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Total contributions to the defined contribution schemes in the year were £186,386 {2021; £53,778). The amount outstanding in respect of pensions
as at 31 December 2022 was Enil (2021; £nil).

The Parent Company headcount at 31 December 2022 was nil {2021: nil}. This is due to employment contracts being drawn up within the subsidiaries
and not within the Parent Company itself.

16, Related party transactions

During the year the transactions entered into by the Company are as follows:

Sales to related Purchases from Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
parties related parties retated parties related parties
£060 £000 £'000 £'000
Wholly owned subsidiaries

2022 - - 35,866 82,521
2021 — — 35,528 67,584
Sales to related Purchases from Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
parties related parbies relatad partres related partes
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries
2022 - - a5 522
2021 — - — 544

17. Financial instruments — risk management : :

The Company’s principal finzndal instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents with access to a £90m loan facility. The Company’s loan facility
was amended and restated during February 2023 with a new credit limit of £60m, The main purpose of these financtal instruments is 1o raise finance
for the Company’s operations and to fund acquisiticns. The Company has various financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, cash and
short term deposits and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It i the Company’s palicy that trading in derivatives shall not be undertaken. The Company may, from time to time and as necessary, enter into
interest rate swaps for risk management purposes but did not hold a2ny such swaps during either the current or prior year,

The Company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:
» interest rate risk;
¢ liguidity risk; and
+  credit risk.

Palicy for managing these risks is set up by the Board following recommendations from the Group Chief Financial Officer. The policy for each of the
above risks is described in more detail below,

Interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily te the Group’s leng term debt obligations with fioating interest
rates. The majority of external Group borrowings are at variable interest rates based on the Bank of England base rate plus a margin and this policy is
managed centrally. The subsidiaries are not permitted to borrow from external sources directly withcut approval from the Group Finance team.

The Group has nct drawn down on its RCF facility during the year to 31 December and therefore has incurred no interest, the amount shown in
interest expense relates to the amartisation of the facility fees.

Liquidity risk

The Company aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its cperations, dividend policy and acquisition strategy. Acquisitions are
carefully selected with authorisation limits operating up to Group Board level and cash payback periods applied as part of the investrnent appraisal
process.

The Campany monitars its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liguidity planning tool and daily cash flow reporting. This includes
consideration of the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (for example accounts receivable, and other financial assets) and
projected cash flows from operations. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility for potential
acquisitions through the use of its banking facilities.
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At 31 December 2022, the Group had available £90.0m of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had
been met (2021: £90.0m).

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2022 based on contractual undiscounted
payments:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Less than
On demand 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5vyears > 5 years Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
{including overdraft} 4,826 - - - - 4,826
Trade and other payables - 85,536 - — — 85,536
4,826 85,536 - - - 90,362
Year ended 31 December 2021
Lass than
COn demand 3 months 3 to0 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
£000 £000 £'000 €000 £000 £'000
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
{including overdraft) 4,548 - - - - 4,948
Trade and other payables - 71,754 - - - 71,754
4,848 71,754 - - - 76,702

The liquidity risk of the Company entity is managed centrally by the Group Treasury function. The Company’s cash requirement is monitored closely,
The Company has a RCF with a syndicate of major banking corporations to manage longer term borrowing requirements.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains appropriate capital structure to support 1ts business
objectives, including any regulatory requirements, and maximise shareholder value. Capital includes share capital and other equity attributable to the
equity holders of the parent.

In the medium to long term, the Company will strive to maintain a reasonabie leverage (ie balance between debt and equity) to help achieve the
Company's business objectives of growth (through acquisitions and organic growth) and dividend policy. In the short term, the Company does not
have a set leverage ratio to be achieved but the Directors monitor the ratio of net debt to operating profit to ensure that the debt funding is not
excessively high.

Credit risk
There are na significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company.

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilitics
Treasury policy is described in the note above.

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liakilities of the Company as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3-4 years Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Floating rate
Cash and cash eguivalents (4,826) - - - {4,826}

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at 31 December 2021 are as foliows:

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3-4 years Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fiooting rate
Cash and cash equivalents {4,848) - — - {4,548)
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements certnued.
for the year ended 31 December 2022

'17. Financial instruments —risk management {continued)

Foir values of financig! assets and finoncial liabilities

The fair values for the majorty of the financial instruments have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at interest rates
prevailing for a comparable maturity period for each instrument. There are no material differences between the book value and fair value for any of
the Company's financial instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the financial instruments by valuation technigque:

« tevel 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets cr liabilities;

« Level 2: other technigques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are chservable, either directly or
indirectly; and

» level 3: technigues which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recerded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabitities.

Level 1 . Level 2 Level 3

2022 £'000 £'000 £°000 £7000
Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets 115 - - 115

tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3

2021 £'000 £000 £000 £7000
Assets measured at fair value

Financial assets 4,610 - - 4,610

The fair value of equity financial assets that are not traded in the open market of £0.1m {2021; £4.6m) are using level 3 techniques in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy and the Management Team use all relevant and up to date information (including cash flow forecasts and financial
statements) to arrive at their judgement. Where appropriate a range of potential outcomes is considered in reaching a conclusion.

18. Assets held for sale )

Amounts classified as he!d for sale include the Company's investment in, and intercompany receivable from Marsh & Parscns (Heldings) Limited. The
composition of assets held for sale on the balance sheet is set out below:

Total
£°000
Assets held for sale
Investments 28,850
Amount owed by group undertakings —
At 31 December 2022 28,850

As disclosed in note 5 the Company's investment in Marsh & Parsons {Holdings} Limited was impaired by £17.0m at 31 Decernber 2022. The
intercompany receivable due from Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited of £1.3m (2021: £1.3m) is not considered to be recoverable and therefore an
expected credit loss has been created for the fult amount, the amount owed by Group undertakings presented above is shown net of this amount.

18. Events after the reporting period

On 26 January 2023, the Group announced the sale of Marsh & Parsons (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiary Marsh & Parsons Umited, together
“Marsh & Parsons”, to a subsidiary of Dexters London Limited for a consideration of £28m payable on completion, subject to working capital
adjustments.

In February 2023, the Group amended and restated its banking facility which runs to May 2026 with a new limit of £60m; this replaced the previous
RCF which had a maturity date of May 2024 and credit limit of £90m.

In April 2023, the Group invested an additional £0.2m into Pivotal Growth to continue to support its buy and build growth strategy.
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Definitions

“Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share” or “Adjusted Basic EPS” is defined at note 11 to the Financial Statements.

“Adjusted EBITDA” is Group Underlying Operating Profit [note 5 to the Financial Statements) plus depreciation on property, plant and eguipment.
“AGM” annual generai meeting

“Advance Mortgage Funding” Advance Mortgage Funding Limited.

“Albany” Albany Insurance Company (Guernsey) Limited.

*AR" appointed representative.

“Asset Management” refers to LSUs repossessions, asset management and property management services for multi-property landlords.
“Audit & Risk Committee” LSU's Audit & Risk Committee.

“Auditor Independence Policy” LSL pohcy relating to non-audit services provided by the external auditor

"Basic Earnings per Share” or “EPS” is defined at note 11 to the Financial Statemeants.

"Board”/“Board of Directors” the board of Directors of LSL.

“BAYE” Buy As You Earn {zlso referred to as SIP).

“BDS” BDS Mortpage Group Limited.

“B2B" business to business.

“CAGR” compound average growth rate.

"Chair Designate” refers to David Barral.

“Committee(s)” refers to LSL's Nominations Committee, the Audit & Risk Commitiee, the Remuneration Committee and the Disclosure Committee.
“Company” and “Parent Company” refers to LSL Property Services plc.

“CBI” Confederation of British industry.

“"Corporate Governance Report” the Corporate Governance and Nominatiens Committee Report contained within this Report.
“Code” UK Code of Corporate Governance published by the Financial Reporting Council {(FRC) {July 2018 egition).

"Company Secretary” Sapna B. FitzGeraid.

“CEQ” Chief Executive Officer, David Stewart.

“CFO” Chief Financial Officer, Adam Castleton.

“COQ” Chief Operating Officer, David Akinluyi.

“COVID-19” coronavirus.

“€80" Chief Strategy Cfficer, Andy Deeks.

“C50P” Company Share Ownership Plan,

“CTO" Chief Technolcgy Officer.

“CTP" climate transition plan.

“Data and information Security Committee” or “DISC” L5SL's Data and Information Security Committee.

“Davis Tate” trading name of Navis Tate | td.

“DEFRA” Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs.

“Director” an Executive Director or Non Executive Director of LSL.

“Division(s)” refers to each of our Financial Services, Surveying & Valuation and Estate Agency divisions.

“DLPS” or “Direct Life and Pension Services” or “Direct Life and Pensions” Direct Life and Pension Services Limited.
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“DPG” Data Protection Cfficer,

“DZC” direct o consumer.,

“EBITA” earning, before interest, taxes, and amortisation.

“EBITDA" earnings, before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation.

“Elsevier” Elsevier Limited.

“Embrace Financial Services” or “EFS” Embrace Financial Services Limited.

“EPS™ earnings per share.

“EPC” energy performance certificate

“Ernst & Young” Ernst & Young LLP

“ESG” Environmental, Social and Governance.

“ESQS” Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme.

“ES0T” L5L's employee share scheme.

"ESOT Trustees” Apex Financial Services {Trust Company) Limited.

"Estate Agency Division” or “Estate Agency” this refers to Residential Sales, Lettings and Asset Management businasses.
“e.surv” or “e.surv Chartered Surveyors” trading names of e.surv Limited.

“EWG” LSL's Environmental Working Group.

“Executive Committee” Executive Committee of the Group, which includes the Executive Directors.
“Executive Director(s)” David Stewart, Adam Castleton and Helen Buck {up to 31 March 2023},
“EU” European Union.

“FCA” Financial Conduct Authority.

“Financial Services Division” or “Financial Services” or “FS” refers to L5L's financial services division {including mortgage, non-investment insurance
brokerage services and the operation of L51s intermediary networks).

“Financial Services Networks” or “Networks” refers to the PRIMIS Network and TMA mortgage club.
“Financial Services Other” refers to Pivotal Growth, New Homes businesses, D2C and technology businesses (Mortgage Gym and DLPS}),
“First2Praotect” First2Protect Limited.

“First Complete” First Complete Limited.

“Financial Statements” financial statements contained in this Report,

“FRC” Financial Reporting Council.

“FTE” full time equivalent.

“Global Property Ventures” refers to Global Property Ventures Limited.

“Group” LSL Property Services plc and its subsidiaries.

“Group First” Group First Ltd, holding company of Mortgages First Ltd and Insurance First Brokers Ltd.
“Group Revenue” total revenue for the LSL Group.

“Group Underlying Cperating margin” Group Underlying Operating Profit divided by Group Revenue.
"Goodfellows” trading name of GFEA Limited.

"Hawes” or “Hawes & Co” trading name of Hawes & Co Limited.

“HMRC” His Majesty’s Revenue and Customs,
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Definitions

“Homefast Property Services” Homefast Property Services Limited.

“Home Repert” a report which includes a single survey, energy report and property guestionnaire and which must accompany all residential property
marketing in Scotland.

“|AS” International Accounting Standards.

"IBNR" Incurred But Not Reported.

“ID&E” Inclusion, Diversity and Equality.

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards.

“Insurance First Brokers” Insurance First Brokers Ltd.

“Intercounty” trading name ot ICIEA Limited.

“I8" information security.

“INP” trading name of INP Estate Agents Limited.

“ISQP” joint share ownership plan.

“Korn Ferry” trading name af Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited.

“KPI” key performance indicators,

“Land & New Homes” LSL Land & New Homes Ltd.

“Lauristons” tracing name of Lauristons Limited.

“LMS” LMS Direct Conveyancing Limited and Cybele Solutions Holdings Limited.

“Linear” and “Linear Financial Solutions” are trading names of Linear Mortgage Network Limited,
“Living Responsibly Report” report published on cur website setting out our Living Responsibly strategy and programme.
“LSE” London Stock Exchange.

“LSLI" LS Umited and its subsidiary companies {during 2022 these included INP, Intercounty, David Frost Estate Agents Limited, Goodfellows, Davis
Tate, Lauristons, Hawes & Co and Thomas Morris).

“LSL”, “Group” and “Parent Cormnpany” refers to LSL Property Services plc and its subsidiaries.
“LSL Corporate Client Department” trading name of LSL Corporate Client Services Limited.
“LTIP” Long Term Incentive Plan.

“Management” refers to the Group’s management tearns.

"MAR” the UK Market Abuse Regulation.

“Marsh & Parsans” trading name of Marsh & Parsons Limited.

“Mortgages First” Mortgages First Ltd.

“Mortgage Gym” Mortgage Gym Sclutions Ltd.

“Net Bank Debt” see note 35 to the Financial Statements.

“Net Cash” see note 35 to the Financial Statements

“New Buitd” refers to RSC New Homes Limited and the Group First companies.

“NFM” nen-financial measures.

“NJ” national insurance.

“Non Executive Director” refers, during 2022, to Gaby Appleten, Darrell Evans, Bill Shannon, Simon Embley and Sonya Ghobrial. Since 3 April 2023 it
also includes David Barral.
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“Notice of Meeting” the circular made avallable to shareholders setting out cetails of the AGM.
“Numis” Numis Securities Limited.

“QC1” refers to other comprehensive income.

“Palmer and Harvey” trading name of Palmer & Harvey McLane Limited.

“PDMRs” Persans Discharging Managerial Responsibility as defined in Article 3(1) (25) of UK MAR.
“Personal Touch Financial Services” or “PTFS” Personal Touch Financial Services Limited.

“Personal Touch Administration Services” or “PTAS” Personal Touch Administration Services Limited.
“Pivotal Growth” Pivotal Growth Limited.

“Pt’ professional indemnity.

“Pt Costs” costs relating to ongong and expected future Pl claims relating to Surveying & Valuation business.
“Pollen Street Capital” or "PSC” Pollen Street Capital Limited.

“PRIMIS Network” or “PRIMIS” 2 trading name of Advance Mortgage Funding Limited, First Complete Limited, and Personal Touch Financial Services
Limited.

“PRSImM” refers to our private rented sector property management business which was divested in the first quarter of 2023.
“RCF” Revolving Credit Facility,

“Reeds Rains” trading name of Reeds Rains Limited.

“Registered Office” Newcastle House, Albany Court, Newcastle Business Park, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE4 7YB.
“RELX” RELX Group plc.

“Report” LSL's Annual Report and Accounts 2022.

“RICS” Rovyal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

“Road to Health” RoadtoHealth Group Ltd.

“RNIB” Reyal Nationa! Insitute for the Blind.

“RSC New Homes"” or “RSC” RSC New Hormes Limited.

“Sainsbury’s” Sainsbury’s Supermarkets Limrted.

“SAYE” Save As You Earn.

“SBTi" Science Based Targets.

“SECR” Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting.

“Senior Management Team” or “Senior Managers” includes three Executive Directors, and the Executive Committee and their direct reports,
excluding PAs and administrators.

“51P” Share incentive Plan (also referred to as BAYE).

"Surveying & Valuation” refers to e.surv Limited (including where it trades as Walker Fraser Steel).
“Templeton” trading name of Templeton LPA Limited.

“TCFD" Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures,

“The Property Franchise Group” or “TPFG” The Property Franchise Group plc.

“Thomas Moarris” trading name of Thormas Morris Limited.

“The Mortgage Alliance” or “TMA” are trading names of Advance Mortgage Funding Limited’s mortgage ciub.

“TM Group” TM Group Limited.
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Definitions

“Toolbox” PRIMIS's end-to-end customer services platform.

“Treasury Shares” shares heid in treasury with no dividend rights and no voting rights at L5L's general meetings.
“Trust” L3Ls BlF trust.

“Trustees” Link Market Services {Trustees) Limited.

"TSR” Total Shareholder Return.

"UKLA” UK Listing Authaority.

“Underlying Cperating margin” operating profit before exceptional costs, contingent consideration, amortisation and share-based payments shown
as a percentage of turnover,

“Ureerlying Operating Prufil/Loss” befure exceplivnal costs, contingent consideration, amertisation of intangibie assets and share-based payments.
“VEM"” or “Vibrant Energy Matters” Vibrant Energy Matters Limited.

“Walker Fraser Steele” a trading name of e.surv Limited.

"YOPA” YOPA Property Limited.

“¥TD" year to date.

“Your Move” trading name of your-mave.co.uk Limited,

“Zeus” Zeus Capital Limited.
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AT FEATE

Shareholder Information
(including forward looking statements information)

Company details

LSL Property Services plc

Registered in England {company number 5114014)
LEI NumBer 2138001 4v VIS vRaL /3708

Registered office

Newcastle House, Albany Court, Newcastle Business Park, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE4 7YB
Telephone: 0181 233 4600

Email: investorrelations@Islps.co.uk

Wabsite: Islps.co.uk

yoday anioy 3%

Company Secretary’s office
Howard House, 3 5t Mary's Court, Blossom Street, York, Y024 1AH
Email: investorrelztions @lslps.co.uk

Share listing
LSL Property Services plc 0.2 pence ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange under ISIN GBOOBIGSHX72

Registrar

Link Group, 10" Floor, Central Square, 29 wellington Street, Leeds, 11 4DL

Telephone: 0371 664 0300

Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the UK will be charged at the applicable international rate. Link Group
is open between 09:00 -17:30, Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales.

Website. finkgroup.eu
Email: shareholderenguiries@linkgroup.co.uk

If you move, please do not forget to let the registrar know your new address.

Independent Auditors:
Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place
London

SE12AF

United Kingdom

ajeadsd Buipnpul Loday s101840

{52002 99LILILID) pUE SHIOURY 9IURLITADD

Brokers:

Numis Securities Limited §
Zeus Capital Limited 2

¢
Calendar of events g
Preliminary results released 13 April 2023 %
AGM proxy form deadline 23 May 2023 =
AGM 25 May 2023 5t 3.15 pm

The AGM will be held at 210 Euston Road, London, NW1 ZDA. The Notice of Meeting details the proposed resolutions.

In accordance with our articles of association, we publish shareholder informatian, including notice of AGMs and the Annual Report and Accounts on our
website {islps.co.uk), Reducing the number of communications sent by post not anly results in cost savings to us, it also reduces the impact that unnecessary
printing and distribution of reports has on the environment.

Our articles of association enable all communications between us and our shareholders to be made in electronic form (as permitted by the Companies Act
2006}, Documents will be supplied via our website to shareholders who have not requested a hard copy or provided an email address to which documents of
information may be sent. Where a shareholder has consented to receive information via the website, a letter will be sent to the shareholder on release of any
information directing them to the website {slps.co.uk).

If a shareholder wishes to continue to receive hard copy documents, they should contact Link Group {detals above).

Forward looking statements

This Report may contain certain statements that are forward looking statements. They apgear in a number of places throughout this Report and include
statements regarding L5L’s intentions, beliefs or current expectations and those of its officers, directors and employees concerning, amongst other things, LSU's
results of operations, financial candition, liquidity, praspects, growth, strategies and the business it operates. By their nature, these statements involve risks
and uncertainty since future events and circurmnstances can cause results and developments to differ materiaiiy from those anticipated. The forward looking
statemnents reflect knowledge and information available at the date of preparation of this update and, unless otherwise required by applicable law, £SL
undertakes ne obligation to update or revise these forward looking statements. Nothing in this update should be construed as a profit forecast. LSL and its
Directors accept no liability to third parties in respect of this update save as would arise under English law. Information about the management of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing LSL is set out within the Strategic Report on pages 25 to 29.
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Any forward looking statements in this Report speak only at the date of this Report and LSL undertakes no obligation to update publicly or review any
forward looking statement to reflect new information or events, circumnstances or developments atter the date of this Keport.
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LSL Property Services plc
{slps.co.uk
Registered in England

ICompany number £114014)
Registered office:

Newcastle House

Albany Court

Newcastle Business Park

Newcastle upon Tyne

NE4 7YB

Email: investorrelations @isips.co.uk



